Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA
Tuesday, April 12, 2022
Library
5:30 p.m. — Regular Session

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

If you wish to participate in this public meeting through a Zoom webinar, please register in advance at the
following address:

You are invited to a Zoom meeting.
When: Apr 12,2022 05:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)

Register in advance for this meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZ0afu2prT8iE9w2iZelBVs71 KNeCDeSxI-1

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the meeting.

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to a meeting of the Board of
Education of the District can be inspected at the above address during normal business hours.
Individuals who require special accommodations including, but not limited to, American Sign Language
interpreter, accessible seating or documentation in accessible formats should contact the superintendent
or designee within a reasonable time before the meeting date.

Governing Board Members
Shannon Clay, President
Kelly Salas-Ernst, Clerk
Thomas Gibbons, Trustee
Daniella Pearce, Trustee
Jeania Reasner, Trustee

I. PUBLIC SESSION: 5:30 p.m. Call to Order and Flag Salute

II. Welcome Guests

III.  Reports
A. Charter School Reports
i. Family Partnership Charter School

ii. Trivium Charter School
iii. Trivium Charter School: Adventure
iv. Trivium Charter School: Venture

B. Teacher Reports

C. Principal’s Report

~ 1 ~
April 12,2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



IV. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION
A. Facilities
i. General maintenance
B. Facilities Use - Taylor Estes; 7 tables/40 chairs; 3/19/2022

V. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION

A. 2022/2023 budget and LCAP public hearing and adoption dates
i. June 14, 2022 regular meeting at 5:30 p.m.
ii. June 16, 2022 special meeting at 5:00 p.m.
B. LCAP - The public is invited to make comments and suggestions.
C. Board meeting times for 2022/2023
D. Developer fee study
E. PG & E License Agreement

VI. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

A. Approval of Minutes
i. Minutes of March 8, 2022 Regular Meeting

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Minutes as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — March, 2022

i. Payroll $ 174,845.45
ii. Commercial Warrants $ 51,417.68
iii. Revolving Fund $ 0.00

TOTAL $226,263.13

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Warrants as
presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay; Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce; Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

C. Approval of the 2021/2022 Second Interim Report for Family Partnership Charter
School:

~ 2 ~
April 12, 2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve Family Partnership
Charter School’s 2021/2022 Second Interim Report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

D. Approval of the following 2021/2022 Second Interim Reports:
i. Trivium Charter School
ii. Trivium Charter School: Adventure
ili. Trivium Charter School: Voyage

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the 2021/2022 Second
Interim Reports as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

VII. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of the Benjamin Foxen Elementary School March 2022 Attendance Report.

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Benjamin Foxen
Elementary School March 2022 Attendance Report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

B. Approval of First Quarter 2022 Williams Report

*** T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the First Quarter 2022
Williams Report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

~ 3 ~
April 12,2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



C. Approval of the 2022/2023 Blochman Union School District calendar.

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
2022/2023 Blochman Union School District calendar as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

D. Approval of the Blochman Union School District Public Disclosure of Proposed
Collective Bargaining Agreement.

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the Public
Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

E. Approval of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Blochman Union School
District and Blochman Teachers’ Association for the period July 1,2022 through
June 30, 2024.

**% I'T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
Collective Bargaining Agreement as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

F. Approval of the Blochman Union School District 2022/2023 salary schedules:
i. Certificated

i. Classified

iii. Special Education Director/School Psychologist

iv. Superintendent

ot o

***% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
2022/2023 salary schedules as presented:

~ 4 ~
April 12, 2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



MOVED: SECOND:

VOTE:
Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

G. Approval of the Blochman Union School District 2023/2024 salary schedules:
i. Certificated
ii. Classified
iii. Special Education Director/School Psychologist
iv. Superintendent

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
2023/2024 salary schedules as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay; Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

H. Approval of the revised 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 Consolidated Application:

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the revised
2020/2021 and 2021/2022 Consolidated Application as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

I. Approval of the contract with Document Tracking Services:

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the contact
with Document Tracking Services as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

J. Approval of revised board policies:
i. BP 4030; E 4112.9; E4212.9; E4312.9; AR5111; BP5111; AR5113; E5145.6;
AR6173; BP6173; E6173; BYLAW9322

~ 5 ~
April 12,2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the revised
board policies as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

K. Approval of the inter-district transfers:

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the inter-
district transfers as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE WELCOME
The Blochman Union School District will receive public comments about items not appearing on
today’s agenda, as well as other matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. All such
comments will be received during the Public Comments section of the agenda. Individuals who
address the Board are limited to three (3) minutes to speak on any item and a total of 10 minutes on all
items for their presentation. The Board may limit the total time for all public comment to 30 minutes.
Persons needing additional time are requested to submit the information in writing,.

For comments concerning matters not on the agenda, open meeting laws and fairness to other
residents who may have an interest in your topic prohibit the Board from taking action or engaging in
extended discussion of your concerns. The Board may direct staff to meet at a later date with speakers
who have specific concerns or needs. The Board may also direct that an issue be placed on a future
agenda for discussion and consideration. This permits the Board and staff members to prepare and
receive necessary information and for the public to be aware that a topic is being formally considered.
We appreciate your cooperation.

IX. MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS
A. Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion
B. Blochman Union School District Board Member Items
C. Items not on the Agenda
D. Next Scheduled Board Meeting: May 10, 2022; open session at 5:30 p.m.; Library.

X. CLOSED SESSION — The board will consider and may act upon the following items
during closed session:
A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Actions
i. The Board will be asked to review and approve hiring, transfers, promotions,
evaluations, terminations, and resignations.
B. Stipends for extra work created by the pandemic

~6 ~

April 12,2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



XI.  Reconvene in open session
A. Report of action taken during closed session.

XII. Adjourn

Time:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

~ 7 ~
April 12, 2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda






£9 J0 T aded 12143517 |00YdS AlRIUBWS|T UOjUN UBWYIO|g JO} UB|d ALl|IGBIUNOJDY [0JIU0)D |BIOT £2-2202

e buiiayo uo jjasy sapud j0oyds Alejuswalg uaxo uiweluag ‘|ooyos siyy Jo pnoid Ajawaixe ale Ajunwwod siy) ui ajdoad ay] JousIp

Ino jo sispoddns |etoueuy [BAO| @G 0} 8NUKUOD [|IM puUe ugaq aAey saluedwod |10 pue speAsula sy "saluedwod |10 pue spJeAsuiA |njssa0ons
a|dijInw Se ||am SE BluIOy|B ) Ul SSBUISN( }SBP|0 3y} O} WY SI JOU)SIP UBWIYD0|g 8Y | "SHIeWpUE| [BOLIO}SIY |BISASS SUIBJUOD pue AIojsiy

ul you s| eale siy} ‘|lews Ajie} si JoLysip ayy o uonejndod ay} 3|IYa “Alunos) eleqieg BIUBS Ul SJOUISIP JOOYOS }SBP|0 Y} JO 8UO SI uBwyo0|g

uoljewJojuj |eJauan)

[€2-2202] Aewwing ue|d

8v11-/£6-G08 jedivugauspusjuuadng
B1o'psnuewysojg@umolgp

umolig bnoQ 101381 [00Y9S Alejusawa)d uoiun uewyaoig

‘a)ejdwa) ayj mojjos (dv¥D1) ueld A}|IgeIUN022Yy pue [oJ3uoq [ed07 ayj Bupajdwos 10j suoijondisul ay |

ue|d A}1]iqeIUNO022Y [0J3UO0D [ED0T]




/9 Jo 7 98ed 19143510 |00Y2S AJBIUBWS|T UOIUM UBWIYDO|g JO} UB|d All|{GBIUNOIIY |0JIUOD) [BDOOT €2-2202

"y |BOS) Ul passalppe aJe ss900ns siy} uo Buip|ing pue Bulurejuiew 1o} spoyjaw InQO "%9’ | 8q 0} djel
uoisuadsns | Z0z/020Z IN0 SMoys }sanpeleq ‘18AeMOH '0Z0Z Ul paysiignd jou sem pijeogyseq |00YoS BIUIOJED Y| — d)ey uoisuadsng ,

"04,0 SEM 120Z/020Z 10} 8)el 1no-doip |ooyds S[ppIW JnQ - a)el Jno-dosp |00yos S|pPIA «

'dvO1 ¥20¢/120¢

3y} JO Z puk | S|BOS) Ul poJO9|jal SB 9IUSI0S pue Yjew uo sa21nosal 4y Jno jo Auolew ay) snooy pue sajbajel)s jJualind Jno YjIm anuiuod
0} ue|d am 0s wWn[NaLIND suy abenbueysiBug jsnqol B aAey am Jey) |98} siapjoyaxels JnQ Yooq Buipeals e Buisn jsnf uey} AjoAoaya
alow s|1qs Buipeal suapnis yoes saosdwi o} djay ued wesboud siy] ~doysyiops Buipesy ‘pajjes Buipeal jo Buiyoes) uno o} yoeoidde

Mau e paonpoujul osje aAey apn "Aj9oiu ubije sjuswssasse Buipeal JNO pue WNNJLLIND JNO 0S ‘4IOM S ||duUlld pue SBJUNO- U0 paseq Palana)
ale s300q Buipeal 1no ul sauols ay] ‘sAauinop - wnjnouuNg suy abenbue mau Jno JO SIoyjNe 8y} JO BUO SBM ‘[|Buuld @ SBjuno JO ‘Sejuno
‘Alleul4 -Buipeas ul jan9| apelb 1e si Juapnis e Jayjaym jno Buijodas uaym jua)siSUOD aJoW awo2aq [00Yds e sk sn sdjay siy| "apelb ay)

1xa Aoy} uaym aq pinoys Aayj |aAs] yaiym je uayj pue apelb e iajus Aay) usym aq pjnoys juapnis B [aA3] yoiym buimoys sauljepinb sapinoid
os|e wajsAs ay| ‘[oA9] Buipeas sjuapnis e Buissnosip uaym sisAjeue Jo spJepuels awWes ay} asn ues Aayj Jey} 0S JUSWISSASSE JO Wa)SAS Siy)
Buisn uo paules; usaq Mou aABY ‘G - H ‘siayoea} ||y "uoisuayaidwod pue soluoyd yiog sapnjour ydiym |ixs Buipeal jo Auxsjdwod uiensd e uo
paseq sjuapnis S|aA3|, Yoiym ‘WasAg juswissassy ylewyouag ay) ‘yoeolsdde paziwalsAs e padojanap aaey Aayl saijijiqe Buipeas sjuspnis
Ino ssasse 0} weiboid |jsuuld % sejuno4 ay} Buisn os|e ale app ‘sieak 9aJy) Jsed ay} JOAO padnpoujul usaq aAey jey) swelboid Jayjo pue
‘Buiupn 01 dn deis azijiin ‘welboid Apeay-| 8yl ulyim punoy seainosal ay) buiziin Aq w13 ui anosdwi sjuspnis djay 0} enuijuod o} uejd app

"G |BOD) Ul passalppe si aouewlopad 3 ‘suoliejoadxa ymolb papeasoxs 1o jJaw sjuapnis

Jo jusosad AJXIS “MO|aq S|aA8] apelD alow J0 931y} 819M %8 PUB ‘M0|3q S|aAs] apelb om] aiam 9,/ ‘Mojaq [9A8] apelb auo ale 9,¢ce ‘[ans
apeib anoge 10 1k ale 9%zG eyl smoys Buipeas Joj ejep aouewlopad juapnis (v13) sHy abenbue/ysibul [eoo) Jo sisAjeue uy "yjew pue
Buipeas ul ssaiboud s juspn)s e sassasse Jey) welboid paseq paouspine ue si Apeay-| ‘ssalboid Juapn)s ssasse 0} WajsAs Apeay-| oy} Wouy
BJEp |BD0| pash am ‘aJojaiay| "payslignd jou aiam spieoqyseq [00Yos eiuioyeD LzZ0Z a4} pue 0zZ0g ay) ‘olwepued 61-AIAOQD 8yl 0} @nQg

S9SS999NG :SUOI}I3|J9Y

%¥ 1"l - UedlBWY UBJLY/MOB|H,

%69° 1 - SAllEN UBXSE|Y/UBIPU| UBJOLIBWIY/,

%922 — 48ul0/aldnIn|AL.

%94 S¥ — UM«

%G1 6% - dluedsiH,

'SMOJ|0} Se ale sojydesBoluap Jusapnlg "Pa|i0Jud YNoA J8)so} JO SSa|awoy ou ale alay ‘sisules’ yslibug ale

%8 pue pabejueApesip AJ|ESILLOUODS0ID0S ale SjuapN}s au} JO 9%/ AJualind a1aym |0oYyds 8-y e Si siy| 'sjuapnis //| O} SWOY sem |o0yds
Aejuattigg uaxo uiwelusag ‘| Z0zZ ‘0 1890100 JO SY "9ALY} UBD USJD{IYD YdIYyM Ul JUSLLUOIIAUS 9jesS B sk ||[am sk weiboid ojwepeose snosobu




/9 jo € 98ed 1UISIF |00YdS AIRIUBWIB|T UOIUM UBLIYDO|g JO} UB|d A1l|IQRIUNOJIY [041U0D) |BIOT £2-2202

‘@ouewJopad uapn}s 713 Jno anosdw| - ¢ |BOS
90UBI0S Ul dduewWIoMad Juapn)s anoldw| - Z [BOS
‘yrew ul asuewlopad juapnis aaoldw| - | |[BOS

'seale Buimo||o} 8y} Uo sasnoo) 4yD14no

“sJubNubIH dvo

"Z [BOS) Ul pa)s]| SIDIAISS pue SUONoe 8y} YIm aouaios Ul ssalboid ssaippe spn

"SJ8)SaLUI} Y}0q JBAO 8SIN0D 32USI0S JIay) Ul Ja)}aq JO g B PaAlaoal sjuapnis Jo 9, /9 ‘ebelane uQ ‘g
‘IXaU 8y} 0} Ja}salll} suo woJj sapelb aoualos Jisy) paaocldwi Jo paulejulew sjuspnis Jo %z9 ‘ebelane uQ |

:BUIMO||0} 3Y) pajeanal Jeak |00yos 2zZ0z/L 20z @Y} wol}

8 — G sopelb ul sjuspnjs o} ejep pieod Lodal [eoo] JO sISAjeur Uy ‘PIEPUE]}S 8Y) 188l Jou pIp SJUSPNIS INo JO %9/ 6 PUE ‘pJEpuUE]S ay} jaw
AjJeau sjuspnjs INo JO %0} 9G ‘@oUaI0s 0} pJEPUR]S 8Y) PaPeaIXa 10 J8W SJUSPN]S INO JO %G L HE ‘[|EISAO JBY} MOUS 610Z-810Z JO} s}jnsal
(1SVYD) 1s21 2oualog BluIoyED By} JO sisAleuy Jeak |ooyds 6102-810Z 8y} WO} SI ouaIos o} 3|qejieAe ejep Buijsa) pazipiepue)s Ise| syl

"€ |e0S) Ul passalppe si aouewlopad 113 "ymolb pejoadxe
pJemo) ssaiboid apew o,zz pue suonejoadxe yimolb papaaoxe sjuapnis Jo %G| ‘yiew u| Buipeals ul ymoib pajoadxa piemo} ssaiboud
apew ¢,z pue Buipeas ul suoneyoadxa ymolb papaaoxa 9,6z 1eY) pajeanal sjuapnys (173) Jausea] abenbue ysijbug ino jo Buiysa) Apeay-|

" |BOD) Ul passalppe s| aduewlopad yie ‘suonejoadxs ymolb

PapaadXa Jo JaW sjuapn)s Jo Juaosad uanas-AYl{ "Mojaq S[oAs| apelb aiow Jo 881y} a1aMm 96 PUB ‘MO|aq S|aAd| apelb om] a1am 90| ‘Mojaq
|on8| apeub auo ale 9,/ ‘|oA8] apelb aA0ge 10 JB 3k 9, {¢ 1BYl SMOUS Ylew Jo) ejep aduewlopad Juapnis |BJ0} JO SISAleue uy "yjew pue
Buipeas ul ssaiboud sjuspnis e sassasse jey] weiboid paseq pasuapins ue s| Apeay-| ‘ssaiboid Juapnis ssasse 0} wa)sAs Apeay-| ay} wouj
BJEp |BOO| Pasn am ‘alojaiay] -paysiignd Jou alam spieoqyseq |ooyos eiuloyjeD L Z0g aul pue 0zoz @y} ‘“diwspued 61L-QIAOD 3yl 01 anQg

PoON PaIIuBp| :SUOIJI9|}oY

"040 Sem ajel uois|ndxe 1L20z/020z InO - diey uoisindx3y ,




L9 0 v 38ed 10141510 [00Y2S Adelusiua|3 Uojun UBWYI0|gG 10} Ue|d AL|IRIUNOIDY |0JIUOD) (B0 £2-220T

‘Juswanoldwi pue poddns aaisuayaldwo? 1o} 9|qibijo se pailjuapl usaq aAeY Jey} S|O0YOS OU SABY SAA

SsouoAjoay g bunenjeay pue buLiojjuow

Juawanoidw pue poddns aaisuayaldwod Joy a|qibije se paljuspl usag aAeY }Jey} S|O0YIS OU SABY SN

s|00yog payuapj Joj poddng

‘Juswanoldwi pue poddns aaisuayaldwod 4o} 9|qibije se palljuapl usaq aAeY Jey} S|00YIS Ou SABY SAA

paynusp| sjooyss
‘sydwoid Buimojjoy ay) 0} puodsal }snw Juswaaoldwi pue poddns aaisuayaldwod 1o} 8|qibije s|ooyos o [00YdS B YIMm Y3 uy

juswaAolduw pue Joddng aaisusyaidwon

‘'spy abenbue/ysibug ut eouewlopad Juspnis anosdw| - G [BOD
‘8)JEWI|O |00YDS N0 9oUBYUS pue anoldwl| - p |BoS)




/9 0 G 98ed 1O1ISIJ |004IS AJBIUBWIS|T UOIUN UBWIYDO|g 40} UBld AYl|IQBIUNOIDY |04IUOD) |BOOT £2-2202

"saw09)no [1dnd ajesisuowap 0} Jeak ay} Jo 8sin0d 8y} Jnoybnoly) pajos||od ejep yim papiroid aiem siaquiaw ay |

2202 ‘v2 Ae\,

220z ‘Ge Menuep,

1202 ‘92 18q0)00,

'sajep Buimo||o} 8y} uo 4D ¥202/£202 — 2202/1Z202 @Y} PaSSnIsIp pue pamalAal [Iouno) a)ig |00ydg 8y L

"9)IsgaMm S,)011SIp 8y} uo pajsod
sem Bunesw siy} Jo 80110N ‘220z ‘Sz Aenuepr uo 4y £202/2202 8Y) Joj suoiysabbns apinoid 0} payse sem aapiwwo)) AOSIAPY 4vD 18Ul

"'sawo2)no idnd paaosdwi ajesjsuowap 0} Jeak

3y} Jo 8s1n02 ay} Jnoybnouy} pajo9|j0o BlEp YIM papiAcid alam siaquuawl 99jilwod 3y 'dvD1 ¥202/£202 - 2202/120Z dy} 4o} suoisabbns
ayew pue Juswwod o} Ajunpoddo ue uaalb alam pue ejep |ejuawajddns ay) pue dyD7 9y} POMSIASI S1aquUISW S3}ILUWOYD) "98}ILIWOD
a)eledas e 10} Juswalinbal ay} s ydiym sjuapnys Jausea ysiibug |G uey) sso| sey gsNg asnedaq palinbal jou si 8s)iwwod Dy 133a/0v13
djeledas y ‘siaquaw AJlUNWIWOD puk ‘sjuapnis 13 JO Sjualed ‘Yels pajediiuad ‘yels palyisse(o ‘sjualed jo dn apew S| 9a)IWW0o SIy]

2202 ‘vz Aeln,

(‘awy SIY} e 4D @y} 0} Juswajddns ay) pamalAal Os|e 2aILWod ayt) 2zZ0oz ‘Ge Aenuer,

1 202 ‘9¢ 1990120,

:sa)ep Buimo||o) 8y} Uo 4D ¥202/£202 — 2202/120Z @Y} PISSNISIP pue pamalnal 9ajiwo) AIoSIApY dvO1 8yl

"g)ewl|o |jooyas Buipsebal pakaains aiem g ybnouyy g sepelb
ul sjuepns “ajewl|o jooyos pue ssalboud Buiuses) Buipiebal siseq Bulobuo ue uo sJUBPNIS Y)IM Pa}NSU0 siojelisiuilupe pue sisydes}

"'S8WO03)N0

[enuue ay} azAjeue 0} pasn sem jey} sjuswanaiyoe jdwoid Buijum pue ssoualajuod jualed Buipiebal ejep papiaoid yejs pajeolina)d
"JuswaAalyoe Juapn)s Buipiebal pa)Nsuod sem Jejs pajediiua) ‘siseq Buiobuo ue uo payNSuoD aiam Jels PaIISSE|D pue Yejs pajediie)

"a)ISqoM S,1oUJsIp 8y} uo pajsod sem 4y ayj Jo sjeob pue asodind 8y} jJnoge uojewloul [euolippy Jeah ayj Buunp
S|EAISJUI SNOLIBA JB PaJONpuUOd 919M SJaquial AHUNWWOS pue ‘Yels palisSSe|o ‘siojelisiuipe ‘Yejs pajesiyipyad ‘sjualed ‘sjuapnis o) sAOAING

"SJUapPN)s 13 |G UBY) SJOW SABY JOU SABY JOU Op M Sk 93))iwwoy) AIOSIAPY 13 Ue aAeY jou
op SAA 'Siequiall AJIUNWWOD pue ‘UoIjeJ}SIUILLPE [00YDS ‘LE)S paljisse|o pajuasaldalun ‘(Jeys pajeslyitad) uojjeloossy s,Jaydses] uewyooig
3y} Jo slagqwaw ‘sjuapn)s ‘sjualed :ssaooid JuawidojaAap pue uoljenjeas dyO 8y} ul siauped [euoneonpa Buimoljo) sy} paAjoAUl JOLISIP 8y |

slaulied jeuoneosnpy buibebug



/9 0 9 a8ed 1213SIQ |00YaS AJBIUBWB|T UOIUN UBWYI0[g 0} UB|d A}ljIQBIUNOIDY |043UOD) |B207 £2-220C

‘¥ [BOS) Ul passalppe S| Sy "S}uapnis 10}
aJew|o |ooyas panosdwil 88s 0} anuljuod 0} 8yl pinom Aay) Jey} pajeoipul Asy ] ‘siseq Jejnbal e uo ssaiboid 4y 8yl pemalaal pieog ay]

"SJUBAS [00YDS SholeA Je uoljedidiued
jualed uo uoewlsoul pue ‘saloos jdwold Bunum ‘sadusiajuod Jayoea | Juaied ul uoiedidiled se yons elep [eo0| papiacid yels pajediie)

‘¥ |BOS) Ul paSSaIPPE S| BJBLIIO [00YIS ‘|O0YDS 8U} O} PaJoauUU0D 93] SJUSPN]S JSOW Jey) pamoys sAaAIns Juapns

"§ [BOS) Ul PASSAIPPE S| SIYL JUBWUOIIAUS 931} A||NQ B 8INSu8 0} Juem siauped [BUOJEONPS || | [BOS) Ul POSSaIPPE S L)
SIY] "S9J09s }S3} Yjew ul sjuswanoidwl 89s 0} Juem sjualed ‘sdnoub juaied yym Jaw [ediouiid 8y} JeaA jooyos ayj Buunp sswi snoleA 1y

(g 1e09) V13 pue (L]eo9) ylew ul ssaiboud Juapn)s ajen|eAa 0} [00} 8y} SN 0} SNUIUOD O} SBM SNSUSSUOD 8| °|00} uoljen|eas
sainseaw a|diinw Apeay-| ay} JO 8sn 8y} passnasIp siayoea) pue [edioulid 8y} Bunesw sspiwwon AIoSIApPY v Aenuep ay) Buung

'220Z ‘91 aunp uo Buieaw pieoq |eioads e Je pajdope sem }a6png s1oUISIP 8Y) Pue 4y O @Yl "220Z ‘vl
BUN[ UO P|aY SEM JUSLLILLOD pue UOISSNISIpP 10} pajuasald asam 1abpng s oulsip 8yl pue dv9T @yl yoiym je Buueay oiignd paoijou Apadoud v

'2202 01 2Unp Uo B)ISqaM JoLISIp Sy} UO S|qe[ieAR SEMm dyDT 9U} JO Jelp sje|dwod ay )

zeoz ‘oL Aen,
220¢ ‘2l udy,
:sbunjesw

pseoq JejnBas Buimolio} ay} 1e dvO1 ¥202/€20Z — 220Z/LZ0Z SY} JO YBIP B UO JUSLULLOD O} PajiAUL SBM dliqnd BU} PUB pemalAS) pJeod B

2202 '8 YyoseN.

Zeoe ‘g Aenugad,

220z ‘L1 Aenuer,

:sbunesaw pieoq Jejnbas Buimojo} ay) 1e ajepdn jenuue ayj UO JUBLUWOD O} pajiAul sem dignd ey} pue pamalnal pieoq ay|

"Spaau [euoi)dadxa yIm sjuapnis 1o} palinbal ale jey} suoljoe pue sasinas Buipiebal sojoalig
Vd13S 9y} woJj sajepdn sanlaoas ay asaym sbujesw s Jojeljsiuiupy uoieanpg [eloadg Ajyjuow spuajje J0joaliq uoneanp3 jeroads InQ




£9 j0 £ 98ed 12143510 |00YIS AuRIUIW|T UOIUN UBWYIO|g 104 UB|d AYI|IGEIUNOIIY |04IUOD) |BD0] £2-220C

¥ |0 Ul

passalppe S| aleLijo [00Yos 0] Juawaaoldwll panuijuod aas 0} }sanbai J1ay] dvD1 @yi Joj suoisabbns pue sjuswwod ayew o} Ajlunpoddo
ue way) aaeb sjeasajul Jejnbal Je pieoq ay} 01 4y @y} Buijuasald ‘sjuapnis Jo spasu ay} Jaaw o} Buiop ale Asy} 3Jom ay) pue sisuped
|euoneaonpa Jayjo abebua o) Bupjew ale siaydes) pue UoIelSIUILPE JOIISIP SHOYS 3y} Ulim paseald alam siaquiaw pieog JUsWUOIIAUS
|ooyos aAnonpoid pue aaisod e Buiney jo ped juepodwi ue si ssaoold 407 @y Buipiebas pabebua pue pawilojul siaquaw pleoq Buidesy

'dVD7 94} JO ¢ [BOS) Ui passalppe SI 8]ewlj0 [00Y0S 'SaljIAIJ0e SNdWEeD [Bwlou 0} Uinjal 0} a11sap 3y} passaldxe sjuapnig

‘ssalbolid |eob Jo uonenjeas ayj Ul pasn sem yejs pajesyiua) Aq papinoid ejep ay

"G — | S|eOS) Ul suoljoe
ay) 9]e|NWIO0} O} pasn alom siapjoyayels yum sbunasw Bulnp sjqeieae spew pue sAanins ybnouy) palayjeb suolsabbns pue sjuswwo)




L9 40 8 93ed

1DISIA |00YIS AIBIUBWS|T UOIUM UBWIYIO|g JO4 UB|d ALl|IQBIUNODDY [04IUOD) |BIOT £2-220C

"yrew ul Ajunuoddo
juswdo|ansp
|[euoissajold auo }seg)
Je aA180al Ajlenuue
[iM slayoea] - eg

"S]JUBpPN)S ||e 1o} snje}s
3y} MOJaq S[9A9| dlowl
Jo om} sdnoubgns

Oou Ypm yjew
ul ‘siaules) ysijbug
Buipnjour ‘syuspnis

[le Jo} pJeoqyseq
|OOY3S elulojije) sy}
uo snjejs Uaalo) - ey

‘posn aq {|Im
saJnseaw |0} JOYJ0
uay) ‘s|gejieaeun

ale sa109s buiysal
ajes §| ‘(S|qeliene

J1) sa109s Buljsa)

aje)}s ay} Ag painseaw
Se yz0c Jeah

|o0Yyos Jo pus ay} Aq
yjew Joj sal09s 1s9}
d]e}s Uo sawoo}no
uapnis anoudwi

0} sl | [BOD dVD14N0O

jeuolssajoud
2uo aAIa9al Ajjenuue
slayoes] - eg

'sjuiod /'0¢
pasealdu| ‘piepuels
mojaq sjutod GG

ale sjuapnjis Jouleg)
ysybu3 - yyew Joy
pijeoqyseq 6L/81 - ey
‘sjuiod z'G Aq pauljosp
‘pJepuels mojaq
sjuiod G| g ‘snjejs
abuelO -yjew o}
pJjeoqyseq 61L/8L - By

"ylew ui saijlunuoddo
juswdojanap
|leuoissajold pajuelb
2q |im sisyoesl Iy B
S2W09IN0

idnd Jauio g

ylew Joy
JUSWISSASSE ddSVYVYD

— pleoqyseq ‘e
Juswanalydy (idnd ‘p

sjinsay bBuipioday pue BurLinses|y

(sawooyno jidnd) sswooino jidnd JayiQ - 8
(sawo9yno [1dnd) Juswanasiyoe jidnd - ¢

:sanuold ajeys Buimoj|o) ay} sassalppe |eob siy] "yjew yjim aoUB)SISSE |euoljippe pasu sjuapnjs ssjedlpul os|e ejep

[e20| |.202/020Z 10 SisAeue Uy "snjels MojjoA B pausea sdnoibgns sjiypn pue dluedsiH Jno ajiym snjejs abuel ue Yjim }Semo| 8y} palods
dnoub Juspnjs pabejueapesip Aj|ESILIOUO290I00S INQ “Jeak Joud ay) wolj sjulod Z'G Ag pauljoap sa109s Juapn)s ||eJaao pue sdnoub juspnis
||e Jo} abueiQ SI 10|02 pJeoqyse( ||BJBAC JINO "yjew Ul sjuawaAcidwi aYew O} pasau sjuapnjs Jno jey) smoys sisAjeue pieoqyseq 6102

“pasn aq ||Im Sainsealu [e00| JBY}0 Uy} 9jge|leABUN aJe S2100s Bunsa) aje}s §| (S|qe|leAe }I) S8109S
Bulsa) aje)s ay) Aq painseaw se yzz Jeah |00yos JO pua ay} AqQ yjew Joj saI09s }Sa) 9]e)JS UO SBWO0I}NO0 Juapn)s anosdw| L

|eocO

SUOI}oy pue s|eos



L9 J0 6 38ed 1011SIJ [00Y3S AJBIUBWB|T UOIUN UBWYIO0|g JOJ uB|d A}][1GRIUN0IDY J0JIU0D (BD07 £2-220C

3y} Jo pua 3y} 1y
"yjew ui seilunuoddo

Buiureyy jeuoissayold
ypm papinold usaq
aABY SJayoea)} ||V

‘suoljejoadxa

ymmolib papaaoxa

1o Jaw sjuapn}s

JO Jua2Jad usnas-Ayi4
"M0|aq s|ana] apelb
2JoW 10 9aly} aIiom
%6 PUB ‘MO|9(q S[BA3|
apelb om} alam 9,0|
‘MO|3q [oA9] apelb
2Uo0 ale o4/ ‘|OA9)
apelb anoqe 1o je ale
%P 1By} smoys yjew
o} ejep aouewJlopuad
juapnjs |eoQ) Jo
sisAjeue uy "yjew pue
Buipeal ul ssaiboud
S,JUBpN}S B SOSSASSEe
1eyy weiboud

paseq padusapIAd

ue s| Apeay

-| ‘ssalboid juapnijs
SSASSE 0] Wa)SAS
Apeay-| ayj wou}
B]ED |BOO| Pasn am
‘alojaiay | "paysiignd
10U 8J9Mm spieoqyse(
|00Y3S ElUIOLED
120¢Z 3yj pue

020z 3y} ‘olwapued ‘Yrew ul Aypunuoddo

61-AINOD 8y} 63 anQg juswdo|anap




L9 40 0T a8ed

1013SIJ (00YIS AJRIUBW|T UOJUM UBWYDO0|g JOJ UB|d A}{]IGEIUNODIIY |0JILOD) |BIOT €£2-220Z

sjuejsisse
‘uoljuaAlaul |euoljonusul
10} SJUB]SISSE [BUOIIONIISUl SWI}-{|N} OM]) PUB Jayoea} UoljusAIajuI pue Jayoes}
SOA 00CLL'LPLS 314 G e apinoid jjIm am ‘Juswanalyoe Juapnis aAocidwi 0} J8pJo Uj|  UOIUBAISIU| 314 G (A’
‘s|idnd pajeoidnpun Joj uoddns osiwapede jeuoljippe apinoid
0} Joyoesa} WOOoISSe|O 8y} JO} S} 810w MO|[B SBSSE[D UOIBUIqUIOD uononpal
-UON 'S8SSEJO UOIJeUIqWIOD 10} paau 8y} adnpal 0} Jayoes} e Buizin SSE|D UOIBUIqUIOD
SOA 00'802'68% ale am ‘sjusapn]s [|e 1o} JusWwaAaIYyde Juapn)s anoldwi 0] JI8pIo U| 1o} Jayoea | (7

sSuonoy

‘Yrew

ui ssalsboud juapnis
yoeJy 0} welboud
Apeay -| ay} asn
Ajin}ssa0ons 0} Moy

ur Bulurely paniasal
slayoes) ‘os|y
‘Ajlunwwo? poddns
BUIUO UE 0} sSad0e
pue ‘sjeusnol |eybip

0] SSa00k ‘Sasinod
paoed-}|as |enplalpul
sapinoid weuboud siy |
‘weJlboud sonewayiep
JO slayoea |

JO [1oUN0) |BUOHEN
3y} Ul pajjoiua alam
sJayoea) ||e ‘Jeak

Io0Yds | 20¢/0¢0c




/940 TT a8ed 10141517 |00YIS AJBIUSWI|T UOIUM UBWYD0|g JO} UB|d AL{IGBIUNOIIY |0JIUOY) |BIOT £2-2207

|00}
Juswssasse Apeay-| ayj o uonIppe ay} SI SUOIIOB asay) 0 uolejuawaldwi [enjoe ay} pue suoljoe pauue|d ay} usamiaq adsualayip Ajuo ayl

"JeaA snoinald ayj ul Jno pallied Sem |eob SIY} Moy JO SISAjeue Uy

[¢Z-zz0Z] sisAjeuy |eoD

"yjew ul uononyisul Ayjenb ybiy sanap juswdojanap
0} Ajjige Jisy} anosdwi wayy djay 0} siayoea) Jno 0} saiiunpoddo [euolssajoud
ON 00°000°1$ juswdojanap |euoissajold pue Buiurel; apinold 0} anuljuod |Im apA| pue Butuiely Jayoea | o

"Sjuapnjs 10} Wa)SAs |elldjol B SB 9SS pue
suoljuanualul 104 Hoddns apiaold |im (1 SS) wea ] Apnis jJuapnis ay|

‘welboid Apeay-| a8y} yim Jeak

Jad saw} aaly} passasse osje ale Aay| ‘bBuisn alte Aay) swelboud
paseq-aduapine ay} yjim papinold sjuswssasse ayy buisn buiobuo
passasse ale yjew Joj Alobajes Buiwiopad mo| ay} ul syuspnis

‘Bunsajiuew

sI Juapnjs ayj A naiyip jo adA} pue solsuaioeleyo ay) uo Bulpuadap
s}sa} aidwes 4ddSvyvyD Pue ‘ylep uieaz ‘yiep yonol ‘xep Aqopy

ale pasn salbojopoy}aw paseq-aduapIAd 8y | Jayoesa} UojuaAIB)uUI
pajedlilad B AQ papinold UOIJUSAIR)UI SAISUSJUI SAISD3I [|IM SjUapn)s
paliluap| "Suoljepuswwosal Jayoeas} pue jusied pue SjuswWSSasse
ybnouy} Buiyoeal pajable} pue uoluaAIalul 10} palljuapl aq |Im yjew
Jo} Alobajeo Bulwlopad mo| ay} ul sjuapnig ‘siaad Jiay) yiim Jed uo
wJopad 0} g|qe aq 0} pasau uayo s|idnd poddns |euoljippe ay} apiaoud
[IIM SJUB]SISSE |BUOIIONIISUI PUB J18YdEa) UoIjUSAISIUI pajesipap v




1940 7T 38ed 12141517 [00Y3S AJBIUBWA|T UOIUN UBWYD0|g 10} UB|d A}[[IGRIUNOIDY |0IIUOD) B30T £2-220T

‘9|qeL
a)epdn [enuuy suopdy Bupnquiuo) ayy ul punoy aq Aew suoijoe s eak jse| J0} SadIAI9S parosdu jJo sabejuadiad |en}oy pajewijsy

8y} jo Jodau y "a|qe] ajepdn [enuuy ayj ul punoy aq Aew suoljoe s.Jeak jse| Joj sain}ipuadxy |enjoy pajewi}s] [ejo] ay)} jo podaa y

‘1eak Buiwod 8y} Joj SUOIO. JO ‘SBWoolno palisap ‘soujaw ‘|eob pauue|d ay) o} sabueyd Aue Bupjew jou ase app

"ss0| buiuiea) juesyiubis buiaas jou os|e ale am ‘ssalboud buless jou
ale aM J|IYAA 'SBWO02]N0 Juapnys ul ssalboid aaaiyoe 0y JIn2iyip 3 apew olwapued ay} Aq pasneo sadlAIas [00yds 0} uondnisip Jeah oM} ay |

"saoInIas panoldwi Jo sabejuaoiad [BnjoB pajewi}sa pue $adlAIas panoldul
Jo sabejuaolad pauue|d Jo/pue sainjipuadxa |Bnjoe pajewi}sa pue sainjipuadxe pajabpng usamiaq saoualaylp jelsjew ou alam alay ]




19 40 €T 23eq

1PUISIJ [00YIS AJRIUBWIB|T UOIUM UBWYDO|g 0} UB|d A}j|IGRIUNOIDY |04ILOD) |BDOT £2-2207

"90U8I0S Ul pJepuels
aje}s sy} pepasoxa
10 J8W sjuapn)s

N0 JO 9,0¥ ||BJSAO
Jey} Moys [IM | SYO
8y} wouj synsal 1s8 |

9Q jou ||!M pue 020cC
Ul 8|qe|ieA. Jou aiam

synsai Bunsey 1SV
ay} ‘oiwapued ay)

0} anQ ‘pasn aq ||IM
sSalnseaw |Boo| Jayjo
uayj ‘sjgqejieaeun

ale sal100s buisay
jels §| ‘(s|gejiene

JI) sa100s Buiysay

aje)s ay} Agq painseaw
Se 20z Jeak

|[ooyos jo pua ay} Aq
90UBIOS 1O} SBI0IS 1S3}
9JBJS U0 SaWO02IN0
Juapnis aaosdwi

0} sl ¢ [e0O dvO14n0

"90UBI0S Ul pJEPUB)S
31e)S 8y} pepasoxa
10 JaW sjuapnis

INO JO %G L pE
[JeJSAO JBY} MOYS
1SVO 6102-81L0¢
8y} wouj synsal }sa ]

"1SVO
ay} uo aduewlsopuad

juspnis aq |m
Ajoud Joj ouaw ay |

s)insay bBuilioday pue BurLinses|y

(sawo9}no idnd) Juswanaiyoe jidnd - ¢

'safliold a)eys Buimo|o) ay) sassalppe |eob siy] 'sjuspnis jje 4o} | S By} UO SBI00S 1S9} Juapnis
anosdwi 0} sI [eob UNQ ‘pJepuE]S BY) J88W JOU PIP SJUSPN)S N0 JO %9/ 6 PUB ‘PJEPUE]S BY) JaW AlJeau SJuUspNIsS INo JO %0 ] 9G ‘@oUdIoS IO}
PJEPUE]}S B} POPa30Xa 10 JaWl SJUSPNIS JNO JO %G| ¢ [IEISA0 JBYI MOYS 610Z-8L0Z 10} s)insal (] SYD) 1Sl 8ouaIos elulojijed ay} jo sishjeuy

‘$8100s bunsa)
aJe}s ay} AQ painseaw se pz(z JeaA |00yds Jo pud 3y} AQ a0UdI0S IO} SBI0IS }ST] JJE)S U0 SBWO0I}INO Juapnis anoduw| Z

80O

SUOI}OY pue s|eos



19 40 #T 88ed 121L13SIJ |00YdS AJRIUBWS|T UOIUM UBWYD0|g 10} UB|d ALl|IQBIUNOIDY |04IU0D) |BOOT €2-2202

Siy} JO }1s00 3y |
‘uondope wnnouINd
Mmau ay} jo ued

SE WN|NJILIND 82UdI0S
ay} jo siaysiqnd

ay} wodj yuswdo|anap
|euoissajoud

paAladal siayoea |

‘uosliedwod Joj ejep
Jeah Joud aney jou

Op &M 0S WN[NJLLIND
90UdI0S MaU B SI SIy|
"sJa)sawl} yjoq

JOAO 9SJN0D 9OUBIDS
JIay} ul Jayaq Jo

g B paAlgdal sjuapn}s
10 9,79 ‘abesane uQ ¢
“1Xau

3y} 0} Ja)sawll} suo
wol} sapelb aosualos
13y} panosdwi Jo
paulejuiew sjuapnis
10 9,29 ‘@belane up |

:Buimoio} ayy

pajeanal Jeak jooyos
¢202/1¢0e @y wol} g
— G sapeusb ul sjusapnis
Joj ejep pJed podal
|e20| Jo sisAjeue uy

"Bjep pJed
uodal uo Ajal |00}
Juswiainseaw |edo0]

INQ "120Z Ul a|qeleA.




£9 40 ST adeq 1O1ISIJ |004YIS AIBIUBW|T UOIUN UBWIYIO|G JO} UB|d All{IGBIUNOIDY |0J3UOD) |BIOT £2-2202

"s90IAI9S panosdwi jo sabejuadiad |enjoe pajewilsa pue S3JIAISS panocsdwl
Jo sabejuaasad pauueid Jo/pue sainypuadxa |Bnjoe pajewisa pue sainjipuadxa pajebpng usamjaq saoualayip [elJajew Ou aIam aiay |

*JeaA snoinald 3y} ul Jno palied sem |[eob siy} moy Jo sISAjeue uy

[eZ-zz0Z] sisAjeuy [eoD

‘wN[NaLLIND juswdojanap
32UBI0S MBU 3Y} azIj1i3n A|BAIjoaye way) djay o0} siayoes) Jno |leuoissajoud
ON 00°000°L% 0} saljlunpoddo juswdojaaap jeuoissajoid pue Buluiesy apiaodd |IM SAA| pue Bululel) Jayoes | (A4
"1eak jooyos
2202/120z 2y} o} uondope |eljew 9SIN0J |eUlj B 9)ew 0} si |eob ay |
"suondo Jayjo je Buyoo| ale pue seualew jualind ay} yum pasesid s|elajew 9s1n02
Jou ale Aay) ‘JaAaMOH “1202/020Z PUe 0Z02/610z Buunp jeusajew 2oualos paubie
00°000°0€$ 9s1n02 9oualos paubie spiepue)s 6unojid usaq aAey S1ayoea ] | spiepue)s mau jdopy 1°C

suoljoy

‘Alojeledas

PaJI0AUI JOU

SeM pue wn|nouINg
3y} JO }s00 ayj ul
papnjoul sem bBuiuies}




/930 9T ade4 12L3SIQ |00YIS AJRIUBWIA|T UOUM UBWYIOLG JO} uR|d A1}jIQBIUNOIDY |0JIUOD) |BIOT £2-220C

‘a|qel
ajepdn jenuuy suoijoy Bupnquuos ayj ul punoy aq Aew suoloe s.Jeak }se| 1o} sadiAIeg paaoiduw) jJo sabejuadiad |en)oy pajewsy
ayj jo Jodau v "ajqe ] ajepdn jenuuy 8y} ul punoj aq Aew suoljoe s.eak }se| Joj sainjipuadxy |enjoy pajewi}sy |ejo] oy} jo Jodal

"Jeak Buloo a8y} 10} SUOIOR 1O ‘SBWod)N0 palisap ‘soujsw ‘jeob pauue|d sy} 0} sabueyd Aue Bupew jou aue app

"sso| Bulules| jueoyiubls buiaas jou osje aie am ‘ssaiboid buisss jou
ale 8M 8|IYA\A "S8W02}N0 Juapnys ul ssasboid aasiyoe 0 Jnoiylp 3 spew olwapued ay} Aq pasned sadiAIes [00yos 0} uondnisip JeshA om) ay |




£9 40 /T @ded

1O13SIQ |00YdS AJRIUBWA|T LUOJUN UBWYIO|G JO4 Ue|d A}l|IQRIUNOIDY [04IUOD) |BIOT £2-2202

" "sJaules|

ys11bug wuiey-6uo|

10 XSlI-}e Se payIsse|o
ale sjuapnjs ou jeyl
aunsus M (d34)
ajel uonedlISse|oal
juspnis 113 ¢
‘Aouaiolyosd abenbue
ysi|bug psemoy
ssalboud Bupjew

3 ||!Im sjuspnis
11330 %8S 'L

‘siaules|

ysijbug wuis)-buoj

10 YSl-]e se palisse[o
sjuapnjs Jo Jaquinu
-}s8np ejeq ¢
Aouaiolyoud abenbue
ysi|bug spiemo}
ssalboid Buyew
sjuapnjs Jo juaolad

- pJeoqyseq 'L

SMO||0} Se aJe

[eob siy} 4o} souBwW
ayL ‘syuapnis (7713)
Jausea] abenbuen
ysibu3 ioj sajel
uoljeoyissejoal pue

$8109S 1S9} VY413
anosdwi 03 sI ¢ | 0D

‘sJjaules| ysijbug
-Buoj se payisseo
BJOM SJUapN}S OuU XS
-Je Se palisse|o ale
sjuspnis 713 40 %le
-1senp ejeq 0¢/61L ¢
‘Aouaioijoud abenbueg)
ysybug spiemoy
ssasboud Bupjew

31e SJUBpNIS JO %G Gl
- pJeoquysed 61/81L ‘L

‘sJjaules)

ysi|bug wusy-buo)

10 Ysl-]e se palisseo
sjuapnjs Jo Jaquwinu
-1senp ejeqg ‘¢
Aouaioyyoud abenbueg)
ysi|bu3 spiemo)
ssalboid Buyew
sjuapnys jo juaalad

- pieoqyse(q |

sjinsay buiuoday pue Burinseap

"$300Q}X8a] 8100 a8y} ul pajelodiooul sjeuajew g3

|ejuswalddns pue 8109 8y} 8ZI|iIN [[IM SI8YOea} ‘AjjeUOI}IPPY "SOOIAISS UOIJUSAISIUI 0} SSB00B UO siseydwa Ue Y)im ‘Sjuspnis |[e O} ajqejieAe
ale Jey) S90IAI9S BLWBS 8y} 9AIa0al ||IM Ssiaulea] ysi|Bug seale olwepede ||e Ul Jayeq wiopad jim abenbue| ysibug sy} jo dseib poob e aney
OUyM SJuspn}g "8ousIoS pue yjew o} Buije|as sjeob oiwepeoe Jayjo Jno aAsIyoe sn djay |jim siuapnis 113 Jo} s||is abenbue| ysibug Buinoidw

syuapn}s (773) Jeulea abenbue] ysiBug Jo) Sajel UOIIBOLISSE|O3 pUB SBI0JS 1S3} DV d 13 anoldw| €

|e0dO

SUOI}2Y pue s|eoo



/940 8T 98ed 1OISIC |00YdS AJRIUBWD|T UOUN UBWYD0|g JO4 UB|d All|IQBIUNOIDY |04IUOD) |BD0T €2-220C

%22 -umolb
pajoadxa piemo}

ssalbouid apep .
%G| :suoljejoadxa
ymmoub papoaaoxg .,

:ssalboud
ylew Joj uoljew.ojul
Buimoj|o} ay} smoys

wajsAs bBuiysa) Apeay

-] 8y} Buisn ejep
[e00] jO sisAjeue uy

‘Jeah jooyos

sIy} Jo pua ayj Aq
palissejoal aq p|noys
Aobajes Jauleg)
ysibug wuis} -buoj ayy
ul pauisse|o sjuapnis
o) JO awos ‘os|y
‘uonje|ndod juapnis
Jno ul abueyo e

0} anp sI asealoul siy}
JO ued Jeak Joud ay)
Jano Apybis pasealoul
sey sJoulses| ysibug
wa)-buoj Jo ysu-je

SE pPaijISSe|o sjuapnis
JO Jaquinu ay}

1By} SMoys uoljew.ojul
1s9ND eje( JO MaIAaI
V "120¢ 10 020¢

10} 3jge|leAk Jou ale
solBwW pleoqyseq
‘ojwepued ay)} 0} anQ




/9 40 6T a8ed

1011510 |00YdS AJRIUBWS| UOJUN UBWYIO|g JOJ UB|d ALl|IGBIUNOIDY |043U0D) |BIOT £2-2202

Suonoy

'SSaUMBaM JO Seale
S,JUSPN}S B U0 SNJ0}
0] SJayoea)} smoje I
asneodaq sjuspns 113
1o} @ouewopad ay)
anosdwi diay |[im |00}
Juswissasse Apeay

-1 8y} buidoy aJe app

%P Uimolb
pajoadxa

pisemo) ssalboud

%05 UEY] SS9] SPEN .
%62 ‘Uimolb
pajoadxa plemo)
ssalbouid apep .,

%62 suoljejadxa
ymmolb papaaoxy .,
:ssalboud

Buipea. 4o} uonewloUl
Buimoj|o} ay} smoys
wa)sAs buiyse) Apeay
-] 8y} bBuisn ejep

[e20] JO sISAjeue uy

%€9 ‘Umo.b
pajoadxa

pJemo} ssalboud

%0G Uey} ss3| SpeN .




/9 40 0z 3ed 1O13S1J |00YdS AIBIUBW|T UOIUM UBLIYDO|g JO4 UB|d A}l[IQBIUNOIDY |041U0)) [BDOT £2-2202

"§S0| buiuieg| Juedlyiubls buiaas jou os|e ale am ‘ssalboud buisas jou
81 BM 9|IYA\ “SBWO02)N0 juapnis ul ssaiboid anaiyoe o} ynaiyip J apew diwapued ay} Aq pasned sadiAIas |00Yos 0} uondnisip Jeak om} ay |

"$90IAJ8S panoiduwl JO sabejuadlad [BNJOB PajBRWIISS Pue SJIAIS paAcsdwl
Jo sabejuaolad pauueld Jo/pue sainjipuadxa |enjoe pajewlsa pue sainjipuadxa pajebpng usamiaq saoualaylp [elBleW OU aJam alay |

100}
Juswssasse Apeay-| 8y} JO UOHIpPE 3y} S| SUOI}o. asay) Jo uoljejuawaldwl [enjoe ayj pue suoijoe pauue|d 8y} usamiaq asualaylp Ajuo ay|

1eaA snoiaald ayy ul jno pallies sem |eob siy) moy Jo SisAjeue Uy

[gz-zz02] sisAleuy [eoD

"}S09 |euonIppe OU SI 818y} os swelbouid

9say] umo Apealje ap\ '|00] Juawssasse Apeay-| ay) Buisn jeak
1ad sawi} 981y} passasse aq ||Im SJUapnIS s|INS 13 Jisyl anosdwi
sjuapnis 7713 pie o} A|leaiyioads paubisap weiboid paseq-yoieasal
e sl Ae|d pull\ ‘Buipeay uoueg pue ‘apo) ay} apojdx3 ‘Bullipp

0} dn dalg ‘soluoyd Alewid ‘peay 108loid ‘AjleinjeN peay ‘Aepp
JIay ] SpJopp ‘Aeld pully :Siis sUy @benbueyysibu3 nayl anoidwi swelboud
ON 00°0$ sjuapnys 713 djay o) sweiboid Buimojjo} ayy azijiyn [jim siayoes | aul-uo g3 AR

"sjuapnys 713 Jno Ajisse(oal

pue Yoeu} Ajajelidoidde o} sn Smojje §I 8Snedaq SPUN) JO 3SN dAIJ03ld
ue s| sJ0}euUIpI00d DYy 413 Buiney ‘9|qissod se uoos Se Uojjedlyisse[oal
yoeal 0] pasu Aay} pJoddns ay} aal@odal sjusapnis 7713 ains

ON 00'SZ€'L$ Buyew ul Jsisse 0} SI0JeUIPI00D DY d 3T [enbull-Iq om} Sey JoLIsIp 8y

s10jeulploo) Ovd13 L'¢




/930 1Z 93eq 1DUISIQ |00YIS AJRIUBWA|T UOIUM UBWYDO|Y JO} UB|d ALI|IGEIUNOIIY |04IU0D) B30T £2-220C

‘a|qel
ajepdn |enuuy suonoy BunnNquiuos ayj ul punoy aq Aew suoijoe s, Jeak }se| Joj SadIAI9g paaoldwi Jo sabejuadlad |enjoy pajewi}sy
ayj jo Jodau Y “ajqe] ajepdn |enuuy ayj ul punoj aq Aew suoljoe s.Jeak }se| Joj sainjipuadx3 |enjoy pojewijsy |Bjo] dyj jo Jodal y

“Jeak BuiLwoD ay) Joj SUOIOE U0 ‘SBLI0DIN0 palisap ‘solaw ‘|eob pauueld ay} o} sebueyos Aue Bupjew jou ale Spp




L9 40 7T 2ded

1913810 |00YIS AJBIUBLUB|T UOIUN UBWYIO|g JO} UB|d A}]|IGBIUNOIIY [OJILOD) |BD0T £2-7207

%0

aq ||!m 8jeu jno doup
|00Yds 3IPPIN - 20G
%¢ uey} ssa| aq

[lIM B)eJ WSIaajuasqe
oluodyd - qg

Jajealb 1o 9,66 aq |Im
ajeJ aouepuUAY - BG

PBN-€
BN - ¢
PN -

0} pey os|e aney

9\ '1sed ay} ul aney
aM se sajjlunuoddo
uonedoiued

juased ajis-uo apiaocid
0} sn Joj JnJiyip

}l apew sey olwapued
a3y ‘eyewl|d jooyos
pue ‘Juswabebua
jidnd ‘JuswaAjoAUl
juaited Buipnjoul
Juswabebus jooyos
anoldwi 03 sl ¢ |eoS)

(0z/61)

%0 Sem ajel no doip
[00Yy2s 3IPPI - 95
(02/61) %S¥

SBM 8]kl Wslavjuasqge
oluoJy9 - qg

(12/02) %¥S L6

SEM 3]kl aduepuslie

juspnis - eg

IBN-¢€
BN -¢
BN -

juswabebug 1dng ‘g

(feoo)) pieoqyseq
- JUBWUBAJOAUI

|ejuaied ‘€

(ledoy) pieoqyseq
- SpJepuejs 8jels ay)
Jo uonejuswaldw| ‘g

(ledo))
pJeoqyseq - dlseg |

sj|nsoy bBuiuoday pue Burinseap

SpJepuejs aje}s Jo uoneuswaldwi - g

$$990E 8SIN07)) - /
SjeWl|o |o0YdS - 9
juswabebua 1dng - G
JUSWSA|OAUI Judled - ¢

oilseg - |

‘Juswabebua Buipsebal sanold ajels Buimoljo) ay) sassalppe |eob siy| “passiw ale sajjiunuoddo [euojonysul
Ou Jey} os siseq Jejnbal e uo [ooyos Buipuaye jo souepodwi ay) puelsiapun 0} sjuapnis 1o} jJuepodwi Os|e S| }| “uol}eaNpa s,ualp|iyo Jiay)
Ul PaAJOAUL 8Q 0} saljiunuoddo aaey Aay} |93} 0} sjuaied Joj pue |[00YOS JB SWOJ|SM pUB 3)BS |98} 0} sjuapnis Joj jJuepoduwll st} 9ASI9] S

‘alewlo jooyos pue ‘Juawabebus j1dnd ‘Juswaajoaul Jualed Buipnoul jJuswabebus jooyoas saoiduw| v

[eoD

SUOI}oY pue s|eoo



£9 30 €7 @3ed

101151 |00Y2S AJBIUBWS|T UOIUM UBWYIO(G JO} UB|d ALjIGRIUNOIDY |0JIUOD |BOOT £2-2202

BN -L

BN - 99

%0 o9

[[!m 8jel uois|ndx3 - q9
%S 99 ||Im

S| 9}kl 9ouUEpuUd)E
2c0c/120c ualnd
3y — 9jel aguepuajje
Juspnys - B}EP |BOOT] B
Juswabebug idng g

"oiwapued

ay} o} anp g|qissod
Jua)xa )sajealb

ayj 0} JaW st du}BW
— (1eo0]) pJeoqyse(
- JUSWIAA[OAUI
|ejusied ‘¢

“Jeak Jualno
3y} 10} }8W S| dulBW
— (jeoo0]) preogyseq

- spJepuejs 9je}s ay)
JO uoneuswsdw| 'z

"JeaA jualiind ay} Jo}
Jow si oljdwW — (|eao))
pieoqyseq - oiseg ‘|

:SMOJ|0} SB aJe [eob
SIY} Jo} sou}BW 8y |

‘Aiessaoau

se welboid gyvs

ay} Buisn aie app
‘sjuapnys pue sjualed
}sisse 0} 9|gejieAe

sI 1s16ojoyoAsd

[ooyos ay |

"SOAIJUBOUI BoUBpUBJE
Juapnis ay} puadsns

BN - L

18N - 99
(02/61) %0 sem
ajel uois|ndx3 - 9

(61/81) %S0 sem
ajeJ uoisuadsng - B9

Juspnjs - EJEp B0 ‘B

(leooy) paeoqyse(
- §S820€ 8sIn0) 4

(jeoco)) pseOqyseq o
ajel uois|ndxa
-isenpejeq q

ajel uoisuadsns
- pJeoqyse(q ‘e
|jewWl|D |00YdS "9

ajel jno doup jooyos
3|ppiw - Ejep [B307 O
sojel

WwsIasjuasqge 2juoJyd
- pleoqyseq q

d)el aouepuaje

i




/9 jo tZ a8ed 10141510 jOOYIS AJBIUBW|T UOIUN UBWIYD0|g JO) UBjd AN[IGBIUNOIIY |0J41UOD) 8307 £2-220C

aq 0} Sjuapn}s awWos
pasnes yoiym adIAIes
snq apiAoid 0} a|geun
alam am ‘olwspued
ay} 0} anp ‘JaAamoH
‘wis|gsjuasqe

21U0JYD Ul asealoul
1ybijs e smoys
1202/020¢ Ul pajo3)|00

ejep SAvdivOo
‘g|ge|ieAe Ajjualind

Jou sI pieoquseq
ay] — sajel
wislaajuasge d1U0IYD
- pieoqyseq ‘q

"S|9A3|

[ew.ou 0} uinjal

[IIm 8)el aduepusje
Ino ajedioljue am
‘spua dlwapued ay}
aouQ "|ooyos puaje
0} sjuapnjs Auew

1o} JaIsea })l apew
yolym 1L20¢ 0 Uale
[nun Buiusea| asue)sip
ur pajedioiued
sjuapnjs Jno

Jo Auey "olwepued
ay} 0} anp Ajewoue
ue s| | ¢0¢/020c ul
ajeJ aouepuaje ybiy
oy} ‘JaAnamoH 'ajel
aduepuajje | ¢0¢/020c
3y} woJ} asealsoap

B S| YoIum %L 6°¢6




.9 jo0 Gz a8ed 10131S1Q [00Y3S AJRIUBWS|T UOIUN UBWYJ0[g JOJ Ueld A}[IgRIUNOIIY |0J41U0)) 8307 £2-2207

— (jeo0)) pJeoqyse
- §S900B 3SIN0Y) '/

Jeah Jualing
3y} 10} JaW S| ol}aW
— (jeo0)) pJeogyseq 2

‘1coc

-020¢ 10 0202/6102
ul suois|ndxa

ou alam alay}

SMoys ejep savdivo
— d)el uoisjndxa
-isenpejeq q

'02¢02/610¢ woy}
uolsuadsns asnoy

-U| 8UO }JO asealou|

ue si siyj "1¢0¢/020e
Buunp suoisuadsns
asnoy -ul paniadal
sjuapnjs aaly} jey
SMOys ejep savd1vOo
‘@]el uoisuadsns

- pieoqyse(q ‘e
8jewl]d |100Yds ‘g

"94,0 99 0} SaNnujuod
ajel jno doup

|[ooyos appIW JNO

— 9kl no doup |ooyos
s|ppiw - ElEP [EJ07] O

‘aq pjnom Ajjewlou
Aay} uey) alow juasqe




[9 40 97 adeq 1011510 |0042S AJBIUBWS|T UOIUM UBWYDO|gG JO} UB|d AljigRIUNOIIY |0JIUO) [BIOT £2-2202

9 sayoeal Juapn}s e aouo sjualed yjim Joejuoo saxew [edioulid
ON 00°0% pue Juasge ale sjuapn)s uaym sjualed 0} apew aq [|Im s|jed auoyds|a| UonUSAIBIUI §YVS 4

"yjuow aajua ay} 4o} Apnis Juspuadapul Uo Jou dJe pue ‘saipie)}

ou ‘souepus)ie Joapad pey aaey oym sjuapnis 1oy Ajuo si Buimeup
Alyjuow ay ] "aanuadul Jabie| B aAIgdal 0] JUSPN]S SUO 10} SSe|D

Aana 10y play aq |im Buimelp e ‘yiuow e aduQ ajediiuad uoniubooal
B SAI828l ||I3S [Im Buimelp ayj uim Jou op Oym Sjuapnis ‘pieme
SAIJUB2UI UB BAIB03l 0} UBSOYD 3q [|IM |9A3] apelb yoes wody Juspnis
aUQ "9AIUBDUI UB BAI903) 0} Buimelp e OjuUl palajua aq |jIM BLBIID

3y} }osaw oym |aAs| apelb yoes wouy sjuapnis Aepli4 yoe3 ‘Apnjs
Juspuadapul uo jou aJe oym pue ‘saipJe} ou ‘@duepuslie Joapad yum
SJuapN}s 10} aQ [|IM SBAIJUBDUI BY | '}JNO UBAIB 8q |jIM SSAIJUBDUI JUBPN]S
[00YOS 0} BWO09 0} SJuapnis SleAljJoW 0} ABM B Sy 'JoOydS pusle

0} sjuapnjs Buibeinoous jo poylaw aAljoaYa ue aq 0} uanold aney SOAIJUBDUI

ON 00°00G'L$ SOAIJUBJUI JUBPN]S [O0YDS pus)ie 0} SBAIJUBdUI JuspN)s apinoid |Im SAA|  Sduepusjje Juapnis AN 4

"'SIUOWAIBD pieme Alyjuow pue ‘Ae( pjai4 pue yoel] ‘Aeq

JBJBAA ‘MOYS Juale] ‘younj Ajlwey aunusieA ‘Aeq ov ‘sbuijssw pleoq
1 uoissas uado ‘siapaismau Ajyiuow ‘JybiN jooyog 0] yoeg ‘sAoains
Jussed ‘saousiajuod Jayoeal-jualed ‘sbuijesw 4y ‘sbuijesw
[IOUN0D 8BNS |00YDS :apnjoul sajdwex] "SaIJAIJOR [00YDS Ul PBAJOAUL 8]
0} ‘spaau [euoildaoxa yum sjuapnis jo sjualed pue sjdnd pajesiidnpun saniunpoddo
Jo sjualed Buipnjoul ‘sjualed ||e Jo} saiiunpoddo apinoud |im 9pn| uonedioiped jusied L'y

sSuol}oy

"JeaA Juaung
3y} 1o} Jow S| dujawW




£9 40 (T 98ed 1P1ISIJ [00Y3S AJBIUBWII|F UOIUN UBWYD0|g J0) Ue|d A}l[IBRIUNOIDY [0JIU0D) |BDOT €2-220C

9|qe]
9jepdn |enuuy suoioy Buignguog ayj Ul punoy aq Aew suoljoe s Jeak jse| Jo) SadlAlag paroldu jo sabejuaalad |enjoy pajewn}sy
ay} jo Jodad v "9|qe] ajepdn |enuuy 8y} Ul punoj aq Aew suonoe s esk jse| Joy sainjipuadx3y [enjoy pajewi}sy |ejo] ay} jo Jodal

Jeak Builiod ay} Joj SUOIO. JO ‘SBLWI02IN0 palisap ‘soujaw ‘jeob pauueld sy} 0 sabueyo Aue Buiyew jou aie app

‘sso| buiusea| jueoyiubis buioas jou os|e ale am ‘ssalboid buiess jou
aJe M J[IYAA "Sawoo)no Juapnis ul ssalboid anaiyoe o1 Ynaiyip J apew olwapued sy} Aq pasned sadlAIas [00yds 0} uoljdnisip Jeah om) ay|

"sgoIAIas panoiduwl jo sabejuaoiad |Bnjoe pajewi}sa pue SAJIAISS paAolduwl
Jo sabejuaalad pauue|d Jo/pue sainjipuadxa |BNjOE pajewl}sa pue salnjipuadxs pajabpng usamiaq saousiajip |elsjew ou alam alay |

"Jeak |ooyos £20¢z/2z0zZ Y} bulnp saijiAljoe [ewlou awnsal
0} adoy a\A "S8AlUSdUI 8duBpUS)Ie JUSapNn}s JO saliunuoddo uonedioled jualted pajwi| apiaocld 0} 8|ge Ajuo a1am am ‘Ojwapued ay) 0} an(

-1eaA snoiaaid ay) ul Jno pallied sem |[eOD SIy} moy JO SISAjeue uy

[£Z-2202] sisAjeuy [eoo

‘welboud
JajoeJeyd N0 1o} WN|NDLIND JUB4IND JNO 3Sh 0} 8NUiBUOD pue ‘sjusaled
ON 00°9€£8'65% Ylm JoBlu09 uiejulewl ‘1sibojoyoAsd jooyos 31 4 G e apinoad |im app | 1sIBojoydAsd jooyos L4

"S|eAla)ul Aep g PUE ‘g ‘C JB S80Uasqge palyliaAun
Uum sjuspnis Jo sjualed o] Juas aq [|IM SIad| gYVS 'Seouasqge




L9 40 8¢ 38eg

1D1ISIQ [00YDS AJelUBWa|T UoIUN UBWYD0|g JO) UB|d A}||IGBIUNOIDY [043UOD) |B20T £2-2207

|euoissajoid auo iseg)
Je aAl9%al Ajjenuue
|jIm siayoea] - eg

"Sjuapnjs ||e Joj snjejs
3Y} MO|3q S|9A3| aJ0W
Jo omj sdnoubqgns

ou yim v13

ui ‘siauses) ysibug
Buipnjour ‘syuapnys

|le Jo} pJeoqyse(q
[O0YOS eluIojle] ay)
UOo snjejs uaals) - ey

0] 8nQ "pasn aq ||Im
SaInseaw |eoo| J1ayjo
uay} ‘s|qe|jieaeun

ale sal100s bBunsay
3jels §| “(s|qelene

J1) s@109s Bunsa)

aje)s ay} Aq painseaw
Se 20z Jeak

|[ooys Jo pua ay} Aq
(v13) suy abenbuen
ysi|bug Joj s8109s )8}
3Je}s uo saWooiNo
juapnjs aaoudwi

0} S1 G |[BOD dVO1INO

auo anladal Ajjenuue
slayoea] - eg

'syulod $'Gg
pasealoul piepuels
mojaq sjuiod 9/

ale sjuapnis Jaules)
ysbuz - v13 10}
pJjeoqyseq 6L/8l - eV
'syuiod |||

pasealoul ‘plepuels
ay} anoge sjulod zZ'¢l
‘snje)s uLaln) -y13 Jo}
pJjeoqysed 61/81 - Ep

"W¥13 ul sajiunuoddo
Juswdo|anap
|leuoissajold pajuelb
aq [|IIM SIByDEs] |IY B
SBWO09IN0

ndnd Jeyio ‘g

V13 104}

JUBWSSASSE ddSVYVD
— pleoqyseq e
Juswanalyoy idng v

s}insay buioday pue m:_._:wmus_

(sswooino |1dnd) sswooino |idnd 18yl0 - 8

(sawo9}no |1dnd) Juswanalyoe |idnd - ¢

'sanuold ajels Buimojjo) ayj sassaippe [eob sy v13 ul |]am Bulwiopad ase sdnoub juapnis ||e jey)

S8)edIpul OS|e Bjep |e20| Z02/020Z JO sisAjeue uy “piepue)s sy} mojaq sjulod g'g paloos dnoib juapnis pabejueapesip AJEOILLOUOIS0I20S
InQ "pJepuels ay) mojaq sjulod g'g paloos dnosbgns oluedsiH JnO "pJepuels ay) aaoqe sjutod G ge paloos dnoibgns auym inQ Jedh Joud
ay} wouj sjuiod ||| AQ pasealoul S8J0S JUapnis ||BJaA0 pue sdnoub juapnis ||e J0j USaIS) SI 10|00 pJeoqyse(] [[BISAO INQ ‘piepue)s ajels
ay} mojaq Apybis Bulwiopad aie sjuapn)s pabejueapesip A||BoILIOU0I30I00s pue dluedsiH Jno ‘Jeak Joud ay} JAAO $8109S }s8} JIay) parosdul
sdnoub juapnis [je aiypy “(v13) suy abenbueysybug ul jlam Buiwiopad ale sjuapnis Ino [|BJOAC JeY} smoys sisAjeue pieoqysed 6102

o

"Pasn aq [|Im SaINSeaW |B20] J8Y}0 UaY) 9|qeIBABUN ale sal00S buljsa) ajels §| "(8|ge|IeAe }I) s8100s buise} ajels au)
Ag painseaw se $zoz Jeak jooyos jo pua sy} Aq suy abenbue/ysibug 1oy s2109s }$8) 8)e)S U0 SBWO0}N0 judpnis anoldw| S

[e0O

SUOI}OY pue sjeos



/9 40 67 39ed 1LISIQ [00YdS AJBIUSLUB|T UOIUN UBWYIO|g JO} UB|d A}I|IGRIUNOIIY |0JIUOY) [BIOT €2-2202

siy] ‘weiboud
ysijbu3 jo siayoesa]
JO IoUN0) jeUOnEN
3y} Ul pa(|0Jud alam
siayoea} ||e ‘1eak
[00Y3s 120¢/0¢0¢
8y} 4O pud 8y} 1y
V13 ui saniunuoddo
Buiuiesy jeuoissajoud
yum papiaold usaq
ARy SIByoed] ||

‘'suoljeloadxa

yymolb papaaoxa

10 JaW sjuapn)s

Jo Juaalad Aixig
"M0|3q S|aA9| apelb
aIowW J0 981y} BI9M
%8 PUe ‘Mo|a( S[aA3|
apelb om) atem 9,/
‘Mojaq |an8| apelb auo
ale y,¢¢ ‘|on9| apelb
9AOQE 10 Je ale %,2G
1ey} smoys buipeal
10} ejep aosuewJopuad
Juepnis (V13) sUY
abenbueyys)bug
Apeay

-| |e20| JO sisAjeue uy

"120z Ul paysiignd
2q jou |im pue

020z ul paysiiqnd jou
sem ejep pieoqyse( "v13 ul Alunuoddo
V13 ui Ajunuoddo [ele]iesIm=1[VN[o]1]] 1o} juswdojanap
Juawdo|anap ay} ‘oiwapued ay} |euoissajouid




/9 o0 0g aded P1ISIQ J00YIS ABIUBWS|F UOJUM UBWYDO(g J04 UB|d AM|IGBIUNOIDY |0JIU0D) |BIOT £2-220T

1003
Juawssasse Apeay-| ay) Jo UOIIPPE 8y} SI SUOKOE 8say} JO uoljejuawa|dwl [enjo. ay) pue suoljoe pauue|d ay) usamiag aouaiayip Ajuo sy

~Jeah snolaaid ayj ul J1no palIes Sem [Bob Siy} moy Jo sisAjeue uy

[ezZ-zz0Z] sisAjeuy [eoD

V13 w uonanysul Ajjenb ybiy Jaaiep uawdojanap
0] Ajijige Jisy) anosdwi wayy djay o} siayoes} Jno 0} saiiunpoddo |[euoissajoud
ON 00°000°1L$ Juswdojanap |euolissajold pue Buiurel) apinold 0} anuijuo? |jim apn| pue Bujulel) Jeyoes | L'S

suonoy

V3
ul ssaiboud yuspnis

3oeJ} o} weiboud
Apeay -| ayj asn
Kjnyssaoons 0} moy
ul Buiurely paaliaoal
slayoeal ‘os|y
‘Alunwwo? poddns
3UIjUO Ue 0} $SaJ0e
pue ‘sjeusnol jenbip
0} $S8208 ‘S9SIN0D
paoed-}|as |enplAIpul
sapinosd wesboud




£9 40 1€ 23ed 1014351 |00YIS AJBIUSWB|T UOIUM UBWYD0|g JO4 Uk|d A11|IQRIUNOIDY |0JIU0D) |BDOT £2-220T

?|qe L
ajepdn |enuuy suonoy Buinquiuog ayj ul punoj aq Aew suol}oe s.Jeak }se| Jo} sad1AI9Gg panolsduw| jo sabejuaalad [en}oy pajewi}sy
ay3 Jo jJodau y 'ajqe ] ajepdn |enuuy 8y} ul punoyj 8q Aew suoljoe s.eak jse| 10} sainjipuadxy |enjoy pajewilsy |ejo] ayj jo podaa y

‘1eak Buiwoo ay) 10j SUOIIOR 10 ‘SBW02}N0 pallisap ‘soujaw ‘[eob pauueld ay} o} sabueyd Aue Buyew jou ase spp

"sso| buiulea] Jueoylubis Butaas jou os|e aie am ‘ssaiboid buisas jou
aJe M 9jIUAA 'SBWOoDIN0 Juapn)s ul ssaiboid aAaiyoe 0 ) NoIYIp J apew olwapued ay} Aq pasned sadIAIas |00Yds 0} uoldnisip Jeak om) ay

"s991AI8s panoiduwll jo sabejuaoiad |enjoe pajew}se pue sadlAlas psAoldul
Jo sabejuaaiad pauue|d Jo/pue sainypuadxa |ENJOR pajelli}sa pue sainjipuadxa pajabpng usamjaq Saoualayip |el3lew Ou a1am aiay]




/9 40 Z€ 23ed 1214351Q [00YIS AleluaWa(3 UoiUN Uewyd0|g 40} UB|d A}[IQBIUNOIDY |0J3U0D) [BI0T €2-220T

"SJUSPN}S || 1O} SNIB}S 8y} MOojaq S|oA8| @Jow J0 oM} sdnolBgns ou yim ‘yjew ul pJeoqyse(] |0oyos elulojlen
3U} UO SNje}S UsaIS) B aAaIyoe 0] ‘s|idnd pajeoiidnpun Buipnjour ‘sjuapnjs || Joj) SI SUOIIOB SAOQE 8y} O} paje[al aLoo)No ajqeinseaw ay |

ZLL'LL$ (SIUEISISSY |EUOHONIISU| Z PUE JOLOES) UOHUSAIBIU| (Z UYL |B0D) ,
wON.mwwv -:uoijonpad sse|o uoljeuiquiod Jo} Jaydea | A_‘ uolloy/| _MOmuv x

:SMOJ||0} SE | |[BOS) Ul PajBI)SUOWBP SE Ssjuapn)s spaau ybiy Joy sjeob ay) Bunyesw uo papuadxe atam spun) asay|

"SJUBpN}s JO Spaau |aAd| apelb ay) uo Ajjoalip snooy 0} s1ayoea} SMojje )l asnedaq siidnd pajeodidnpun oy

Juepodw si S8SSE|D UOlEUIqUIOD Bulonpal ‘os)y ‘siaad Jiay} yim Jed uo wiopad o} pasu uayo sjidnd pajeoldnpun jey} yoddns [euoionsjsul
pue WOOJSSE|D [euOlippe 8y} oplanodd |[IM SJUBISISSY |EUOIJONIISU| PUB SISYDOES) UORUSAISJUI PalEJIPap @snedaq sjuapnys spasu ybiy Jno

1o} sjeob ay} Buijaaw ul aajoaya pue piemo} pajoalip Ajediound ale suoljoe asay ‘s|idnd Jayjo UBy} SBOIAISS UOIJUBAIBJUI DI0W Paau UaYo
sjuapn)s asay} se }sil} palapisuod aiam s|idnd pajeoidnpun Jo spaau ay} ‘sjuapnis ||e Jjauaq spunj asay} Aq papiaold suoljoe ay} aIup
"2202/1.202 103 YOOXXX$ st (S)(B) 96751 H¥DD G 0} juensind paje|nojeo se ‘spuny juesb uonesuasuo) pue [ejuswa|ddng Jo Junowe ay |

suonduosaqg pasinbay

‘ajqe] suoioy Bunquiuog ayj ui punoy aq Aew BuiINquuo Se payijusapl sUoIY 10y sainyipuadx3y pajabpng ay|

1A dV O 91 10} s991A19G aAosdul| Jo asealau| 0} abejuadlad palinbay

[€2-2202] siuapn}g awoduy
-MO-] pue ‘siautea] ysijbug ‘yino A 193s04 10} S92IAI8S paroidul| 10 pasealdu]



£9 40 €€ a3ed 1913S1Q {00YIS AJBIUBWR|TF UOIUN UBWYD0|g 10} UB|d A}][IGBIUNODDY |0JIUOD) |B30T £2-220T

V/IN

‘Buisn ale Asy) sweiboid paseqg-souspire ayl yum papiroid sjuswssasse ay) buisn siseq Buiobuo ue uo passasse ale salobajeds buiwiopad
MOJ] B} Ul Sjuspn)S "Jayoes} UoliuaAIsiul palealyilao e Aq papiaoid uoluaAIalul SAISUSIUI AI9038) ||IM Sjuapn)s payijuap| "Buiyoes) pajabie)
pue uoljuaAIa}ul 1o} sallobajeo Bujwiopad mo| ay) ui syjuspnis Ajuapl 0} sn smo|je welsboid uaje Ajljea ay| "sdnoub jidnd pajesidnpun

Ino syyauaq Ajealb yoiym welboud usje AjJes Jno o) |elyuassa ale pue (| SS) wea] Apnig jJuspnis Jno jo Jed ale sjenpialpul 8say |

‘s19ad
Jiay} yum Jed uo wiopad 0} paau uayo sjidnd pajeandnpun jey; poddns [BuoijoniSUl pue WOOISSEJD [BUOIIPPE 8y} apinoid [|im sjue)sissy
|BUOIIONIISU| PUB J3YyoBa)} UOIJUSAISIUI Pa)e2Ipap Y (SJUBISISSY [BUOIJONIISU| UOIIUSAIS)UI pajedlpap pue Jayoea)} uoljuaniaiu] (Z uoloy/|) |eoo),

‘Sjuapn)s JO spaau |ansj apelb
3y} uo Afjoallp snooj 0} siayoea) smojje it asneosaq sjidnd pajeoljdnpun Joj Juelodwi S| Sasse[D uoljeuiquod Buionpay (| uondy/| [e09),

-Jauuew Buimoljoy ayy uil sjidnd pajealidnpun Joj synsal Buianoidwi ul sAil0aYS SI Spuny asay) Jo asn ay} smoys sisAjeue aaiejiienb vy “sjidnd
pajealjdnpun jo uonendod ino Joj sjeob uno Jaaw o} sn Buimojje ul [eluassa si sajuow juelb uoljeljuaduod pue [ejuswsa|ddns jJo asn ay |

'2202/1.20Z 10} %XX S! (8)96¥GL YOO G 0} juensind paje|ndjed se
‘siidnd |je 0} papinoid sadinies ay) 0} paledwod se panoidwi Jo pasealoul aq Ishw sjuapnys spasu ybiy Joj seoinias yolym Aq abejuaosad ay |

‘Buipun) 44907 8seq yum papuny Buiaq s| aoualayip syt ‘o|qejleAe
Spun} UOHBJUSOUOD puk [eluawaiddns YOOOONXX XS au} uey) Jayealb si yaiym 0zZ6'9Z29 S! SedIAlas panosdull JO pasealoul Jo) spuny [ejo |




19 40 1€ 98ed 1011s1Q |00YdS AJRIUBWS|T UOJUM UBWYDO0|g 404 Ue|d AYl|IGRIUNOIDY |0JIUO)) [BIOT £2-220T

SJUapN)S 0} SadIAISS 103alIp
Buipiroad Je)s paleoines
JO OljeJ JuBpN)S-0}-JElS
SJUSpN}S 0} SBJIAISS JodlIp
Buipinoid yels paiisse|o
JO OljeJ JUBpN)S-0}-Jels

P PR




L9 40 G 28¢ed 13s] N Uewyd0o|g 404 ue|d A3jiqeIunoady 0D {307 €7-7207

ST T

BpUT [EJOL | BPUng [Biepad | apung (o0 | Spund Sieis G spund 440 | [SHn0ig WepmEe BlLL ooy WUGHSY | 60D

[suuosiad [oUuos.iad |elo ), sSpung |ejol spung jeJapad spung |edon spund

uvosiad o181 1910 spund 44971 s|ejo]

a|qeL sainypuadx3 [ejol £2-2202




£9 J0 9¢ a8ed

(%) sad1nl8g
panoaduw|
Jo abiejuaolay
pauue|d

4407) suonoy
Bunnquiuoy
1o} saunypuadxg
pauueld

44071 1ejol

10143151@ |00Y2S AJBIUBWIB|T UOIUM UBWIYDO|G JO} UB|d AL}IGRIUNOIIY |0JIUC) [B20T €2-220C

(s)dnoug juspnig
pajesiidnpun

‘L Aq papiAp ¥)
Jeaj
jooyog buiwon
adA} Aq sjejo] |9y} 10j SaINIDG
anoadwy
10 asealou|
0} abejussiad
pauue|d

CERIPNETS
paaoidw
jo aBejuasiad
pauue|d
Iejol 'g

ALV VETS
panoidwi
10 pasesaldou|
o} Bupngiiuod

a|iL uonoy # uonoy

(1 Aq papiaip 2)
Jeaj
jooyog Buiwion sjuelo)
8y} 10} S99IAI9S | UOIIBIIUBDUOD
anoaduw lojpue
1o asealou| jejuswa|ddng
0} afejuaoiad 4401
pajoafoid "¢ pajosfoid g

(spund 4407)

sain}ipuadxy

Bunnquuon
pauue|d
leloL v

jueio

ased 4401
pajoalosd “1

sajqe sainjipuadxg Bupnquyuoy £2-2202



£9 jo /€ 38ed 10141510 (004IS AJBIUBW|T UOIUM UBWYD0|g JO4 UB|d ALl{IQBILUNOIIY |04IU0)) [BI07 £2-220C

PN o 30 | and ] BPUN.| (¥ 1)
sRinupusdxa T B e LBBAIBE DEADIIWE 15 Ll Lt
FRNgDY )RS e 5 Jka g JEET e e Ry s L R ] BEALE, BREAIBE DY S LR BARES JHET | BIE04 JEET

spung jejol
sainjpuadxy
pauuejd fejol
s deaj Ise

(spung ejo])
sainypuadxy

pajewnsy [ejo

sjejol

8|qe ejepdn |enuuy £2-Z220Z



L9 jo g€ 38ed 10143510 |00Y2S AJR1USWS| UoIU UBWLYD0|g 40} UB|d All|IGBIUNOIDY |0JUOD |BD0T £7-220C

spund 4497 1nduj
sSUoIY
Bugnquiuod
1o} sainypuadxy
[en}oy pojewisy

(ebejuaoiad jnduy)
S92IA18G paAosduy]
Jo abejuasiad
lenjoy peojewiysy

sadlAleg
pasoadw| jo
abejusaiad pauue|d

¢.S921A18g panoaduwy
10 paseaidu|
03} Buinguiuon

4407) suonoy
Bunnquuon
104 sain)pusdxy
pauue|d s Jea\ jse]

wouj g Joesqng) { joe4IqNG)

EERIPETS
panoadw
Jo abejuasiad
pajeuwn}s3
pue psuue|d
usamjag
soualaig

‘L Aq papIAIp t)
Jes)
jooysg Bulwo)
8Y] 10} SaJIAIBG
anoaduwi|
1o asealou|
0} ebejuaaiad
pauue|d

S90IAISS
paaociduw
J0 abejuasiag
pajewls3
jejol '8

(%) sad1nIeg
pasoiduw
jo abejusaiag
pauue|d
IejoL s

suonoy
Bunnglyuod
10}
sainjpuadx3y
palewysy
pue pauue|d
usamiag
aouataplg

(spung 4497)
Suolloy
Bunnquyuod
loy
sainjipusadx3y
pajewiisy
fejol "L

(yunowy
lgjjoQq nduy)
sjueI)
uolIjRIIUBDUOD
Jojpue
jeyuswsiddng
4401
pajewnns3y "9

(spund 4497)
sainjpuadxy

Buynguo)
pauue]d
|elo] ¢

a|qe] 8jepdn |enuuy suoloy Buinquiuog £2-2202



£9 40 6€ 93ed

(6 Aq papiap zi)

obejuadiad
— 19n0hlien

44071 €L

(6 Aq Aldiinw
pue g wouj
LI Joeigng)

junowy J1ejjog

— 1aA0ALIRD

440121

S92IAI0S
paaosdu|
10 pasealou|
10 abejuaotad
lenoy
pajewnysy L1

CERTTVETS
paaosduw|
Jo abejusoiad
jen)oy
pajewnsy
jejol ‘g

1211510 |00YIS AJBIUBWR|T UOIUN UBWYD0|g JO} UB|d A|IGRIUNODIY |0JIUOD) |BIOT £2-220T

(spund 4497)
suonoy
Bunnquiuon

10} sainjipuadxgy

|enjoy
pajewns3
lelol L

jooyos ualLing

2y} 1o} s9oIM9S

anoiduw
10 aseaJou|
0) abejuaoiad
IENOY
paojewns3y "ol

sjuelo
uoljeIuUacUOD
lo/pue
[eauswalddng
4407 [enpov
pajewnns3y 9

a|jqe Janokued 4497 €2-2202

(junowy
lejjoq induj)
juelo aseg
4407 1enjdy
pajewnys3y ‘6




[9 40 O 28ed 12143517 [00Y2S AlB1USWd|] UoiUN UBWYI0|g 10} UB|4 AlijIQBIUNOIDY |OJIU0D) |BD0T £2-220C

([2][al¥90zs uonoas H3) s|eob ay) plemo) ssalboid joajjal 0} 4y oyl Bunepdn pue Buimainal Ajjlenuuy  ©

([e] pue [1][aly90zs
suoloas HJ) soujew Alonjels pue seale Ajuoud Alojniels ay) Ssalppe 1By ‘sainlipuadxa pajejal pue suonoe Ag peuoddns ‘sjeob Bulysigelsy o

([9-v]laly90zs uonoas 03) 4407 Jepun sjesauab syuapn)s asoy) Buipuny [euonippe 4o Junowe
8y} 0} uorpodoud Ul SJUBPNIS BLLODUI-MO| PuB ‘siaulea| YsiiBug ‘YyinoA Jajsoy 1oy saoinies Buiroidwi 1o Buiseasour sie sy37 jey) bunensuowsq ©

:Algejou jsow ‘suonenfial pue saniels 4407 a4} Ul payioads sjuswalinbal snouea yum paldwod aaey Asy) JByl moys
0} syy37 aJinbai ajeidwa) 4y 8y} 40 sjoadse asneoaq uonouny Aljigejunoooe juepoduwtl Ue SaAISS dyDT oyl :9ouejdwon pue A3ijIqRJUNOd2Y

'dvO7 8y} ui papnpoul

aq 0} suojoe pue sjeob |enuajod Alluspl 0} Japlo Ul s)ybisul pue saAinoadsiad asaly) ajesodioou [jim Buiuue(d o1691e1)S BAII08YT "SOIAISS pue

swelboid s,y37 ue jnoge sjybisul pue saanoadsiad s|igeniea ssassod siauped jeuoneanpa |e2o7 ([L][8ly90es uonoas H3) juswabebus |njbuiuesw
ybnoJy} spew suoisIdoap S108}8l 1B} 4D UB Ul )jnsal pjnoys ssaooud juswdojaasp 4D 9yl sdduMed jeuoieanps jo juawsabebug jnjbuiueay e

"SJuspN}s || Jo} panoidill ale sawooINo pue saljiunpoddo ainsua 0} spaau AHUNWWOD

puUB JUBpN]S 193U 0} $S82JN0SaJ Pa)ILLI| JO BSN BU] JNoge axew Aalj] Sa210yd pley ay] slenjeAs Ajenuiuod pinoys sy37 "ejep aosuewlopad Bujules)

pue Buiyoeal 0} sucisioap Alejebpng S108uuoo aalsuayaldwod si jey) Buiuueld ai6a1ens “([1L][8ly90zS uonoes [D3] epon uogesnps eluloeD)
Buiuue|d oibsieS Baisusyaidwoo spoddns 4yD1 oyl Buepdn Ajjlenuue pue Buidojoasap jo ssaoold ay] :Buluueld o169je1g aAlsuayaidwon

'suoIjoUNy paje|al INg ‘JoUlsSIp @8y} saasas ssaoold Juawdojansp 4y auL

"uonjeonp3 jo pleog ajels ayj Aq pajydope ajejdwa) ayj buisn 4D 2y} ul ssaooud Buiuue(d siyj Jo s}nsal ay} Juswnoop sy
‘(sanuoud ajels g aaey sJO)D) soujaw Alojnjess |je Burssedwoous seale Ajuoud aye)s 1ybie uiyum ssalsboud Jiay) ajenjeas o} ssesoud bujuue|d
|[enuue ue ul siauped jeuolyeanpa [eo0] Jay} abebua 0} (sy37) saiouabe [euoneonpa [B20| salinbas (4407) ejnwuo- Buipun4 josuod |ed07 ay L

SuOI}oNI}SU| pue UoRoINPOoAU|

0B B2 8pO@YI] Je rews Aq 1o 6080-61£-916 je suoyd Aq
‘@oIO Hoddng swiejsAS Aousby (8007 (S,300) S,uoieonp3 Jo Juswiiiedseq eiuiojeD 8y} 1o (30D) uoeINPa JO 82140 AJUNoI [BOO] 8y} JOBJLUOD
eseoa|d ‘ejeidwe; (JyD7) ueld Ajjiqeiun02oy pue j0U0D [BO0T 8Y; JO U0KB|dWOD 8y} 0] pajejal 8oURJSISSE [BOIUYI8) JO SUOSenb jeuolippe Jo4

SJUSpPN]S SWODU[-MO| PUE 'Siauiea] ysiibug "YJNO A J8}SO JOJ SOOIAISS paAOIdW| JO POSESIdU|
sSuonoy pue s|eos

Siaujied |euoneonpg buibebug

ATewiwing uejd

suoonNIIsu|



/940 Tv 838ed 1LISIg |00YDIS AJRIUBWS|T UOIUN UBWYD0|g JO} UB|4 A}l|IGBIUNOIDY [0JIUOD |BD0T €2-220T

asodind
Alewiwng ue|d

"SBAIBS U0I}03s yoea ey} asodind
ayj buiziseydwae uonjoas yoes jo Buiuuibaq ayj je papnjoul Si uoljewsojul ‘Ajleuonippy ‘J18si dvD1 @yl buiejdwod pue 4y97 @y} buidojonsp
uaym saoljoeld aAlj0ays Jnoge uoljewsopul apnjoul Aew 1ng ‘D7 9y} JO UOI}0as Yyoea 10 sjuswalinbal sy} ssauppe suoijonijsui asay |

"SJUBpPNIS Z 1ML SI Jo Jjeyaq uo 1oedwt }sabbiq ay} aney |im ‘@oualadxa pue ‘yoleasal
‘siaupned |euoneonpa woul pasayjeb jndul uo paseq ‘sansljaq Y37 3y} JBY} SUOIJOE pue SOLJSW JO }8S B U0 Snooy 0} pabeinosus ale sy

£ SIUBPN}S BWODUI-MO| PUB ‘siauled] ysiibu3 ‘YyinoA 181soy 10} sadinas anosdwl Jo aseaudul o} uolebiqo sy bunesw
Aq Buipnjoul ‘sdeb aosuewlsopad Aue SSaippe pue ‘spasau AJUNWWOD pue JuUapn}s Z1—3 1 0} puodsal 0} seainosas Aiejebpng sy buisn
w37 8y} st moy ‘(pieoquse() pJeoqyseq |00yoS BIUIOjBD) 8y} Ul SJOJeDIpUl UO pue saljlold a)e}s 8y} ssoloe aouewlopad Juasald UsAlD

'suoljouny Juswabebus Jsuped [euoijeonpas pue bujuueld oibsjelis
3y} Jo Juouya10) 3y} Je awel} Buiyosesano Buimo|jo) ay) desy o) pabeinoous ale sy37 ‘uoidope 10} 407 9y} Buizijeuly pue Buidojansp u|

‘o1gnd Japeolq ay) pue siauned [euoneonpa asIaAIp s,\YJ] 2y} Joj 9|qissaooe pue |njbuiuesw aq o)

papuajul SdyD] pa1dope J1ay) ul [1e}ap Jo |9As] e pue abenbue| asn 0} pabeinoous AjBuolis aie Sy37 ‘sjuapnis J0j S8WO2IN0 pue saljiunyoddo
panoidwi o) Bulpes| aie salbajel)s 9soy] Jaylaym pue ‘Aym puejsiapun o} siauped |euoljeanpa Mmojje os|e Ing (Z1—X1) enjem) apelb

ybnouyy uspuebiapury |euonisuel) ul syuapnis Joy Bulop si 37 8y} Jeym isnl jou jjisip o} jdwale pinoys 4O pajdope ay) “Oiseq jsow sji }y

-olqnd ay} pue siauped |euoljeonpa

10} 9|qISS909. BIoW Sy pajdope ayew 0} 4y 2y} ulylim pajuasald uonjewloul 8y} suljweal}s 0} pue ‘sjuspnis swodUl-MO| pue ‘sisules)
ys!|bug ‘yinoA 1a}soj J0) sadIAas aaoldwl 1o asealoul o} Juswalinbal ayy Builesw 0} aynguiuo9 Jey) suoljoe Buipnjoul ‘dydT 8yl ul papnjou
suoljoe uo sainjpuadxe Buipsebal Aoualedsuel) soueyua sebueyo Aiojnjels asay] 'gL 0z JO s8Nkl ‘e Jeydey) ‘(3ebpng uo sapiwwWoy)
0v8l g Alqwassy ybnouay) spew sabueyo Aiojnjess sjosjjal sieak [00Yds $Z—-£Z0Z PUe '€2—-2202 ‘22— 1202 @Y} 10} aje|dwa) v pasiAal ayL

‘paubije ale sainjipuadxa |enjoe pue

pajabpnq jje (sjooyss Jo Juspusiuiadns AJunod Jo Jouysip jooyos) 18bpng s,Ali3ua yaiym oy ajejndipe Alesio isnw 4y 8yl "0202S Pue ‘890¢S
‘99025 ‘2902S ‘09025 SuoI08s DI ul sjuswalinbal ay) yjim jJua)sisuod 4y 8jbuls e jearosdde pue malaal 10y ol pue jdope Aew Joulsip |[00Yos
ay} Jo pJeoq Bulusanob ay) pue uoleanpa Jo pJeoq AJunod ay) ‘Jolsip jooyas ajbuis e JOAO uoljaipsiinf sey s|ooyos Jo Juapusjuliadns Ajunod ey

‘sjouped |euoljeonpa

Buibebus 1oj |00} & Se papusjui Jou si Jjas)l aje|dwal 4y @y} Se jsnl ‘sseooud juswdo[dAap ||n} U} }o8|481 Jouued pue jou op ajejdwa)

d¥OT 8U3 UlyIM papnjoul suoljoas ay| gy paidope |euy ay) ul pajoapal se ‘sjuswalinbal jebs| sjeew () ey} sieuped [euoleanps yum
juswabebus njBuiuesw ybnouy) (q) Buiuue|d oibajess aaisuayaidwoo Joa|yal (B) :pinoys yoiym ‘ssaooud juswdol|ansp 4y 418y} Jo swodino
aIn az|[elsowaw 0} aje[dwa) 8y} asn Jsnw Sy3T 'SS8204d B Jou ‘Juswnoop e si ‘dyD7 pajdope |euy S yY3T yoes 8| ‘eejdws) 4o UL



/9 0 ¢y 28ed 1913SIQ [00YIS AJBIUBWA|TF UOIUM UBWYIO|g JO} UB|d A}}|IBIUNOIIY |0JIUC) |BIOT €2-2Z0T

asodind
siaulied Jeuonneonpy buibebug

"Juswanosdwi jooyos pue juapnis poddns oy ueid |SD
8y} JO SSBUBAIIOaYa pue uoljejuawajdwl Y} ajen|BAS PUB JOJUOW [IIM YT Y} MOY 8quosa( :SSauaAljoayg Buijenjeag pue Bullopjuoly e

‘ueid |SD 8y} Jo uoneuaws|dwi ay)
ybnouy} passaippe aq 0} saijinbaul 82inosal Aue Jo UOIIBdLIIUSPI BY} PUB ‘SUOIIUBAIBIUI PASBQ-20UBPIAS ‘JUDLLUSSISSE SPadU |AAS[-|00YIS
e papnjoul jey} sue|d |SO Buidojaaap ul sjooyds payljuapl ayj yoddns [jIm Jo sBY 3T 8yl Moy aquosa( :s|ooyos payyuap] 10y yoddng e

'ISD 10} paynuSp! USAG SABY JEU) YT BU) UIUIIM S|00UDS BU} AjUSp| (paljiluap| S|00YdS e

:syjdwoud Buimoljos ay} o) puodsal Isnw 1oy spaadong juapnig Alaag ayj Japun
(1SD) Juawanoidwi pue poddns aaisuayaldwod 1oy paliluapl SOOYIS JO [00YIS B YIIM YT Uy — puswaaosdw] pue oddns sAisusyaidwod

'dvO1 sJeaf sy} Jo sainjesy Aey ay) azuewwns Aiyalg pue Ausp| — syBIIYBIH dvOT

‘pJeoqyse( @y} uo siojedipul [eoo| buipodal pue |00} uoIjoa|8.-4|8S By} WIojul 0} pajoa||0o elep

Buipnjour ejep pajo9)|02 Ajjeoo] Buisn paijuapl aq Aew spasau JayjO (s)jooyos Jospue (s)dnoub uapnis ajgedldde ay} Ajijuapl os|e jsnw pue
[eob siyj apnjoui 03 palinbai si 3 Jey} Azuapl isnw sjooyos bulwiopad-mo| 1o sdnolb yuspnys Buiwiopad-mo| AJus)sisuod 810W 10 BUO SSaIPpPe 0}
|eob e apnjoul 0} paiinbai si jey) 37 uy ¢sdeb eouewlopad pue aouewlopad Mmo| Jo seale 9say) ssalppe o} axe} o} buluue|d 37 sy} si sdals
JBUAA "9oueWwIOpad Juapn)s (e, 8y} Mo|aq SjaAs| souewlopad alow Jo om) sem dnoub juspnjs Aue Joy aouewlopad yoiym o4 Jojealpul ajels Aue
(Q) gNV Bunes .sieaA 20| 10 OM] JOJ IS\ 10N, 1O JSIA 1ION, B PaAIadal Y3 8yl alaym Jojedipul [eoo| Aue 1o Aiobajes aouewlopad abuelQ,

10 pay, @y} ul sem aouewsopad [|BJBAO YdIym Jo} Jojeosipul aje}s Aue (B) :Ajijuapl ‘pieoqyse( au) 0} bulliejey — pasN paifipusp| :SU0jod[joy

‘sjuapny)s asay} Jo} asuewlopad

panosdwi 0] pa| 8ABY S}USPN]S SWIOOUI-MO| pue ‘siaules| ysiibug ‘yinoA 18]so} Jo} sadiAIas Ul sjuawanoldwi 10 sasealoul jsed moy Jo sajdwexs
oloads BulAiuapl apnjoul Aew siy| ¢SS929ns Jey) uodn pjing Jo ulejuliew o} uejd 37 8y} S20p Moy pue jo pnoud jsow 37 a9y} si ssalboud
Jeym ‘uoijew.ojul Jayjo Aue pue ‘siauped [euojjeonpa Wodj Jndul ‘s|00} JUSLLISSASSE-}|as |Bd0| ‘s|eob 4y piemo) ssalboud ‘pieoqyseq

By} Ul papn|oul SI10jedIpul @ouewlopad |BOO] pue SI0Jedipul 9)els 8y} uo asuewlopad JO MaIASI B UO pased — S9S$920NS SU0/}I8[jay

"dVD1 S.¥37 ue puejsiapun Ajjn} aiow 0} Japeal B 9|qeus UBD 3pn|joul 0} S8YSIM Y] UB SB UOlJeWwIoul Yyons Jayjo pue ‘sabusjeyo
Ajunwiwoo juadal ‘sjooyos ay0ads Jo azis pue Jaqunu ay} ‘JuawAojdwa Jo ‘Juawijotud ‘Aydesboab Jo swis) ul Y3 ue Jnoge uoljeulojul
‘ajdwexa 104 "y37 8y} 0} ajqeoljdde se ‘Z| -y ] sepelb ul syuapnis s} pue ‘sjooyds s) ‘Y37 8y} 8quosap Ajjalig — uojew.ojul jelousn

suoljonlisuj pue WU_.COEO.__SUON_
"d¥O7 @y} JO Suoi0as Juanbasqns ay) ul papnjoul Jusjuod ay} 0} pajejal Ajinjbulueaw pue A9 89 PINOYS UOI}OSS SIY} JO JUSJU0D 8y} ‘dV DT

ay] Jo 1saJ oy} Jo} Jxejuo jnjbuiuesw e apiaocid 0] JopJo u| ‘eoueWIopad puUB SPaauU JUSpN)s JNOQe UOIJeWIOjUl JUBAS|S) SE [|am Se AJlunwiwod
s w37 ue Jnoge uoljewsojul sapinoid uonaas siy] ‘dvO7 8y} 4ol 1xajuod [njbuluesw e sapiaold uonoas Alewwng ueld padojeAap-|iam Y



£9 Jo €y 88e(d 1014351Q [00Y3S AJBIUBWA(F UOIUN UBWYI0|g JO) Ue|d A1i[IqEIUNOIIY |0JIU0D) {BIOT £2-220C

‘ajendoidde se ‘(z)(e)8902s 40 (2)(e)2902G UuonIas apoY uoleonp3 yjm
aouepJoooe Ul ‘sspiwwoo Alosiape jualed Jaulea) ysijbu3 ay) o} ueid Ajjigelunoooe pue |0Jjuod [Bo0] ay) pajuasald ‘g|geotidde §| (q

‘ejelidosdde se ‘(1)(e)g90zs Jo (1)(e)Z290zs
uoljo08s apoy uoieINP YHIm aouUeplodde Ul aapiwwod AlosiApe jualed ay} 0} ueid AjjIgejunoooe pue |0Jjuod |Bo0| 8y} pajuasald (e

‘w31 8yl AJlan ‘Ajuo SJoLSIP [00YDS puB UoeINpa JO S8211}0 AJUNOD 104
:uejd A}1|IqeIUN022Y puk |0J3U0) [0

:ss9004d Juawdojanap 4y 8y} ul siauped [euoeonpa jo Juswabebua 1o} syuawalinbai jeba| ayy Jybiybiy o) papiaoid
S| yoiym ‘Buipiodey souenduwion ajejs pue seiousby uoneaonpg (207 ZL—) JO SHpNYy [enuuy 10f 8pinc 61—8 10z @Yl woJ) 1diadxa ue s| mojag

suol}onJisu] pue sjuawadinbay

"01/21/A0D B0 9pd MMM//:SANY alisgam s, 3y} jo abed gam Buimo|jo) 8y} uo s801N0SaY Japun punoy ag ued ‘uoilisodwos
dnoub A1osiape 1o} sjuswalinbal ay) apiaoid pue ‘uoiie}nsuod Juspnis auyap ‘Juswabebus anijosye poddns jey) S82IN0SaI PUE UOIJEWIOU|

‘'suoljoe pue s|eob |aag)

-JoLSIp puk a}isjooyds uaamjaq juawubije ajeyioe; 0} ‘(010 ‘sdnolb Alosiape Juapnis ‘sjiouno) AIoSIApY Jausea ysibu3 ‘s|lounod ajisjooyos
“B-9) o|qealdde se ‘sdnoib Aiosinpe |ana)-a)isjooyds ‘wol) Jndui }sanbal pjnoys sy37 pue ‘yim paseys aq osje pinoys 4yO1 8yl dvd1 ayl
Buidojenap ui sjuapns pue ‘sjualed ‘|jauuosiad |00yos JaYjo ‘siojedisiuiwipe ‘sjedioulid ‘siayoea) Ylim }NSuod 0} S|ooyds Jajeyd salinbal anje}s

"dvD1 8yl Buidojaaap uaym (s)lojedisiuiwpe eale uejd 20| uoijeonpa |eroads ayj Yjim JInsuod osje

ISNW SO PUB SJOLISIP [00U0S "S93JlWLWIOD 3say) WOl PaAIadal sjuawwod ay} o} Buijum ul puodsal o} aynje}s Aq paJinbail si Juspuajuuadns
a3y ‘eapiwwon AIOSIApY Jualed Jaulea ysi|bug sy o} ‘s|qeondde JiI ‘pue aspiwwo) AIOSIAPY Judied ay} Ylim }I aleys jsnw s30O9 pue sjouisip
jooyas ‘dyo eyy Buindope alojag "sjuapnjs pue ‘sjualed ‘Y37 eyl jo siun Bulurebieq [eooj ‘|auuosiad jooyos Jayjo ‘siojedisiuiwpe ‘siediound
‘slayoea) : 4y ayl buidoaaep uaym JNsuod }snw sJOD puUe SJoLSIp [00Yos Jey) siauled jeuoiieonpa ayj Ajioads suoneinbal pue sjnjels

"uoljoas

sy} Bunejdwoo uaym juoljai0) ay) ul |eob siy) deay o) pabeinoous ale sy37 Juswaebebus jey) jo yoedwi ay) pue sisuped jeuoljeanps pabebus
V37 8yl Moy puejsiapun aljgnd Japeolq ay} pue ssadoud Juswdojaasp 4y 2ui ul pajedioiued jey} sieuped [euoljeonpa mo|(e 0} si [eob

3yl 'dvD1 paidope ay) ui pajoasjal Suoisioap ay} paosuanyul sisuled [euoneonpa jo Juswabebua ayy moy Jos|al 0} paubisap s| uo1jo8s siy |

‘ssao0.d |enuue ‘Buiobuo ue si siauped jeuoijeonpa jo Juswabebug ([L][a]lF902G uonoas D) saijoid

paynuapl Ajje2o| pue sajjioud aje)s ay) ssosoe Juswanoidwi pue ‘Ajjigejunoooe ‘Buiuue|d oibsjel)s anisuayaidwod poddns pinoys juswabebus
yons ‘ajnie}s ylim Juadlsisuo) ssaooud 1abpng ay) pue 4D au) jo juswdojaaap ay} 0} [eonuo st ‘44907 Aq payiuapl sdnoib juspnis

ai Bunyuasaldas asoy) Buipnjoul ‘sisuped |euoEONPa JBYJ0 pUR ‘siojeanpa ‘sjuapnis ‘sjualed jo Juswabebus jnjasodind pue jueoiyiublg



£9 0 ¥ 38ed 12143510 |OOYIS AJBIUBLIB|T UOIUN UBWIYDO|E 404 UB|d AM|IGEIUNOIIY [0J3UOD |BD0T €2-220
$90IAI8S pajeol|dnpun Joj sa21A9s paAosdwi Jo pasealoul 0} Buipnquiuod se (S)Uoijoe JO UoISnjou| e
SUOIjoB 8Jow Jo 8uo Jo} salnjipuadxa pasodoid JO [9A8] By} 0} sebuey) e
suoloe Jo dnoub Jo (s)uoljoe jo uoljeuiwl|3 e
suoijoe Jo dnoub e Jo (s)uoljoe jo uoisnou| e
uoljoasqns sjinsay Buipoday pue Buunsealy ayy ul sdnolib juspnis alow Jo auo Aq aouew.opad jo uoIisnjou| e
SOlJJOW 9JOW JO 9UO U0 SWOI}NO0 palISap ay} Jo uoijeulwladg e
soljawW padinbal Ajlioiniels ay} uey) Jayjo SoujeW O UOISN|oU| e
(mojaq paqiiosap Se) |eoL) SN204 e ansind 0} UOISIOaP IO [BOD B JO UoISNoU| e

:0} pajiw| Ajuessaoau

Jou aJe Jnq ‘epnjoul ueo indul Jsuped jeuoiieonpa Ag pasuanjjul uaaq aAey Aew jey) JyD7] ue jo sjoadse, ‘Jdwoud siy} jo sasodind ayj 1o
‘dVD1 @Y} ulylim snooy Jo seale pazijlioud asimIsylo Jo a|qejieAe sadinosal Aueyabpng ay) Jo xajuod ay} uiyim sisuped [euoljeonpa Jo sysanbal
pazijlioud w37 8yl moy jo uonduosap e spnjoul Aew siy) “z }Jdwold 0} asuodsal ul paquosap yoeqpas; Jauped |euoyeanpa sy} 0} asuodsal

ul padojaaap 10 AQ padsuanjul aiam Jey] 4yD] 8y} Jo sioadse aquosap jsnw asuodsal ay) ‘dyD1 Y} Jo Juswdoljaaap ay} pasuenjul sseoold
Juswabebua ayj moy Jnoge uoljewlour ooads ‘Jesd yim aijgnd ayj pue siauped jeuoijeanpa apiaodd |im jdwoud siy) o} asuodsal Jualoiyns

. Slauyed |euoneonpa wouj Jndur oyioads Aq pasuanjjul aiam jeyl 4vD1 ay} Jo sjoadse ayj jo uonduosep v, ¢ Jdwodd

"slouped [BUOIJBONPS WOJ) PaAIadal Yoegpas) ay) jo sisAjeue ue woly pabiawsa jey; sindul Jo
‘spuaJ} ‘seap! ajeoipul [jim 1dwoud siyj 0] asuodsal Jusioiyns v "sisuped jeuoneonpa oyoads AQ papiaoid 3oegpas} By} SZIIBWIWNS pue 8quosa(

slauped jeuoneanpa oyloads Aq papiaoid ¥oeqpasy ay} jo Alewwns v, :Z 3dwoad

‘slauped [euoljeanpa

sy Buibebus 0} yoeoidde |eaiydoso|iyd s,y37 ue Inoge uonewopul apnjoul ose Aew asuodsal y ‘siauped |euoljeanps yjm soibajelss
Juswabebua Jayjo Jo sbuijasw pue ssaooid ay} Jo aujawi} ay} Jnoge uoljewojul jesauab apnjoul jsnw jdwold siy) 0} asuodsal jusioyns

Vv "v37 J0 adA} ay} 0] ajgearjdde se siauped jeuoljeanpa pasinbas AjLIoJNJe}S [[B Ypim }nsuod o} uonebijqo sy jaw Y37 ayj moy Buiquosaep
‘wnwiuiw e je ‘buipnjoul ‘g0 auj Jo Juswdojaasp ay) ul sisuped [euoijeonpa aAj0AUl 0} Y3 8y} Ag pasn ssadoud juswabebus ay) aquosaQ

«dVO1
ay) Buizijeul) a10j8q palopIsSuod sem juswabebus siy; moy pue siauped [euoljeonpa abebua o) pasn ssadoud ay) jo Aewwns v, :} Jdwold

‘ajeudoidde se ‘(2)(9)8902S
10 (2)(9)Z902S uonoas apon) uoneanpl yim souepliodoe ul Buesw ongnd e ui ued Ajjiqejunod2e pue [01juod [edo ayj pajydopy (@

-ajendoidde se ‘(1)(9)8902s 40 (1)(q)290zS uoioas apo)) uoijeonp3 yym asuepsodoe ul Buleay ognd suo jses) je pjoH (p

‘ajendoidde

se ‘(g)(e)gg0zs 1o (£)(e)z90zS uoioas apo) uoledNp3 yim aoueplodde ul uejd AjjiqeIUNOD3. pUE |0J]U0D [BOO] 8y} Ul papn|oul
aq 0} pesndoid sainjipuadxe pue suoljoe oioads Buipiebal sjuswwos Jiwgns o} Ajunpoddo ayy jo 21gnd oy} Jo siaquisw paiyiloN (o



£9 0 Si 98ed PLIISIQ |00Y9S AJRIUBWIB|T UOIUN UBWILDO|G 104 UBld AY[IGBIUNODDY [0J3U0D [BIOT £2-2C0T

‘leob ay} analyoe 0} syoadxs 37 8y} Yolym o} Buiploooe swel) awl} ay} pue painseaw aq ||im [eob ayj jo Juswanaiyoe yoiym Ag (s)ouisw ay)
aoualajal ANoidxa ued jeos) snoo4 ay | "yoeosdde sAISUB]UI BlEP pUB J1j10ads ai0w B WOl J1jauaq J0 alinbal Aew jey) pasu Jo seale ssalppe

0} |BOS) SN204 B sdojansp Y3 Uy 'pPunoqg awi} pue ‘a|qeinseaw ‘oyioads ag jshw [BOS) SNo04 e 1o} papiaold uoljduosap ay] :uondiiosaq |eo
(s)jeoo snoso4

"SOlIJOW PaJeIoSSE pue saljliold {407 [[B SS8IPPE ISNW 4D 8y} ‘Wnwiuiw e }y

‘dvD1 8y} Jo sjeob Jayjo sy} Ul passalppe Jou soulew Aue uo aouewlopad yoel) 0}
V31 ue smojje pue sabueyo jueoiubis Jnoyum Bulobuo aq Aewl 1Y) SUOHOE SBPNDUI [BOS) SS8I601d JO SOUBUSUIBY YV ([BOS) SSaifold jo soueusjulely e

'soujeW Jo abuels spim e ssoioe eouewlopad Buinoidull uo snooy Aew pue 8doos S} Ul pe)eIUSOUOD SSB| A|SAlIB[a) S| [BOS) peolg V ([BOS) peolg e

‘paInseaw 9q 0) Si (206 ay) MOy JBS[O S)BW pUB puUNOg SWi} 84 [|IM JuswWwale)s |80
SN204 Y JuswaAcidwl ainsesw 0} SO1JaW JO Jaquinu Jama) B Uo snoo) Aew pue adoos Ul pajejusduod aiow A[@ANJE|a] Si |BOS) SND0H VY ([BOS) SNJ0H e

's|eob Jo spuny Jualaylp aaiy) Buidojansp jo uondo ayl yym sy sapiroid ajejdwa) 4D 8y} ‘sieob jo uoneziuoud poddns 03 Japlo uj

dVD71 8yl ulyym sjeob sy aziiold o} moy pue Jayleym Buiuiwisyap ul pieoqyseq 8y} ul papnjoul
ale Jey} SI0}edlpul [B00] 8Y) Jo} ejep pauodal pue pajos||0o Ajjeoo| Jiay) Buipnjoul ‘siojesipul [BOO] pUB 3}e}S 3y} U0 aduewloyiad J9pISuod pinoys
Sy37 ‘seinoud ajels alow o aUo UIyim 4y 8yl Ulyim papnjoul sainjipuadxa pajejal pue ‘suoljoe oyioads ‘sjeob ayj azijoud pinoys sy37

sSuol}onJ}su| pue sjuawalinbay

‘s|eob yons aAsiyoe 0} suoljoe paje|al ay} pue sjeob Buidojaaap uaym sdnolb

Juapnis Jiay) Jo souewlopad ay) SSSSE Pinoys s3] "sawooaino joeduwl o) pajoadxe saibejel)s Jo swelboud Bunusweldw Jo ‘sdeb eouewuopad
Buimouseu ‘(s)dnoub juapnis olioads e ‘sjuspnis || oy SOLJBW JO JL}aW B 0} aAlje|al aouewlopad ay} uo pasnoo) aq ued [eob padojaAsp-jlam Y
‘'sainjipuadxa pue ‘suoljoe ‘sawooino

pajoadxa ‘soujew paje|al ay) pue ‘[eob siy) ansind o} paploap Y3 ay; ‘pansind ag pinoo jey} suoljoe pue saibsjel}s pue ejep souewlopad Aq
pajybijybiy Juswanoidwi Joj seale pue syjbualys snoliea ay} Buowe ‘Aym oijgnd ay} pue sisuped jeuoljeonpa 0} ajedlunwioo AjJes|o 0} syy37
1oy Aylunuoddo ue si [eoB e papnjoul Y37 8yl Aym 1o} uoneuejdxa ay ] juswubije ul 8q pjnoys |eob ay} ui papn|oul SUoljoe 8y} pue ‘saWooIN0
pajoadxs pue soujsw pajeloosse ‘Juawa)els jeob v jeob ay) paysiidwoooe sey J usym mouy| |jIM Y3 8y} moy pue ‘|eob ayj ysijdwoooe

0} JapJo ul op 0 sue(d Y37 8y Jeym ‘ysijdwoooe o} sue|d Y3 8y} Jleym siauled [euO}BONPS 0] 3jediunwiwod Aeslo [IIm sjeob padojanap-||apn
asoding

SUOI}OY pue s|eos

suonoe Jo uonejuawa]dwi 8y} uj $8ssadoNs Jo sabudjeyd jo uoleulwls}ag e

ssao0.4d ajepdn [enuue ay) uo paseq Jeak 4y Buinsua ay) Joj jeob e 0} spew sabueyo jo uoljeuiwis}eq e
sain}ipuadxa Ul Sa0OUSIBYIP |elSlew JO uoleulwIs}d(q e

|eoB 8y} aAalyoe 0} suoljoe J1108ds 8y} JO SSBUBAIIOSYS JO uoljeUIWIB}d([ e



£9 40 9y 98ed 10141510 |00Y9S AJBIUSW|] UOIUM UBWYIO|G 10} UB|d A1][GBIUNODDY [043U0D (D07 £2-2207

‘|leob Jayjoue
yum jeob paiinbal siuy Bujuiquios Aq jew aq jou Aew juswalinbal siy| ‘|eob ay; ul passalppe Ajjeoioads aqg 1snw dnoib juapnis yoes ‘Jaramoy
‘dnoub juepnis yoee ssalppe 0} [eob B aaey 0} pasinbal jou si sdnoub Juapn)s ajdinw ssalppe 0} palinbal y37 uy ‘sdnoub 1o dnoub Juspnis siy}

‘10} sswoo)no Bulnoidw) pue ‘Jo spasu ay} Buissaippe 0} ol10eds sain)ipuadxs puUe ‘SUONJE ‘SaWO0JJN0 ‘SOU)aW apNnjoul 1snw |eob siy| "aoue)sissy
pajenualsayiq Joj Alpaibie s,v37 auy 0} pa| jeys sdnolb Jo dnoub juapnis ey} jo eouewloiad ay) Buinoidwi uo pasnoo) 4D Sy ul jeob e spnjoul
Isnw epajud (s)dnoub juspnys Buiwiopad-mo| Afjuslsisuod ay) Buijesw y37 Uy :jJuswalinbai jeob (s)dnoub juapnys Buiwiopad-mo] AJUalsisuon e

“Jo|/ee/b/ACDb e38p3”MMM//:Sd)Y Je abed qem ejnw.o4

Buipun4 josjuo) [B207 $,3QD @Y} uo punoy} aq Aew ‘uoiesyuapl 0} pea 1ey (s)dnoub Juapnis ayy pue ‘@ouewlopad dnoub Juspnys uo paseq
dVvO1 @y} ui [eob e apnjoui 0} palsinbal s\y37 8y} Jo isl| ¥ ‘pleoquseq ay} ul sdnoub Jo dnoub juapnis awes ay} jo aduewlopad 8y} Uo paseq
sJeak 9AIINJ8SU0D aI0W JO 331U} 1O} BOUBYSISSY pajenualayiq Joj a|qibije sl Y37 uy :euallo (s)dnoub juspnis Bulwiopad-mo| Apualsisuo)

"dvO7 118y} Ul [eob oi10ads e apn|oul 0} palinbal aie BLS)IO UleNaD JaawW eyl SV ‘dVD £2-2202 3u} Jo Juawdojanap ay}
yum Buruuibaq ‘Janamoy ‘ssalppe |im sjeob asoy) jeym pue 4D a8y} ul apnjoul 0} sjeob jeym Buiuiwiaiap ul Ajjiqixa)) aney sy 37 ‘[elsauab u|
s|eoo) palinbay

"soujewW pajejal ay) Aq paiyjdwaxa ssaiboid ay} uiejsns |im suojjoe ay} moy uiejdx3g :jeob siy} padojaasp sey y31 ayj Aym jo uopeue|dx3

‘dvD1 @y} ul sjeob Jayjo Aq palanod suoljoe ay) uo suoyae uonejuswajdwi Buisnoo) ajiym ssaiboid J0juoW pue SUOI}Oe UlBjUIBW O} PaulWId)ap
sey ‘siauped [euoneonpa YliMm UOIJB)NSUOD Ul ‘Y3 8y} YOIYMm JoJ @S0y} aJe U0Ijoas SIy) Ul passalppe aq 0} soujaw pue sanold ajels

3yl ‘dvD1 @y} ul sjeob Jayjo sy uiyim passalppe jou soujaw a|qesljdde pue sanoud ajels ay) ssaippe o} [eob jo adA} siy) asn "dyD] auy ul
s|eob Jayjo ay) Aq passalppe Jou saljliolid a1eiS 4407 @y} ul apew ssalboid ay) ulejulew o) Spusjul Y3 au} Moy aquosaq :uondliosaq |eoo
|eos) ssaibold Jo aoueuajulepy

‘1eob ayj anaiyoe diay im Jayjabo)
padnoub soujaw pue suoioe ay} moy pue jeob siy) padojansp Y37 ayj Aym ureidx3 :jeob siyy padojaaap sey y31 9yl Aym jo uonjeuejdxy

‘leob ay) psemoy ssaiboid Bulnseaw

Jo} soujaw juaiayip Auew ale aiay) ‘9jqeinsesaw aq o) ybnoua oioads si § 9)IYaA ‘[eob snooy B se oy0ads se jou S| |eob peolq y 'swis)
aAljejlienb Jo aaijejluenb Jaylie ul ajqesnseaw aq o} ybnous oyioads si uoljdiuosap |eob vy Jauuew Jualsisuod pue aAIS8Yood B Ul SSWO021N0
pajoadxa pue suoljoe sy} saziuebio uonduosap eob sy Jeob ay} 1o} papn|oul SaWO9N0 ajgeinseaw pajoadxa ay} yym paubije Apesio

aq ||m |eob peouq e jo uonduosap sy ‘[eob ayj ul papnjoul suoijoe ay} ybnouy) ansiyoe 0} sueld Y37 ay} jeym aquasa :uondiosaq |eoo
|eoo peoug

‘leob

snooj e ansind o} uolsioap ay} punoJte Buipuejsiapun pue Aouasedsuel) ajowoud o} pabeinoous ale s\yy37 ‘siauped jeuOIEONPS Y)iMm UOHBHNSUOD
jueAs|al Buipnjou) ‘uonuane pasnooy Joy [eob siy) payiuapl Y3 9yl MOY 8quoSap ISnW sy37 "Blep pajoa)joo Ajjedo| Jayjo 4o ejep piseogyse(q uo
paseq a0 1sSnwW uoljeuejdxa uy ‘|eob siy} azioud 0y uasoys sey 37 ayl Aym uiejdx3 :jeob siy) padojaasp sey y31 ayl Aym jo uoneue|dxy



/9 )0 /i 38ed 1D141SIG |00YIS AleIUBWB|T UOIUM UBWYD0|g 40} UB|d A}[IGBIUNODDY |043U0D) [BD0T £2-220C

SWOS UO SaWO09)N0 | Z—0Z0Z [euly esnesag 'SAVd v 0} PaRiwgns Ajuadal sey 37 8y} jey) ejep Jo (SAQVd1vD) WalsAS ejeq Juallanalyoy
jidnd jeuipnyibuo eiuloylied ayl 0} uoissiwgns 4oy buledaud si w37 ay} elep Buimainal anjoaul Aew ajge|leAe elep juadal jsow ay} buisn

‘(ejel uonenpelb jooyos ybiy “6°'8) s|ge|jieAe Jusodal
Jsow 8y} sjussaidal ejep jey} JI Ajuo dulBwW ke JO aul|aseq ay} J0} pJeoqyseq 610z @Y} uo pauodas se ejep asn Aew sy37 "ue(d Jeak-aaiy} ay)
Jo Jeak 1s11) 8y} 10} D7 duj Jo uondope Jo awi} 3y} Je S|qe[IEAR OL}OW SIY}) YIIM Pa)eIOOSSE BJEp JUSD3J JSOW 8y} ULIN|OD aulj@seq ay} Ul apnjou|

‘'sdeb asuewlsopad
Buiisixa Aue jo Buimouleu J09))81 pjnom Jey} sawoono pajoadxa Buipnjoul ‘sjelidosdde se ‘sdnoub juapnys oyioads o) soujaw Ajjuapl

0} pebeinoous ale sy37 'Sawoono pajoadxa ay) pJemo)] ssalsboid yoeldy 0} asn |im Y37 8y} 1ey) (s)oujaw ay) Auapl ‘Jeak 4y yoes Jo4
:sjinsay buuoday pue bBurinsespy

‘uonduosap [eob ayj ul payiuapl sjooyoss 1o |ooyos Bulwlopad-mo| ay] 1B paj|0Jus sjuspn}s J0} SaWO02IN0
8y} aAajyoe djay |m [eob siyy ui papnjoul sainjipuadxe pue ‘solljow ‘SUOijoB 8} SaAaI8d Y3 oyl AUm pue (S)|0oyds By} Joj SaW09IN0 sAoIdwl
0} spoYs snolaald wody Jayip [eob siu) Ul papnjoul soujeW PaleIooSSE pue suoioe ayy moy ![eob siyy dojaasp o} paanbas Buiaq w37 au} 0} pes)
1yl (s)sjooyos ayj Builinuapl Buipnjour ‘[eob siy) dojaasp o} palinbal si v syl Aum uieidx3 :jeob siy) padojaaap sey y31 9yl Aym jo uonjeue|dxy e

"8|0YM B SB Y37 8] Je Pa||0Jus Sjuspnis ay) pue (s)jooyos Buillopad-mo)
3y} Je paj|0Jua SjUuSpN]s 8y} usamag souewiopad Ul sanjedsIp sy} ssalppe 0} aAsIyoe 0} sueld Y3 8y} S8WooIN0 Jeym aquosa :uondliosag |eos e

‘[eob Jayjoue yum jeob siy) Buiuiquiod Ag jaw aq jou Aew Juswalinbal siy| ‘|eob au) ul pessalppe Ajjeolioads

aq }SnW |00Y9S YoBa ‘JISABMOY {O0YIS Lyoes ssalppe 0} [eoB B aAey 0} pasinbal jou sI sjooyos s|diinw ssalppe 0} palinbsal y37 uy 's|jooyss

Jo [ooyos Buiwlopad-mo| sy} 1B pa||oJud sjuspn)s ay} 1o} sawodno Buiaoidwi pue ‘Jo spasu ay) Buissaippe 0} aij19ads saunjpusdxe pue ‘suoijoe

‘S8WO00}N0 ‘SoljBW apnjoul jsnw [eob sIy| "ajoym B Se Y3 oy} pue (S)|ooyos sy} usamjag souewlopad ul saijuedsip sy} Buissaippe uo Buisnooy
dVvD1 S¥ ul jeob e apnjoul jsnuwl elIBIIO (S)jooyos Bulwiopad-mol ay) Buisaw 300 J0 10UiSIp [00Yos Y :Juawalinbal jeob (s)jooyss Bujwiopad-mo e

“Jo|/ee/by/A0b B2 ap3 MMM/:SAY e abed gam ejnwioH

Buipun4 jo43u09 [BD0T S,3(D 8Y} UO puno} g Aew ‘uoleoliIUBP! 0} pE3| JBY) (S)|00YDS ay) pue ‘@ouewlopad |00Yyds uo paseq 401 9y} ui [eob
B apnjoul 0} palinbas sy37 au} JO IsI] ¥ "SJ0JeDIpUl 9s0U} JO (e ul Jaybiy [9A8] @ouewlopad auo jses)| je s| Y37 ay) Joj dnoub juspnis  sjuapnig
IV, @Y} 40 douewlopad ay} pue pJjeoqyseq ayj Ul S|aAd| aduewlopad aAIad3l (S)|00YIS aY} YdIYM JO} SI0}edipul 8)e)S ayj JO 9U0 Ing ||e UO S|9A9)
2ouewJoHad }SaMO| OM} BY} POAISDa) ‘SIBaA SAIINDSSUOD OM] 1O} ‘JBy} S|O0YDS BJOW JO SUo Sey JOD JO JOUISIp [00YDS Y J1oU)sIp jooyds-a|buis e
0} Aldde jou sa0p }I S|O0YDS BI0W JO OM] UY}IM JOD 10 JoulsIp jooyds e 0} saljdde Ajuo els}lo Buimoljoy ay) euajld (s)jooyoss buiwiopiad-mo

‘uonduosap [eob ayj Ul paljUSPI SSWO2INC 8Y} SASIYDE

diay jjm jeob siy} Ul pepnjoul sainjipuadxe pue ‘soljeW ‘suoljoe ay) saAslag Y3 oyl Aym pue ‘(s)dnoub juapnis ayj Joj S8W09IN0 sA0Idwil 0) SHOYS

snolaald wods Jayip jeob siy} Ui papnjoul SoUjaW PaJeID0SSE pue suoloe ay) moy ‘[eob siy) dojaasp 0} palinbas Buiag 37 sy} 0} pes) jey) (s)dnolb
wepns ay; Buifuapl Buipnioul ‘leob siy) dojeAsp 0} palinbai si 37 ay) Aym ulejdx] jeob siy) padojaaap sey y31 oy} Aym jo uoneuejdxy e

"s0UB)SISSY Pajelualayiq Joj AJiqiBie s,y 8y 0} pa| Jeu}
sdnoJb 1o Anoib juspnis sy} ‘104 SBWO02JN0 SA0IdWI PUB ‘J0 SPaaU 8y} SSaIppe 0} aAsIYde 0] sue|d Y3 8y} Sewoono ay) aquosa( :uondliosag |eos e



L9 40 8y 38ed

1014151Q |00YIS AJBIUBWS|T UOIUN UBWYJ0|g 10} Ueld A}l[IGEIUNOIDY [0JIUOD |BDOT €2-220T

RN ETIN

mau e Buippe
uaymio zz
=202 10} dV O
ay} Bunsjdwoo
usym xoq siyj ut

‘usy} un

JUE|q SAEDT 'GT
=202 10} VO]
ay} buns|dwos
uaym xoq siyj ui
uoljeLIIOUI JBJUT

‘uay} |pun

JUe|q SAeaT g
—€202 10} 4V O
ay} bunsdwos
uaym xoq siyj ui
uoljewojul Jayug

‘uayjl jpun

Jue[q 9AeaT €2
—220¢ 10§ dV Q1
ay} Buns|dwoo
uaym xoq siyj ui
uoljewloul Jajug

KAA

—120¢ 10} dVO71
ay} Buns|dwoo
usym xoq siyj ul
uoljewLIoUl Jajug

K44

=202 10} dVO'1
ay} buys|dwos
usym xoq siyj ul
uoljeLuIoUl Jajug

uoljew.oyul Jajug

‘leos) ay} Jo ped  sjnsay Buioday pue buunsesyy, oy} buils|dwos Joj suljsw |

1eak 4y #2—€202 @Y} Jo pud ay} Aq ansiyoe 0} sjoadxa
V37 9y} du}8W JUBAS|aJ Y} JO} SWIOJIN0 PalISAP ay} JBJUd ‘D] 3y} Jo Jeak isii ay) Busjdwod Usypp :$Z—€Z0Z 404 dWOIINQ palisaq e

"Jeak Jey) Joj ajepdn |enuuy ay} jo Hed ag |jlm uwn|jod
siy} Bunajdwo) 9joko Jeak-aaiy} Xau ay) ul Jeak }sii 3y} g [IIM dVD GZ—P20Z SYL "A0ge SUOIoNIIsUl 8y} Yyiim jualsisuod ‘saljdde ejep
ay) yolym o} Jeak |ooyos ayj ajedlpu| ‘9|qe|iBAR BJEP JUS23J }SOW 3y} JaJUd ‘GZ—120Z 10} D1 au} bunejdwod usypp :awiodinQ ¢ Jeap e

"@A0Qe SUOoI}oNJsuUl 8y} Yim jus)sisuod ‘sajjdde ejep
ay] Yyoiym 0] Jeak [00yDS ay) 9JedIpuU| "9|gR|IBAR BEp JUS2al JSOW 8Y) JBJUS ‘p2—EZ0Z 10} dvD1 3yl Buila|dwod usypp :awodng Z Jeas e

"aAOQE SUOIONJSUl 3y} YNIM Judisisuod ‘sajjdde ejep
8y} yoI1ym o} Jeak |00yds 8y} a)eslipu| ‘s|jge|iBAR BJep JUS03al }SOW 8y} 13Jud ‘€2-2202Z 10} dvD7 3y} Buijs|dwod Usypp :awoo3nQ | Jeap e

"9AOQE SUOIJONJISUI 8y} Y}im Juajsisuod ‘salidde ejep ayl yolym 0} Jeak [00yos ay} a}edipu] "OUjdW B Y)IM pajeloosse
B)Ep JUSD8l }SOW BY) SI SUI|9SEq 8y} ‘9A0de Paquosap SV 22— 20z 10} dvD1 au) Bune|dwod uaym aujjaseq sy} Jsju] :auljeseg e

‘oljaw e Buisn painseaw buiaqg si ssaiboid moy ajeoipu| :OLJBN e
SMO||0} Se 3|ge} ay} 8)9|dwo)
‘dvvD71 Jeak-aaiy) ay; 1noybnouyy pabueyoun ujewss ||eys ejep sujjaseq ay |

‘sasodind A)jiqesedwod Joj ajep swes ay) Uo Jeak yoes Uuaye) uoljeinojes awy ui julod e apnjoul Aew sjgejleAe
Pyep Jus%al JSow ay) ‘(). uoisuadsns ‘a)el uoienpesb 6'3) naydope si dv¥D1 PZ—1 20z @Y} awi} ay} je s|qeindwod aq jou Aew soLjaW



19 40 61 8.4 1013SIg (00YIS AJRIUBWS|T UOIUM UBWYDO0|g JO) UR|d A}ljIGRIUNODDY [0J3UOD) |B20T €2-220C

1o} Aoualedsuel} aseasoul pue Bunjuom si soujaw Jo Jas paijioads e joedw o) Buisn si y37 ay) ABsjel;s ayj Jaylaym Jo sishjeue

}SnqoJ alow 1o} MOJe [|IM Sol}aWw yim suoljoe Buidnous) “(s)uonjoe ay} 0} sjqedljdde ale jey) |eob ayl uiyim soujaw aiy1oads jo dnoib

Jo oujaw 8|buls e uo asuewlopad o Xajuo0d ay ul [eob ay) uiypm suonoe jo dnoib 1o uoijoe ajbuls B JO SSaUBAIIDaYS By} Ssasse Aewl

sy37 ‘1dwoud siyi 0} Buipuodsas usypy "[eob ay; yim pajeIdosse soLjaWw ayj Jo ||e uo aouewlopad anosdwi 0} papuajul aq |jim [eob e ui
SUOl)OE ||e JOU ‘S9SED awos u| "y37 @y} Aq painseaw se |[eob paje|noile ay} aAsiyoe 0} suoljoe d1j10ads oy} JO SSOUBAII0aLD aY) 8quUIsaq e

"palinbai jou st Buijunoooe Je||op-10}-JBjjOp B pUE ‘passalppe g 0} paau jou op sabejusdlad
1o sainjipuadxa ur seoueueA Joully "a|qedljdde se ‘saoiniag panoldwi jo sabejuadiad [enjoy pajewilsg pue saolneg pasoiduwl Jo
sabejuadiad pauue|d ay} usamiaqg pue sainjipuadxg [enjoy pajewilsg pue sainjipuadxg pajebpng usamjaq saoualaylp jeuslew ueidxg e

"dvD1 paldope ay} ul paquosap Sem Jl Moy Wwolj AjaAljuBlSqns siayip 1ey) Jauuew e ui uoijoe pauueld e pajuswa|dwi Jo uoljoe
pauueld e juswajdwi Jou pIp Y3 Sy} 8ioym aouejsul Aue apnjoul jsnw siy] ‘ssaocoud uoejuawaldwi ay) Yyym paousiadxe sassadons
pue sabuaj|jeyd Jueaajal JO UOISSNISIP B apn[ou| ‘|eob paje|noile ay) @AsIyoe 0} suoljoe ay) Jo uoljejuawajdwi ||eJaA0 8y} aquasaq e

‘pajonJisui se sydwoud ay} 0} puodsay ‘|eob ay} Buiraiyoe
Ul @AI}0848 a1am suoloe pauueid sy} Jayjaym azAjeue ‘pieoqyseq ay) wouj ejep Buipnjoul ‘ejep awooino ajqeinsesw |enuue [enjoe buisn

Jes A dvy D1 8y} Jejug

sisAjeuy |eoo

"SJUBPN}S YN0 A J81s0 0} ol1oads spaau jesw 0} paubisep 4y 8yl ul suonoe olloads apnjoul 0} pabeinoous ase dnoibgns
JUBPNJS UYINOA J8}Ss0 jueoyiubis Ajjealsawinu e aaey Jey) S|ooyas Japeyd pue ‘sgO70 ‘S]oUISIp [00YIS Y}NOA J9)S0- 10) SUonIY

‘sJjaules| ysi|bug o} oioads sanialjoe Juawdojaasp |euolissajoid pue sjuapnis o} papiaold ‘9og uolas
93 ul paulyap se ‘swelboid uoiisinboe sbenbug] ay; ‘wnwiulw e Je ‘o) paie|al 4y D1 8yl ul suonoe oioads apnjoul Jsnw dnolsbgns
Juapnjs Jaules| ysibug jueoyiubis Ajjeolswinu e aaey ey} S|00YIs JBUBYD pue ‘SJO0D ‘S}OUISIP |00YdS :ssaulea ysibuz 1of suonoy

"(dVD1 @Y1 JO UON9aS Sa0IAIBS panoiduwl| Jo pasessdu] ay) Ul (4)96G | Uonoas [40D S G el ‘suoyeinbay jo 8poD ejuiojied

ul sjuswalinbai sy} ssaippe 0} uoioag Aewwng pasosdw| Jo pasealou| 8y} Ul UOIjewLIoul [BUOHIPPE apIAcid 0} pasau |IIM 3T 9y} ‘siseq
BPIM|00YDS JO BPIM-\YJ] UB UO Palayo uoljoe yans Yoea 1o} :9J0N) 'ON 4o} N, Ue J0 SBA 10} A, B Buisn uoijoas sadinieg panolduwl| JO pasealdu|
ayj ul paquosap se juswalinbal saoines panosdwi Jo asealdul ay) Buijeaw 0y s8INQLIIUCD UOIO. Y} Jaylaym a)edipu| ‘so|qe} Alewwns ay)

ul papiaold aq [[ImM s801N0s punj olloads woly sainjipuadxe pejabpng ‘uoloe siy) YJm pajeloosse sainjipuadxa Jo Junowe |ejo} ayj Jejug ‘uoljoe
ayj Jo uondiosap e apinold "S8|ge) uoljoe ay) ul Jeadde osje |IIM 811} SIY] "uOIjoe 8y} Joj Sj}I} LOYS B 8PINOId "Jaquinu uoljoe ay) Jojug :suopay

‘pleoqyseq ayj utyjim siojedipul
|BO0| 10} |00} UOI}08jal-}|as ueAsjal ay) ybnouy} pauodal JO U0 paseq SsoljaW asn o} pabeinooua ale sy37 ‘saljlold aje)s assy) 104 "dv DT
3y} UIyIm asn 0] oljawW e Ajjuapl Jsnw Y37 ey} ‘(spiepue)ys souewlopad pue Jusjuod dlLWSpedE aje)s Jo uoiejuswaldwi “69) soulew aiow

10 auo Ayoads jou saop Auoud a)eys e jJuaixa ay} 0] Y37 Jo adA) ay) 0} sjgedijdde se Jeak vy yoea ui ‘saijiold ajels pajejal sy} Joj soljsw
a|qeayddr ay; Jo |je Buisn painseaw aJe jey} sjeob apnjoul Isnw 4yD7 s, Y3 UB ‘wnuwiuiw Je Ing ‘aAlje}ijenb Jo aaijejjuenb aq Aew soujaw oy |



£9 40 0§ a3ed 13143510 [00Y2S Aleluswa|] uoiun UBWYI0jg 104 Ue|d ALjIGRIUNOIDY |0JIUO)) |BD0T £2-220C

Sy37 8y} si siy | ebejusasad sy} Ajioads pue abejuadiad JanoAue) palinbay 4407 jeuoilodoid ay) pue JeaA |0oyos Buiwoy ay) Joj seoines
anoidwi Jo asealou| o} abejusaiad pajosioid au) ppy I8 j00yIS BuIwon ay} 104 S8IIAIBS dAo.du| 10 8SkaIIU| O} dbkjusIIad [B)O]

"(0$) 0Joz jo Junowe ue Ayoads ‘ajqe | JOACALIBD 4407 9y} Ul paliiuapl
Jou sl jJunowe JanoAuieD e §| ‘s|qe] JanoALRD 4407 Y} Ul payjuapl Junowe Jejjoq — Janoklie) 44907 oyl Aoads iejjog — JoAoALieD 447

"(%00°0) 0J9z jo abejuaoiad e Ajoads ‘s|qe | JenoAlie] 4407 a8y} Ul paljuapl Jou s
abejusosad Janoluieo e §| a|qe | Janoklie) 4407 8y} ul payiiuapl abejusalad — Jenokuie) 4407 ay) Alloadg jebeusalad — JoA0ALIRD 4D

(£)(B)961G L UoNOaS HOD § o} Juensind
paje|nojed se Jeak 4y D7 8y} ul sjuapnjs [|e 0} papiaocld sadiAIas ay) 0} paledwod se panoidwl 10 pasealoul ag jsnw sjidnd pajeoidnpun 1oy
$80IAI8S yoiym Aq abejusaiad pejewiise ay) Aj1oadg weal jooyas Bujwon ay} 104 S82IAIBS dA0LduW| 10 asealauf o) abejusalod pajoaloid

Jeak Bulod ayj ul SAI90al |IMm )l sSjeWIISS YT By} JBY) ‘Z20'8EZ2ZY UONORS OF Ul paquasap
se ‘Buipunj uo-ppe jueib uoljesuUadUI 44D |EUCIHIPPE 4O Junowe ay) A10adg :(juaasad GL) JUkID UORBRIIUBIUOY) 49T [eUORIPPY Pa}dafoid

"sjuapnjs
Jaules| ys|jbu3 pue ‘YnoA 19)so} ‘BwodUl MO| JO UOIJRIJUSIUOD PUB JagINU ayj uo paseq Jeak Buiwod ay) ur aAI80al |jIm }i Sajew}ss v
ay} spuny juelb uonesyuaduod pue [ejuawsaiddns 4407 JO Junowe 8y} Aj0ads SpuBI9 UORBRUSIUOY Jo/puk [Rpuswelddnsg 4497 pajoaloid

suol}onJisu] pue sjuswalinbay

‘Buipnguuoo se

UoI}08s SUOIJOY pue S|eoS) ay} ul papnjoul suoljoe ayl yim ubije jsnw uoioas siy) ut uonduosap s,y37 Uy ‘Indui apiaoid o} Alljiqe Ji1ay) ajelljioe)
0} siauped |euoljeanpa jo Buipuejsiapun Japeouq e ajowoud 0} Jouloons Ajjuaions aq 194 [iejap 1uaioIyns apnjoul pinoys papiaold suoijduosag
‘sjuswalinbal Alojeinbas joaw asodind siy} 1o} paljiluspl SUOIJOB BPIM[O0OYDS JO SpIM-yYT] Moy pue ‘g|geodlidde se ‘Z|—) | sepelb ul sjuspnis
|le 0} pasedwod se g|L—) | sepelb ui sjuapnis pajedljdnpun s}i 1o} sa2iAlas anoldwil Jo asealoul 0] sue|d 3] Ue MOY JO ‘U0I}0aS pajedipap
9|buis e ulyym ‘uonduosap aaisuayaldwod e yum siauled [euoljeonpa sapinoid UoI08s SS2IAIRS paACIdul| JO PasEalou| UBJJUM-|[aM \

asod.ind
sjuapnl}s awooUu|
-MOT] pue ‘siauteaT ysijbug ‘yino A 191S04 10} SO9DIAIDS paAosduwl| 10 pasealdu|

‘g|gedl|dde se ‘ejep |B20| Jayjo 1o pieoqyse( ay} ul papianoid elep ayj jo sisAjeue

pue sisA|eue siyj Jo }nsal e se [eob siy} aAaIYde 0} Suoljoe JO ‘soljaW ‘sawodlno pajoadxa ‘|eob siy) o} apew sabueyo Aue aquosag e
‘pajeloosse
Aj@s0|0 j0!' aJe ey} souew pue suonoe ajdijnw apnjoul sjeob uaym yoroidde ue yons asn o) pabeinoous ale sy37 ‘sieuped [euogeonpa



£940 16 aded 1013510 [00YIS AJBIUBWIB|T UOJUN UBWIYIO0|g JO} UE|d ALl|IGRIUNODDY (0JIUOD 8207 €2-220T

([s]uonoy Bunnguiuon) "sajel aouepuale ybiy Jo spyauaq ay) uo ubiedwes [euoeonNpPa apIMIOLISIP B SB ||[OM SB S32IN0sal

[eUONLINU pue uoljelodsuel) [euolippe apinoid Z pue ‘A “X Suonoy ‘N [0S ‘aouepus)e jo souenodwl sy} aziseydwsa jou saop

Jey} ajew||d |[0oyds B Sk ||aM SB ‘poo} pue uoljenodsuel) ajgeljal Jo 3oe| Buipnjoul ‘wslasjuasge jo sasneo Jofew ay} JO SWOoS SSaIPPE 0}
paubisap si jey} weisboid souepus)e mau e juswajdwi pue dojaAsp ||IM aM ‘SJUSPN]S SLIODUI-MO| JNO JO UOIHPUOD SIY} SSBIPPE 0} JaPJOo Uj

([peroaag Ajledioulid] seouejswinoli)) ‘SUOI}IpPUOD) ‘SPaaN) ‘SJUapn)s |8 Jo} 3}kl souepua)e ay) uey) Jamo| Juadlad / SI sjuspnis awooul
-MO| JNO JO 8}EJ 8oUBPUSJIE By} JEY} PAUIED] M ‘SJUBPN]S SWODUI-MO| INO JO SSOUBISWINDIID PUB ‘SUOIIPUOD ‘spaau ay) Buissasse Jayy

:Aem Buimo||0} 3y} Ul paau Jo Bale SIy]) SSaIppe O] SUOIOB apIM|O0Yds 10 apim-y3T Alisnlybiw
‘sjuapni}s ||e Jo} ajel aoUBpUS)IE 8y} UBY) ajel aduepuaje Jamo| Ajjuesiubls e aaey Sjuapn)s aWODUI-MO| JeY) Saulwia)ap Y3 ue I ‘ejdwexs Jo4

‘sjuapnis Buiauas se swes ayj Jou sI sjuapnis Buljjoiua asneoaq pJepuels sadlAlas anoldwi Jo 9sealou; 9y} Joaw jou
saop sdnoub 10 dnoub Juspnis oiy10ads e Jo abejuadiad Juswjjoiua ybiy e sey w37 ue jey) buneys Aldwis ‘Jayun4 ‘Juaioiyns jJou ale ‘moy 0} se
uoljeue[dxa Jayuny JO UCI}OBUUOI Joljdxd ue Inoyim ‘jeob ay} Joj swodIno pajoadxa ue analyoe djay |iIm 2IAIBS B Jey) sjuswajels Alosn[ouo)

"Sjuapn}s pajealjdnpun Jo Juawssasse spaau e uo AjaJ Aew Uoljoas siy) ul paplaold asuodsal ay} ‘yons sy

‘leob pajeioosse ay) Jo aW09)N0 a|qeinsesw pajoadxe ue aasiyde djay O} papusjul Sl UOIOE Y] e

pue
‘SUOI}BIBPISUOD 8SaY) Uo paseq s ‘(uoeoo| Jo ‘spoylaw ‘Judjuod ‘ubisap sy ‘oidwexa Joj ‘Buipnjout) uoijoe ayj Jo (s)}oadse Jo ‘uoloe By e

‘sjidnd pajeoiidnpun s} JO SSOUBISWNDIIO JO ‘SUOIIPUOD ‘SPaau dy} SI9pISucd )| e

:MOY sule|dxa Y37 8y} uaym sjuapnis pajeslidnpun 1o} sjeob
s, @y} Buinesw ul aAl0eye pue spiemo} pajoalip Ajjediould si uonjoe ue Moy Sa}eIISUOWAP Y3 UY :9A1399)3 pue pajdaliqg Ajjediould

"g]ep 0} uoiejuawa|dwl [enjoe JO BJep SWO02)N0 JO 80USPIAS J08j4al }SNW UOIIBUILLISISP SIY} pue ‘pajoadxa se

OAIJO9}Ja SEM UOIOB 9} JOU JO JBYJaYM SUILIBJEP JSNW 3T aU} ‘dvDT 0202—2 402 94} Wolj O ¥2—1Z0Z dYi OJul panuiuod suoloe yons Aue
104 (9)964S| UONDBS YOO G UNM JUS]SISUOD Uoljeue|dxa UB apn|oul ISNW Y3 8y} ‘SIseq apIM|O0Yds 0 apim-yy3T] ue uo papiaoid pue sidnd
pajedlidnpun Joj Juswalinbai seoiAlas panoidwl Jo pasealoul ay) 0} Bunngujuoo se uoljoas SUOIOY pue S[eoS) ay} Ul papn|oul uoljoe yoes Jo

:suonduasaqg paiinbay

(L)(e)96¥S 1 Uondas yOO G 0} Juensind pajendjed se ‘Uesh 4y
ay} Ul sju=nnjs |e o0} papinoid saoIAIas ay) 0] pasedwod se panosdwi Jo pasealoul aq jsnw s|idnd pajeoidnpun Joj sad1a8s yolym Aq abejusolsad



£9 J0 ¢S 98ed 10143510 |00Y2S AJRIUBW|T UOIUN UBWYD0|g 10} Ue|d A})|IGRIUNOIIY [04IU0D |BD0T £2-220C
0} sueaw sa9I1nIas anosdwi 0] "Jeak 4y 8yl ul sjuapnis [|e Joy papiaold saoiAlas ay} 0} pasedwod se paje|nojed abejuadsad ay) jses| je Aq
panoidwi Jo pasealoul ale s|idnd pajedidnpun Joj papincid S821AI8S MOY 8qIUISap ‘g6YGL UOIIDRS MDD G JO sjuswalinbal ay) yiim jusisisuo)d

‘sanuold |eoo| Aue pue aje}s ay) Ul SJUBpN}s sSWOodUl-MO| pue ‘siaules) ysijbu ‘yinoA
18)s0} 4o} s|eob s} }@aw 0} spuny 8y} JO 8Sn BAIJ08YS }SOW 8y} ale Suoijoe ayj} Moy pue 0} pajoalip Ajjediould ase suoijoe asay} moy aquosa(g
:s|idnd pajesijdnpun jo juawjjoius juaalad gf ueY} SS9| UM |OOYIS B JB SISBq apIMm|ooyas e uo spuny Buipuadxa sjouysip |ooyods 104

‘saljliold |eoo| Aue pue aje}s ay) ul sjidnd pajesijdnpun sy Joj sjeob sy Buijesw ul 9AI308l0
pue 0} pajoalip Ajjediound ale suoioe asay} moy aguosa( :sjidnd pajesidnpun jo jJuswjjoiud aiouw Jo Judalad Oy YjIIm sjooyds 104

‘siseq 9pIM|OOYDS B UO spunj ay} jo asn ay} buipoddns uogdiossp
palinbal ayj apnjoul pue ‘siseq apIM|O0yas e uo papirnoid pue papun) Buiaq suonoe asoy} uondiuasap ay} ul Auapl Isnw sjoLysiq |ooyos

:siseg 9pPIM|O0YIS B UO POpPIACId SUOROY

‘Aloay) jeuoneonpa Jo ‘eousiiadxe ‘yosessal Buioddns ‘palsepisuod saajeuwss)je Aue Buipnjoul ‘uoljeulwssysp

SIY} 10} SISBq 3y} apInold ‘sjidnd pajeaiidnpun s)i Jo) sjeob asay)] }Joow 0} spuny ayj Jo asn 9A1309448 Jsow 8y} ale suoljoe sy} moy aquosap
os|y ‘sanuold [eoo] Aue pue ajejs ay) ul sjidnd pajeolidnpun Joj sjeob sy Bujasw ul 9088 pue o} pajoalip Ajjedioulid ale suoljoe asay)
MOy 9glIosap ‘Jusasad GG uey) sso| Jo abejusaiad jidnd pajesidnpun ue yjm sjolsip |ooyos Jo4 ;judadad GG > abejusatad pajesjjdnpun

‘anoge
paquosap se saiiold |eoo| Aue pue ajejs ayy ul sjidnd pajeosljdnpun Joy sjeob sy Buijeaw ul aajoaye pue oy pajoalip Ajledioulid ale suoljoe
8s8Y] MOY 8qIosap ‘alow Jo Jusasad GG Jo abejusosad |idnd pajeoldnpun ue yym sjoLisIp jooyos Jo- Juaasad GG < abejusaiad pajesiidnpun

:siseqg apiM-Y3] Ue UO papiAOid suonoy
:AluQ sjouysiIqg jooyos 104

"'SNOWAUOUAS Q 0} PaIapISUOCD aJe aPIM-\YJ] PUE SpPIM|OOYIS ‘S|O0YIS JaHEBYD pue SO JO 8SeD 3y} U| 'dA0ge paguosap
se saljioud [eooj Aue pue aje)s ay) ul sjidnd pajeoiidnpun Joy sjeob sy Buiyeaw ui dA0aye pue 0} pajoalip Ajjedioulid ale siseq apIm-y3 T
ue uo juawaiinbal saoinles panocidwi Jo paseasdul 8y} Buijesw o) Buipnguiuoo se papn|oul suoljoe Moy 8quosa( (sjooyos tayeyo pue s309

([u] @aAnoay 3] sswooinQ d|qeinses|y)

"SjuapNys Jay}o ||e Jo 3jel aouepus)je abelane ay} uey) asow Ajjuesiiubis asealoul |jIM SJUSPN}S SWODUI-MO| JNO IO} 8jBl duepus)je
ay) Jey) 1oadxa am ‘snjels pabejueapesip A|jBoILLOU03-0100S B JO S82ualladxa pue $8ssalls 21U0IYD By} Ylim pajeloosse Jsow spasu
199W SUOIJOB 3y} 9SNEJA( PUEB ‘SJUSPN)S BLIOJUI-MO| JO 3jel aouepualje Jamo| Ajjuesiiubis sy} Jo asnessaq ‘JaASMOH Jijauaq ||Im el
aouepliaje juaolad go| B UBY) SS9 YIIM sjuapnss [e jey} adoypoadxas om pue Siseq apim-yY3] ue uo papiaoid Bulaq aie suoljoe asay |



£9 40 €6 @8ed 1013 (00Y2S AJRIUBWB|T UOIUMN UBWYDO0|g JO} Ue|d AlljIGBIUNODDY [0J3U0D) |BIOT €£2-220T
'SMOJ|0} se 3|ge] ay] Qw_QC._OO

"Jusalsad GG uey) Jajealb si jey) sjuapnis pajedldnpun Jo JUaW||0JUd UB Y}IM [O0YIS B Je Sjuapn}s 0} Sa2IAISS Joallp
Buipiaold yeys uiejal 0} spuny ayj buisn si jI moy aquosap jsnw 37 oyl ‘uaoiad gg uey) Jajealb si jey) sjuspnis pajedljdnpun jJo juawjjoius ue
YJIm |00Yy9s B Je sjuapnis 0} SaaInIes Joallp Buipinosd yels asealdul 0} JUaIoiyns Jou si uo-ppe juelb uoljeljuasuod jeuoljippe ue Jey} Juaaa ay} u|

‘oddns Buiye)s jeuonippe alinbal sjooyos Yoiym aulLLIa)ep 0] Pasn BLIBIIO 8y} PUB S|00Yos

pa}0a|as Je sjuapn}s 0} SAOIAISS J0alIp apircid oym ‘yejs [eipolsno Buipnjoul ‘yjoq Jo ‘Yejs palisselo ‘YJels pajeijuapald Jo Jaquunu ay} asealoul
0} spunj ayj Buisn si J moy aquosap Jsnw ‘Juadiad gg ueyy Jayjealb si jey) syuapnis pajedljdnpun Jo Jusw|joJus Ue Y)Im S|ooyds sey Ajuo jeyl
V37 Ue se yons ‘spunj uo-ppe juelb uoljesjuaouod ay) Buisn s )l Moy 8qLIOSap 0} YoIYM WOU) S|O0Yos uosiiedw oo aAey jJou Saop Jey) Y37 uy

‘Jusolad GG ueyy Jayealb si Jey) sjuspnys pajedlidnpun JO JUSLW||0JUS U UY)IM S|JO0YDS JB SJUSPN]S 0} SSIAISS 10alIp apinoid oym YJels
JO Jaquinu ay} asealoul 0y Juswalinbas ay} }9aw 0} Bunpuawajdwi s Y37 8y} 1eyl 4D @Y} Ul SUoi}oe 3y} Jo siaquinu uonjoe pue [eob ayy Ayjuap)

‘g|geoijdde
jou si jdwoud siy} 0} asuodsal e Jey} ajeaipul }snw uo-ppe juelb uojeljuaduod ay} Jo Juelb uoljeljuaduoDd B SAI9231 Jou Sa0p Jey) Y3 uy

w31 8y} 0} a|qeoidde se ‘suondiosap Buimolo} sy} spiroid

‘JJE]S |eIpojsno sapnjoul yels paljisseld ‘3] ay) Aq pahojdwa yeys palisse|d

10/pue ye}s pajedljiled ag JSnw Sjuapnis 0} Sa0IAIaS Joallp aplAoid oym yels ay] juaosad gg uey) ss9| Jo 0} |enba si jey; syuapnis pajesljdnpun
JO JUSLW||0JUS UB Y)IM S|O0YIS Je SJuspn}s 0} S2IAISS Joallp apiaoid oym Jejs Jo Jaqunu ayj o} pasedwod se juasiad GG uey) Jajealbd si

1By} sjuapn}s pajealjdnpun JO JUSW||OJUS UB YIIM S|O0YIS Je SJUSpN)s 0} S80IAISS Joalip aplaosd oym Je)s Jo Jaquinu ay} 8seasoul 0} spuny asay)
Buisn sI 1 moy sjesjsuowap 0} palinbal si Zg'8EZZy UONag HJ Ui pagliosap Uo-ppe Jueld uoljesUBIUOD [BUOIHIPPE BY} SAAISd3l Jey) Y uy
- v R e :

"$90IMI9G panosdu| Jo abejuaoiad ay) Builenojes uo uojewloul Joj SSOIAIS panoldul

Jo abejuaalad pauueld ay) Buluiwis)ap Joy suononisul ay) 8ag "abejusolad jeuonsodold ay} SpiEMO)} UOHOR Y} JO UOHNGIIUOD By} SUIWIS}SP
0] pasn sem jey} ABojopoyjaw ay) aquasap ‘spuny 4497 Jo ainyipuadxa ue uey} Jayiel ajqe] Arewwng Buinquiuo) ayj ul S82IAI8S paaosdw|
Jo abejuaolad pauue|d B Yylim pajeloosse s jey) Juawalinbal saoiaias pasoldwl Jo pasealoul ayy Buizaaw 0y Buinguiuos uooe Aue o

1eak 4y JuBAsjal 8y} 10} sjuapnis

[|e 0} sapiaold Y37 8y} S89IAI9S ay) 0} pasedwod se s|idnd pajesijdnpun o) $82IAI8S Ul JuswaAosdwi Jo asealoul jeuouodold palinbal ay)

ul JInsal 0} pajoadxe ale (S)uoljoe asay) Moy SSalppe jsnw uondiiosap Siy) "SjuapN}s SWOoU-MO| Jo/puk ‘siaules| ysi|bug ‘yinoA 1ajso) seniss
AJUO Jey) UOIJOEB UE SI UOIOB pajili| v "Sluapn}s pajedlidnpun 0} siseq palilll e uo papiAoid Jo SISBq SpIM|O0YDS JO SpIM-yy3] Ue uo papiaoid

ale Aay} Jayjaym ‘Juswalinbal saoinles panosdwll JO pasealour ay} 03 Builnguiuod Se UoI}0as SUOIOY PUe S|BOS) 8y} Ul papnjoul aJe jeyl dvD
ay} Ul suonne asoy) Aq panoidul 10 pasealoul ale saoiAlag “Aljuenb Ul saolaes moub 0} suBSW S9JIAI9S 9SBaIOU) 0} puk Ajljenb ul s90IAI8S MOoJb



19 10 S adeq 10LISIQ [00YdS AJRIUBWA|T UOIUN UBWYIO|g 104 UB|d A}l|IGBIUNODDY [043UOD) |BIOT €2-220C

JeaA dvO7 a|qeoldde ay) Aljusp| Lleap dyO e

eak dvyD7 ajqedljdde Jeyl 4o} 4D 2U3 Ul uonoe yoea Joj uoljewloul Buimojio) ayy indut ‘ajge ] Auju3 ejeq ay} u| ‘papnjoul
8q 0} pasinbal jou si 1ng ‘Apoq Buiuianob Jo pieoq bBuiuianob jeao| sy} Aq pajdope se 4D 8y} ul papnjoul aq Aew a|ge | Ailug ejeq ayl

a|qe] Anu3 ejeq

JESA dYO JUSLIND BY} 8] [|IM ZZ—LZ0Z PUE JesA dvOT Bulwos ay) aq [im £2-2202 ‘dVYO1 €2-2202 au) Buidojansp usym ‘sjdwexs
Jo4 "uonejuawaldwi Jo Jeak Jualnd ay) si Jeak dyD Juaund ay) a|iym ‘Joj pauue|d Bulaq si ey} Jeak ay) sl Jea A dyD] Bulwod ay] 810N

(1A dVD7 JUBLIND By} Jo)) B|qe | JonoAue] 44D G 9|qe] e
(1A dVO1 JuBuNd 3y} Joy) ||qe] ajepdn |enuuy suonldy Buinquuo)d [y d|lqe] e
(JeaA 4D ualino ay} Joy) 9|qe] ajepdn |enuuy g sjqe] e
(les A v Buiwod ay} o) s|qe] suoy bunquiuoy :z s|qe | e
(Jea A dvD7] Bulwoo ay} Joy) 3|qe | sainjipuadx3 pauue|d |ejo] | a|qel e
:Apoq Buruianob 1o pieoq Buiuianob 20| ay} Aq pajdope 4y 8y jo Led se papnjoul 8q 0} palinbal ale so|qe} buimo||o) ay |

‘sa|qe} uonoy Bululewal say) uo palalua Jou SI UOIJBLUIOU| "PaIBJUS 3] [|IM UOIBLIIOUl BI9yMm (S)uwn|od
ay) BulAjjuapl ul pie 0} sJapeay uwn|od 0} pappe uaaqg sey ndul, pjom ay} ‘s|qe Ajug eleq ay} Jo uoijdaoxa auj YIAA "ojqe] JenoAue)d 4407
3y} pue ‘sjge] ajepdn [enuuy suonoy Buinquiuod syl ‘s|qe ] ajepdn jenuuy ay} ‘sjgel Aju3 ejeq ayj ojul passjud Ajuo si uoljewloju| ‘sajqe |
uoljoy Jayjo ayj ajejndod Ajjesijewolne [jim ajge} Siy} Ojul palajud uolleluIojul ay] ‘dyDT 2U} Ui uoioe yoea Joj ajqe| Aiju3 ejeq sy} ajeidwo)d

sa|ge] uonoy

"JeaA Uoea Jo 18qoJo0 Ul ABPSOUPIAA 1SJI) S} UO pajunod SEe Sjuapn)s ps||oJus Jo
Jaguwinu ay) pue gejs 3] 4 J0 Jaquinu ay} Uuo paseq a9 Jsnw Oljel Juspn}s-0}-yeis ay| "v31 ayi 0} ajgeoidde se ‘(sjooyos ybiy pue ‘ybiH Jowunr/a|ppIy
‘Alejuswalg]) ueds apelb Ag sjooyos s) dnolb Aew y37 8yl Y31 oui 0} ojgedidde se ‘yuaosad gg ueyy Joyealb si jey) syuspnis pajediidnpun
JO UOIJBAUSDUOD B YlIM S|O0YDS JB SJUSpN)sS 0} S0IAIaS 10a1ip Buipiroid yejs pajeoliusd Jo ojjel JUspn)s-0}-4e)s ay} pue ssa| Jo juadlad GG Si
1ey) sjuapnjs pajeoldnpun JO UCNEJILSOUOD B )M S|O0YDS JE SJuapn]s 0) So2IAISS 10alip Buipianoid LJeis palesuiuad Jo Oljel Juspn)s-0})-4els 8y} OpInCId e

"Jeah Yoea JO 18qojoQ Ul ABpSaupap 1SJi @Y} Uo pajunod Se Sjuapnis pao|icJus Jo Jaquinu

ay) pue yejs (31 4) Jusieainba awn [jn) JO JaqWINU 8Y) UC paseq aq Jsnul ONel Juspnjs-0}-Jels ay| "v37] oy} 0} aiqesidde se ‘(sjooyos ybiH pue

‘ybiy Jowunr/eppPIN ‘Asejusws|]) ueds apelb Ag sjooyos sy dnolb Aew w37 9yl w31 9y} 0} 9|qeoydde se uasiad GG ueyj Jojealb si jey) sjuspnis

pajesiidnpun JO UOIEJIUSOUOD B UJIM S|O0YDS JB SJUSPN]S 0] Sa0IAISS Joalip Buipincid Jeis paijiSSe|o JO Oljel JUSPN)S-0)-}ejs ay} pue ssa| Jo juadsad
GG @ Jey] sjuspnis pajedlidnpun JO UOIBIUDOUOD B U)IM SJUSPNIS 0} SO2IAIDS 10a11p Buipiaosd Yels paiisse|d Jo Oljel JUSPN)S-0)-44e]s aU} SPINOIH e



L9 0 GG a8ed 10143510 [00Y2S AJBIUBWA|] UOIUN UBWYD0|gG 10} uB|d AJ}|IGRIUNOIDY |0JIU0D |BIOT £2-220C

"9AI903l sjuapnis
|le 1eym o} pasedwoo se parosdwl 10 pasealoul Buiaq ale ssaialas woym Joj sdnoub juspnis pajeslidnpun aiow 10 SUO 8}edIpu|
‘sdnoub Juapnys pajealjdnpun aJow Jo 8U0 8AISS suoloe Bunnquiuoo ‘adoos jo ssajpiebay :(s)dnolo jJuspnig pajeosljdnpun ©

‘'sdnoub jJuapnis pajesldnpun

9J0W JO BUO Ajuo SBAIBS Jey) uoljoe ue sI 8dods S) Ul pajwi| I Jey} uoljoe uy ‘|ooyds 8|buls e jo weibouid jeuojeanps alljud

ay) sepelbdn adoos ul apimjooyos si Jey} uoljoe Uy "y37 a2y} Jo welboud [euoijeonpa alnua ay} sapelbdn adoos ui spim-y37 S! jeyl
UOIJOEB Uy "pajiwl| 10 ‘@pIM|O0YISs ‘(apimialieyd 10 ‘apImAIUNOD ‘apImIoLIsIp “a°1) apim-yY3 @9 Aew uoljoe ue jo adoos ay] :8dooag ©

:suwn|o9 Buimo|io} ay) a)8|dwod usy) ‘uwnjod BunnguuoD 8y} Ojul paJajud s SOA, H

'$80IAI8S panosdwi Jo pasealoul ay) Buinesw o) Buinguiuoo se papnjoul Jou si uoljoe ay} 4 ON, 9dA) “HO ‘sadinas panosduw
1o paseaJour ay} Bujesw o] BuinguIuod Se papn|oul I UOIOE. 8y) JI SOA, 8dA| :¢Ssad1AI9g parosduwl Jo pasealou] 0} Bupnquuoy e

‘sdnoub 1o dnoub juspnis olyoads e
Buusius Aq Jo |y, Buusiua Aq uoioe ayj jo Aueroysuaqg Aewud ay) aq |im oym sdnoub Jo dnoub Juapnys ayj sjeoipu| ((s)dnou juspnig e

"UOIJOB BY]) JO S[}I} B SPIAOIH :B3IL UOROY
1805 4¥OT @Yl Ul palesipul Se Jaquinu S,UoIjo. 8y} JajuT i# UOIJOY e
"uoljoe ay) Jo} Jaquinu |BOS) 4D Byl JoJuT # |BOD) e

Jeak gy Buiwoo ayj ul sjuapnis ||e 0} papinosd Sa2IAISS By} O}

paledwoo se panoldwi Jo pasealoul aq jsnw sjidnd pajeaidnpun 10} saoiAlas yoiym Ag abejuadsad ayj st siy] (8)(e)964G 1 U0I08S DD

G 0] Juensind ‘sjuel) UOBIIUBUOY Jo/pue [ejuswsa|ddng 4407 peajoslold ayy pue juels) aseg 4497 pajoslold ay) uo paseq paje|nojed
SI )l ‘palojua aq Jou |im abejusolad siy] :JeaA Jooyoss Buiwoq ayj 1oy sadiAlag aaosdwj Jo asealou] 0} abejusdlad pejosfold ‘¢ e

"Jeah
|ooyos Buiwod ay) 4oy sluapn}s pajedljdnpun JO UONBIJUSIUOD PUB Jaquinu By} JO SISBJ By} UO SAISD3I [|IM I SejewI}se Y3 ay) sluelb
uoIjeljuUSdUOD pue [ejuswa|ddns 4497 JO JUNOWE )0} By} BPIACI :SjueIS) UORIIUSIUO0D Joj/pue [ejusws|ddng 4407 pejoafoid 'z

"suone|noeo
Juswuoigodde 4497 1o} ‘e|qedrjdde se ‘(s|ooyos Japeyd pue S}oLISIP [00YdS 10)) 20 8822y PUB (ST 10)) /G2 suoljoss D3 993

(8)(e)96¥G L UOOBS DD G 0} Juensind ‘weibold uoljepodsuel| |00Yog O} SWOH
ay) pue weiboid jueio) Juswanoidw) jeuononijsu| pejeble ] ayj Joj suo-ppe ay} pue sjueld uoljeljuasuod pue [eyuawslddns ayj Butpnjoxe
‘Jeak [0n1os BuLod sy Joj BAI08l [jIM ) SaJBLNSS Y 9yl Buipuni 4497 4O JUNOWE |BJ0} Y} SPINOId :JuelS) aseq 4407 poajosloid 'L e



£9 40 95 38ed 19U1SIQ |00Y9S AJBIUBWA|T UOIUN UBWIYIO(E 0§ UB|d ALl|IGBIUNOIIY |043U0D [BIOT £2-2202

‘papun} alam )i JI uoijoe ayj Juaws|dwi 0} puadxa pjnom }I sajewli}ss
w37 a8yl Jeyl Buipuny 4497 10 Junowe 8y} 0} Spuodsallod UoIoe Ue J0) saoinas panosdwi jo abejuadiad ay] ~obejusosad
jeuoilodoud 8y} splemo} uoljoe ayj JO UolNqLIU0D 8y} aulwialap o} pasn Ji jey} Abojopoylaw 8y} 8quosap jsnw Y37 8y} ‘S8dIneS
panosdwi| jo abejuaolad pauue|d e BuiAjpuapl uaym ‘Uoljoas sadIAIRS panosduu| Jo pasealou] ayj Jo} SUOIJoNIsUl 8y} Ul pajou sy ©
"SJUSPN)S BLUOJUI-MO| JOo/pue
‘sJaulea; ys)|bug ‘yinoA Je)so) sanias Ajuo jey} uoioe ue si uoljoe paywil v (%00°0) Uipalpuny jsaleau ay} 0} papunol abejuaolad e
se uoljoe ay} Joy pajedionue Juswanoidwi Ayjenb pauue|d ay} Jajua ‘uoijoe ayl yim pajeioosse Buipuny aaey Jou sa0p jey) pue ‘sjuapnis
pajeoijdnpun o} siseq pauwi e uo papiaoid Buiaq ‘Buinquiuod se pailjuapl uonoe Aue 104 :Sa9iAlag paAosduw jo abejuaolad pauue|ld e

"SULUN|OD JNOJ SNOIASId By} Ul palajua Sjunowe uo paseq paje|ndjes Ajjeoljellolne s| Junowe siy| :spung [ejol e
‘Aue JI ‘uonjoe sIy) Juswa|dwi 0} pazijin spun4 |eJapa4 JO JUNOWE |E}Jo} 8y} JOJUT (spund |eJopad e

‘Aue JI ‘uonoe siy) Juswaldwi o} pazijin spun4 [B207 JO JUNOWE |e}0} 8y} Jajug :spund |e207] e

‘Aue JI ‘uonjoe siy) Juswaldwi 0} pazijiyn spun4 a)elS JaylO 4O JUNoWe [e}0} 8y} J8jug (Spund 8jejs Jayjp

‘uonoe ayj Juswaldwi o} pasn Buiaq Buipuny 4497 8y} UO paseq S| Juswalinbal saoas panocidwi Jo pasealoul ay) buissw
0] S9JNQLIUOD UOIJOB UB YdIYM O} JUBIX8 8y} Jaramoy ‘saainos Jayjo woly Buipuny apnjout osje Aew uoloe ay] “bulpuny 4497 J0
2JNSEaW SWOS apNoul }snuw Ji Juswalinbal sadiAas panoldwi 10 pasealoul 9y} bujjasw SpJemo] 8)nquiuoD 0} uotjoe ue 104 :8JO0N ©

‘(uoneuodsuel | [00Y0S-0 | -0WOH pue ‘JUEeIS) %00|g juswanoiduw|
leuononisu| pajabie] uelb uonesjuaouoo ‘Juelb [ejuswsaiddns ‘juswisnipe ueds apelb ‘Juelb aseq ‘9'1) 19b1e} 4407 €0} S, Y] UB
dn a)ew jey) spuny || apnjoul spun} 4407 “Aue Ji ‘uoijoe sy} Juawas|dwi 03 pazijin spunj 4497 JO JUNOWE [B]o} 8y} Jaju3 'spund 44977 o

"uWN|o9 Spun4 |eJo] 8y}
PUE UWN|OD [SULOSIad |B1O| 8y} Ul papIACId UOIJBWLIOUI UO Paseq paje|nojeo Aj|edljewolne aq [|ImM JUNOWE Siy| :[dUUOSISd-UON [B}JO] o

‘uoljoe siy) Juswajdwi 0] pazijn salnypuadxa [auuosiad Jo Junowe |ejo} sy} JajuT ([dUUOSIad [BJOL e

SUJUO 9, 10 'Siea\ Z, 10 JeaA |, Jajus Wybiw y37 ue ‘ajdwexa 104 "pajuswa|dwl 8q ||Im UOIOE 3y} YdIym
10} awi Jo ueds ay} a1ea1pul ‘osIMIBYIO "o Jo polad ajeulwlalapul ue Joj pajuawajdwi a4 ||Im uoioe ay; ji Buiobuo, Jejug (uedg awi] e

‘ajeudoidde se ‘(anl) apelb ybnouyy usuebiapuny [euolyisues) sepelb Jo sjooyos ybiy

Ile B°8) sueds apeib 10 S|00YDS JO JBSANs B o |00yos [ENPIAIpUl BY} Ajuap| , sueds apeis) Jlj1oads,, 10 S|00ydS 2119adSg,, 1ajus

Isnw y37 9y} ‘Ajuo sueds apeib oioads Jo Y37 3y} WIYIM sjooyos oioads 0} papinold si uoijoe ay} i ,'S|ooyos (I, ledlpul isnw
V37 2" ‘Y37 9y ulyim sjooyos |je o) papiaoid si uonoe ay} j| ‘papiacid aq [jim UOHOE By} SJaYM Uuoljedo| sy} Ajijuap| :uopedoT o



£9 40 £G 28ed 10143SI |00YIS AUBIUBWD(T UOIUN UBWYDO|g JO4 UB|d A}|IGBIUNOIDY |0JIUOD [BD0T £2-220C
pajewWwse Jey) sjuspn)s Joj spoddns 2)euIpiooo 0} PUB BJEP 8ZA|BUE PUE J08||00 0] 4B)S [BUOIHIPPE PaJly }I PeY ey} SaUILLIS}ap puUe uofnoe
8y} 10} 1S00 pajewisa jeulbiio sy} SmalAal Y3 8y ‘paAcidwl sjuspnis YINoA J8)soj} J0j SBWODINO0 Jey) pue AJjepl Uim pajuswaldul sem
UOIOE 8] JB) SBUIWISIap PUB BIEP SWO02IN0 Juspnls pue uolejusws|dwl smalaal Y37 8y} ‘sseooud ajepdn jenuue 8y} jo Hed Sy "Uoljoe ay}
sjuswa|dwi a|dwexa ay} Ul Y37 8yl ‘seoiAeg paaosduw Jo abejusaley psuuelq suy) Bunjenojeos Joj saoqe papiroid sidwexa sy uo Buiping o

(%00°0) Uipaipuny }saleau ay} 0} papunod abejusolad e se uoijoe ay)
Joy pejedionue juswanoidwi Ajjenb [enjoe pajew}se |ejo) ay} Jajua ‘uoijoe ay) yim pajeloosse Buipuny aABY Jou S0P Jey) pue ‘sjuspnis pajedldnpun
0} Ajuo siseq pajiwi e uo paplacid Buleq ‘Buiyngliuoo se palljuspl uoioe Aue 104 :$99IAI9S parciduw| jo abejuasiad [eN}oy pajewisy e

‘Aue J1 ‘uojjoe
sIy} Juswajdwi 0} pasn spuny} 4497 10 alnjipuadxa [eN)oe palewilsa |B)o) ay] Jolug :suonoay Bunnquiuon 1o} sainjipuadxy |en}oy pajewiisy e

"JeaA [00Y0S JUBLIND 8y Ul SJUSpPN)S paledlidnpun JO UOIEJIUSOUOD PUB JBQUINU 8y} JO U0 PaSE] 8AI90al A|[BNJOE ||IM }I SSIBWISS VI 8y}
sjuelb uonesusoUOD pue [eluswsalddns 4477 JO JUNOWE [B)0} 8U) SPIACId :SJUBIS UOIJRIIUdIUO0Y Jo/pue [ejuswa|ddng 4497 |BN}OY pojewys3 ‘g o

JBak qyDT JUBAS|aI BY} 10} dYOT

ay} ui uonoe Bunnqguiuod yoea Joj uoljewlopul Buimoljoy ay} apinold ‘sasuodsal SaA, ay} Ajuo Ja}ji} 0} JopEaY uWwN|od 8y} Ul husaw umop-doip ay)
asn ‘uwn|od ay} ul Buike(dsip jou ale Bungijuod ale Jey) Suoljoe ji 10 pake|dsip ale 0N, B Ulim suoljoe §j "Bulke|dsip aie SaA, B YlIim suojjoe
AJuo Jey} ainsua 0} UWN|0I ,,S0IABS pancsdw| Jo pasealdu| 0} Buinguuon, ay} ¥oayo ‘s|qe ] ayepdn jenuuy suonoy Bunngujuo) ay) uj

9|gqe QHN—UQD jenuuy suoljdy UC_“_.SD_E_.COO
‘Aue Ji ‘uonoe siy) Juswa|dw 0} saln)ipuadxa [BNjOE PajBWISa |BJ0} 8y} Jaju] (sainjipuadx3] [en)oy pajew)sy e

Jeak 4y JuBAS|al 3y} 10} D] 8y} Ul uoljoe Yoea J0oj uoljewsojul Buimoljoy ay} apiaoid ‘siqe] ajepdn jenuuy 8y} uj
a|qe] ajepdn jenuuy
‘'sasuodsal SaA, 3y} AJUo Ja)ji 0} JOpPESY UWN|0d 3y} Ul nuaw umop-dolp 8y} asn ‘uwn|od ayy ul BuiAe|dsip jou ale Buipnguiuoo ale jey) suoljoe

11 1o pakejdsip aie 0N, & Yiim suonoe J| ‘Buike|dsip ale SaA, B Y)IM SUOHOR AJUO JBy} 2INSUS 0} paydayd aq 0} POsU ||IM UWN|0D (,S82IAISS
panosdw| 10 pasealou| 0} Builnguiuon, ay) ‘Jeanamoy ‘9jqe| suoloy Buiznquiuon sy ui palajua aq Jou ||Im UOIJBWIOUl ‘OA0QE PIJOU SY

a|qeL suoioy bBunnguiuon

"uoIrjoe 8y} Joj 8oIneS panoldw jo abejuadlad pauueld ayj si abejusaiad

siy| ‘ebejusolad e 0} Jusljonb ay) UBAUOD uay} pue ajqe | Aug ejeq ay} ul payiuapl Buipung 4497 jo Junowe ay} Aq 000°G91L$
1O }S02 pajewl}sa ay} apIAIp pjnom 3 ayj ‘sjdwexa siy} uj ‘sjuapnis o} Hoddns jabie} 0} siapinoid Buluies| pspuedxe pue
sjue)SISSE [RBUONONISUI AQ papIAoid S9OIAISS 9)BUIPIO0D O} Bjep 8y} asn |jim oym sjedioulid a)is yim paseys aq uay) ||im sishjeue
siYL "YyinoA 1s)so} ate oym sjuapnis o) Buijejal ejep azAjeue o} awiy yejs bBunsixe jo uoipod e azijiin 0} sesooyd Y37 8yj ‘pesisu|
‘000°G91$ 1500 pjnom sajew}sa Y31 ay} yolym ‘sjuapnis Joj spoddns ajeuipio0d 0} pue e}ep azAjeue pue 08||00 0} Jjejs [euol}ippe
Buuiy Ag uopoe siy) Juswa|dwi pinod Y3 8y 'YInoA 18}soj ate oym sjuapnis 0} apinoid o} spoddns pajabie) jeym mouy siapiaoid
Buiusra) papuedxs pue sapie jeuononiisul Jeyj aInsua o} ejep azAIeUe 0} paau B si alay} ey} saulwlajep Y31 ue ‘sjdwexs 104



£9 40 85 33ed 12143517 [ooYy2S Aleluawia|] uoiun uewysojg 1o} uejd Aljigelunoddy |odiuo)) (B30T £2-220C

. palinbay joN, Ae|dsIp |jim sao1n8S panosdw| jo abejuadlad

|ENJOY pajewl}s] pue pauue|d usamjag aosualagig ay} ‘(g) sjuels uoljesjuasuo) pue |ejuswa|ddng 4407 |enjoY pajewsy ay) uey)

Jajealb 1o 0] [enba s} () sainypuadx3 Buiinquiuoy) pauue|d [e}o] au} | (2) saanuag panosdw| jo abejuasiad |enyoy pajewlisy [Bjo] ayj pue
(G) seo1nuag panosdw Jo abejuadiad pauue|d [BJO| Y} Uamjaq adualayip ay} aje|ndjed o} pasinbal s1 y37 8y} (9) sjuels) uoijesjuasuoy pue
lejusws|ddng 4407 jenjoy pajewns3 ay} ueyy ssa| si () sainjipuadx3 Buinquiuod pauueld [ejol au} i ‘(2)(2)20'8€22 1 UOO8S DF 0} Juensing
9|qe 9)epdn jenuuy suonoy Buiynquiuo)n

‘(g) s8o1nag panoidw Jo abejusolad palue|d [BJ0 ay] 0] )l Buippe pue ‘ebejuadiad e 0} Jusijonb ay}
Buipeauos ‘(1) Juels) sseg 4407 pejoslold syl Aq (f) seinypuadxg Bunnguiuo pauue|d |ejo ay) Buipiaip AQ palenojeo s| ebejusoiad siy| ©

(g snid ‘| Ag papiaIp ) Jeak jooyos Buiwod ay) Joj sao1Meg anoldLl| 10 asealou) 0} abejuadlad pauueld e
uwnjoo sao1A8g panosduw| jo abejusdlad paule|d auj o |B10} oY) sl obeuadiad siy| o

$o219g panoldw| Jo sbejusolad pauue|d [Blo] G e
uwnN|o92 (spun4 44907) suonoy Bulnguiuod 1oy sainjpuadx3 pauue|d Suj JO |BJO} 8U} Sl Junowe siy]  ©

(spun4 4497) seinypuadx3 BunNGUIUOD pauueld [BJoL b e
a|qeL suonoy Bunnquiuo

"Mojaq papinoid ale pasn suoljeNojed pue Ajljeuonouny
ay} ‘Aoualedsuel) J04 ‘9jqe] Ssuondy Builnquiuo) sy} pue ‘aiqe) Alewwng ajepdn [enuuy sy} ‘a|ge Aijug ejeq ay) ui papiaoid uoljewsojul
3y} uo paseq s||29 pue spiay Jo uoljeindod-aid se yons Ajijeuoljoun} apnjoul sa|qe ] uoljoYy ay} ‘sy37 Jo Loya Jo uonesidnp ayj 8onpal o0

S9|qe | uol}oy 9y} ul suone|noje)

Jeak 4y JUalind ay} ul sjuapnjs je 0} papiaoid sadiAlas ay) 0} pasedwod se panosduwi 10 pasealoul
aq i1snw s|idnd pajesidnpun 1o} sadiaIas ydiym Aq abejuadiad ay) st siyl (8)(B)964G ) uoi0as YOO G 0} juensind ‘sjuels) uoljesjuadsuo)
Jo/pue |eluswa|ddng 4407 |enjoy pajewi}sy au) pue juels) aseq 4407 |ENJOY pajewlis ay} uo paseq paje|ndjed si Jl .palajud

aq jou |Im abejuasiad siy] aeaA Jooyoss Buiwog ay) 1oj saoialag anoldw) 1o asealou| o) abejusalad [en}oy pajewis3y ‘0L e

(8)(e)gBPS| uonoas ¥ G 01 juensind ‘welsboid uoljepodsuel| |00YdS 0} SWOH 8y} pue
weibold juels) juswanoldw| jeuononlisu| pajabie| ay} Joj suo-ppe ay} pue sjuelb uoneljusouod pue jeyuawajddns ay) Buipnjoxs ‘Jeak
|[O0YQS JUS4IND 3Y) JO} SAIR03I |[IM J Sajewsa Y37 ay} Buipuny 4497 JO JUNOWE |B}0} By} SPINOId JuelS) aseq 4497 [eN}OY pojewl}s3 ‘g o

d|qel Janohlie) 4497

‘uonoe ay} 1oj sa0IABS panosdulf jo sbejusdiad |enjoy
pajewns3 ay) si abejuaoiad siy| "ebejuadiad e 0} usnonb sy} BOAUOD Usy) pue 3|ge | AU Bleg 2y} ul payiuap! Buipung 4497 JO Junowe
ayl Aq 0r~'691.$ 10 1S0D |BNJOR palewlSa ay) apIAIP PINOM Y3 8y ‘juswisnipe Buialj Jo 100 B 0} @np 00569} $ U98g SABY PINOM }SOO [ENJOE



/9 }0 65 38eq 121151 [004Y2S AIRIUBWB|T UOIUMN UBWYD0|g 404 UB|d A1l[IQBIUNOIDY |04IU0D) (8207 €2-220C

'spuny 4407 1en0 Aleo 0} padinbal st y37 8yl ‘(QL) s8o1neS aaoudw|
10 asealou| 0] abejuadiad |enoy palewnsg ay) ueyl ss9f si (1 1) sadineg panoidul| Jo pasealou| Jo abejuasiad |enjoy pajewsg aylyl o©

(6 Ag Aldnjnw pue QL wod} | | 10eagnS) JOACAIIRD 4407 JUNCWY Jejjog — JOACALIRD 4407121 o

'(g) seoineg panoidw) Jo ebejuadlad |Bnoy palewns] [B1o] oy Buippe pue abejuaoiad e 0) uanonb
ay} Buieauoo uay) ‘(6) Buipund 4407 8y Aq papiaip (£) suonoy Bunnguuod 1oy sainjipuedx3 [enjoy pejews3 [ejo) ay) st abejusdlad siyL  ©

(g snid ‘6 Aq papialp /) S8oineg panoldw| 10 pesealdu| Jo abejuadIad |BNJOY pajewls || e
a|qeL 19A0Alle) 4497

(8) sooInBeS
panoidwj Jo abejuadlad [eNjoY pajewsy |e10] oyl woll pajoeligns (G) saoineg pancidw Jo abejuadlad pauue|d ()0 8y} SIjunowe siy| ©

(g woyy G 10enqng) sedines parosdw) Jo abejusslad |ENOY PajEWINST PUB pPauueld usamjag aoualayig

uwnjod sadines panosdwl Jo abejusdiad [ENIOY palewST 8y} JO |10} 8Y3 S| JUNOWE SIy| O

(%) seo1neg panciduwl jo ebejusdlad |ENOY Pajewnsy (B0l ‘g

uwnjoo seoineg panosdw) Jo abejusoiad pauue|d 9y} 4O |0} SU} SI Junowe siy|  ©

(%) se@o1nuag panoldwi jo abejuadled pauue|d [BlO] G

(L) suonoy
Bunnguyuo) 1oy sainyipuadxg |ENOY pajewsg [B10 | 8y} Wol payenans () sainypuadxg Bunguiuo) pauueld |ejo] 8yl sl junowe siy]  ©

(2 wou ¢ yoengng) suonoy Buinguiuo Joj sainjipuadx3 |ENOY pajew ST PUe pauue|d usamiag adualapig

(spund 4407) suonoy BunnNqUIuD Joy sainyipuadx3y [enjoy pajewnsT 8y} Jo (B0} 8u S JUNOWE SIy  ©

suonoy Bunnquuo) Joy sainypuadxy [enjoy pajewns3 [Bj0] L

(spun4 4497) suonsy Bunnquuo” Joj sainypuadxy pauue|d SJesA JSET au} JO [BI0} 8Y) Sl junowe siy|  ©

(spund 4407) seinypuadxg Bunquiuoy pauueld [ejoL ¢

“JeoA [00YDS JUSLIND By} Ul SJUSpN)s pajedljdnpun O UOIIBIUSOUOD
pUE JaquINU 8y} JO U0 paskeq aAlaoal Ajlenjoe |Im }I selewnse Y3 oY) sjuelb uoneliuaouod pue [eyuswaiddns 4407 J0 Junowe |ejo} 8y si siyl  ©

SJUBIS) UONBIUSDUOD) pue [ejuswalddng 4407 [ENOY POjEWNST g e



£9 10 09 98ed 1914351Q [00YIS AIRIUBWIB|T UOjUN UBWYD0|g 404 UB|d AJI[IGBILUNOIIY |04IU0)D) [BDOT €2-2Z0T

1 Z0Z JaquianoN
uoljeanp3 jo Juswuedaq eluioe)

“(6) Bulpun4 4407 a4l Aq (z1) Jenokue] 4407 oY) Buipiaip Aq pajenojes si obejusolad ay| “Jesh
dvD1 Bulwos ayj ojul JsA0 A1IeD 1SNW 3T ay) Jey] seoiAles aaosduwll Jo asealou] 0} abejusolad ay) o uolpod Jowun ay) st abejusosed siyy ©

(6 Aq papIAp Z1) abejusoiad — JanoAleD 4407 €L o
‘Jeak BuIwoo sy} 0} JOAO pallIeDd 8q 0} palinbal si jey) spuni 4407 J0 JUuNowe ayj si Junowe

siy] “(g) 1uelD aseg 4407 |enoy pajewnsg ay} AQ BuiAidiyinw usy) pue (Q}) sa018S panoldul] 10 pasealdu| Jo abejusoiad [BnjOY pajewiis3
au ‘1ioly (L 1) seoIMag anoldw) Jo aseslou| 0) abejuasiad |enjoy palrulsg ay) bunoesgns Aq pajeinojed st spuny 4407 40 Junowe ay|



/9310 19 adeq 1OUISIQ |00YS AJBIUBWI|T UOIUM UBWYIO|G 1O} UB|d AL|IQBIUNOIIY [0JIUOD) |BIOT £2-2202

SpuUN} 9SOy} JO asn a8y} pue paAladal spunj Jo Isi| e sI Buimo||oy au}

‘JanBaMOH "dD7 4no ul papnjoul aq AjjeaidA} pjnom Jey} spuny jou ale L Z0Z 10 10y 18bpng ay} Aq papinoid spuny Jo 8sn 8y spunj asouy} Jo
asn ayj pue | z0zZ 10 1oV 18bpng ay} ybnoliyy papinoid sem ey Buipuny ayj passnosip saAlejuasaldal 10usIq "1 Z0Z ‘6 JequianoN uo bBuyssw
pseoq o1ignd paoijou Aliadoud e Bulnp pue L zoz ‘G JaquanoN uo Buijasw yejs jje ue buunp siauped jeuoneonpa sy pabebus jouysip syl

'S}Oy @say} ‘Jo uonejuswas|dwi pue ‘uo Juswabebuas 0} paje|al siauped jeuoljeonpa pue Apoq Jo pieoq buluianob [eoo)
3y} o} Jodal JeaA-piw awil-auo e s| buimo|o) ay ‘sjuapnis uo Buiuiea| aouelsip Jo syoedwl ay) ssalppe 0} pue oiwapued §L-QIAOQD dYi Wol}
Buanooal Ul sajiunwWWwod Jisy) pue ‘yejs ‘siayoes) ‘sjuapnys woddns o) Buipuny ul asealoul Jueoyiubis e yum (sy37) seiouabe jeuoneonpa
[e20| papinoid BABY SJOE J3I|al |BISP3) PUE B]B)S Jayl0 PUB ‘| Z0Z JO 10V UB|d @nosay UeoLBWY [eiapa) ay] 1oV 18bpng zZz—1Z0Z S.elulojijeD

8¥L1-2£6-G08 juspusjuadng
Bio psnuewyso|g@umolgp umolg bnog

1213810 |00Yy2Sg AlBjuswall uolun uewyoolg

:m_n_. b___m_mucsooo.c.
pue |0Jl1u0) |B201 ZZ—1202Z 92Ul 0} ajepdn |enuuy ay} o3 Juswa|ddng

@3




L9 40 79 93ed PLISIQ [00YdS AlBIUBWS|F UOIUN UBWYDO|G 104 Ul AL|IGRIUNODDY [01U0D |820T £2-TZ0C
Joj poddns yyesy jejusw apiaoid ‘sanddns Buiosjuisip pue juawdinba aaijoajoud jeuositad ‘siailind Jie aseyaind - 690°96$ - [ ¥3SS3 'L

spuny

asoy} jo abesn ayj pue paaladal spuny |esapay} ay) Jo isi| e si mojag ‘s|idnd uo Buluies] asue)sip jo sjoedwi ay} pue dlwapued 6L-AIAOD
ay} wouy Auanodal yoddns 0] papusjul ale Jey} SpuUnj [eJapa) awil-auo ay} passnasip saAljejuasaldal Jousi " LZ0Z ‘6 J8quanoN uo buljeaw
pJeoq o1gnd paoyjou Aladoid e Buunp pue | Z0z ‘G JaquanoN uo Buieasw Yeis [je ue Buunp sisuued [euoneonpa sy pabebua joulsip ay |

'2202/1202 1o} Juelb uoieljuasuod
OU YUm sn Ys| SAVJIVD ul papodal sisquinu [enjoe ‘JaAamMoH "£6/°€$ J0 Junowe juelb uoljesjuaduod e pajelausab aney pjnom yolym
|enjoe uey Jaybiy Apybis aq pjnom sbejuaaiad idnd pajesydnpun ino jey} pajoalolid am ‘pasedald Ajjeuibuo sem JdyD1 2202/L20Z Ul USUAA

‘sbuijeaw pseoq 211gnd paoanjou Auadold pue ‘sbuiesw 4y ‘sbunasw [louno) ajis jooyog ‘sbuileaw yeys ybnouyy pajejjioes
aq |m SIY] 'ZzZ0z jo judy ybnouyy Aienuepr wody siseq Ajyjuow e uo aoe|d aye} |im saiiunuoddo Juswabebus Jjauped jeuojeonpa ainjng

Buiysa) yewyouaq ‘poddns apie |euolonIsSU| - €6/ ‘v8$ - d)elS - saljiunpodd bButuiea papuedx] 6

Buiuadoau jooyas ||n4 8y} 03 Joud Buiyoea} uosiad ul 0} pauln}al OYm SISYoes) Jo} SBUEB|ES - §/E 28 - JUBIS) uoljonjsu] uosiad u| ‘g
Buiuses| asuejsip woddns djay o} saijddns jeuoijonyisul pue Jajndwod aseyaind - gG#'gL$ - 49 uonebiy sso buiutesa /2

uoddns aoueusjuiew eljxs apiaoid ‘ojwspued ay) Aq Alessaoau apew sajol mau 0} seakojdwae pauissed asodindal seakojdws 1oy Buiyss)
QINOD opinoid ‘Buluies| soueysip woddns djay 0y saijddns |euoljonyisul pue siandwod aseyaind - 6€1L'801$ - ¥ uonebiyy ssoq Buluies g
saljlwe) pue sjuapnjs Joj Joddns yjjeay [ejusiy - 9€1°6$ - | Y339 ‘saunpoddQ Buiuies papuedx3y ‘g

saljlwey

pue sjuapnjs Joj yoddns yjjeay eyusw ‘uoddns apie [euoljonJISuUl - £60°29$ - 111 PUB ‘] ‘| ¥Y3SST ‘saiiunuoddo buiuies papuedx3]
Buiuies| soue}sip pyoddns djay o0} saiiddns |euonjonJsui pue siajndwod paseyaind - 085°0L$ - ¥3IO - uonebiyy sso buluiea ¢
suleno}

Bunjuup ssajyono} aseyaind jim ‘weisboid Aep jooyoss papuajxe pue weiboid Buipeal Jawwns e pajuswajdw| - €10'9Z1$ - 111 ¥3SS3 ¢
Saljllle) pue sjuapn}s

Joj puoddns yyeay jejuaw apiaold ‘sainddns Bunosjuisip pue juswdinba aajosjoud [euosiad ‘siayund Jie aseyaind - 690°'96$ - 1| ¥3SS3 'L



£9 }0 €9 ade(d 10143510 |00Y2S AJRIUBWIB|T UOIUM UBWYD0|g 10} UB|d AYI|IQRIUNOIDY [0JIUOD) |BD0T £2-220C
$95S042 1y} Bulsa) 1Byl a/emMeUN 3JaM @M pue L zZog Jo Bulds ay} ul welboid Apeay-| ay) Buisn paue)s 1snljoulsip ay| ‘welboid Apeoay

-] 8y} Buisn |je} By} Ul paIsa}-al BJaM SJUSPNIS “JBWWINS 38U} JSAO [00Yds 0} Bulod 0} Jwwod 0} sjuapnis bupjab sabus)eys swos e} pip apA
‘welboid Apeay-| ay; woly Bunss) yiewyosuaq paseq-aauapina Buisn uonuaaisjul 10} palijuapl alam sjuapnig "uoljuaslsiul bulipeal |euoljippe
Buipaau se pauljuapl alam oym ¢ — ) sapelb ul syuapnis Joj ‘107 v peay dwe) pajjed ‘wesboid Buipeas Jjeawwns e pajsoy Jo1sIp syl

'Spuny [1] ¥3SST 3yj yim apinoud 1M Jo sey Jol)sIp 8yl S82IAI8S pue suoljoe ay} Jo uoiduosep e s mojeg

IGEVPIPEaT=1 ¢IPd 1202 21 010¢%Por0Iddy0Z%PIB0802%c260120¢C
JOUISIg [00Y0S ATejuslisg uojun UBWYd0[g UBld oimipusdxXs (Il 93553 1202/d35S3/590IN0S02 %Ssoulsna/oNisia/Speodn/jusiuod

-dm/BI10 pSnUBWIYS0|q MMM//-SAIY
:ssalppe gam Buimoljo} ay} 1e a)sgem uewyoo|g ay} uo punoy
aq ueo uejd ay| ‘ue|d ay} Jo g abed uo spasau juapnjs Buissalppe ale SUOIJUBAIBIUI MOY SMOYS ueld alnjipuadx3 ||| ¥3SST s,)oMisIp oyl

LGEPPLPEIL=] ¢IPpd 1202 21 0102%PaN01ddy0Z%pPIe0g0Z%cc60120¢

JoUISI [00UdS Alejuswis[g uoluy UBWYI0|g Ueld ainjipuadx3 [|] ¥3SST 1202/d3SSI/SOOIAISS0Z%SSauIsng/ouisia/speo|dnjuajuod
-dm/B1o pSNUBWIYD0|q MMM/ SARY

:ssalppe Buimol|o} sy} 1e ajisgam uellyoo|g oy} uo punoj aq ues ueid ay| "ssadoud jJuswabebua ay) Jo uonduosaep

e 1o} ue|d sy} Jo ¢ abed aas ases|d ‘ue|d ainiipuadx3 ||| YISST ay} jo Juawdojanap ay} Buunp pabebus os|e aiom sisuped jeuonjeonp3

8920¥80291 =} ¢ipd ddy

-pieog-1£c01202-asSnNig ueid juels saniunpodd buluies papuedxy | g0g/Si1oA|4/speojdnauajuod-dm/bio  psSnUuBWIYD0|q" MMM// sa)Y
:ssaippe Buimo||o) ayj Je a)isgem uewyoo|g 8y} uo punoj aq ueod ue(d ay] ‘ssacoid Juswabebus ayj jo uondiuossp e uoj ueid

ay} Jo z abed aas ases|d ‘ue|d Juelo saniunuoddp Buluses papuedx] ayj jo Juawdojaaap ayy Bunp pabebus aiom siauped |euoneonp]

poddns aoueusjuiew eaxa apinold ‘olwapued ay) Aq Alessaoau apew sajol mau 0} seakojdwa paiisse|d asodindal seakojdwa Joj Buisa)
AINOD apinoid Buluies) asuelsip poddns djay o} saljddns jeuoijonisul pue siaindwod aseyaind - 6€1°801$ - YO uonebiiy sso buiuies ‘g
sal|ile} pue sjuapns Joj poddns yjeay jelusiy - 9€1'6$ - | Y339 ‘seniunpoddQ buiuies] pspuedxy ‘g

saljiluey

pue sjuapnjs Joj poddns yjjesy |ejusw ‘poddns aple [euononisu| - £60°29$ - 11] PUE ‘|| ‘| ¥3SST ‘senunyoddQ Buiuies pspuedxy &
Buiuses| aoue)sip woddns djay o} saiddns Jeuononisul pue siejndwod paseyaind - 08501$ - 4339 - uonebniy ssoq buiuies ¢

sulejunoy

Bunjulp ssejyono) aseyaind |Im ‘weiboid Aep [ooyas papuaixa pue welbosd Buipeas Jawwns e pajuswaldwi - €10'9Z1L$ - Il ¥3ISS3 2
Sol|llue) pue sjuapnis



L9 40 ¥9 a8ed 1014151Q |00YIS AJRIUBWA|F UOJUM UBWYIO(G 404 UB|d AMl|I0EIUNOIDY [0JIUOD) |BIOT £2-2Z0T

‘610 psSnuewy20|q°-Mmmm Je pajeoo| abed
awoy ,sjoulsIp 8y} uo punoj aq [je ued ueld || ¥3SSJ InOo pue ‘ue|d SB2IAIBG JO AJINUIJUOY By} ‘UB|d UOoIJONJISU| U0SIad-U| O} uJn}ay ajes ayl

‘(¥ 1e0D dyD1) Siauped uoneanpa Jno Yim juswabebua anoidwi 0] saoinosal |easly Jno Buisn os|e

ale ap\ ‘(€ [e0D) dyD7) siaules) abenbue| ysi|b6ug i1no Joj anaiyoe anosdwi pue (g [eoD) 4y 1) sue abenbue| ysibug ‘(z 10D dvD) aouaids
‘(1 10D VD) Yew ut Juswaaaiyoe juapnys Buirosdwi jo sjeob 4yD J4no yum subije ‘uiny ut ‘siyl "uononJsul uosiad-ul ul sjedioiued

0} JUSWIUOIIAUD 9JBS B 9ABRY YB]S PUB SJUapN)S INO JBY] iNSua 0) ue|d ainypuadx] ||| YISSJ JnO pue ‘ue|d Sa2I1AJSS Jo AJinuijuo) Jno ‘ue|d
uononJsu] uosiad-u| 03 uin}ay ajes Jno Jo sjeob ayj Juswajdwi 0} Jeak [00Yds ZZ0Z/ 1202 3y} 1o} paniadal Buipuny ayy Buisn si Jousip ay L

"Jayoea) ay] pue ‘sjuaied Jiay} ‘Juspnis ayy Joj Jnoip si siyl “Apnis juspuadapul 0} SAOW pue
auljuelenb o) Buipsau sjuapN)s SWOS peY SABY SAA "SHB3IGINO 6 -0IAQD Aue BuipioAe Ul [njSS800NS USaQ SABY 9M ‘JB} 0OS ‘JUSWUOIIAUS 9jES
B Ul aJe ualp|Iyd JIay) 1BY] 9|qelojwo alow |99} sjualed djay osje |im siy| "Buluses| uosiad-ul 1o} sndwed uo ‘s|qissod juajxa jsajeslb ayj o)
‘Ulewal 0} Je)s pue sjuapnjs mojje [Im welboud siy] ‘weiboid Bunse) g1-qIAQD € Uielulew pue juswajdwi 0} spunj apise }as Ssey 1ou)sIp ay L

‘sabua||eyo swos asod p|noos Buipjing uno jo abe ay} ‘1enamoH ‘joafoid siy) Jo sjiejap
ay) 1no Bunyiom Jji3s ale ap\ "sadid Jsjem Ino jo sawos aoe|dal 0] pasu am ‘sjuswipas yim BuibB6ojo wous suoljess |48l 18)em ay) dasy o) Japlo
Ul ‘OS|y "SUONE]S ||IyaJ Jajem Bupjulip $Sa|yono} Yyim way) aoe|jdal pue suiejunoy Buiuip Jualind Jno sAOWSl 0} pasu am ‘Olwspued 8y} 0} ang

‘welboud ay) yIm Jsisse 0} sinoy Jisy} pusixe 0} Buljim ussq sey Jes Jualind Jno pue papuaje |[am s| welboid ay) ‘JSASMOH ‘JuswaAsiyoe
apnys Buinosdwir ul ngssaoons aq |im welboud siy i (193 0} Aluea oo} si }| “Hoddns yjew pue Buipeal pazijenplAlipul 8JjoWw o} sieis

Buiaag pue peay joslold ‘sjuapnis Joj sUOSSa| Apeay-| pazijeuosiad apnjoul [IIM pasn sUojUSAIBIUI paseq-aouaping ~Aiessadau se ‘pajsnipe
aq M saibajel)s uoljuaAIa)ul pue Ja)salWll) yoeas aouo Bunse) yiewyouaq Apeay-| Buisn painseaw aq |jim ssaiboid juapnis ‘weiboid
Apeay-| ay} woulj Bunisae) ylewyouaq paseq-aouapiaa Buisn pue suoljepuawwodal Jayoea) uo paseq welboid Aep papuajxa ayj J0j payljuapl
aq |IIm syuspnig 1oslgns Aue ul uonuaaaul Buipasu se payiuapl wuapn)s Aue Joj welboid Aep papuajxs ue pajuswa|dwi sey Joulsip 8yl

‘welBoid SIy) Ul JUSWSASIYDE JUSPN]S S)eJISUOWAP 0] SIS Aue SABY JOU Op am 0S ejep ajqesedwod apianoid Jou saop sieak apelb



L9 40 59 adeq 12141510 |00Y3S AJeIUaWa|3 UOIUN UBWIYDO|g J0} UB(d A[IGRIUNODDY [043U0D) [BD0T £2-2207

‘punoj aq Aew pasualajal Bulaq uoijew.ojul sy} ueld ayj ul asaym pue ‘(sbed gam e 0} yul| e
se yons) pajeoo| ale (s)ue|d ay} alaym ‘pasualayal Buiaq (s)ue|d ayj Aiuapl ysnw syuawnoop Buiuueld Jayjo ul papiaotd uojjewlojuj aoualajal
0} S9S00Y2 Jey} Y37 Uy ‘sjuawnoop Buiuue(d Jjayjo ul papiaold uorjewlojul adualaal 0} Ajljiqixal sey 3] oy} ‘sjdwoud asay) o) Buipuodsal uj

"sjualed 0} a|qIssadde pue ajgepuelsiapun s| jey} abenbue| asn ‘a|qeoijoeld Jualxa jsajealb ayj 0} ‘Isnw
pue ol|gnd Japeoiq ay} pue siauned [euoljeonpa S,y37 3y} 40} 39|qISsao2e pue |njbuiueaw aq |Im 1By} |1B}ap JO |9A9] B UleluoD Jey} sasuodsal
Jouroons apiaold ‘sjgedljoeld Jualxa jsajealb ay) 0} ‘ishw sy37 ‘sjdwoud asayj o) Buipuodsal uj "palinbal se ‘sjdwoud Buimojjo} ay} 0} puodsay

"dVO71 £€2-220Z S.v37 @y} j0 Hed se [enoidde pue maiaal 10j papiwgns a4 |(im Juawalddng zz—120Z 3y} ‘yons sy

aleldwa] dyD7 8yl Joj suononisu|ayl e

dVvO1 €2-22¢0¢ 9y} 10} sa|ge| UOHOY Byl e

dvO1¢€2-2¢c0Zca{yL

Juswa|ddng zz—|zZ0Z UL

sjualed 10} M3INIBAQ }obpng €2—220Z @yl e
SMOJ|0} SB dY D1 3y} Yim
papn[oul 8g }snw pue ‘jeaoldde pue ‘mainal ‘uondope Jo sasodind ay) Jo} 4y D1 £2-2202 2U} o Led palapisuod si juswe|ddng zz—120Z 9yl
‘'slouned
[euoneonpa s,\y37 8yl Joj ajqissacoe pue |njbuluesw si ey} |Iejep JO |9AS] B SUIBJUOD pUB Jouldons S|}l Jey} papliaoid ‘JXajuood [e00| 8yj sHns
1S8q Se uoljewlojul siy) apiaoid o) AJIjIqixal) 8ABY s3] ‘elep uoiiejuswa|dwl pue ‘ainjipuadxa ‘@wo9)no Jeak-piw ajqe|ieae buiuodas usypa

"dV¥O71 22—1202Z @Y} Ul payliuapl suonoe j|je uo ejep uoljejuswaldw) pue ainjipuadxs Jeak-pily| e

PuB {407 22—1Z0Z @Y} Ul Payijuap! SoljaW 0} paje|al ejep aWwodjno Jeak-pill d|qejiene ||y e

‘(Juswsiddng zz—1202) dvO1 ZZ—1202 du} Joj ajepdn [enuuy ayj o} Juswajddng syl e
:Buimoy|o} 8y} Jo |je apnjoul Isnw 37 ay) ‘Buniesw siy} I "3 @y} Jo Apoq Jo pieoq Bujuianob ayj jo Buizesw psjnpayos Auenbal
e Je ‘zz0z 'gz Aeniqa4 a10jaq 10 uo sjualed Joj MalAIBAQ 18Bpng pue 4D 2Z—1 20z @ul 0} ajepdn |enuuy sy} uo ajepdn ue juasaid 0)
Sy37 seJdinbal ol |'g Alquiassy Jo (8)pz| uonoag 'sjuspnis uo Buluies) aouelsip Jo sjoedwi ay} ssalppe 0} pue olwapued 6L-QIAQD By} Woly
Buiaaooal Ul SaljluUNWLWIOD JIay) pue ‘Jels ‘slayoes) ‘sjuapnis poddns o} Buipuny ul asealoul Juedyiubls e yum (sy37) seiousbe [euoneonps
|e00| papiAoid aABY S)oe Jaljal [Bl19pa) pUB S)elS JaYJ0o PUB ‘| Z0Z JO 1OV UB|d andsay UeduUaWY |elapa) ay) ‘oY 18bpng zg—120¢ s.eluioyljed

OB B3 8po@)fo] Je jlews Aq 1o 6080-6L£-916 }e suoyd Aq ‘@O poddns swejsAS Aousby 8007 (5,300)
S,uoneonp3 jo Juswpedsq eiuiojijeD 8y} Jo (30D) uoneonps jo 8210 AJunod [eoo] ayj joejuod asesid (4yD7) ueld Ayjiqejunoddy pue j03U0D
8207 22—1L20Z 8Y} 0} 8jepdn [enuuy 8y} 0} Juswajddng 8y} Jo uonsdwod ay;) 0} pojejas SoUB)SISSE [BOIUYIS] JO SUOISanb [euoRippe 10



/9 40 99 aded 12141513 |00Y2S AJBILUBWS|T UOIUN UBWYDO|g JO) Ue|d AH|IGRIUNOIIY |0JIUOD |BIOT €£2-220T

Juonejuswsa|dwi Buunp peousuadxa sabuajeyd pue sassaoons ayj pue ‘ue|d ainjipuadxe jaij@y Aouabisw3g jooyog
Alepuooag pue Algjuswia|g |[elapa) pue Joy ue|d @ndsay Uedlawy |etapa} ay) Bunuawsaidwt si 37 8y moy jo uonduossp v, 1 jdwold

"'spunj aje}s 0} paje;al

aoe|d uaye} sey 1ey) Juswabebua aquosap 0} palinbail jou s| Y37 8y, 'Spunj @say} uo uoljewlojul [euonippe 1o} (710/6}/A06 B3 8P MMM//:SANY)
abed gam Buipun sninwis [eJapa4 ayj pue Buipuny jaljal 61-GIAQD Jo Bunsy e Joj (dse spungaijal/io/b)/AcD 83 apd”MMAMY/:SdNY) abed gem
190ys Aewwng Buipund Jaliay 61-QIAOQD @Yl @85 ‘sjuapnis uo Bululesj aouelsip jo sjoedwi ay} pue diwepued 6L-GIAQD 92Ul wolj Alanoodal
uoddns o) papusjul aJe jey) paAIadal )l Spunj [BJapa) awil-auo Jo asn ay} uo siauped |euoneanpa sj pabebus y37 ayj usym pue moy aquosag

‘uoneue|dxs sy} apinoid ‘sjuapnis
uo Buiules| eouejsip Jo sjoedwi ay) pue olwapued gL-QIAOD 2y} wol Auanooal poddns o) Buipuny |eiapa) awWI}-aU0 8AISd3l JOU PIP Y3 3y} §|

.'Sjidnd uo Buiuies| souejsip jo spoedwi ay) pue oiwspued 6 L-JINOD 8y} woly Aienooal poddns o) pspusiul
ale Jey] paAlooal Spunj [eiepa) alUj-euo JO 8sn sy} uo siauped jeuoneonps sy pabebus y37 8y usym pue moy Jo uonduossp v, ¢ dwold

ua2Jad GG uey) Jajealb si jey) sjuapnls pajesijdnpun JO JUSLW||0IUS UB UY}IM [00YOS B JE sjuapn)s 0} s9aIAIas Joallp Buipiaoid
yejs uiejas o} spuny ay} Buisn si 37 8y} moy 2quosap ‘Juadlad GG uey) Jajealb si jey) sjuspnis pajedlidnpun Jo JusW(j0Jud UB Yyim [ooyds e je
SJUSPN]S 0} S22IAISS J08lIp BuipiAoid yels Jo Jaquinu 3y} @Sealdul 0} JuaIoIYNs Jou SI UO-ppe juelb uoijesjuadUuOoD [BUONIPPE BY} JBy} JUSAS ay) U]

‘Juaalad GG uey) ss9) 4o 0] [enba si Jey) sjuapnjs pajealjdnpun Jo juaw||oJud

Ue yjim sjooyds o} pasedwod se ‘yuawijolua jidnd pajesidnpun juadiad GG uey) Jajealdb ypm sesndwed [00Yyos UO SjUSpPN}S 0} SBDIAIBS JoalIP
apinoid oym ‘Jess [eipoisno Buipnjoul ‘Yyjoq Jo ‘Yels paljISSe[D ‘Yels pajediiad Jo Jaquinu sy} 9Sealoul O} ‘papuslle se ‘Z0'8eg ey UoHIaS
8p0D UOHBINPT BIUIOMED UYHM JUS)SISUOD PBAISDAI Spun) UO-ppPE Juelb uonesuasuod sy} ‘asn o} sueld Jo ‘Buisn st Y37 8y} moy aquass(g

‘uoljeue|dxa siy} apinoid ‘uo-ppe juelb uoljesjusduod ayj Jo Juesb UOIIBIIUSOUOD B SAISD3I JOU S0P VI 4|

JJusosad GG uey; ssjealb sijey) ynoA 18)sof
10/pUB ‘SiouIRa| YSiBUT ‘DuI0oUI-MO| 818 OYM SJUSPNIS JO JUBLUIIOIUS U Y}im S8SNdLWED [00YIS UO SJUSPN)S O} S8DIAISS Joallp 8piroid oym
J/BIS JO 18QUINU 8y} 8SBaJIUI 0] PBAISoal Ji Buipuny Uo-ppe Jueib UO)EIUSIU0D 8y} ‘8sn 0} sued 10 ‘Pasn 37 Moy Jo UoKaALIdSap v, g idwold

‘uonjeue|dxa siy} apinoid ‘4D 2Z—1 202 peldope sy ul spuny a|qedljdde ay) papnjoui Y37 Ue | 'spunj

JO asn ay} uo siauped |euoljeonpa s) pabebus sey 37 sy} moy jo uonduossp e apinold pue 4y 8y} ul papnjoul jou aism jeyy L20g 40 Y
joBpng sy} ul papinold spuny sy} Ajuap! ‘dyDT si ulyim papnjoul AjleaidA) eney pinom Ji Jeus L.Z0Z 0 Y 3eBpng ay) ybnoayy Buipuny panieoal
Vw37 9U} J| ‘POpNIOUl BB SpuUn) 8SOY) JUSIXa JBYM 0} PUB 4D Sy} Ui papnjoul aie spuny jeym Buipiosp ul Ajljiqixa]} aAeY s3] ‘ledauab u)

(dvDT) uBld AHiiqejunoooy pue [o4uU0D (8207 LZ—0Z0Z SY} Ul Papn[oul Jou aiem jey} LZ0Z 40 oY jebpng ayj ybnoiy;
papiroid spuny Jo 8sn ayj uo sisuned [euoleonpa sy ‘ebebus 0} suejd 1o ‘pebebus Y37 8yl usym pue moy jo uondLosap v, 1| dwold



£9 40 /9 38ed 10143810 JOOYDS AJRIUBWD|T UOIUN UBWYD0|gG 4O} UB|d AN{IGRIUNOCIIY |0JIUOD) [BI0] £2-220T

1 Z0Z J8qWaA0N
uoljeanp3 Jo juswyueda( eluloylied

‘ue|d ainypuadx3 ||| Y¥ISST Y} pue ue|d SaVIAISS Jo AJINuuOD pPUEB UOIONJIISU| Uosiad-u| 0} uinjay
ajeg ay} apnpur sueid sjqeaijdde, ydwoud siy} o) Buipuodsal jo sesodind 104 "dyD7 ZZ—120Z S.v3T 9yl yum paubije si jey} Jauuew e ul
sue|d a|qed)|dde Jo sluawalinbal ay} Juswajdwi 0} Jeak |00yds ZZ—12Z0Z 2Y} JO} paAIadal sadinosal [edsy s)l Buisn s1 Y37 ay} moy azuewwnsg

. ajepdn [enuuy pue 4y 2z—120¢ S.v31 34} Yyim paubie si pue sue|d s|qedijdde ay)

UM JUS]SISUOD S| JBY] JouUBW B Ul Jeak [00YdS gg—|Z0Z 8V} 10} paAieoal saaunosal [easy s)i Buisn si y37 ay) moy jo uonduosap v, :g jdwold
‘sabuajjeys pue sassadons Buipnjoul ‘alep 0} ueld ainjipuadxe (¥3SST) Joley Aousbiswg [ooyos Alepuooss

pue AJBjuaWa|] |eJopa} 8y} Jo uoliejusLwa|dwl ) PUB ‘| Z0Z 4O 1OV UE|d @ndsay Ueduawy [esapa) ay) Aq palinbal se 'sadlaIss Jo Ajinuijuod
3y} SINSUS PUE JJB}S JOYJ0 PUB ‘SI0JEdNpa ‘sjuapn)s jo AJoJes pue U)|eay ayj ulejulew o} sHoya syl jo uoiejuswadwi s,y37 8y} 8quosa(

‘uoljeuejdxa sy} apiaoad ‘Buipuny ||| ¥ISST SA189a1 JOU SR0P YT UE §|






LICENSE AGREEMENT
(PUBLIC SAFETY POWER SHUTOFF)

This License Agreement ("License Agreement") is made and entered into this
day of , 2022 (the "Effective Date") by Blochman Union School District, hereinafter
called "LICENSOR," and PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a California
corporation, hereinafter called "PG&E." PG&E and LICENSOR are sometimes hereinafter each
singularly referred to as “PARTY” and collectively as “PARTIES”.

RECITALS:

A. LICENSOR owns or leases that certain real property commonly known as
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School located at 4949 Foxen Canyon Road, Assessor's Parcel
Number 129-190-001, hereinafter called the "Property," located in the City of Santa Maria,
County of Santa Barbara, State of California.

B. PG&E desires to partner with LICENSOR in connection with a Public Safety
Power Shutoff Event ("PSPS Event") as defined in Section 3 below.

C. The PARTIES desire to memorialize this mutual understanding and agreement for
making the Property available to PG&E in connection with a PSPS Event.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, LICENSOR and PG&E agree
as follows:

1. License Area. The real property that is the subject of this License Agreement is
described in EXHIBIT A (the "License Area").

2. Grant of License. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this License
Agreement, LICENSOR grants PG&E, PG&E's Representatives, and PG&E's customers, the
right to use the License Area in connection with a PSPS Event, together with rights of ingress
and egress to and from the License Area. PG&E shall give LICENSOR at least 8 hours' prior
notice of the date and time that PG&E needs to access and use the License Area. If the License
Area is not available for access and use by PG&E on the date and time specified in PG&E's
notice, LICENSOR must so notify PG&E within 4 hours after receipt of PG&E's notice.

3. Use of License Area. During Use Days (as defined in Section 4 below), PG&E
and its employees, contractors, agents, and representatives ("PG&E's Representatives") may
enter the License Area for purposes of establishing and operating a customer resource center in
the case of a PSPS Event. LICENSOR acknowledges that PG&E's Activities may include the
following: setting up tents with tables and seating where PG&E customers can obtain water and
snacks, charge phones, and get up-to-date information on outages; installing trailers, portable
toilets, portable back-up generators, and temporary fencing; parking mobile vehicle units and
other vehicles. For purposes of this License Agreement, a "PSPS Event" means the existence of
one or more environmental conditions creating extreme fire danger that results in the shutoff of
power for public safety. Examples of PSPS Events include red flag warnings issued by the
United States National Weather Service, low humidity levels, high winds, and dry vegetation.

02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 1 of 5



(a) Personnel. During Use Days PG&E shall have the exclusive right to use
the License Area, up to twenty-four (24) hours per day. Hours for use to PG&E customers shall
be from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm. On Use Days, the License Area shall be fully staffed by PG&E
and its representatives, at PG&E’s sole cost and expense. PG&E shall provide uniformed
unarmed security at its cost and expense to ensure the protection of its equipment, the safety of
the public and to prevent any damage to the Property.

4, Term. This License Agreement shall be for a term of two (2) years, commencing
on July 1, 2022 (the “Commencement Date”), and expiring July 1, 2024 (the “Termination
Date”). The license granted herein shall be revocable at the option of either LICENSOR or
PG&E, provided that the revoking party provides at least one hundred eighty (180) days' written
notice of the revocation to the other party. Notwithstanding the term of this License Agreement,
PG&E anticipates that it will use the License Area on an occasional basis, if at all, for periods of
two (2) to ten (10) days at a time. The days (including any partial days) during which any of
PG&E's Activities are occurring in or on the License Area are referred to herein as "Use Days."
During Use Days, PG&E shall have the exclusive right to use the License Area twenty-four (24)
hours per day.

5. License Fee. PG&E shall pay a license fee of One Hundred Dollars ($100) per
day for each Use Day.

6. Use of License Area.

(a) AsIs. To LICENSOR'S current actual knowledge, the Property complies
with all laws, including the Americans with Disabilities Act and other accessibility laws. PG&E
accepts the License Area "AS-IS," "WHERE-IS" and "WITH ALL-FAULTS," subject to all
applicable zoning, municipal, county and state laws, ordinances, and regulations governing and
regulating the use of the License Area. PG&E may request LICENSOR to perform alterations,
repairs, or improvements to the License Area, but PG&E understands and agrees that
LICENSOR shall not be obligated to make any such alterations, repairs or improvements at any
time.

(b) Restoration. PG&E shall exercise reasonable care in the conduct of
PG&E's Activities in the License Area. Upon PG&E's ceasing to use the License Area in
connection with a particular PSPS Event, PG&E shall remove all vehicles and personal property
of PG&E and PG&E's Representatives, remove all debris and waste material resulting from
PG&E's Activities, and repair and restore the License Area as nearly as possible to the condition
that existed prior to PG&E's entry hereunder.

(c) Water Discharge. PG&E’s activities may require potable water-filled
equipment, such as barrels or water barriers to weigh down tents or other equipment, or to
delineate outside areas on the Property. All potable water-filled equipment shall be cleaned prior
to use and filled with water from a potable water source only. Any water discharged from the
water-filled equipment shall be discharged to onsite unpaved land (i.e., soil) only. PG&E and
PG&E’s representatives shall ensure best management practices are implemented including but
not limited to ensuring water is observed for any potential sediments, trash or other
contaminants; the discharge area selected is 100 feet from a water body; and the discharge is

02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 20of5



done to avoid ponding and erosion. If the water needs to be discharged to a storm drain, PG&E
will obtain local stormwater agency approval. This License Agreement authorizes the discharge
of potable water from water-filled equipment on to the Property as described above. PG&E shall
notify LICENSOR if water discharge is necessary.

(d) Safe Condition. PG&E, at PG&E's sole cost and expense, shall maintain
the License Area in a good, clean, safe and sanitary condition during Use Days.

(e) Lawful Use Only. PG&E shall not use the License Area or permit
anything to be done in or about the License Area during Use Days that will in any way conflict
with any law, statute, zoning restriction, ordinance or governmental rule or regulation or
requirement relating to the use or occupancy of the License Area. During Use Days, PG&E shall
not allow the License Area to be used for any unlawful or objectionable purpose, nor shall
PG&E cause, maintain or permit any nuisance in, on or about the License Area.

€3 Mechanic's Liens. PG&E shall keep the Property free and clear of all
mechanic's liens arising, or alleged to arise, in connection with any work performed, labor or
materials supplied or delivered, or similar activities performed by PG&E or at PG&E's request or
for PG&E's benefit. If any mechanic's liens are placed on the Property in connection with
PG&E's use or PG&E's Activities, PG&E shall diligently pursue all necessary actions to remove
such liens from title, either by payment or by recording a lien release bond in the manner
specified in California Civil Code Section 8424 or any successor statute.

7. Notices. All notices under this License Agreement shall be sent by email to the
addresses set forth in EXHIBIT B. In addition, LICENSOR will provide PG&E with telephone
or cellphone numbers of staff in calling order to contact in an emergency as set forth in
EXHIBIT B. EXHIBIT B shall be updated as needed to reflect current names and contact
information.

8. Indemnity. PG&E shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless LICENSOR and its
governing body, officers, agents, and employees from and against all claims, losses, actions,
demands, damages, costs, expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees and
court costs) (collectively, "Claims") which arise from or are connected with PG&E's Activities,
or the entry on, occupancy or use of, the Property by PG&E or PG&E's Representatives under
this License Agreement, including, but not limited to, Claims arising out of (i) injury to or death
of persons, including, but not limited to, employees of LICENSOR or PG&E; (ii) injury to
property or other interest of LICENSOR and (iii) violation of any applicable federal, state, or
local laws, statutes, regulations, or ordinances by PG&E or PG&E's Representatives. The
indemnification obligations of PG&E under this Section 8 shall survive the expiration or earlier
termination of this License Agreement.

9. Insurance. PG&E shall at all times during the Term of this License Agreement

self-insure for PG&E’s activities pursuant to this License Agreement in accordance with
EXHIBIT C.

02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 3of5



10. Miscellaneous.

(a) Governing Law. This License Agreement shall in all respects be
interpreted, enforced, and governed by and under the laws of the State of California.

(b) Attorneys' Fees. Should either party bring an action against the other
party, by reason of or alleging the failure of the other party with respect to any or all of its
obligations hereunder, whether for declaratory or other relief, and including any appeal thereof,
then the party which prevails in such action shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys' fees and
expenses related to such action, in addition to all other recovery or relief.

(c) No Waiver. Any waiver with respect to any provision of this License
Agreement shall not be effective unless in writing and signed by the party against whom it is
asserted. The waiver of any provision of this License Agreement by a party shall not be
construed as a waiver of a subsequent breach or failure of the same term or condition or as a
waiver of any other provision of this License Agreement.

(d) Counterparts. This License Agreement may be executed in identical
counterpart copies, each of which shall be an original, but all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same agreement.

(e) Authority. Each party to this License Agreement warrants to the other that
it has the right and authority to enter into and to perform its obligations under this License
Agreement, without the consent of any third party, and that the person signing below is
authorized to bind such party.

® Exhibits. Exhibits A, B, and C attached to this License Agreement are a
part hereof and incorporated herein by this reference.

(g) Electronic Signatures. This License Agreement may be executed by
electronic signatures (e.g., using DocuSign or e-SignlLive) or signatures transmitted in portable
document format ("pdf"), and copies of this License Agreement executed and delivered by
means of electronic or pdf signatures shall have the same force and effect as copies hereof
executed and delivered with original manually executed signatures. The parties may rely upon
electronic and pdf signatures as if such signatures were manually executed originals and agree
that an electronic or pdf signature page may be introduced into evidence in any proceeding
arising out of or related to this License Agreement as if it were an original manually executed
signature page.

(h) Successors and Assigns. This License Agreement shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of each

party.

(1) Entire Agreement. This License Agreement supersedes all previous oral
and written agreements between and representations by or on behalf of the parties and constitutes
the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This License
Agreement may not be amended, except by a written agreement executed by both parties.

02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 4 of 5



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License Agreement as of the
date set forth below each signature, effective upon the Effective Date first written above.

"PG&E" "LICENSOR"

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, Blochman Union School District
a California corporation

By: By:

Name: Name: Douglas Brown
Its: Its:  Superintendent
Date: Date:

02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 50f5



EXHIBIT A

02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 Exhibit A



EXHIBIT B

NOTICES

TO LICENSOR:

Any notice to Licensor, including the notice to be given pursuant to Section 7 of the
License Agreement, shall be sent to Douglas Brown at the following:

Email address: dbrown@blochmanusd.org Phone Number: 805-937-1148 ext.2114

In addition, in the event of an emergency, PG&E shall contact the following persons in
the calling order set forth below:

1% Douglas Brown Phone: 805-937-1148 ext.2114/ Cell:805-878-1984

2"Joe Shank Phone: 805-268-4404

Weekends and After Hours: Same as Above

TO PG&E:

Any notice to PG&E, including the notice pursuant to Section 7 of the License
Agreement shall be sent to Jessica Melton at the following email address:
Jessica.Melton@pge.com, cc’ing CRCHelp@pge.com.

PG&E contacts for use during emergency use and post emergency for claims and
reimbursements:

Jessica Melton, Land Acquisition Consultant, PG&E
(925) 655-7085 — cell
Jessica.Melton@pge.com — email

Alex Grant, Land Acquisition Program Manager, PG&E
(707) 331-2466 — cell
Alex.Grant@pge.com — email

02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 Exhibit B



EXHIBIT C

Pacific Gas and S48 Maher areen i
Electric Company' o s, 2 2102

STATEMENT OF SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM

April 1, 2021

Issuedto:  whom it May Concern

)

Re: Insurance requirements for Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) to use property for the
purposes of establishing and operaling a Community Resource Center in the case of a Public Safety
Power Shutoff Event {PSPS).

This letter certifies PG&.E is insured under a major nisk management program with large self-insured
retentions. The program provides coverage for the insurance types and limits reflected in the agreement
which includes:

Commercial General Liability: $5.000,000 each occumrence / $10,000,000 aggregate
Empiloyer's Liability: $1,000,000 each accident
Business Auto Liability: $1,000,000 each accident

Further, PG&.E has qudlified as a self-insurer under the laws of the State of California with respect to
Workers' Compensation. Our identification number for this purpose is 2-0012-01-099.

*Please note a cerfificate of insurance is not applicable when an entity is self-insured, such as PGAE.

Vice President and Chief Audit Officer

Pacific Gas and
s Flactric Company’

Sl Centification Letter
Fite: PGE-246.01

02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 Exhibit C






Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
MARCH 8§, 2022

A regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Blochman Union School District was held at the
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School Library on March 8, 2022.

Members present: Shannon Clay, Thomas Gibbons, Daniella Pearce, Jeania Reasner, and Kelly Salas-
Ernst.

PUBLIC SESSION: Mrs. Clay called the meeting to order and led the flag salute at 5:31 p.m. and then
welcomed guests. She noted no one attended via Zoom.

I Reports
i. Charter School Reports

a. Family Partnership Charter School — See attached for the complete
report from Stephanie Eggert.

b. Trivium Charter Schools — Trisha Vais reported that current enrollment is
865. Enrollment for next year is very high. They are hoping to add another
classroom in Santa Barbara. The older students are putting on a dance for
students in kindergarten through 5™ grade. Prom and grad night at
Disneyland is coming up. Also, state testing is coming up soon. They may
need to hire more teachers next year.

ii. Teacher Reports — none.

iii. Superintendent/Principal’s Report — Doug Brown reported that current
enrollment is 174. Last month students completed I-Ready testing and teachers are
seeing improvement. Teachers received helpful training from I-Ready. Grades 6 —
8 went to Cal Poly for a hands-on learning camp. Cal Poly students then followed
up with them on science experiments. Basketball is almost over. There are two
games left plus the end of the year tournament at VCA. The end of the trimester is
tomorrow, and report cards go home next week. The 8" grade trip will be to
Universal Studios. There will also be a parent sponsored bonfire. COVID
statistics: 72.1% of residents 5 and older are vaccinated; 73% of staff are
vaccinated; the case rate in Santa Barbara County is 6.54 per 100,000.

II. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION

A. Form 700 — Statement of Economic Interests is due April 1, 2022.
B. Facilities Use — Eric Kattan; parking lot; October 22, 2022; 2:00 p.m. — 10:30 p.m.

III. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION

A. Facilities

March 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes



i. General maintenance — Doug Brown reported that the district is still moving
forward with installing drinking fountains. Carol Walker has been hired to paint a
mural on the bus barn. We are still looking for someone to do letter placing on the
solar panels. Mr. Brown thanked Michael Reasner for all his volunteer work
around the campus.

B. Mask mandate — Doug Brown reported that effective March 14, California will strongly
recommend masking in schools. However, they are leaving up to the individual schools to
determine this policy. Mr. Brown and the board agreed that the district policy for masking
will be parent choice for their children and staff choice for themselves. It will be up to the
parents to discuss the option of wearing masks with their children.

C. Board meeting times for 2022/2023 - The board discussed changing the time to start
board meetings. They will revisit this issue at the next meeting.

D. Developer fee increase — The board discussed whether to conduct a new developer fee
study. The last study was done in 2017. The board asked Mrs. Shafer to determine the
cost of a new study and report back at the next board meeting.

IV.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
A. Approval of Minutes
i. Minutes of the February 8, 2022 Regular Meeting

*** JT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Minutes as presented:

MOVED: Thomas Gibbons SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Yes Jeania Reasner: Yes

Daniella Pearce: Yes Kelly Salas-Ernst: Yes

Thomas Gibbons: Yes

B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — February, 2022

i. Payroll $176,520.41
ii. Commercial Warrants $ 175,291.65
iii. Revolving $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 351,812.06

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Warrants as
presented:

MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Yes Jeania Reasner: Yes

Daniella Pearce: Yes Kelly Salas-Ernst: Yes

Thomas Gibbons: Yes

C. Approval of Family Partnership Charter School’s 2020/2021 Audit Adjustments to
CALPADS.
*** [T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve Family Partnership
Charter School’s 2020/2021 Audit Adjustments to CALPADS as presented:

~ 2 ~
March 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes



MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Yes Jeania Reasner: Yes

Daniella Pearce: Yes Kelly Salas-Ernst: Yes

Thomas Gibbons:  Yes

V. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of the Benjamin Foxen Elementary School February 2022 Attendance
Report

*** T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve Benjamin Foxen
Elementary School February 2022 Attendance Report as presented:

MOVED: Thomas Gibbons SECOND: Daniella Pearce
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Yes Jeania Reasner: Yes

Daniella Pearce: Yes Kelly Salas-Ernst: Yes

Thomas Gibbons: Yes

B. Approval of the contract with Fighting Back Santa Maria Valley.

*** JT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the contract
with Fighting Back Santa Maria Valley as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Yes Jeania Reasner: Yes

Daniella Pearce: Yes Kelly Salas-Ernst: Yes

Thomas Gibbons: Yes

C. Approval of Blochman Union School District’s 2021/2022 Second Interim Report.

*** T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve Blochman
Union School District’s 2021/2022 Second Interim report as presented:

MOVED: Thomas Gibbons SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Yes Jeania Reasner: Yes

Daniella Pearce: Yes Kelly Salas-Ernst: Yes

Thomas Gibbons: Yes

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Trisha Vais recognized the contributions of Peggy Salas and
offered condolences on her passing.

VII. MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS
A. Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion - none

~3~

March 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes



B. Blochman Union School District Board Member Items — Shannon Clay offered
condolences to Peggy Salas’ family. She would like to see a plaque in Peggy’s honor
placed on the playground. She noted Peggy Salas’ strong presence in both the community
and at the school. Kelly Salas-Ernst noted that her mother was honored to serve as a board
member at the district for so many years. She also shared memories her mother shared
with her about the board members and staff present at the meeting.

C. Items not on the Agenda - none

D. Next Scheduled Board Meeting: April 13, 2021; open session at 5:30 p.m.; Library.

VIII. CLOSED SESSION — The board adjourned to closed session and announced that they
will consider and may act upon the following items during closes session:
A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Actions
i. The Board will be asked to review and approve hiring, transfers, promotions,
evaluations, terminations, and resignations
B. Conference with labor negotiator; Doug Brown, district negotiator.

IX. Reconvene in open session at 6:40 p.m.
A. Mrs. Salas-Ernst reported the following action taken:
i. Hire temporary maintenance/grounds from 3/7/2022 — 6/15/2022; 3 hours per

day
MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:
Shannon Clay: Yes Jeania Reasner: Yes
Daniella Pearce: Yes Kelly Salas-Ernst: Yes

Thomas Gibbons: Yes

The board also gave Mr. Brown instructions regarding negotiations.

X. Adjourn

TIME: 6:41 p.m.

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Yes Jeania Reasner: Yes

Daniella Pearce: Yes Kelly Salas-Ernst: Yes

Thomas Gibbons: Yes

March 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes



FPCS Administration and Center Reports
March 7th, 2022

Administration

TOTAL ENROLLMENT:416 MB:57 Orcutt:123 SLO:88 K-5HS:41 Solvang:50 SM:57

e FPCS Parent Advisory Meeting February 2nd

o ELPAC Data

o EEBG

o SARC

o Supplement LCAP Annual Update
First common Writing Benchmark completed at the end of February
WASC Submission 2/28/22 and Virtual Visit is second week of April
ELPAC and PFT Testing starting this month

Morro Bay Montessori - Semu Torres

K: 11 1st: 6 2nd: 7 3rd: 12 4th; 8 5th: 14

e We got a new K student and a new 1st grader.

e We are hearing from parents interested in next year, but we also had a small group of
parents interested in joining this year. Those two mentioned have already joined and a
few more are still deciding.

o Staffing for next year: We will most likely need to find two new |As out of the three. One
needs to leave to do student teaching and the other has some shifting family/work
responsibilities. Both are very sad to be leaving. Our clerical is not yet sure if she will
be returning. This is related to summer work and how that might carry over.

e We had our annual Poetry Festival this year. Parents tuned in over Zoom.

o We finished up the Writing Assessments and had 100% participation.

e Lisa and the SLO middle school teacher came to Morro Bay for our annual Middle
School Info Meeting.

e Our “Open House” is ongoing and is being done one family at a time by appointment.
The teachers organized a signup list.

e On March 3rd, we had a special “Open House” meeting for next year's prospective
kindergarten students. It was a great excuse to do some extra cleaning and tidying up,
outside and in the K/1st class.

e The 4th/5th class will be going on a field trip on March 10th. It will be an overnight stay
at an outdoor-education-focused science camp in Cambria called Camp Ocean Pines

e The 4th/5th class is also planning a trip to the La Purisima mission but the details are
not completely finalized yet.




FPCS Administration and Center Reports

Orcutt - Kenny Eggert

6: 13 79 8: 26 99 10: 15 11: 31 12: 20 Total: 123

e Our Middle School Program is close to capacity with two spots remaining to be filled.
There are three parents that have inquired about the program and one is scheduled for
an intake appointment on Friday. FPCS continues to be of interest to many parents
seeking alternatives for their children because of our flexibility, curriculum, and online
platforms to assist students in their education. Both Gina Andrews and Stefanie Poland
works hard at meeting the expectations of each student to create a climate of
educational rigor and inclusiveness.

e The middle school field trip to Refugio State Beach had to be postponed due to COVID
regulations and the closure of some of the activities scheduled. They are currently
working on plans to reschedule another learning trip in the near future.

e Furthermore, the middle school classes celebrated “Friends Day” on February 10th and
11th. This was a special day to honor each of their classmates as Friends Day. They
had an hour in the afternoon to enjoy each other’'s company and build Ice Cream
Sundaes. The students and staff went a bit further and brought cards to memorialize
this special day. The event was a hit and led to furthering the camaraderie between
the students.

e Our High School Program is also close to capacity with a couple spots remaining. Like
our middle school programm, there are several inquiries that have been made in the
last week. Currently, there are two intake meetings scheduled in hopes to fill those
vacancies as soon as possible.

e The High School Advisors are beginning to step up the pressure to ensure each of our
20-12 grade students are doing everything they can to graduate on time in June 2022.

e We are definitely gearing up and looking forward to the 2022-2023 school year with the
open enrollment just around the corner to fill the open spots. We are also excited with
the number of students choosing to return to the Orcutt Center.

San Luis Obispo - Lisa Simard

6: 12 7. 6 8:19 9 11 10: 13 11: 26 12:12

e Our Middle School Team met with the 5th grade students and families at Morro Bay
Montessori to give an overview of our program. Parents and students alike were able
to ask staff and guest students questions about our program and get familiar with what
we offer. Students are looking forward to our Learn by Doing Lab at Cal Poly on
Friday, March 11. Students will participate in two labs, “Atoms and Molecules” and
“Evidence and Explanations”, complete a walking tour or Poly, and enjoy their sack
lunch in the Leaning Pine Arboretum. Students and Staff are excited to returnto a
“‘normal” field trip! Students shared their argumentative essays in a formal google slide
presentation in ELA with Ms. Taren. Their presentations showed the different issues




FPCS Administration and Center Reports

that our students are passionate about.

e We have welcomed four new students to our high school program over the last month,
which is edging our program closer to being at capacity. Only 3 current high school
students are planning to attend a different school for the 2022-23 school year and we
have 11 of our current 8th graders choosing to stay with FPCS for high school. This
gives us a good start to solid enrollment numbers for the falll Our HS Team will be
presenting to the 8th grade parents at our transitional meeting on Friday, March 18.
This meeting will provide information on how our high school program is designed
including curriculum, support class schedule and Cuesta enrichment. Our seniors and
3 early graduates continue to complete the steps for the Cuesta Promise with support
from our Enroliment Specialist, Belem. Summer and Fall Cuesta Enrichment
enroliment is just around the corner.

K-5 Home Study - Lisa Simard
K: 12 1: 5 2: 5 3:5 4: 6 5 4

e The K-5 Home Study program continues to be full with a waitlist. Advisors continue to
support families with daily check-ins for our K-3 with Ms. Rebecca and on Mondays
with Mr. Semu for our 4th and 5th graders. Families are being offered more
reading/comprehension support with the option of Lexia accounts for their students and
students continue to enjoy their weekly art enrichment with Ms Tina!l The K-3 students
enjoyed the Leonardo and Sam Virtual Field Trip through the Cal Poly PAC and had
fun reading the book with the same title with Ms. Rebecca in the daily morning
meetings. The majority of students in our program have committed to continue with
FPCS, with only three families leaving for other schools. We anticipate all open spots
to be filled during the open enrollment period. Families are looking forward to the
NASA virtual field trip on March 28th.

Solvang - Carl Krugmeier

6: 0 7: 5 8 8 9 7 10: 7 11: 12 12: 11

e The Solvang Center continues at maximum capacity with a waitlist. \We have
completed our re-enrollment survey for next year. Anticipated enroliment for 22-23
looks promising for this time of year with 17 students for Shannon and 18 for Elaine.
Open enrollment for next year will take place March 3-17.

e All 50 students had completed their writing assessment by Friday, February 25. Elaine
and Shannon joined PLC groups to score writing samples for the afternoon of February

N
o

Santa Maria Montessori - Carl Krugmeier

K: 8 1. 13 2; 8 3: 10 4. 8 5 11

e There have been some big changes at Santa Maria Montessori. Katrina Homer Darg




FPCS Administration and Center Reports

moved out of state because her husband just got a job in Arizona. We have hired
Blaga Nichols, a long-time FP parent and substitute teacher. Blaga, who has recently
completed her multiple subject credential, is currently serving as a long-term substitute
until a permanent teacher can be hired.

Coordinator, Carl Krugmeier is also planning his second retirement at the end of this
school year. It has been an honor and a pleasure serving with such a professional and
strong team over these past years.

The departure date for Tiela Black-Law (Kindergarten and first grade teacher) moved
up to Monday, February 28. As a result, Stephanie Anderson has stepped in as the
substitute until a long term sub and/ or a permanent teacher can be hired. Jenny
Cheverez continues as the instructional assistant.

Teachers in all 3 classes have been working on helping students complete their writing
assessments. Scoring the writing assessments is scheduled for Monday, March 7.
Several special events are scheduled. Katrina took the 4 class on a field trip to La
Purisima Mission on February 16. Blaga, though she is just getting started, is planning
a “Gold Mining” experience for her students, and is setting up a time that the “Nature
Trailer” can visit Santa Maria also this month. Kari is planning a trip to the public library
with the % class for March 23.







Wv95:6 Z20zZ | Jdv '(NYI4VHSZ0) Jajeys AdueN .oj pajesauas

Jo13S1Q |00Y9S UOIUN UBWYDOIG - Z00

| j0 | abed

3dVvDS3

(Zzoz/1e/€ = 8jeq Aed Buipul ‘zz0z/L/e = sleq Aed Bues 'z = 610) Aq paisi4 ‘B0 Aq padnoin  ucioslsg

og 02'920'L6 TvioL

JoN 0Ja7
SPIOH 00UD
18N aaneboN SY'sy8'vLlL SY'sy8'vLlL
HOV J1eN [elHed SUONNQUILED $77162°eh YT L6T'EY Aungert sousig

b L6 PYS'L $49UD suoRoNPeq  |67/Z5'0 LZ'¥SS LEL sBuiues ssoio

62 6L°181'68 sysodaq paiq Aed 19N 02°920'16

F Ei _! v1va ONIONVIVE

HOV PIOA 62 $.°818'c8
$§02yH |2oue) 5z v’ 29828 sanyiqer Jopusp
panssioy ¥ YELSH'L $303YD JOPUSA

2202/1£/€0 2JeQ SS900. J0j anssiay/ledueD | |

TT0Z/LE/£0 @)eq Aed 10) Aiewwing JOPUaA

S2'818'c8 vZLez'ey L§°225'0V siviolL
eV 0S1°eT 80°€09°¢) SE P56 IvLOLaNS 90°952°62 6l LTYSSLEL 0¢ IVYLOL
82'998°cE [ARAXS [A X1 saxe ]
¥0'6€LGS G8'LL6'L G8'1/6'L sbuneg jawwng
00’6 867C0C'L 86°20C'L OSIN 96'8.0'vC Ll €8'v.LL'6E 9l payisse|d
80°€09'€L 80°€09'EL sjysuag 0L 2LL1'GS 8 8€'6.£'26 145 pajesyian
sassol9 yralqng jejoL 18holdwz sakojdwy SNOLLONAd3a _ _moo>o_nEm 9jeway 9dA| uosiag SONINAVY3
8v've0‘es TSve6'eT 96660V} Jviolans 00'L LTSS LEL Iviol
9€'8ve 9e'8¥c OsIN
85°ZLL'E 68'609 €2°295'2 sjyausg 18'805'L spuadng
05°90L°LL 6E°GLLE ¥2°086°L SOV6LL 29/841S 10’899 SWIIBA0
91'9ze'0L 290161 8166811 ¥p'802°L 09/84dlS 00l 9e'G6Y'C SNO3UE[IS3ISIN
¥ 108'E 12°'80L°0L Lizoz'e 01'905'¢ 29/S¥3d -69'660'L s¥o0qg
00'v2Zr's 2eeey’L XA 89'6.€ Sd3d 89'186°221 Aed aseg
sasso19) Ja9lgng jejol 1akoldwig askojdwiz SNOILONA3aAN _ _ susaunsnipy awoau| dnoug Aq SONINYVI
ve'ee9‘ze ¥9°€SL'S 0Z°088°91 JvioLans 00} L2 ¥SSLEL Jviol
zievL'set £6'668 £6°668 dwod SIaMIoM
cLevl'ezl LL'EP9 LL'EP9 NS
ZL'evL'8z) vseeL's 12'998'L 12°998°L 3JedIp3N
68°€6LLE 9v'989'v €TEVET €TEVE'C Aunoag |epog
STYSY'LLL 5022t s0'.2e'e Buipjoyuim s1elS LZYSSLEL Jejnbay
GZTYShLLL SLEPY'6 SLEPY'B ButpjoyuiaA |rJapad 00t Aed ssoio oN
$3ss049) 193lgng |ejoL 1akojdwz aakojdwiz SIAXVL _ Tu:o::m:_u< awoou| apos sbuiuseg AqQ SONINYVI

220z/1€/€0 )eq Aed

610 Aq A1ewnwng jjoihed

BL0ABd



ReqPay12a

Checks Dated 03/01/2022 through 03/31/2022

Board Report

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-684122 03/07/2022 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 296.00
01-684123 03/07/2022 Coast Networx, Inc. 01-4300 50.00
01-684124 03/07/2022 Frontier Communications 01-5910 1,266.33
01-684125 03/07/2022 LogMeln Communications Inc. 01-5910 417.56
01-684126 03/07/2022 Medical Billing Technology Inc 01-5800 250.00
01-684127 03/07/2022 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 232.44
01-684128 03/07/2022 Nancy B Shafer, CPA 01-5800 7,870.00
01-684129 03/07/2022 Procare Janitorial Supply 01-4300 77.58
01-684130 03/07/2022 Sisc Ill Insurance 67-5450 18,197.40
01-685196 03/14/2022 Wells, William P 01-4300 86.16
01-685197 03/14/2022 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 129.50
01-685198 03/14/2022 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 116.24
01-685199 03/14/2022 Coast to Coast Computer 01-4300 116.38
01-685200 03/14/2022 Culligan San Paso 01-5800 98.98
01-685201 03/14/2022 Industrial Medical Group 01-5800 20.00
01-685202 03/14/2022 Jordanos Food Service Division 13-4300 400.67
13-4710 4,533.56 4,934.23
01-685203 03/14/2022 Koehler Plumbing Inc 01-5800 100.00
01-685204 03/14/2022 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 126.59
01-685205 03/14/2022 Procare Janitorial Supply 01-4300 1,519.51
01-685206 03/14/2022 Staples Business Credit 01-4300 93.90
01-685207 03/14/2022 US OMNI & TSACG Compliance 01-5800 50.00
01-685208 03/14/2022 WM CORPORATE SERVICES, INC. 01-5570 489.28
01-686142 03/21/2022 Arkinson, Jennifer M 01-4300 45.73
01-686143 03/21/2022 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 370.00
01-686144 03/21/2022 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 62.46
13-4300 45.18 107.64
01-686145 03/21/2022 Cal-Coast Machinery 01-4300 220.37
01-686146 03/21/2022 Employment Development Dept. 01-3501 482.99
01-686147 03/21/2022 Golden State Water Company 01-5530 247.51
01-686148 03/21/2022 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 286.88
01-686149 03/21/2022 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5520 967.36
01-686150 03/21/2022 Santa Barbara County Education 01-7142 5,371.81
01-686151 03/21/2022 Smith's Alarms & Elect Inc. 01-5800 395.00
01-686152 03/21/2022 So California Pizza Co 13-4710 450.66
01-686153 03/21/2022 US Bank Corporate Payments 01-4300 324.63
01-5300 180.00
01-5919 16.60
13-4300 91.82
13-4710 360.50
Unpaid Tax 5.73- 967.82
01-686154 03/21/2022 Verizon Wireless 01-5910 202.80
01-686155 03/21/2022 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES 01-5630 604.44
01-687085 03/28/2022 Dekorte, Holly J 01-4300 9.95
01-687086 03/28/2022 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 222.50
01-687087 03/28/2022 ALD TELECOM 01-5910 15.84

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

| ESCAPE
Page 1 of 2

002 - Blochman Union School District

Generated for Nancy Shafer (02SHAFERN), Apr 1 2022 9:56AM



RegPay12a Board Report

Checks Dated 03/01/2022 through 03/31/2022

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-687088 03/28/2022 DOCUMENT TRACKING 01-5800 395.00
SERVICES,LLC
01-687089 03/28/2022 Edna's Bakery 13-4710 239.30
01-687090 03/28/2022 FlagHouse, Inc. 01-4300 262.35
01-687091 03/28/2022 Frontier Communications 01-5910 1,100.00
01-687092 03/28/2022 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 01-4300 58.66
01-687093 03/28/2022 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 240.20
01-687094 03/28/2022 O'Connor Pest Control 01-5800 75.00
01-687095 03/28/2022 Procare Janitorial Supply 01-4300 188.16
01-687096 03/28/2022 Smart & Final 01-4300 40.29
13-4300 47.26
13-4710 41.32 128.87
01-687097 03/28/2022 SoCalGas 01-5510 1,025.57
01-687098 03/28/2022 Staples Business Credit 01-4300 125.63
13-4300 11.56 137.19
01-687099 03/28/2022 Whittle Fire Protection 01-5800 60.00
Total Number of Checks 51 §1,417.68
Fund Recap
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 General Fund 43 25,986.18
13 Cafeteria Spec Rev Fund 11 7,239.83
67 Self-Insurance Fund 1 1 18,197.40
Total Number of Checks 51 51,423.41
Less Unpaid Tax Liability 5.73-
Net (Check Amount) 51,417.68
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization {_Em
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

002 - Blochman Union School District Generated for Nancy Shafer (02SHAFERN), Apr 1 2022 9:56AM



| abed

00°0

aouejeqg

Junowy

nds

aviolL

a JUNOJ3JY OWw3N

wnn

ajeq adA}

220Z Yya1eN
|ieyaq Jopuap Aq sasuadxy

aNN4d ONIATOAIYE NYIAHOO14

siseq |enJooy
Z2e/L0/v0

WV 00:-0}






CHARTER SCHOOL SECOND INTERIM
FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM
July 1. 2021 to January 31, 2022

CHARTER SCHOOL CERTIFICATION

Charter School Name: Family Partnership Home Study Charter School
CDS #: 42691120111773
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union School District
County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 7630

valid submission if the following information is missing:

For information regarding this report, please contact:

For County Fiscal Contact: For Approving Entity: For Charter School:

Nicole Evenson Doug Brown Stephanie Eggert

Name Name Name

District Financial Manager Superintendent Interim Executive Director
Tiltle Title Title

805-934-4710 ext. 5271 (805) 937-1148 ext 114 (805) 348-3333 ext. 1025
Telephone Telephone Telephone
nevenson(@sbceo.org dbrown@blochmanusd.org stephanie.eggert@fpcharter.org
Email address E-mail address E-mail address

To the entity that approved the charter school:

X) 2021-22 CHARTER SCHOOL SECOND INTERB FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report
ha A@m harter gchool pursuant to Education Code Section 42100(b).
Signed: 2 A T s\ Date: March 7, 2022
Chaxter School Officia
(Original signature required)
Printed
Name: Stephanie Eggert Title: Interim Executive Director
To the County Superintendent of Schools:
0,9) 2021-22 GHARTER SCHOO$ECOND INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report
is herebth the Cou uperintendent pursuant to Education Code Section 42100%1/)0
Signed: L @M_/P AP — Date: 7 = 17
t " Authorized preseffative of
Charter Approving Entity
(Original signature required)
Printed
Name: Doug Brown Title: Superintendent
To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:
X 2021-22 CHARTER SCHOOL SECOND INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report
verified for mathmatical accuracy by the County Superintendent os Schools pursuant to Education Code Section 42100(a).
Signed: Date;:

County Superintendent/Designee
(Original signature required)




2. Community Services Expenditues

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated 0.00
Reserve for Economic Uncertanties 9789 0.00
Unassigned / Unappropriated Amount 9790M 0.00

# Components of Ending Net Position (Accrual Basis only)

a. Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 1,446,166.32

b. Restricted Net Position 9797 350,000.00 350,000.00

c. Unrestricted Net Position 9790A 213,587.21 213,587.21 0.00
sl e Deseription Object Codej - Unrestricted. -+ [ . Restricted [ 7 ‘Total . . -

ASSETS

1. Cash
In County Treasury 9110 1,314,612.93 52,741.00 1,367,353.93
Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00 0.00 0.00
In Banks 9120 137,046.84 0.00 137,046.84
In Revolving Fund 9130 0.00 0.00 0.00
With Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 0.00 0.00
Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 |~ 0.00 0.00

2. Investments 9150 | 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Accounts Receivable 9200 284,543.75 000 284,543.75

4. Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00 70.00 0.00

5. Stores 9320 0.00 0.00 0.00

6. Prepaid Expenditures (Expenses) 9330 [ 9,354.30 0.00 9,354.30

7. Other Current Assets 9340 300.00 0.00 300.00

8. Capital Assets (for accrual basis only) 9400-9499 | 0.00 0.00 0.00

9. TOTAL ASSETS 1,745,857.82 52,741.00 1,798,598.82

DEFFERED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
# Deferred Outlaws of Resources 9490 0.00 0.00 0.00
# TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

LIABILITIES

1. Accounts Payable 9500 2,432.50 0.00 2,432.50

2. Due to Grantor Government 9590 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Current Loans 9640 | 0.00 0.00 0.00

4. Deferred Revenue 9650 0.00 0.00 0.00

S. Long-Term Liabilities (for accrual basis only) 9660-9669 0.00 0.00 0.00

6. TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,432.50 0.00 2,432.50
Deferred Inflows of Resources

# Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 (G9-H6)

(must agree with Line F2) 1,743,425.32 52,741.00 1,796,166.32
FEDERAL EVERY STUDENT ACT (ESSA) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT
NOTE: IF YOUR CHARTER SCHOOL RECEIVED FEDERAL FUNDING, AS REPORTED IN SECTION A2, THE FOLLOWING
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION MUST BE PROVIDED IN ORDER FOR THE CDE TO CALCULATE COMPLIANCE WITH
THE FEDERAL NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND (NCLB) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT:
1. Federal Revenue Used for Capital Qutlay and Debt Service
Include in the Capital Outlay and Debt Service expenditures reported in sections B6 and B7 are
the following amounts paid out of federal funds
Federal Program Name (If no amounts, indicate "NONE")

Capital OQutlay Debt Service Total

a. None 0.00 0.00 0.00
b. None 0.00 0.00 0.00
c. None 0.00 0.00 0.00
d. None 0.00 0.00 0.00
e. None 0.00 0.00 0.00
f. None 0.00 0.00 0.00
g. None 0.00 0.00 0.00
h. None 0.00 0.00 0.00
1. None 0.00 0.00 0.00
j. None 0.00 0.00
TOTAL FEDERAL REVENUES USED FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY AND DEBT}: . .0v " n 7 £ 0,00} - - 20,00 v

Provide the amount of State and Local Funds reported in section B that were expended for Community Services Activities

Objects of Expenditures

Amount




CHARTER SCHOOL 2021-22 SECOND INTERIM
FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM
JULY 1,2021 to JANUARY 31, 2022

Charter School Name:
CDS #:

Charter Approving Entity:
County:

Charter #:

This charter school uses the following basis of accounting:

Family Partnership Home Study Charter School

42-69112-0111773

Blochman Union School District

Santa Barbara County

0763

(Please enter an "X" in the applicable box below; check only one box)

X | Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Assets/Interest on Long-Term Debt/Long-Term Liabilities objects are 6900, 7438, 9400-9499, and 9660-9669)
| | Modified Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Outlay/Debt Service objects are 6100-6170, 6200-6500, 7438, and 7439)

et R rDeseription. b Object-Codel - Unrestricted . |+ ‘Restricted: i | /0000 Total =
A. REVENUES
1. LCFF Sources
State Aid - Current Years 8011 1,454,260.00 |: 1,454,260.00
Education Protection Account 8012 1,612,316.00 | 1,612,316.00
State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00
Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 422,014.00 o " 422,014.00
Other Revenue Limit Transfers 8091, 8097 132,615.00 95,111.00 227,726.00
Total, LCFF Sources 3,621,205.00 95,111.00 3,716,316.00
2. Federal Revenues (see NOTE in section L)
No Child Left Behind/Every Student Suceeds Act 8290 0.00 0.00
Special Education - Federal 8181, 8182 92,549.00 92,549.00
Child Nutrition - Federal 8220 0.00 0.00
Donated Food Commodities 8221 G R o 0.00 0.00
Other Federal Revenues 110, 8260-82¢ 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total, Federal Revenues 0.00 92,549.00 92,549.00
3. Other State Revenues
Special Education State StateRevSE | oo A T 159,743.00 159,743.00
All Other State Revenues StateRevAO 74,217.29 246,846.74 321,064.03
Total, Other State Revenues 74,217.29 406,589.74 480,807.03
4. Other Local Revenues
All Other Local Revenues LocalRevAO 79,061.92 0.00 79,061.92
Total, Local Revenues 79,061.92 0.00 79,061.92
5. TOTAL REVENUES 3,774,484,21 594,249.74 4,368,733.95
B. EXPENDITURES
1. Certificated Salaries
Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,445,393.94 340,960.66 1,786,354.60
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 98,383.00 0.00 98,383.00
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 115,757.04 0.00 115,757.04
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total, Certificated Salaries 1,659,533.98 340,960.66 2,000,494.64
2. Non-certificated Salaries
Non-certificated Instructional Salaries 2100 148,080.13 0.00 148,080.13
Non-certificated Support Salaries 2200 109,633.42 0.00 109,633.42
Non-certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 46,146.74 770,00 46,146.74
Clerical and Office Salaries 2400 11,986.70 88,320.24
Other Non-certificated Salaries 2900 00 0.00 0.00
Total, Non-certificated Salaries 380,193.83 11,986.70 392,180.53
' S : "Object Code, - Unrestricted . Restricted -, otal o
3. Em})loyee Benefits
STRS 3101-3102 269,440.78 21,106.63 290,547.41
PERS 3201-3202 58,387.36 T 0.00 58,387.36
OASDI/ Medicare / Alternative 3301-3304 52,029.94 3,437.56 55,467.50
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 219,061.37 11,043.83 230,105.20
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 | 10,835.09 97.67 10,932.76
Workers' Compensation Insurance 3601-3602 34,524.36 | 558.00 35,082.36
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 o 0.00 0.00 0.00
OPEB, Active Employees 37513752 | 000 | 0.00 0.00
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 000 T 0.00 0.00
Total, Employee Benefits 644,278.90 36,243.69 680,522.59
4. Books and Supplies i
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 + 000 0.00 0.00
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 ;,_ 83,517.24 12,408.84 95,926.08




Materials and Supplies 4300 ~50,660.24 21,883.76 72,544.00
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 52,990.65 13,000.00 65,990.65
Food 4700 8,810.94 0.00 8,810.94
Total, Books and Supplies 195,979.07 47,292.60 243,271.67
S. Services and Other Operating Expenditures
Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 - 0.00 0.00
Travel and Conferences 5200 20,445.63 . 21,483.45 41,929.08
Dues and Memberships 5300 9,086.67 0.00 9,086.67
Insurance 5400 52,222.79 0.00 52,222.79
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 90,027.38 0.00 90,027.38
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements 5600 | 364,490.58 0.00 364,490.58
Transfers of Direct Costs 5700-5799 140,355.61 0.00 140,355.61
Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend. 5800 211,579.66 74,472.17 286,051.83
Communications 5900 46,239.27 0.00 46,239.27
Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 934,447.58 95,955.62 1,030,403.20
6. Capital Outlay
(Objects 6100-6170, 6200-6500 for modified
accrual basis only)
Land and Land Improvements 6100-6170 0.00
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00
Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major
Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00
Equipment 6400 0.00
Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00
Depreciation Expense (for accrual basis only) 6900 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total, Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00
7. Other Outgo
Tuition to Other Schools 7110-7143 | 0.00 ) 0.00 0.00
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed. 7221-7223SE 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - All Other 7221-7223AC 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Other Transfers 7281-7299 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers of indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00
Debt Service:
Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00
Principal (for modified accrual basis only) 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total, Other Outgo 0.00 0.00 0.00
8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,814,433.36 532,439.27 4,346,872.6
S el Deseription T o b : . - Object Codel - - Unrestricted, |~ Restricted - Co U Total e
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND.
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8) (39,949.15) 61,810.47 21,861.32
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES
1. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. Less: Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts
(must net to zero) 8980-8999 (21,861.32) 21,861.32 0.00
4, TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES (21,861.32) 21,861.32 0.00
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) (61,810.47) 83,671.79 21,861.32
F. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITON
1. Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position
a. AsofJulyl 9791 ' 1,721,566.09 52,741.00 1,774,307.09
9 b. Adjustments/Restatements 9793, 9795 ! (2.09) (2.09)
¢. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position 1,721,564.00 52,741.00 1,774,305.00
2, Ending Fund Balance/Net Position June 30 (E + Flc) 1,659,753.53 136,412.79 1,796,166.32
Components of Ending Fund Balance (Modified Accrual Basis onl
a. Nonspendable
# Revolving Cash (equals Object 9130) 9711 0.00
#  Stores (equals Object 9320) 9712 0.00
# Prepaid Expenditures (equals Object 9330) 9713 0.00
# All Others 9719 0.00
b. Restricted 9740 0.00
[ Committed 0.00
# Stabilization Arrangments 9750 0.00
# Other Commitments 9760 0.00
d. Assigned 9780 0.00




a. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999
b. Noncertificated Salaries 2000-2999
c. Employee Benefits 3000-3999
d. Books and Supplies 4000-4999
e. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES EXPENDITURES

(Enter "0.00" if none)
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

3. State and Local Expenditures to be Used for 2017-18 ESSA Annual Maintenance of Effort Calculation:
Results of this calculation will be used for comparison with expenditures. Failure to maintain the required
90 percent expenditures level on either an aggregate or per capita expenditures basis will result in reduction to

allocations for covered programs in 2020-21

a. Total Expenditures (B8)

b. Less Federal Expenditures (Total A2)

(Revenues are used as proxy for expenditures because most federal revenues
are normally recognized in the period that qualifing expenditures are incurred)
c. Subtotal of State & Local Expenditures

(a minus b)

d. Less Community Services

(L2 Total)

e. Less Capital Outlay & Debt Service

(Total B6 plus objects 7438 and 7439, less L1 Total)

TOTAL STATE & LOCAL EXPENDITURES SUBJECT TO MOE

(c minus d minus €)







CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM
Second Interim Report Certification

Charter School Name: Trivium Charter
(continued)
CDS #: 42691120124255
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union
County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 1319
Fiscal Year: 2021/22

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

POSITIVE CERTIFICATION

As the Charter School Official, I certify that based upon current projections this charter will meet its financial obligations for the
current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION

As the Charter School Official, | certify that based upon current projections this charter may not meet its financial obligations for
the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION
As the Charter School Official, I certify that based upon current projections this charter will be unable to meet its financial
obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year.

To the entity that approved the charter school:

_x) 2021/22 CHARTER SCHOOL Second INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report
has been approved, ,and is hereby ﬂled'by the charter school pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33.
Signed: (VJUA e / & A Date: 2 / g/ 2 2
T Charter School Official /
(Original signature required)
Print
Name: Trisha Vais Title: Executive Director
To the County Superintendent of Schools:
x_ )

is hereby filed with the G Superintendent pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33. ,

Date: 3/Ci ’/ZOLL

2021/22 CHAROOL Sec INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report

Signed:

I Authorized Rebresertétive of
Charter Apgroving Entity
(Original signature required)
Print

Name: Doug Brown Title: Superintendent

For additional information on the Second Interim Report, please contact:

For Approving Entity: For Charter School:
Nancy Shafer Aaron Guibord
Name Name

Interim Business Manager Business Manager
Title Title

805-937-1148 x113 805-390-1813
Phone Phone
blochman@blochmanusd.org aguibord@csmci.com
E-mail E-mail

This report has been verified for mathematical accuracy by the County Superintendent of Schools,
pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33.

Date



Second Interim Report - Summary

CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

Charter School Name: Trivium Charter

{continued)

CDS #: 42691120124255
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union

County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 1319
Fiscal Year: 2021/22

2nd Interim vs. Adopted Budget

Increase, (Decrease)
7/1 Adopted Actuals thru 2nd Interim $ Difference % Change
Description Object Code Budget (X) 1/31 (Y) Budget (Z) (Z) vs. (X) (Z) vs. (X)
A. REVENUES
1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
State Aid - Current Year 8011 2,269,036.00 753,390.00 1,424,878.02 (844,157.98) -37.20%
Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 698,117.00 373,526.00 1,163,329.01 465,212.01 66.64%
State Aid - Prior Years 8019 - - - -
Transfers to Charter Schools Funding in Lieu of Property Taxeg 8096 378,043.00 177,828.83 378,667.86 624.86 0.17%
Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 - s s T
Total, LCFF Sources 3,345,196.00 1,304,744.83 2,966,874.89 (378,321.11) -11.31%
2. Federal Revenues o .
Every Student Succeeds Act (Title I-V) 8290 71,528.00 69,217.25 74,539.99 3,011.99 4.21%
Special Education - Federal 8181, 8182 42,853.00 - 40,750.00 (2,103.00) -4.91%
Child Nutrition - Federal 8220 - - e -
Donated Food Commodities 8221 - - - -
Other Federal Revenues 8110, 8260-8299 70,723.00 149,128.90 127,393.72 56,670.72 80.13%
Total, Federal Revenues 185,104.00 218,346.15 242,683.71 57,679.71 31.11%
3. Other State Revenues . .
Special Education - State StateRevSE 222,944.00 115,861.00 202,366.99 (20,577.01)]  -9.23%
All Other State Revenues __StateRevAO 268,757.00 89,136.45 82,904.67 (185,852.33 -69.15%
Total, Other State Revenues 491,701.00 204,997.45 285,271.66 (206,429.34) -41.98%
4. Other Local Revenues 5
All Other Local Revenues LocalRevAQ - 1,613.66 1 996.81 996.81 New
Total, Local Revenues - 1,613.66 996.81 996.81 New
5. TOTAL REVENUES 4,022,001.00 | 1,729,702.09 [ 3,495,827.07 |  (526,173.93)] -13.08%
B. EXPENDITURES
1. Certificated Salaries
Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,641,934.00 1,041,709.48 1,325,346.50 (316,587.50) -19.28%
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 57,331.00 27,510.91 37,740.02 (19,5690.98) -34.17%
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 164,115.00 95,271.92 151,733.25 (12,381.75) . -1.54%
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 - 4,776.70 . - -
Total, Certificated Salaries 1,863,380.00 1,169,269.01 1,514,819.77 (348,560.23) -18.71%
2. Non-certificated Salares
Non-certificated Instructional Aides' Salaries 2100 167,651.00 86,052.16 147,810.58 (9,840.42) -6.24%
Non-certificated Support Salaries 2200 167,709.00 73,762.18 -~ 87,477.10 (80,231.90) -47.84%
Non-certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Sal. 2300 288,831.00 110,079.44 163,774.63 (125,056.37) -43.30%
Clerical and Office Salaries 2400 - 27,458.82 61,112,12 61,112.12 New
Other Non-certificated Salaries 2900 - 26,426.94 24,704.16 24,704.16 New
Total, Non-certificated Salaries 614,191.00 323,779.54 484,878.59 (129,312.41) -21.05%
3. Employee Benefits
STRS 3101-3102 283,660.00 188,610.04 256,691.85 |  (28,068.15) -9.89%
PERS 3201-3202 - - - -
OASDI / Medicare / Alternative 3301-3302 74,005.00 40,568.37 59,058.00 (14,947.00) -20.20%
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 165,616.00 119,622.54 89,828.68 (75,787.32) -45.76%
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 20,038.00 11,267.99 19,418.22 (620.78) -3.10%
Workers' Compensation Insurance 3601-3602 52,029.00 11,543.93 41,993.64 (10,035.36) -19.29%
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 - - - -
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 - - - - o
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 - 6,107.01 4,194.99 4,194.99 New
Total, Employee Benefits 595,349.00 377,719.88 470,085.38 (125,263.62) -21.04%

Page 10f 3




Charter School Name: Trivium Charter
(continued)
CDS #: 42691120124255
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union

CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

Second Interim Report - Summary

County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 1319
Fiscal Year: 2021/22

2nd Interim vs. Adopted Budget
Increase, (Decrease)
7/1 Adopted Actuals thru 2nd Interim $ Difference % Change
Description Object Code Budget (X) 1131 (Y) Budget (Z) (Z) vs. (X) (2) vs. (X)
4. Books and Supplies
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 69,586.00 98,343.03 74,985.33 . 6,399.33 1.76%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 8,435.00 984.37 - 3,749.27 (4,685.73)( -55.55%
Materials and Supplies 4300 31,630.00 31,487.32 34,118.42 2,488.42 7.87%
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 67,478.00 175,872.95 209,858.95 142,480.95 211.15%
Food 4700 1,054.00 1,230.86 1,124.80 70.80 6.72%
Total, Books and Supplies 178,183.00 307,918.53 323,936.77 145,753.77 81.80%
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures
Subagreements for Services 5100 - - - -
Travel and Conferences 5200 11,809.00 7,772.20 5,623.90 (6,185.10) -52.38%
Dues and Memberships 5300 10,122.00 7,510.49 8,998.22 (1,123.78) -11.10%
Insurance 5400 16,869.00 16,122.79 16,121.92 (1,747.08) -10.36%
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 2,109.00 2,127.66 3.749.26 1,640.26 | 17.77%
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements 5600 149,565.00 96,313.18 138,272.18 (11,292.82)y  -7.55%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5700-5799 - - - -
Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend. 5800 306,247.00 260,339.30 330,318.47 24,071.47 7.86%
Communications 5900 44,282.00 29,556.75 48,740.50 4,458.50 10.07%
Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 541,003.00 419,742.37 550,824.45 9,821.45 1.82%
6. Capital Outlay (Objects 6100-6170, 6200-6500 modified accrual basis only) B
Land and Land improvements 6100-6170 - - - -
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 - - - -
Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major : .
Expansion of School Libraries 6300 - - - - B
Equipment 6400 - - - -
Equipment Replacement 6500 - - - 1 - .
Depreciation Expense (for accrual basis only) 6900 4,593.00 - 4,083.33 (509.67) -11.10%
Total, Capital Outlay 4,593.00 - 4,083.33 (509.67) -11.10%
7. Other Outgo
Tuition to Other Schools 7110-7143 - - - - -
Transfers of Pass-through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 - - - -
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed. 7221-7223SE - - - -
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - All Other 7221-7223A0 - - - -
All Other Transfers 7281-7299 - - - -
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 - - - -
Debt Service: B ~
Interest 7438 - - - -
Principal (for modified accrual basis only) 7439 - - - -
Total, Other Outgo - - - -
8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,796,690.00 | 2,508,429.33 | 3,348,628.29 |  (448,070.71)] -11.80%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND. S
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8) 225,302.00 |  (868,727.24)] 147,198.78 | (78,103.22)] -34.67%

Page 2 of 3




Second Interim Report - Summary

CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

Charter School Name:
{continued)

Trivium Charter

CDS #: 42691120124255
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union
County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 1319
Fiscal Year: 2021/22
2nd interim vs. Adopted Budget
Increase, (Decrease)
711 Adopted Actuals thru 2nd Interim $ Difference % Change
Description Object Code Budget (X) 1/31 (Y) Budget (Z2) (Z) vs. (X) {Z) vs. (X)
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES
1. Other Sources . 8930-8979 - - - - R o
2. Less: Other Uses 7630-7699 - - - -
3. Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts
(must net to zero) 8980-8999 -] - -] -]
4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES -] - - -
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 225,302.00 |  (868,727.24)] 147,198.78 | (78,103.22)] -34.67%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1. Beginning Fund Balance
a. As of July 1 9791 - 137,187.97 137,187.97 137,187.97 ___New
b. Adjustments/Restatements 9793, 9795 - (39,352.97) (39,352.97) (39,352.97) New
¢. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance - 97,835.00 97,835.00 :
2. Ending Fund Balance, June 30 (E + F.1.c.) 225,302.00 (770,892.24) 245,033.78
Components of Ending Fund Balance :
a. Nonspendable B _ R
Revolving Cash (equals object 9130) LAk - - - T
Stores (equals object 9320) - 9712 - ] - - -
Prepaid Expenditures (equals object 9330) 9713 - - - - e
All Others 9719 - - - -
b. Restricted 9740 - - - -
¢ Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 - - - -
Other Commitments 9760 - - - -
d Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 - - - -
e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 - - - ) -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 225,302.00 (770,892.24) 245,033.78 19,731.78 8.76%

Page 30f 3




CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

Second Interim Report Certification

Charter Schoo! Name: Trivium Adventure
(continued)
CDS #: 42691120137877
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union
County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 1994
Fiscal Year: 2021/22

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

POSITIVE CERTIFICATION

As the Charter School Official, | certify that based upon current projections this charter will meet its financial obligations for the
current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years. -

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION

As the Charter School Official, I certify that based upon current projections this charter may not meet its financial obligations for
the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION
As the Charter School Official, | certify that based upon current projections this charter will be unable to meet its financial
obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year.

To the entity that approved the charter school:

) 2021/22 CHARTER SCHOOL SECOND INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report
has been approved, and is hereby filed by the charter school pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33.
b/
Signed: (3{{4}(4}’\6 [/#aN Date: __ 2 / g / 202T
Charter School Official /7
(Original signature required)
Print
Name: Trisha Vais Title: Executive Director
To the County Superintendent of Schools:
X ) 2021/22 CHARTER.SCHOOL SEC INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT — ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report

is hereby filed with the{County Superintendent pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33.

Signed: / | D p K‘)@/\/M—-\ Date: 3 / q / ZD Z L
¥ \"KﬂtﬁﬁrizedA?preseﬁtative of [ ]
Charter Agproving Entity

(Original signature required)

Print
Name: Doug Brown Title: Superintendent

For additional information on the First Interim Report, please contact:

For Approving Entity; For Charter School;
Nancy Shafer Aaron Guibord
Name ) Name

Interim Business Manager Business Manager
Title Title

805-937-1148 x113 805-390-1813
Phone Phone
blochman@blochmanusd.org aguibord@csmci.com
E-mail E-mail

This report has been verified for mathematical accuracy by the County Superintendent of Schools,
pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33.

Date



CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

Second Interim Report - Summary

Charter School Name: Trivium Adventure

{continued)
CDS #: 42691120137877
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union
County: Santa Barbara

Charter #: 1994
Fiscatl Year: 2021/22

2nd Interim vs. Adopted Budget

Increase, {Decrease)
7/1 Adopted Actuals thru 2nd Interim $ Difference % Change
Description Object Code Budget (X) 1/31 (Y) Budget (2) (Z) vs. (X) (Z) vs. (X)
A. REVENUES
1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources :
State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,862,570.00 992,370.00 1,789,973.02 (72,596.98) -3.90%
Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 45,738.00 22,771.00 44,946.01 (791.99) -1.73%
State Aid - Prior Years 8019 - - - -
Transfers to Charter Schools Funding in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 : 244,616.00 126,790.97 268,617.51 24,001.51 | . 9.81%
Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 - - - T
Total, LCFF Sources 2,152,924.00 1,141,931.97 2,103,536.54 {49,387.46) -2.29%
2. Federal Revenues
Every Student Succeeds Act (Title I-V) 8290 35,185.00 28,327.58 43,052.00 7,867.00 | 22.36%
Special Education - Federal 8181, 8182 27,729.00 - 27,625.00 (104.00) -0.38%
Child Nutrition - Federal 8220 - - - -
Donated Food Commodities 8221 - - T -
Other Federal Revenues 8110, 8260-8299 51,704.00 92,644.86 91,983.48 40,279.48 77.90%
Total, Federal Revenues 114,618.00 120,972.44 162,660.48 48,042.48 41.92%
3. Other State Revenues
Special Education - State StateRevSE 144,258.00 86,405.00 165,308.99 21,050.99 R 14.59%
All Other State Revenues _StateRevAO 192,117.00 66,399.44 56,409.97 (135,707.03) -70.64%
Total, Other State Revenues 336,375.00 152,804.44 221,718.96 (114,656.04) -34.09%
4. Other Local Revenues =
All Other Local Revenues LocalRevAQ - 1,061.88 707.14 707.14 New
Total, Local Revenues - 1,061.88 707.14 707.14 New
5. TOTAL REVENUES 2,603,917.00 | 1,416,770.73 | 2,488,623.12 | (115,293.88)] -4.43%
B. EXPENDITURES
1. Certificated Salaries -
Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,107,395.00 481,013.56 1,011,741.36 (95,653.64) -8.64%
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 36,855.00 19,112.16 104,088.51 67,233.51 182.43%
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 105,503.00 65,266.49 34,175.72 (71,327.28) -67.61%
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 - 3,485.70 Cos -
Total, Certificated Salaries 1,249,753.00 568,877.91 1,150,005.59 (99,747.41) -7.98%
2. Non-certificated Salaries
Non-certificated Instructional Aides' Salaries 2100 103,387.00 29,592.36 96,573.60 (6,813.40) ___-6.59%
Non-certificated Support Salaries 2200 117,812.00 21,225.49 52,863.38 (64,948.62) -55.13%
Non-certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Sal. 2300 185,678.00 74,419.53 118,637.16 (67,040.84) -36.11%
Clerical and Office Salaries 2400 - 18,581.26 44,5695.33 44,505.33 | _New
Other Non-certificated Salaries 2900 - - 18,027.36 18,027.36 New
Total, Non-certificated Salaries 406,877.00 143,818.64 330,696.83 (76,180.17) -18.72%
3. Employee Benefits
STRS 3101-3102 191,129.00 90,646.01 194,058.76 2,929.76 1.53%
PERS 3201-3202 e - - e T
OASDI / Medicare / Alternative 3301-3302 49,247.00 18,904.44 41,973.36 (7,273.64) -14.77%
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 112,900.00 59,249.06 -45,821.33 (67,078.67) -59.41%
Unemployment Insurance . 3501-3502 13,661.00 4,846.66 12,790.52 (870.48) -6.37%
Workers' Compensation Insurance 3601-3602 34,789.00 6,264.41 31,094.77 (3,694.23) -10.62%
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 - - - - o
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 - - - - ]
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 - 2,842.22 1,681.99 1,681.99 New
Total, Employee Benefits 401,726.00 182,752.80 327,420.73 (74,305.27) -18.50%

Page 1 of 3




CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

Second Interim Report - Summary

Charter School Name: Trivium Adventure
(continued}

CDS #: 42691120137877
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union
County: Santa Barbara

Charter #: 1994
Fiscal Year: 2021/22

2nd Interim vs. Adopted Budget

Increase, {Decrease)
7/1 Adopted Actuals thru 2nd Interim $ Difference % Change
Description Object Code Budget (X) 1/31 (Y) Budget (Z) {Z) vs. (X) (2) vs. (X)
4. Books and Supplies
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 45,052.00 62,431.73 53,380.85 8,328.85 18.49%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 5,461.00 666.50 2,669.06 (2,791.94) -51.13%
Materials and Supplies 4300 20,478.00 22,106.94 24,288.32 3,810.32 18.61%
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 43,686.00 123,613.47 149,466.38 105,780.38 242.14%
Food 4700 683.00 1,045.20 800.70 117.70 17.23%
Total, Books and Supplies 115,360.00 209,863.84 230,605.31 115,245.31 99.90%
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures
Subagreements for Services 5100 - - - - .
Travel and Conferences 5200 7,645.00 5,460.25 4,003.54 (3,641.46) -47.63%
Dues and Memberships 5300 6,553.00 4,145.28 6,405.72 (147.28) -2.25%
Insurance 5400 10,922.00 11,121.56 10,765.06 (156.94) -1.44%
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 1,365.00 1,384.88 2,669.02 1,30402 |  95.53%
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements 5600 109,402.00 69,323.91 105,743.94 _(3,658.06) -3.34%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5700-5799 - - - e
Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend. 5800 197,884.00 170,588.32 234,892.37 37,008.37 _18.70%
Communications 5900 28,669.00 23,579.93 34,697.57 6,028.57 21.03%
Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 362,440.00 285,604.13 399,177.22 36,737.22 10.14%
6. Capital Outiay (Objects 6100-6170, 6200-6500 modified accrual basis only)
Land and Land Improvements 6100-6170 - - < - N
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 - - - -
Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major L B B
Expansion of School Libraries 6300 - - - o -
Equipment 6400 - - - N ]
Equipment Replacement 6500 - - - -
Depreciation Expense (for accrual basis only) 6800 2,974.00 - 2,906.85 (67.15) -2.26%
Total, Capital Outlay 2,974.00 - 2,906.85 (67.15) -2.26%
7. Other Outgo
Tuition to Other Schools 7110-7143 - - - - . _
Transfers of Pass-through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 - - - -
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed. 7221-7223SE - - - - N
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - All Other 7221-7223A0 - - - -
All Other Transfers 7281-7299 - - - -
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 - - - - ]
Debt Service:
Interest 7438 - - - - ]
Principal (for modified accrual basis only) 7439 - - - -
Totai, Other Outgo - - - -
8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,539,130.00 | 1,390,917.32 | 2,440,812.53 | (98,317.47)] -3.87%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND.
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8) 64,787.00 | 25,853.41 | 47,810.59 | (16,976.41)] -26.20%

Page 2 of 3




Second Interim Report - Summary

CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

Charter School Name: Trivium Adventure

{continued)

CDS #: 42691120137877

Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union

County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 1994
Fiscal Year: 2021/22

2nd Interim vs. Adopted Budget

Increase, (Decrease)
7/1 Adopted Actuals thru 2nd interim $ Difference % Change
Description Object Code Budget (X) 1/31 (Y) Budget (Z) (Z) vs. (X) (Z) vs. (X)
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES
1. Other Sources ~8630-8979 - - B -
2. Less: Other Uses 7630-7699 - - - -
3. Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts
(must net to zero) ~ 8980-8999 - ] - - -]
4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES -] -] - -]
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 64,787.00 | 25,853.41 | 47,810.59 | (16,976.41)1 -26.20%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1. Beginning Fund Balance
a. As of July 1 9791 162,776.00 100,976.60 100,976.60 (61,799.40) -37.97%
b. Adjustments/Restatements 9793, 9795 - (25,726.60) (25,726.60) (25,726.60) New
¢. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 162,776.00 75,250.00 75,250.00
2. Ending Fund Balance, June 30 (E + F.1.c.) 227,563.00 101,103.41 123,060.59
Components of Ending Fund Balance : B
a. Nonspendable I B T .
Revolving Cash (equals object 9130) 9711 - - - -
Stores (equals object 9320) 9712 - - - -
Prepaid Expenditures (equals object 9330) 9713 - - - -
All Others 9719 - - - - ]
b. Restricted 9740 - - “ -
¢ Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 - - - -
Other Commitments 9760 - - - -
d Assigned o
Other Assignments 9780 - - - -
e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 - - - o -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9780 227,563.00 101,103.41 123,060.59 (104,502.41) -45.92%

Page 3 of 3



CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

Second Interim Report Certification

Charter School Name: Trivium Voyage
(continued)
CDS #: 42691120137885
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union
County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 1995
Fiscal Year: 2021/22

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

POSITIVE CERTIFICATION

As the Charter School Official, I certify that based upon current projections this charter will meet its financial obligations for the
cumrent fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION

As the Charter School Official, | certify that based upon current projections this charter may not meet its financial obligations for
the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION
As the Charter School Official, I certify that based upon current projections this charter will be unable to meet its financial
obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year.

To the entity that approved the charter school:

x) 2021/22 CHARTER SCHOOL SECOND INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT — ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report
has been approved, and is he7:9 filed by the charter school pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33.
1 o - -
Signed’ A/ﬁ\ / C~— Date: "> /f /ZC) 2
- ' Charter School Official 77
(Original signature required)
Print
Name: Trisha Vais Title: Executive Director
To the County Superintendent of Schools:
x_) 2021/22 CHARTER.SCHOOL SECOND INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report

is hereby filed with the pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33.

Date: _3,/4//2()&1

Signed:
‘I
(Original signature required)
Print
Name: Doug Brown Title: Superintendent

For additional information on the Second Interim Report, please contact;

For Approving Entity: For Charter School:
Nancy Shafer Aaron Guibord
Name Name

Interim Business Manager Business Manager
Title Title

805-937-1148 x113 805-390-1813
Phone Phone
blochman@blochmanusd.org aguibord@csmeci.com
E-mail E-mail

This report has been verified for mathematical accuracy by the County Superintendent of Schools,
pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33.

Date



CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM
Second Interim Report - Summary

Charter School Name: Trivium Voyage
{continued)
CDS #: 42691120137885
Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union
County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 1995

Fiscal Year: 2021/22
2nd Interim vs. Adopted Budget
increase, (Decrease)
7/1 Adopted Actuals thru 2nd Interim $ Difference % Change
Description Object Code Budget (X) 1131 (Y) Budget (Z) (2) vs. (X) (Z) vs. (X)
A. REVENUES
1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources o -
State Aid - Current Year 8011 2,097,282.00 983,383.00 | .2,386,922.00 289,640.00 13.81%
Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 52,074.00 22,687.00 60,192.00 8,118.00 15.59%
State Aid - Prior Years 8019 - - e -
Transfers to Charter Schools Funding in Lieu of Property Taxeq 8096 278,502.00 149,787.94 359,734.47 81,232.47 29.17%
Other LCFF Transfers ~8091,8097 - - R -
Total, LCFF Sources 2,427,858.00 1,155,857.94 2,806,848.47 378,990.47 15.61%
2. Federal Revenues
Every Student Succeeds Act (Title I-V) 8290 31,780.00 29,945.17 44,543.00 12,763.00 40.16%
Special Education - Federal 8181, 8182 31,570.00 - 36,125.00 4,555.00 14.43%
Child Nutrition - Federal 8220 - - - e
Donated Food Commodities 8221 - - - -
Other Federal Revenues 8110, 8260-8299 56,775.00 70,683.44 123,923.50 67,148.50 118.27%
Total, Federal Revenues 120,125.00 100,628.61 204,591.50 84,466.50 70.32%
3. Other State Revenues :
Special Education - State StateRevSE 164,242.00 85,946.00 251,572.00 87,330.00 | 53.17%
Al Other State Revenues StateRevAQ 198,636.00 71,816.56 75,617.82 (123,018.18) -61.93%
Total, Other State Revenues 362,878.00 157,762.56 327,189.82 (35,688.18) -9.83%
4. Other Local Revenues )
All Other Local Revenues LocalRevAQ - 1,203.45 946.90 946.90 New
Total, Local Revenues - 1,203.45 946.90 946.90 New
5. TOTAL REVENUES 2,910,861.00 | 1,415,452.56 | .3,339,576.69 | 428,715.69 | 14.73%
B. EXPENDITURES
1. Certificated Salaries e .
Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,293,352.00 645,523.41 1,326,596.26 33,244.26 2.57%
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 42,315.00 23,843.57 36,720.03 (5,594.97) -13.22%
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 121,132.00 79,778.12 147,632.42 26,500.42 21.88%
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 - 4,647.60 - -
Total, Certificated Salaries 1,456,799.00 763,792.70 1,510,948.71 54,149.71 3.72%
2. Non-certificated Salaries B :
Non-certificated Instructional Aides' Salaries 2100 110,242.00 47,571.69 90,092.77 (20,149.23) -18.28%
Non-certificated Support Salaries 2200 131,118.00 31,768.55 73,556.52 (57,561.48) -43.90%
Non-certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Sal. 2300 213,185.00 89,169.82 156,695.19 (56,489.81) -26.50%
Clerical and Office Salaries 2400 - 22,296.56 59,460.46 |  59,460.46 New|
Other Non-certificated Salaries 2900 - - 24,036.48 24,036.48 New
Total, Non-certificated Salaries 454,545.00 190,806.62 403,841.42 (50,703.58) -11.15%
3. Employee Benefits
STRS 3101-3102 223,149.00 120,031.27 254,956.32 31,807.32 14.25%
PERS 3201-3202 - - . - - I
OASDI / Medicare / Alternative 3301-3302 55,897.00 24,931.35 52,802.66 (3,094.34) -5.54%
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 126,707.00 69,787.35 82,161.18 (44,545.82) -35.16%
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 15,332.00 6,250.54 156,461.00 129.00 0.84%
Workers' Compensation Insurance 3601-3602 40,138.00 7,986.63 40,210.53 72.53 0.18%
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 - - - -
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 - - - -
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 - 3,427.11 1,879.00 1,879.00 New
Total, Employee Benefits 461,223.00 232,414.25 447,470.69 (13,752.31) -2.98%

Page 1 of 3




Second Interim Report - Summary

CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

(continued)
CDS #:

Charter Approving Entity:

Charter School Name: Trivium Voyage

42691120137885

Blochman Union

County: Santa Barbara
Charter #: 1995
Fiscail Year: 2021/22
2nd Interim vs. Adopted Budget
Increase, (Decrease)
711 Adopted | Actuals thru 2nd Interim $ Difference % Change
Description Object Code Budget (X) 1731 (Y) Budget (Z) (Z) vs. (X) (Z) vs. (X)
4. Books and Supplies .
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 50,362.00 71,853.00 71,633.79 2127179  42.24%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 6,105.00 1,148.49 3,581.68 (2,523.32) -41.33%
Materials and Supplies 4300 22,892.00 28,801.28 32,593.38 9,701.38 42.38%
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 48,836.00 146,147.65 200,574.54 151,738.54 310.71%
Food 4700 763.00 1,139.60 1,074.54 311.54 40.83%
Total, Books and Supplies 128,958.00 249,090.02 309,457.93 180,499.93 139.97%
§. Services and Other Operating Expenditures -
Subagreements for Services 5100 - - - - -
Travel and Conferences B 5200 8,546.00 7,116.50 5,372.59 (3,173.41)  -37.13%
Dues and Memberships 5300 7,325.00 4,504.07 8,5696.09 1,271.09 17.35%
Insurance ~ 5400 12,209.00 13,733.65 14,446.05 2,237.05 18.32%
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 1,526.00 1,561.15 3,681.67 2,055.67 134.71%
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements 5600 116,209.00 69,634.02 121,159:13 . 4.26%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5700-5799 - - - -
Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend. __....5800 221,848.00 184,972.82 314,731.95 .92,883.95 41.87%
Communications 5900 32,049.00 17,661.33 46,561.93 14,512.93 45.28%
Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 399,712.00 299,183.54 514,449.41 114,737.41 28.71%
6. Capital Outlay (Objects 61006170, 6200-6500 modified accrual basis only) .
Land and Land Improvements 6100-6170 - - - -
Buildings and improvements of Buildings 6200 - - - -
Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major o
Expansion of School Libraries 6300 - - - -
Equipment 6400 - - - -
Equipment Replacement 6500 - - - -
Depreciation Expense (for accrual basis only) 6900 3,324.00 - 3,900.82 576.82 17.35%
Total, Capital Outlay 3,324.00 - 3,900.82 576.82 17.35%
7. OtherOutgo |
Tuition to Other Schools 7110-7143 - - - -
Transfers of Pass-through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 - - = -
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed. 7221-7223SE - - - -
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - All Other 7221-7223A0 - - - -
All Other Transfers 7281-7299 - - - -
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7398 - - - o
Debt Service:
Interest ~ 7438 - - - -
Principal (for modified accrual basis only) 7439 - - = -
Total, Other Outgo - - - -
8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,904,561.00 | 1,725,287.13 | = 3,190,068.98 | 285,507.98 | 9.83%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND.
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8) 6,300.00 | (309,834.57)] 149,507.71 | 143,207.71 | 2273.14%

Page 2 of 3




Charter School Name: Trivium Voyage
(continued)
CDS #: 42691120137885
Charter Approving Entity: Biochman Union
County: Santa Barbara

CHARTER SCHOOL
INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

Second interim Report - Summary

Charter #: 1995
Fiscal Year: 2021/22

2nd Interim vs. Adopted Budget
Increase, (Decrease)
7/1 Adopted Actuals thru 2nd Interim $ Difference % Change
Description Object Code Budget (X) 1/31 (Y) Budget (Z) Z) vs. (X) (Z) vs. (X)
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES o
1. Other Sources 8930-8979 - - - B - o
2, Less: Other Uses . 7630-7699 - - - -
3. Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts .
(must net to zero) 8980-8999 -] <] - -]
4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES - | -] -] -]
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 6,300.00 | (309,834.57)| 149,507.71 | 143,207.71 | 2273.14%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1. Beginning Fund Balance 7 .
a. As of July 1 9791 181,272.00 100,144.05 100,144.05 (81,127.95) -44.75%
b. Adjustments/Restatements 9793, 9795 - (650,424.05) (50,424.05) (60,424.05) New
c¢. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 181,272.00 49,720.00 . 49,720.00
2, Ending Fund Balance, June 30 (E + F.1.c.) 187,572.00 (260,114.57)| - 199,227:71: |
Components of Ending Fund Balance :
a. Nonspendable .
Revolving Cash (equals object 9130) 9711 - - - -
Stores (equals object 9320) 9712 - - - - o
Prepaid Expenditures (equals object 9330) 973 - - - - o
All Others 9719 - - - R ,,
b. Restricted 9740 - - - -
¢ Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 - - - -
Other Commitments 9760 - - - -
d Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 - - - -
e. Unassigned/Unappropriated -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 - - “ -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 187,672.00 (260,114.57) 199,227.71 11,655.71 6.21%

Page 3 of 3






4269112 Blochman i
Union Elem District Attendance/Membership Summary Report

/End Date: - 1 : | 12
4949 Foxen Canyon Rd., Santa Maria, CA 93454-9666 Start/End Date 03/061 /2:2,25 23;3 8/2; 212 5 S;h:mf(s) 1 Calendar(s)
Generated on 04/01/2022 09:53:25 AM  Page 1 of 1 rade:>,6,7,8,K 1,234 7

SUMMARY  Total Schools: 1 Total Calendars: 2

StudentMembership Absent Present Unexcused Absences PercentIn
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance

5 21 412 21 391 19.62 18.60 6 0.29 94.90%

6 17 345 7 338 16.43 16.09 1 0.05 97.97%

7 22 462 13 449 22.00 21.37 5 0.24 97.19%

8 17 357 8 349 17.00 16.61 0 0.00 97.76%

K 16 336 21 315 16.00 14.98 4 0.19 93.75%

1 15 315 16 299 15.00 14.22 4 0.20 94.92%

2 20 420 10 410 20.00 19.50 2 0.10 97.62%

3 23 474 25 449 22.57 21.36 5 0.24 94.73%

4 23 483 15 468 23.00 22.26 0 0.00 96.89%

TK 2 42 4 38 2.00 1.81 3 0.14 90.48%

Total 10 176 3646 140 3506 173.62 166.80 30 1.45 96.16%

School: Benjamin Foxen School Calendar: 21-22 Blochman 5-8

StudentMembership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance

5 21 412 21 391 19.62 18.60 6 0.29 94,90%

6 17 345 7 338 16.43 16.09 1 0.05 97.97%

7 22 462 13 449 22.00 21.37 5 0.24 97.19%

8 17 357 8 349 17.00 16.61 0 0.00 97.76%

Total 4 77 1576 49 1527 75.05 72.67 12 0.58 96.89%

School: Benjamin Foxen School Calendar: 21-22 Blochman K-4

Student Membership Absent Present Unexcused Absences PercentIn
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance

K 16 336 21 315 16.00 14.98 4 0.19 93.75%

1 15 315 16 299 15.00 14,22 4 0.20 94.92%

2 20 420 10 410 20.00 19.50 2 0.10 97.62%

3 23 474 25 449 22.57 21.36 5 0.24 94.73%

4 23 483 15 468 23.00 22.26 0 0.00 96.89%

TK 2 42 4 38 2.00 1.81 3 0.14 90.48%

Total 6 99 2070 91 1979 98.57 94.13 18 0.87 95.60%



















PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF PROPOSED COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
in accordance with AB 1200 (Chapter 1213/Statutes 1992), AB 2756 (Chapter 52/Statutes 2004), GC 3547.5

Name of School District: Blochman Union School District

Name of Bargaining Unit: Blochman Teachers' Association

Certificated, Classified, Other: Certificated

The proposed agreement covers the period beginning: July 1, 2022 and ending: June 30, 2024
(date) (date)

The Governing Board will act upon this agreement on: April 12,2022
(date)

Note: This form, along with a copy of the proposed agreement, must be submitted to the County Office at least ten
(10) working days prior to the date the Governing Board will take action.

A. Proposed Change in Compensation

Fiscal Impact of Proposed Agreement

Bargaining Unit Compensation (Complete Years 2 and 3 for multiyear and overlapping agreements only)

All Funds - Combined Annual Cost Prior to Year | Year 2 Year 3
Proposed Settlement | Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
1. [Salary Schedule $ 683,698 | § 13,674 | § 13,947
Including Step and Column
2.00% 2.00% 0.00%
2. |Other Compensation
Stipends, Bonuses, Longevity, Overtime,
Differential, Callback or Standby Pay, etc.
Description of Other Compensation
3. [Statutory Benefits - STRS, PERS, $ 133,793 | $ 2,974 1% 3,033.43
FICA, WC, Ul, Medicare, etc.
AN 2.22% 2.22% 0.00%
4. |Health/Welfare Plans $ 130,811 | § - 1% -
5. |Total Bargaining Unit Compensation | $ 948,302 | $ 16,648 | $ 16,981 | $ -
Add Items 1 through 4 to equal 5
1.76% 1.76% 0.00%
6. |Total Number of Bargaining Unit
Employees (Use FTEs if appropriate)
7. |Total Compensation Average Cost per| $ 94,830 $ 1,665| $ 1,698 $ -
Bargaining Unit Employee
IL 1.76% 1.76% 0.00%

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 2

Blochman Union School District
Blochman Teachers' Association

8. What was the negotiated percentage change? For example, if the change in "Year 1" was for less than a
year, what is the annualized percentage of that change for "Year 1"?

Year 1 -2%; Year 2 - 2%

9. Were any additional steps, columns, or ranges added to the salary schedules? (If yes, please explain.)

No.

10. Please include comments and explanations as necessary. (If more room is necessary, please attach an
additional sheet.)

N/A

11. Does this bargaining unit have a negotiated cap for Health and Welfare Yes NOD
benefits?
If yes, please describe the cap amount.

$10,200

. Proposed negotiated changes in noncompensation items (i.e., class size adjustments, staff development days,
teacher prep time, classified staffing ratios, etc.)

N/A

. What are the specific impacts (positive or negative) on instructional and support programs to
accommodate the settlement? Include the impact of changes such as staff reductions or increases, program
reductions or increases, elimination or expansion of other services or programs (i.e., counselors, librarians,
custodial staff, etc.)

N/A

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 3

Blochman Union School District
Blochman Teachers' Association

What contingency language is included in the proposed agreement (e.g., reopeners, etc.)?

The agreement may be reopened by the mutual consent of both of the parties any time prior to June 30, 2024,

. Identify other major provisions that do not directly affect the district's costs, such as binding arbitrations,

grievance procedures, etc.

No change.

. Source of Funding for Proposed Agreement:

1. Current Year

General Fund

2. Ifthis is a single year agreement, how will the ongoing cost of the proposed agreement be funded in
subsequent years?

N/A

3. Ifthis is a multiyear agreement, what is the source of funding, including assumptions used, to fund these
obligations in subsequent years? (Remember to include compounding effects in meeting obligations.)

The General Fund is the funding source for the subsequent years obligations. We are adding transportation back in
2022/2023 which should help us increase our enrollment back to pre-pandemic levels. The increased enrollment
will allow us to fund these obligations.

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 4a

Blochman Union School District

G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Unrestricted General Fund

Bargaining Unit: Blochman Teachers' Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 1+2+3)
(As of 3/31/2022) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES S eE
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 2,018,957 $ $ 2,018,957
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 56 $ - 193 56
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 40,060 $ - |3 40,060
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 20,000 $ - 1$ 20,000
TOTAL REVENUES $ 2,079,073 $ - 13 2,079,073
EXPENDITURES i T
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 805,973 | $ 12,871 | $ - 18 818,844
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 274,005 $ $ 279,892
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 401,767 $ $ 406,600
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 209,500 2 $ 209,500
Services, Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 | $ 511,332 19 $ 511,332
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ - 18 $ -
Other Outgo 7100-7299 | $ 7,790 13 $ 7,790
7400-7499
Indirect/Direct Support Costs 7300-7399 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1% 2,210,366 2,233,957
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES i ' i i o
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 $ - |$ - |$ -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 $ - |3 - |$ -
Contributions 8980-8999 | $ - |$ - |$ - |5 -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (131,293)| $ (15,670)| $ (7,92)] $ (154,884)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 |5 3248917 3,248,917
Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements 9793/9795 -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 3,117,624 | $ (15,670) $ (7,921)| $ 3,094,033
COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE: i ! ; : : ‘ :
Nonspendable Amounts 9711-9719 | § 500 - 13 - % 500
Restricted Amounts 9740 ; |
Committed Amounts 9750-9760 $ 650,000 | $ - 1% - 1% 650,000
Assigned Amounts 9780 $ - 18 - % -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - 19 - |9 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 2,467,124 | § (15,670)( $ (7,921)| $ 2,443,533
*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 4b

Blochman Union School District

G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Restricted General Fund

Bargaining Unit: Blochman Teachers' Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 14+2+3)
(As of 3/31/2022) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES s i R i
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 52917 1% $ 52,917
Federal Revenue 8100-82991 $ 99,683 18 -8 99,683
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 108,956 18 - 1% 108,956
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $§ 87,170 1% -|$ 87,170
TOTAL REVENUES $ 348,726 1% $ 348,726
EXPENDITURES v i
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 178,353 | § 803 {3% - 13 179,156
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 64,730 | $ - |$ 1,321 | $ 66,051
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 165,558 | $ 175 | § 456 | $ 166,189
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 41,302 $ - |$ 41,302
Services, Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 | $ 5,625 $ - 1% 5,625
Capital Qutlay 6000-6999 | $ - $ - |$ -
Other Outgo 7100-7299 | $ 8,481 $ - % 8,481
7400-7499
Indirect/Direct Support Costs 7300-7399 | $ - $ - |3 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 464,048 | $ 978 | $ 1,777 | $ 466,804
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES Ll e E i
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | § -3 - |$ - |$ -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | § - |3 - 1% - 18 -
Contributions 8980-8999 | § - |$ - |$ - |3 -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (115,323)| $ (978) | $ (1L777)] $ (118,078)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 127,854
Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements 9793/9795
ENDING FUND BALANCE
COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE:
Nonspendable Amounts 9711-9719
Restricted Amounts 9740
Committed Amounts 9750-9760 |-
Assigned Amounts 9780
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 - - |8
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 2,755 | $ 9781 % (1,777 $ 0
*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 4c

Blochman Union School District
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Combined General Fund

Bargaining Unit: Blochman Teachers' Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 1+2+3)
(As of 3/31/2022) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES S ’ i Si b e
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 2,071,874 $ -9 2,071,874
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 99,738 $ - 13 99,738
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | § 149,016 $ - s 149,016
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 107,170 $ -3 107,170
TOTAL REVENUES $ 2,427,799 $ - |8 2,427,799
EXPENDITURES W : S )
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 984,326 | $ 13,674 | $ - 1% 998,000
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | § 338,734 { § - 1% 7,208 | $ 345,942
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 567,324 | $ 2,974 | $ 2,490 | $ 572,789
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 250,802 $ - 1% 250,802
Services, Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 | $ 516,957 $ - 1% 516,957
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ - $ - 13 -
Other Outgo 7100-72991 $ 16,271 $ - 18 16,271
7400-7499
Indirect/Direct Support Costs 7300-7399 | $ - $ - |8 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 2,674,415 | $ 16,648 | $ 9,698 | $ 2,700,761
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES S 5 o
Transfer In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ - 18 - |8 - 18 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - 1% - 1S - 1% -
Contributions 8980-8999 | § - 1% - 19 - 1% -
$ $ (16,648)| $ (9,698)| $

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* (246,616) (272,962)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 1S 3376771

3376771
Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements 9793/9795 1 $ - : -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 3,130,156 | $ ’(‘1A6”,‘6“48) S | '\(9,’6'98) $ 3,103,809
COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE: RN SN R e
Nonspendable Amounts 9711-9719 | $ 500 | $ - 13 - |8 500
Restricted Amounts 9740 [ $ 9,776 | $ - |9 - |3 9,776
Committed Amounts 9750-9760 | $ 650,000 | § - 19 - |3 650,000
Assigned Amounts 9780 $ - |8 - |$ - |3 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 | $ - 48 - |8 - |8 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 2,469,880 | $ (16,648)| $ (9,698)| $ 2,443,533
*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 4f

Blochman Union School District
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Fund 13/61 - Cafeteria Fund

Bargaining Unit; Blochman Teachers' Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns [+2+3)
(As 0f 3/31/2022) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES i ' : e
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ - - (% -
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 119,384 - 1% 119,384
Other State Revenue 8300-8599( $ 9,000 - |$ 9,000
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 1,500 - 13 1,500
TOTAL REVENUES $ 129,884 - % 129,884
EXPENDITURES i ;
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | § -|$ -|$ - 13 -
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | § $ 905 | $ 46,175
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ $ 313 1% 14,690
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | § $ - 1% 96,690
Services, Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 | $ $ - 1% 5,740
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | § $ - 1% -
Other Outgo 7100-7299 | $ $ - 18 -
7400-7499
Indirect/Direct Support Costs 7300-7399 | § $ - 18 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ $ 1,218 | $ 163,295
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES I e L Pl L e
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ - $ - 1% 1,218 § 1,218
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - 18 - 1% - 1% -

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (32,193) $ - s OB (32,193)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

9791 :
Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements 9793/9795 | $ - 1$ -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $
COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE: : I
Nonspendable Amounts 9711-9719( § - 18 - 18 - |8 -
Restricted Amounts 9740 $ 1,503 1% - |$ - 1% 1,503
Committed Amounts 9750-9760 | $ -8 - 19 - % -
Assigned Amounts 9780 |$ -8 - 18 - % -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - 18 - 18 - % -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 0% - 18 )9 0
*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Blochman Union School District
Blochman Teachers' Association

Explanations for Column 3 "Other Revisions" entered on Pages 4a through 4h:

~age 4a: Unrestricted General Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ 7,921 Unrepresented classified salary increase of 2%, an additonal $1 was
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ - added to the first column to account for the minimum wage increase.

Page 4b: Restricted General Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues 5 -
Expenditures $ 1,777 Unrepresented classified salary increase
Other Financing Sources/Uses 5 -

Page 4d: Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ -
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -

Page 4e: Fund 12 - Child Development Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ -
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -

Page 4f: Fund 13/61 - Cafeteria Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ 1,218 Unrepresented classified salary increase
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ 1,218 Contribution from General Fund

Page 4g: Other Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ -
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -

Page 4h: Other Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures 5 -
Other Financing Sources/Uses 5 -

Additional Comments:

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 5a
Blochman Union School District
H. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS
Unrestricted General Fund MYP
Bargaining Unit: Blochman Teachers' Association
2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Total Revised Budget After [First Subsequent Year After| Second Subsequent Year
Object Code Settlement Settlement After Settlement
REVENUES 5 T FRp
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 2,018,957 | $ 2,074913 | $ 2,139,786
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 56 | $ 56 | $ 56
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 40,060 | $ 40,060 | $ 40,060
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 20,000 | $ 20,000 | $ 2,000
TOTAL REVENUES $ 2,079,073 | $ 2,135,029 | $ 2,181,902
EXPENDITURES e Lo o S
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | § 818,844 | § 859,796 | $ 885,590
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 279,892 | $ 293,893 | $ 305,649
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 406,600 | $ 407,300 | $ 410,378
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 209,500 | $ 209,500 | $ 209,500
Services, Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 | § 511,332 | $ 511,332 1 % 511,332
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ - |$ - 1% -
Other Outgo 7100-7299 | $ 7,790 { $ 7,790 | $ 7,790
7400-7499
Indirect/Direct Support Costs 7300-7399 | $ - |$ - |3 -
Other Adjustments i $ -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ $ 2,289,611 | § 2,330,239
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES o iy Dl S
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | § - 1% (120,733)| $ (139,640)
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - |3 - |$ -
Contributions 8980-8999 | $ - |3 - |3 -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (154,884)| $ (275,315)| $ (287,977)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 [$ 3,248,917 3,094,033 |$ 2,818,718
Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements 9793/9795 | $ - e
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 3,094,033 | § 2,818,718 | $ 2,530,741
COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE: B e
Nonspendable Amounts 97119719 | $ 500 [ $ 500 [$ 500
Restricted Amounts 9740 g e : ’
Committed Amounts 9750-9760 { $ 650,000 | $ 650,000 | $ 650,000
Assigned Amounts 9780 |$ - 18 - |8 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - |3 - 13 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 2,443,533 | $ 2,168,218 | $ 1,880,241

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Printed 4/6/2022 10:45 AM

NOTE: 9790 amounts must be positive



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 5b
Blochman Union School District
H. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS
Restricted General Fund MYP
Bargaining Unit: Blochman Teachers' Association
2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Total Revised Budget After [First Subsequent Year After{ Second Subsequent Year
Object Code Settlement Settlement After Settlement
REVENUES S e s
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 52917 | $ 52917 | $ 52,917
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | § 99,683 | $ 99,683 | $ 99,683
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | § 108,956 | $ 108,956 | $ 108,956
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 87,170 | $ 87,170 1 $ 87,170
TOTAL REVENUES $ 348,726 | $ 348,726 | $ 348,726
EXPENDITURES e o
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 179,156 | $ 188,121 | § 193,765
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 66,051 | $ 69,352 | § 72,126
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 { $ 166,189 | $ 166,354 | $ 167,067
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 41,302 | $ 41,302 | $ 41,302
Services, Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 | $ 5,625 | $ 5,625 | $ 5,625
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ - |% - |9 -
Other Outgo 7100-7299 | $ 8,481 | $ 8,481 [ $ 8,481
7400-7499
Indirect/Dirrect Support Costs 7300-7399 | $ - |3 - |9 -
Other Adjustments o - |8 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 466,804 $ 479,235 | $ 488,366
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ - |$ 120,733 | $ 139,640
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - |3 - |3 -
Contributions 8980-8999 | $ - |3 - |% -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (118,078)| $ (9,776)| $ (©)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE _ o1
Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements 9793/9795
ENDING FUND BALANCE
COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE:
Nonspendable Amounts 97119719
Restricted Amounts 9740
Committed Amounts 9750-9760 [
Assigned Amounts 9780 | -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 |$ - |3 - 1% -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 0f(s ((OIR) (0]

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Printed 4/6/2022 10:45 AM

NOTE: 9790 amounts must be positive



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page Sc

Blochman Union School District
H. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS

Combined General Fund MYP

Bargaining Unit: Blochman Teachers' Association
2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Total Revised Budget After |First Subsequent Year After| Second Subsequent Year
. Settlement Settlement After Settlement
Object Code
REVENUES i S R el
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | § 2,071,874 | $ 2,127,830 | $ 2,192,703
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 99,738 | § 99,738 | $ 99,739
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | § 149,016 | $ 149,016 | $ 149,016
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | § 107,170 | $ 107,170 | $ 89,170
TOTAL REVENUES $ 2,427,799 | § 2,483,755 | § 2,530,628
EXPENDITURES e -, i
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 998,000 | $ 1,047,917 | § 1,079,355
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 345,942 { $ 363,246 | $ 377,775
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 572,789 | $ 573,654 | $ 577,445
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 250,802 | § 250,802 | $ 250,802
Services, Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 | $ 516,957 | $ 516,957 | $ 516,957
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | § - 13 - |93 -
Other Qutgo 7100-7299 | $ 16,271 | § 16,271 | $ 16,271
7400-7499
Indirect/Direct Support Costs 7300-7399 | § - |3 -3 -
Other Adjustments i Eha $ - 1% -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 2;700,76] $ 2,768,846 | $ 2,818,605
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES F S e 3
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | § - 13 - 13 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | § - 13 - |$ -
Contributions 8980-8999 | $ - |$ - 15 -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (272,962)[ $ (285,091)[ $ (287,977)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 |$ 3,376,771 | $ 3,103,809 | $ 2,818,718
Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements 9793/9795 | § - | - :
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 3,103,809 | § - 2,818,718 | $ 2,530,741
COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE: e il e e R e
Nonspendable Amounts 9711-9719 | $ 500 |'$ 500 | $ 500
Restricted Amounts 9740 $ 9,776 | $ -9 -
Committed Amounts 9750-9760 | $ 650,000 | $ 650,000 | $ 650,000
Assigned Amounts 9780 | $ -3 - |9 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - 13 - i3 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 2,443,533 | § 2,168,218 1 $ 1,880,241
*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance NOTE: 9790 amounts must be positive

Printed 4/6/2022 10:45 AM



. If no, how do you plan to restore your reserves?

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 6
Blochman Union School District
Blochman Teachers' Association
. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON UNRESTRICTED RESERVES
. State Reserve Standard
2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Total Expenditures, Transfers Out, and Uses
a. |(Including Cost of Proposed Agreement) $ 2,700,761 | $ 2,768,846 -
b.|Less: Special Education Pass-Through Funds - $ - -
.|Net Expenditures, Transfers Out, and Uses $ 2,700,761 | $ 2,768,846 -
State Standard Minimum Reserve Percentage for
. |this District Enter percentage —» 5.00% 5.00% 0.00%
State Standard Minimum Reserve Amount for this
District (For districts with less than 1,001 ADA,
this is the greater of Line a, times Line b, or
.1$50,000) $ 135,038 | § 138,442 -
. Budgeted Unrestricted Reserve (After Impact of Proposed Agreement)
General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted
.|Designated for Economic Uncertainties (9789) $ - $ - -
General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted
.|Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount (9790) $ 2,443,533 | § 2,168,218 2,818,718
Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted
. |Designated for Economic Uncertainties (9789) $ - $ - -
Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted
.{Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount (9790) $ - $ - -
.{Total Available Reserves $ 2,443,533 1 § 2,168,218 2,818,718
. [Reserve for Economic Uncertainties Percentage 90.48% 78.31% 0.00%
. Do unrestricted reserves meet the state minimum reserve amount?
2022-23 Yes | X No
2023-24 Yes [ X No
2024-25 Yes | X No




Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 7

Blochman Union School District
Blochman Teachers' Association

5. Does the Total Compensation Increase/(Decrease) on Page 1, Section A, #5 agree with the Total
Increase/(Decrease) for all funds as a result of the settlement(s)? Please explain any variance.

Total Compensation Increase/(Decrease) on Page 1, Section A, #5 $ 16,648
General Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4¢, Column 2 $ (16,648)
Adult Education Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4d, Column 2 $ -
Child Development Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4e, Column 2 3 -
Cafeteria Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4f, Column 2 $ -
Other Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4g, Column 2 $ -
Other Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4h, Column 2 $ -
Total all fund balances Increase/(Decrease) as a result of the settlement(s) $ (16,648)
Variance $ (0)

Variance Explanation:

6. Will this agreement create or increase deficit financing in the current or subsequent years?
"Deficit Financing" is defined to exist when a fund's expenditures and other financing uses exceed its revenues
and other financing sources in a given year. If a deficit is shown below, provide an explanation and any deficit
reduction plan, as necessary.

Surplus/
General Fund Combined (Deficit) (Deficit) % Deficit primarily due to:
Current FY Surplus/(Deficit) before settlement(s)? $ (246,616) (9.2%) Decrease in enrollment
Current FY Surplus/(Deficit) after settlement(s)? $  (272,962) (10.1%) Decrease in enrollment
1st Subsequent FY Surplus/(Deficit) after settlement(s)? $ (285,091) (10.3%) Decrease in enrollment
2nd Subsequent FY Surplus/(Deficit) after settlement(s)? $ - #DIV/0!

Deficit Reduction Plan (as necessary):

We anticipate our enrollment returning to normal levels once the pandemic retrictions ease and we can again
provide bussing. If that doesn't happen, we have enough reserves to enable us to operate while we make
changes.

Were "Other Adjustments' amount(s) entered in the multiyear projections (pages 5a and 5b) for 1st and 2nd
7. Subsequent FY?

"Other Adjustments" could indicate that a budget reduction plan was/is being developed to address deficit
spending, and to rebuild reserves. Any amount shown below must have an explanation. If additional space is
needed, attach a separate sheet, or use page 9a.

MYP Amount "Other Adjustments" Explanation
1st Subsequent FY Unrestricted, Page Sa $ -
1st Subsequent FY Restricted, Page 5b $ -

2nd Subsequent FY Unrestricted, Page 5a $ -

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Wd 051 220T/vT/¢ pauld

- Uy Uty (5 'sA 3) Surpunyg 41D Ul S3UBYO SPIIX3/UIIIM SI Juowsaide pasodord J
%0070 %9L°'1 %9L°'1 (¢ aurg ‘v uonoas ‘1 98eq woi) aduey) adejusdisd uonesusdwo)) IO, 9
- L8'086°01 16°L¥9°91 (¢ aurg “y uonpoag ‘1 98eg woy) s3uey) Junowy uonesusadwoy) 810, P
%00°0 %LL'T %599 vV 1od Suipun, Ies 4 Iold woy aguey)) 93ejuodidd 0
- eTLTE 1€9¢L vV 1od Sutpuny Jes & I011J wol s3duey)) junowy °q
66'€€1°TI LL'908°TT 9v'0LOTT vQ@y 1od 3upung 4407 ®

§T-v20T vT-£20C £2-220C Tesa A IoLd

(JusuroaiSe ue S| 919y} YOIYM J0J SUWR[OD INO [[1J)

Butpuny 4407
ur osearour pajosfoad ayy pasoxs 01 pa3oadxa Sl JBy) SSSBSIOUL AXR[BS UI NSl p[noMm Jey) sjuswsarSe SutureSieq ojur paIojus sey IOLUSIP oY) JI SUTULISP 0} ST uwroy siy) jo asodmd syJ,

JOIMid dALVLLOODAN THL JO4 ONIANNA 40T NI IONVHD OL NOILLVSNAJIANOD TVLOL NI AONVHD @IS0d0¥d 40 NOSIIVdINOD T

UOIJRIOOSSY ,SISUOES | UBWIYO0[g

g ade(q JUIWIAIZY Jururedaeq aAnda[]  pIsodoag Jo 3ansosi(q dqng



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 9

K. CERTIFICATION NO. 1: CERTIFICATION OF THE DISTRICT'S ABILITY TO MEET THE COSTS
OF THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

This certification page must be signed by the district's Superintendent and Chief Business Official at the time of public
disclosure and is intended to assist the district's Governing Board in determining whether the district can meet the costs
incurred under the tentative Collective Bargaining Agreement in the current and subsequent years. The absence of a
certification signature or if "I am unable to certify" is checked should serve as a "red flag" to the district's Governing Board.

In accordance with the requirements of Government Code Sections 3540.2 and 3547.5, the Superintendent and Chief
Busines}s Official of the Blochman Union School District, hereby certify that the District can meet the costs incurred under
this Collective Bargaining Agreement during the term of the agreement from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2024.

Board Actions
The board actions necessary to meet the cost of the agreement in each year of its term are as follows:
Current Year

Budget Adjustment
Budget Adjustment Categories: Increase/(Decrease)
Revenues/Other Financing Sources $ 1,218
Expenditures/Other Financing Uses $ 27,564
Ending Balance(s) Increase/(Decrease) $ (26,346)
Subsequent Years

Budget Adjustment

Mo Budget Adjustment Categories: Increase/(Decrease)

Revenues/Other Financing Sources $ 2,436
Expenditures/Other Financing Uses $ 68,085
Ending Balance(s) Increase/(Decrease) $ (65,649)

Budget Revisions

If the district does not adopt and submit within 45 days all of the revisions to its budget needed in the current year to meet
the costs of the agreement at the time of the approval of the proposed collective bargaining agreement, the county
superintendent of schools is required to issue a qualified or negative certification for the district on its next interim report.

Assumptions
See attached page for a list of the assumptions upon which this certification is based.
Certifications

[ hereby cg [ am unable to certify

r— 3/;%/ /2 0 AR

Distrj %u;feﬁntendent Date
! ’ (Signature)
;A [ hereby certify ____lam unable to certify .
Lﬂﬁ wzs Q ld«/&(@/ 3/ 24 / 209 ).
|77 Y Chief Bisiness Official Date
L (Signature)

Special Note: The Santa Barbara County Education Office may request additional information, as necessary, to review the
" district's compliance with requirements.

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 9a

Blochman Union School District
Blochman Teachers' Association
Assumptions and Explanations (enter or attach documentation)

The assumptions upon which this certification is made are as follows:
Funded ADA was assumed to be 171 for 2022/2023 and 2023/2024. However, we plan to bring bussing back in 2022/2023

which should improve our funded ADA.

Concerns regarding affordability of agreement in subsequent years (if any):

Printed 3/24/2022 1:50 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 10

L. CERTIFICATION NO. 2

The disclosure document must be signed by the district Superintendent at the time of public disclosure and by the
President or Clerk of the Governing Board at the time of formal board action on the proposed agreement.

The information provided in this document summarizes the financial implications of the proposed agreement and
is submitted to the Governing Board for public disclosure of the major provisions of the agreement (as provided
in the "Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement") in accordance with the requirements of
AB 1200 and Government Code Sections 3540.2(a) and 3547.5.

Blochman Union School District
District Name

District Superintendent Date
(Signature)
Nancy Shafer 805-937-1148
Contact Person Phone

After public disclosure of the major provisions contained in this summary, the Governing Board at its meeting on
April 12, 2022, took action to approve the proposed agreement with the Blochman Teachers' Association
Bargaining Unit(s).

President (or Clerk), Governing Board Date
(Signature)

Special Note: The Santa Barbara County Education Office may request additional information, as necessary, to
review the district's compliance with requirements.

Revised May 2016
School Business Advisory Services
Santa Barbara County Education Office







Collective
Bargaining Agreement

Between

Blochman Union School District

And

Blochman Teachers’ Association

July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024






10 PERSONNEL RECORDS 13

11 UNIT MEMBER DISCIPLINE . 15
12 GRIEVANCEPROCEDURE 16
Definitions

Informal Level 1
Formal Level 1

Formal Level 11
Formal Level 111

General
13 VACANCIES/REASSIGNMENTS.__ 18
14 CONCERTED ACTIVITIES 18
15EFFECTOF AGREEMENT 18
16 TERM 19
17 RECOMMENDED FOR RATIFICATION.___ 19
RATIFIED AND ACCEPTED 20

APPENDIX A — Salary Schedule 2022 — 2023
APPENDIX B — Salary Schedule 2023 - 2024
APPENDIX C — Health and Welfare Plans

APPENDIX D — Performance Evaluation Form

Blochman/BTA 2



ARTICLE 1
PREAMBLE

The articles and provisions contained herein constitute a bilateral and binding agreement by and
between the BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT (“District”) and the BLOCHMAN
TEACHERS’ ASSOCIATION/CTA/NEA (“Association”), a unit member organization.

ARTICLE 2
RECOGNITION

The District acknowledges that the Association is the exclusive representative for a unit of
certificated unit members, excluding management, supervisory, substitute teachers and hourly

certificated unit members, pursuant to the provisions of the Education Employment Relations Act
of 1976. (“EERA” or the “Act”).

ARTICLE 3
ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

A. Access to Unit Members
Association staff and Association representatives shall have the right to access bargaining unit
members during non-school hours.

B. Association Meetings
Unit members may attend Association meetings during non-duty hours.

1. The Association shall have the right to use teacher mail boxes and space on designated
bulletin boards to announce Association meetings subject to the condition that all postings
on designated bulletin boards must contain the date of posting or distribution and the
identification of the organization, together with a designated authorization by an
Association officer. The District shall provide a bulletin Board for Association use. All
notices, communications, and use of District mail services and mail boxes shall be in
compliance with applicable law.

2. The Association shall have the right to the use of District facilities subject to applicable
law including EERA Section 3543.1(b) and applicable Board Policy when not otherwise
required for District business.

C. Dues Deduction

The District will deduct from the pay of Association members, and pay to the Association, the
normal and regular monthly membership dues as voluntarily authorized in writing by the unit
member on the employer form subject to the following conditions:

1. Salary deduction shall be made only upon submission on a District-approved form of a
duly executed and revocable authorization by the unit members.

Blochman/BTA 3



2. The District shall not be obligated to put into effect any new, changed or discontinued
deductions until the pay period commencing 15 days or more after the submission.

3. Any changes in deductions hereunder during the term of the Agreement shall be made
pursuant to written unit member authorization.

4. Any unit member who is a member of the Association at the time of this Agreement
becomes effective or who enrolls during the term of this Agreement shall maintain his/her
membership dues for the duration of the Agreement. This provision will not deprive any
unit member of the right to terminate his/her membership dues in the Association within
the thirty-day period following expiration of the Agreement.

5. BTA agrees to hold the District harmless and to pay to the District all legal fees and costs
incurred in defending against any legal and/or administrative action before the Public

Employment Relations Board or other tribunal challenging the legality or constitutionality
of the agency fee provisions of this agreement or their implementation.

ARTICLE 4
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

A. Management Authority

1. Itis understood and agreed that the District retains all of its power, rights and authority
to direct, manage and control to the full extent of the law. Included in, but not limited
to, those duties and powers are the exclusive right to: determine its organization; direct
the work of its unit members; determine the times and hours of operation; determine
the level, and kinds of services to be provided; establish and administer its educational
policies, goals and objectives; ensure the rights and educational opportunities of
students; determine staffing patterns; delegate to the Superintendent and other legally
appointed officers the operation of the school system; determine the number and kinds
of personnel required; contract out work or transfer work out of the unit, but not to the
detriment of a full-time position; maintain the efficiency of employer operations;
determine the curriculum; build, move or modify facilities; establish budget procedures
and determine budgetary allocation; determine the methods of raising revenue; and take
action on any matter in the event of an emergency. In addition, the District retains the
right to hire, determine the qualification of, classify, assign, evaluate, promote,
terminate and discipline unit members.

2. Before implementing any decision to contract out work or to transfer work out of the
unit, the District shall notify the Association, and upon request, negotiate the impact of
such decision on unit members’ terms and conditions of employment, to the extent such
terms and conditions are within the scope of representation. A request to negotiate shall

Blochman/BTA 4



not require the District to delay implementation. No work should be subcontracted out
of the Bargaining Unit to the detriment of a full time teaching employee.

ARTICLE 5
HOURS
A. Hours of Work

1. The parties recognize that the professional responsibilities of unit members include
teaching; lesson planning and preparation; grading and record keeping; meeting
with students, parents and District Personnel; improvement of teaching skills; and
participating in adjunct duties incident to the District’s programs. They further
recognize that the professional nature of these responsibilities does not lend itself
to a workday of rigidly established length.

2. Each unit member is to be at his/her work location 30 minutes prior to student
arrival to prepare classroom instruction activities; address student needs; attend
scheduled parent or administrative meetings; and participate in adjunct duties.

3. Unit members may leave the worksite 30 minutes after the dismissal of students,
except on minimum days.

4. Notwithstanding the above, the unit members may generally leave at the conclusion
of the instructional day on the last school day of the week.

5. The parties agree to comply with the provisions of Education Code sections 46200
and 46201.

B. Work Year

1. The work year for full-time unit members shall be 184 days with 180 days of
student instruction. Four workdays will be scheduled prior to the first day of student
instruction. Three days will be reserved for in-service and site-based management
and one day will be reserved for classroom preparation. The district recognizes its
obligation to negotiate the placement of workdays on the school calendar. However,
the Association recognizes that the District may adapt the school calendar in the
event of a business necessity, weather conditions or emergency, as determined by
the District.

C. Co-Curricular Duties

Blochman/BTA 5



1. Co-curricular assignments are considered to be mandatory requirements of the job.
As is the cases with adjunct duties, unit members are expected to remain beyond
the minimum on-site hours, as necessary to perform such duties. To the fullest
extent possible, workload among staff is to be distributed in a fair and equitable
manner including less desirable tasks.

2. The list of co-curricular activities will be mutually agreed upon by the teachers and
administration and submitted to the Board of Trustees for final approval.

3. Teacher volunteers will be sought first for co-curricular activities. Teachers will be
allowed to select activities. If there are insufficient volunteers, Administration may
choose to assign the co-curricular duty, or the co-curricular activity will be re-
evaluated and deferred to the following year.

D. Faculty Meetings/Staff Development

1. Attendance at faculty meetings and staff development meetings is mandatory. Staff
will attend no more than two faculty and /or staff development meetings per month
outside the regular school day. Meetings will be approximately one hour in length.
Monthly minimum days will be scheduled for staff collaboration and planning.
There will be a minimum of eight collaboration/planning days each year.
Collaboration/planning activities will be mutually agreed upon by the management
and planned by the association. In addition to the monthly collaboration/planning
days, monthly minimum days will be scheduled for professional development. The
professional development days will be mutually agreed upon by the management
and the association. There will be a minimum of eight professional collaboration
days each year.

ARTICLE 6
UNIT MEMBER COMPENSATION
A. Certificated Salary Schedule
1. For the school year 2022 - 2023, the Salary Schedule (Appendix A to reflect a 2%
increase) is effective July 1, 2022. For the school year 2023 — 2024, the Salary
Schedule (Appendix B to reflect a 2% increase) is effective July 1, 2023.
B. Salary Schedule Regulations
1. Movement on the salary schedule based upon completion of additional course work
and/or years of experience, where applicable, shall be granted to a unit member

who qualifies, effective each succeeding first day of school, provided that the unit
member submits a pre-approval request by May 1 of the preceding school year.

Blochman/BTA 6



Unit members new to Blochman Union School District will be allowed up to
four years of prior teaching service in a full-time teaching position in a K-12
public school. Placement on the salary schedule will be determined as follows:

Salary Schedule
Years Experience Step
1 2
2 3
3 4
4 5

2. Column advancement from one column to the next in any school year requires the
following;:

i.

il.

iii.

iv.

The Superintendent’s prior written approval for the course(s) selected.

All course work must be completed by the date school opens unless the
Superintendent grants an extension, in writing. Otherwise, column
advancement for completed course work will become effective at the start
of the next school year.

An official transcript from the college or university submitted on or before
December 31st. Salary increases will be retroactive to the beginning of the
applicable school year. Otherwise, column advancement will become
effective at the start of the next school year. These provisions are subject to
Board Policy No. 4152.

The grade for the course is a “C” or better or “Pass” where letter grades are
unavailable.

Units earned toward column advancement are based on semester units. A
quarter unit is equivalent to .67 semester units.

3. A part-time contracted certificated unit member will be paid proportionally to the
number of minutes of service required in the workday served by a full-time unit
member.

4. The Superintendent may select a Teacher in Charge/Designee each school year.
The Designee will receive a stipend negotiated if needed, but no less than $1000
per year.

5. The hourly rate of pay for extra-duty assignments is $28.40 per hour, effective July
1, 2022, and $28.97 per hour, effective July 1, 2023.

ARTICLE 7

HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS
A. Unit member and Dependent Insurance Coverage

Blochman/BTA



1. The District shall provide the health and welfare benefits specified below on behalf
of full-time unit members. The District’s maximum annual contribution shall not
exceed $10,200 per full-time unit member.

1. Health Insurance: The District shall make medical insurance options
available for each unit member and eligible dependent(s). See Appendix C.
ii. Dental Insurance: The District shall make dental insurance available for
each unit member and eligible dependent(s).
iii. Vision Insurance: The District shall make vision insurance available for
each unit member and eligible dependent(s).
iv. Cancer Benefits: The District shall make supplemental cancer insurance
available to any interested unit member. Unit members shall be responsible
for all costs of such insurance.

B. Part-time unit members’ benefits shall be prorated; for example, a 50 percent unit member
shall receive 50 percent of the premium contribution for full-time unit members. Unit
members who are contracted for less than 50% are not eligible for benefits.

C. Unit members shall be enrolled in insurance programs on the first day of the month
following the date of employment. Benefit coverage shall continue through the earlier date
of either June 30 or until Health and Welfare Benefits are provided by another employer
for unit members who resign at the end of a complete school year of service. Benefit
coverage shall be reduced to the appropriate pro-rated level on the first day of the month
following any reduction in hours.

D. COBRA Benefits
1. The parties recognize that the provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget

Reduction Act of 1985 (“COBRA”) are applicable to unit members. As such, unit
members are governed by the rights and responsibilities set forth in the law.

ARTICLE 8
LEAVES
A. Personal Illness and Injury Leave
1. Each unit member shall be entitled to ten (10) days leave of absence for illness or
injury during the school year. Earned but unused sick leave days shall be
cumulative and carried forward to the succeeding year.
2. Unit members serving less than a full school year, and/or employed on less than a

full-time basis, shall be entitled to personal illness leave that is prorated to a school
year of full-time service.

Blochman/BTA 8



3.

A unit member’s sick leave shall be exclusive of all days he/she is not required to
render service to the District.

When a unit member is absent from his/her duties due to illness or injury, the
member shall use all of his/her accumulated sick leave before the provision of
extended sick leave shall apply. At the termination of the accumulated sick leave
period, the member shall be eligible for up to five (5) additional months sick leave
during which the amount deducted from the salary due the member for any school
month in which the absence occurs shall not exceed the established long term daily
rate paid substitutes employed to fill the position during the absence. A unit
member may only have one five-month period of differential pay per illness or
accident. Extended sick leave will be granted only upon receipt by the
Superintendent of a doctor's statement indicating clearly the illness or injury giving
rise to the leave and the expected duration of the leave.

A member shall not be provided more than one five- month period per illness or
accident. However, if a school year terminates before the five month period is
¢xhausted; the member may take the balance of the five-month period in a
subsequent school year.

When a member has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick
leave, and continues to be absent on account of illness or accident for a period
beyond the five-month period provided in Section 3, above, and the member is not
medically able to resume the duties of his or her position, the member shall, if not
placed in another position, be placed on a reemployment list for a period of twenty-
four (24) months if the member is on probationary status, or for a period of thirty-
nine (39) months if the member is on permanent status. When the member is
medically able, during the 24-or 39-month period, the member shall be returned to
employment in a position for which he or she is credentialed and qualified. The 24-
month or 39-month period shall commence at the expiration of the five-month
period provided pursuant to Section 3.

B. Personal Necessity

l.

Blochman/BTA

At his/her election, a unit member may request to utilize a maximum of seven days
of sick leave allowed pursuant to California Education Code Section 44978 per
school year in cases of personal necessity.

Upon request, leave may be granted for a portion of a workday required to cover
emergency occasions that are unavoidable and of a serious nature involving
circumstances that the unit member cannot be expected to disregard, and that may
not be conducted at a time other than regular duty hours.

The seven days of leave under this section may be utilized by a unit member without
having to state a reason, subject to the following restrictions:



4. The days shall be limited to the equivalent of the unit member’s contractual
workday and shall be charged in one-day blocks of time.
i. Personal necessity leave shall not be used for any work stoppage.
ii. Leaves may not be used for vacation, recreation or personal gain.

5. A written request for permission to take a personal necessity leave shall be filed
with the Superintendent at least three days in advance of the day on which the
personal necessity leave is intended to be taken. If the need to utilize personal
necessity leave is not known to the unit members within the three-day notice
requirement, the written request shall be made as much in advance as possible. If
due to circumstances beyond the unit member’s control it is impossible to request
advance permission and the unit members determines to take time off, the unit
member shall give verbal notice to the Superintendent, and shall file the leave
request immediately upon return to duty. The request shall specify the reason for
the inability to file an advance notice along with documents that support those
reasons, if any.

C. Bereavement Leave

1. Unit members shall be allowed three days of absence, or five days of absence if
travel in excess of 250 miles is required, from assigned duty without loss of salary
for the death of any member of his/her “immediate family”, as defined in Paragraph
F.7 of this Article. Allowable leave shall not be accumulated from year-to-year.

D. Industrial Accident or Illness Leave

1. Pursuant to California Education Code Section 44984 and District procedures,
leaves resulting from industrial accident or industrial illness shall be granted to all
unit members for up to 60 workdays in any one fiscal year for the same accident.
Upon termination of the industrial accident or illness leave, the unit member shall
be entitled to the benefits provided in Section A of this Article. For the purpose of
Section A of this Article, the unit member’s absence shall be deemed to have
commenced on the date of termination of the industrial accident or illness leave,
provided that if the unit member continues to receive temporary disability
payments, he/she may elect to take as much of his/her accumulated sick leave
which, when added to his/her temporary disability payment, will result in a payment
to the unit member of not more than the unit member’s full salary. Allowable leave
under this section shall not be accumulated from year to year and when an industrial
accident or illness leave overlaps into the next fiscal year, the unit member shall be
entitled to only the amount of unused leave due him for the same illness or injury.

E. Jury Duty/Witness Leave

1. Unit members shall be granted leave, without loss of pay, to appear in court as a
witness, other than as a litigant, or to respond to an official order from a duly

Blochman/BTA 10



authorized government agency, or to serve as a juror, unless such appearance has
been brought about through the connivance or misconduct of the unit member. A
unit member requesting leave under this section shall submit to the Superintendent
a copy of the subpoena or summons requiring their appearance. Any compensation,
less any mileage expenses, received for appearance as a witness, or from serving as
a juror under this section, shall be endorsed over to the District so that the unit
member’s compensation for any days of absence for the above purposes shall not
be in excess of, or less than, his/her regular pay.

F. General Provisions

Blochman/BTA

Unit members intending to utilize leaves under this Article shall notify the
Superintendent as far in advance as possible.

Any unit member utilizing sick leave for compelling personal importance, personal
necessity or family illness, as provided herein, shall complete a Personal Absence
Report upon return from leave. The Personal Absence Report shall indicate the unit
member’s name, the type of leave used, the dates of the absence and other necessary
information.

The District reserves the right to verify by all reasonable means that the leave
benefits are not abused, including requiring a unit member to submit a signed
declaration and/or other proof to substantiate the use of leave time and/or to be
examined by a doctor of the District’s choosing at District expense.. Included
within this right is the right to verify that a unit member has sufficiently recovered
from an illness to return to work and to verify that the unit member has used
personal necessity leave in accordance with section B above.

The District shall not use its verification right to harass unit members.

The failure to report for assignment at the expiration of any type of leave, without
a valid reason, shall be considered equivalent to immediate, voluntary resignation
from employment.

Inclusion of time spent on any type of leave for purposes of determining the unit
member’s status relating to service computations shall be in accordance with
mandatory provisions of the California Education Code, except as expressly
provided otherwise in this Article.

“Immediate family” means the following: mother (stepmother), mother-in-law,
father (stepfather), father-in-law, husband, wife, domestic partner, son (stepson),
daughter (stepdaughter), brother, sister, grandparent, legal guardian, foster child,
grandchild of the unit member or spouse, or any person living in the immediate
household (related by blood or marriage) of the unit member.

11



G. Unpaid Leave

1. The Board at its sole discretion may grant an unpaid leave of absence. Application
must be made in writing at least seven days prior to a regular Board meeting.

ARTICLE 9
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PROCEDURES

A. The purpose of the Performance Evaluation is to improve instruction and realize the
District’s mission.

1. Administration will conduct performance Evaluations. Performance Evaluations
will be documented on a form(s) prepared by the District (Appendix D).

2. Instructional competencies, performance and assigned duties of the unit members
shall be evaluated.

3. Performance Evaluation shall be based on the California Standards of the Teaching
Profession as defined by the California Department of Education.

4. Evaluations shall be made at least each school year for each unit member in the
first, second, and third year of service to the district and at least every other year
thereafter.

5. No later than October 15, the evaluator will schedule a meeting with each unit
member being evaluated to discuss the Performance Evaluation form and
guidelines.

B. Unit members will be evaluated in writing using the Performance Evaluation Form no later
than May 1. The completed Performance Evaluation will be given to the unit member at a
Performance Evaluation conference. Following the conference, the unit member may
attach a written statement to the completed Performance Evaluation form. There will be
one formal scheduled classroom observation during each evaluation period, which will be
completed prior to January 15. A second evaluation will be conducted prior to May 1 if the
results of the first evaluation yield a rating below a “3”. Each formal scheduled classroom
observation will be followed by a conference between the evaluator and unit member
within ten workdays of the observation. The evaluator will identify deficiencies, if any, in
writing; recommend specific actions, where applicable, to improve performance skills and
to remediate any deficiencies in order to improve performance, and assist in the
implementation of the recommendations.

C. The unit member will sign and receive a copy of the completed Performance Evaluation
Form. Signing by the unit member will indicate only receipt of the form and will not imply
that the unit member agrees with the ratings or comments it may contain.

D. The evaluation of the unit member shall not include:

1. Standardized achievement test results;
2. Results of any test utilized for the purpose of a School Improvement Plan;

Blochman/BTA 12



3. Achievement of objectives stated in Special Education IEPs;
4. Seclf-evaluation;
5. Peer-evaluation.

ARTICLE 10
PERSONNEL RECORDS

A. The official personnel file of each unit member shall be maintained at the District Office.
The contents of the personnel file shall be kept in the strictest confidence pursuant to the
appropriate provisions of the Education and Government codes. Access to a unit member’s
personnel file shall be limited to a “need to know” basis and as required by law. Access
authorization must be obtained from the Administration. All materials in the personnel file
shall be available for inspection by the unit member or by a representative designated in
writing by the unit member.

B. Ratings, reports or records that were obtained prior to the employment of the unit member,
prepared by identified selection or evaluation committee members, obtained in connection
with a promotional examination or otherwise excluded by law shall be excluded from
review.

C. A unit member may inspect the unit member’s personnel file upon request, provided that
the inspection takes place during non-pupil contact time.

D. Derogatory Materials

1. Information of a derogatory nature, except information contained in an unit
member’s evaluation and information excluded from review as provided above
shall not be entered or filed in the personnel file unless and until the unit member
is given notice and the opportunity to review and comment thereon. No anonymous
complaints will be placed in a unit member’s file. All formal written complaints
will be investigated according to Board Policy 1312.1 as outlined below.

2. The unit member shall be afforded the opportunity to meet with the Superintendent
or designee to review derogatory information prior to a determination of the
propriety of placement in the personnel file. The review shall take place during
normal business hours and the unit member shall be released from duty, except
during the unit member’s pupil contact time, for this purpose without salary
reduction.

E. Complaints Against Unit Members
1. A complaint regarding a unit member made to any member of the administration

by any parent, student or other person which does or may influence evaluation of a
member shall be discussed with the member within five school days after receipt.

Blochman/BTA 13



2.

An Association representative may be present at any follow-up meeting with the
unit member if so requested by the unit member.

Complaints against a unit member shall be addressed and resolved expeditiously in
accordance with the District’s Policy, Complaints Concerning School Personnel -
Board Policy 1312.1, if applicable. Any investigation or resolution under this policy
is not subject to the grievance procedure.

F. The board policy 1312.1 procedure:

L.

To promote prompt and fair resolution of the complaint, the following procedures
shall govern the resolution of complaints against district unit members:

Every effort should be made to resolve a complaint at the eatliest possible stage.
Whenever possible, the complainant should communicate directly to the unit
member in order to resolve concerns.

If a complainant is unable or unwilling to resolve the complaint directly with the
unit member, he/she may submit an oral or written complaint to the unit membet's
immediate supervisor or the Superintendent.

All complaints related to district personnel other than administrators shall be
submitted in writing to the Superintendent. If the complainant is unable to prepare
the complaint in writing, administrative staff shall help him/her to do so.
Complaints related to an administrator shall be initially filed in writing with the
Superintendent or designee. Complaints related to the Superintendent shall be
initially filed in writing with the Board.

When a written complaint is received, the unit member shall be notified within five
days or in accordance with collective bargaining agreements.

A written complaint shall include:
i. The full name of each unit member involved
ii. A brief but specific summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it
i1, A specific description of any prior attempt to discuss the complaint with the
unit member and the failure to resolve

G. Staff responsible for investigating complaints shall attempt to resolve the complaint to the
satisfaction of the parties involved within 30 days.

H. Both the complainant and the unit member against whom the complaint was made may
appeal a decision by the supervisor to the Superintendent or designee, who shall attempt to
resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of the person involved within 30 days. Parties
should consider and accept the Superintendent or designee's decision as final. However,

Blochman/BTA

14



the complainant, the unit member, or the Superintendent or designee may ask to address
the Board regarding the complaint.

I. Before any Board consideration of a complaint, the Superintendent or designee shall submit
to the Board a written report concerning the complaint, including but not limited to:
1. The full name of each unit member involved
2. A brief but specific summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it,
sufficient to inform the Board and the parties as to the precise nature of the
complaint and to allow the parties to prepare a response
A copy of the signed original complaint
4. A summary of the action taken by the Superintendent or designee, together with
his/her specific finding that the problem has not been resolved and the reasons

(8]

J.. The Board may uphold the Superintendent's decision without hearing the complaint.

K. All parties to a complaint may be asked to attend a Board meeting in order to clarify the
issue and present all available evidence.

L. A closed session may be held to hear the complaint in accordance with law. (cf. 9321 -
Closed Session Purposes and Agendas), (cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct). The decision of the
Board shall be final. Any complaint of child abuse or neglect alleged against a district unit
member shall be reported to the appropriate local agencies in accordance with law, Board
policy and administrative regulation. (cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

M. General

1. When a unit member receives an award, commendation, or recognition from the
District related to instructional performance, notice of the award, commendation,
or recognition shall be placed in the personnel file.

2. On request, a unit member shall be provided a copy of material in the personnel
file.

ARTICLE 11
UNIT MEMBER DISCIPLINE

A. The parties agree that progressive discipline means the level of discipline should be tailored
to fit the severity of the infraction; therefore, a serious infraction can result in the imposition
of a higher level of discipline without the requirement for preceding lesser forms of
discipline. In the event of any disciplinary meeting with the Superintendent or designee,
the unit member shall be informed of the right to be accompanied to the discussion by a
representative. Within five days of the conclusion of an investigation, the Superintendent
shall give the unit member written notice of the intended disciplinary action. The District
may not withhold pay from a suspended unit member until either the time for the filing of
a grievance over the suspension ends without the unit member filing a grievance, or the

Blochman/BTA 15



appropriateness of the suspension is upheld through the grievance process. This in no way
limits the right of the District to suspend a unit member immediately pursuant to this
Article. The District shall have the right to suspend a unit member without pay for just
cause and according to the principles of progressive discipline.

B. The maximum length of any one such suspension shall be fifteen working days, provided,
however, that this shall not limit the District’s right to impose a suspension without pay of
less than fifteen working days.

C. The District shall notify the unit member (and the Association upon written request of the
unit member) of its intention to suspend. This notice shall contain a specific statement of
the Act(s) or infraction(s) upon which the proposed suspension is based, and a statement
of the unit member’s right to appeal the proposed suspension through the grievance
procedure. All information or proceedings regarding any actual or proposed suspension
shall be kept confidential by the parties.

D. Suspensions without pay shall not reduce or deprive the unit member of health and welfare
benefits.

E. This Article shall not apply to the imposition of discipline pursuant to the provisions of
Education Code sections 44939, 44940 and 44942.

ARTICLE 12
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Definitions

1. A grievance is an alleged violation of a specific term of this Agreement. A
grievance may be filed by a unit member, unit members or the Association. Actions
to challenge or change the policies of the District as set forth in the rules and
regulations or administrative regulations and procedures, so long as these are
consistent with the terms of the Agreement, must be undertaken under separate
legal processes. Other matters for which a specific method of review is provided by
law, including but not limited to allegations of discrimination or harassment or any
proceedings for the dismissal or permanent or probationary teachers or the layoff
of certificated unit members, are not within the scope of this procedure. Neither the
content of a unit member’s Performance Evaluation or the employment status of
probationary unit members will be subject to the provisions of this Article.

2. A day is defined as a day when the District office is open for business.
3. The “immediate supervisor” is the lowest level administrator having immediate

jurisdiction over the grievant who has been designated by the District to adjust
grievances.

Blochman/BTA 16



B. Informal Level 1

1.

Before filing a formal grievance, the grievant shall attempt to resolve it by an
informal discussion with the immediate supervisor.

C. Formal Level I

1. A formal grievance will be filed with the immediate supervisors to expect
resolution within 10 days.
D. Formal Level II: Superintendent
1. Within 10 days after the occurrence of the act or omission giving rise to the

grievance, if not resolved at the Informal Level, the grievant must present such
grievance in writing on the appropriate District-designated form to the
Superintendent. This shall be a clear, concise statement of the grievance, the
circumstances involved including dates, the specific provision(s) of the Agreement
alleged to have been violated and the specific remedy sought, along with unit
member name and signature. The Superintendent shall communicate a decision to
the unit member in writing within 20 days after receiving the grievance. If the
Superintendent does not respond within the 20 days, the grievant may appeal to the
next level. Within the above time limits, either party may request a personal
conference with the other party.

E. Formal Level III: Governing Board

l.

If not satisfied with the Superintendent’s decision at Formal Level II, the grievant
may, within 15 days of receipt of the decision, or within 15 days of the date that the
Superintendent decision should have been issued (if no decision was issued), appeal
the matter to the Level II,(Governing Board) with the agreement of the
Association.

The grievant shall submit a signed statement setting forth in a clear, concise manner
the reasons for the appeal and whether a hearing is requested. The statement shall
also include a copy of the original grievance, as well as all other subsequent written
documentation regarding the grievance.

After reviewing the matter, the Board of Trustees shall issue its decision, in writing,
to the grievant within 45 days of the hearing, or if no hearing is requested, within
45 days of the receipt of the appeal. The decision of the Board shall be final.

F. General

Blochman/BTA

17



1. A decision rendered at any level shall be considered final unless an appeal is
registered within the time limit specified. If a decision is not given to the aggrieved
within the time limit, an appeal may be taken to the next Level.

ARTICLE 13

VACANCIES & REASSIGNMENTS

1.

A vacancy exists when a bargaining unit position is available and no teacher is assigned
to the vacancy. When a vacancy exists, District teachers will be given first
consideration for vacant positions prior to the position being advertised outside the
District.

A teacher who is reassigned after August 1 will receive three days of paid release time

to prepare for the new assignment. If release time is not requested, the teacher will
receive three days of additional pay at the substitute rate of pay.

ARTICLE 14

CONCERTED ACTIVITIES

1.

It is agreed and understood that there will be no strike, work stoppage, slow-down,
refusal or failure to fully and faithfully perform job functions and responsibilities, or
other interference with the operations of the District by the Association or by its
officers, agents or members during the term of this Agreement, including compliance
with the request of other labor organizations to engage in such activity.

In the event of a strike, work stoppage, slow-down or other interference with the
operation of the District or its agents by unit members who are represented by the
Association, the Association agrees in good faith to take all necessary steps to cause
those persons to cease such action.

ARTICLE 15

EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

A. Tt is understood and agreed that the specific provisions contained in this Agreement shall
prevail over District practices and procedures and prior written agreements, and over state
laws to the extent permitted by state law.

Blochman/BTA 18



TERM

. If ‘any provisions of this Agreement, or any application of this Agreement to any

unit member or group of unit members, is held to be contrary to law by a court of
competent jurisdiction, then such provisions or applications shall be deemed not
valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law. All other provisions or
applications shall continue in full force and effect. In the case that the wages or
benefits of bargaining unit members are diminished as a result of this provision, the
parties agree to reopen negotiations on the effects of any diminishment.

. This document contains the total and entire agreement between the parties and no

verbal statements shall supersede any of its provisions.

. The District and the Blochman Teachers’ Association agree to maintain the

standards in existence in the District at the signing of this Agreement unless
modified through the negotiations process with the Exclusive Representative or
expressly waived by the Exclusive Representative.

ARTICLE 16

A. The term of this Agreement is for July 1, 2022 — June 30, 2024.

ARTICLE 17

RECOMMENDED FOR RATIFICATION

A. Negotiation Procedure

Blochman/BTA

. In January 2024 the parties will commence negotiations for the 2024-2025 contract

year.

Either party may utilize the services of outside constituent or negotiations to assist
in the negotiations.

. Negotiations shall take place at times and dates that are mutually agreed upon by

the parties.

This agreement may be reopened by the mutual consent of both of the parties at any
time prior to June 30, 2024,

19



For the District:

President, Board of Trustees

Date:

Superintendent

Date:

Blochman/BTA

20

For the Association:

President, Blochman Teachers’ Association

Date:

Date:



APPENDIX A

BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE
2022/2023 with Step 13 - 24 alternating 1% & 2%

DAYS 184.00

CHANGE 2%

Bachelor's Degree| Bachelor's Degree +75

Bachelor's Degree | Bachelor's Degree +60 units or with Masters or
Bachelor's Degree +30 units +45 units Masters Master + 30 units
STEP COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 COLUMN 3 COLUMN 4 COLUMN 5

1 45,059 47,763 50,628 53,668 56,888

2 46,410 49,197 52,148 55,278 58,595

3 47,801 50,673 53,712 56,936 60,353

4 49,235 52,191 55,325 58,644 62,165

5 50,714 53,759 56,983 60,403 64,030

6 50,714 55,371 58,692 62,216 65,952

7 50,714 57,032 60,453 64,082 67,929

8 50,714 58,743 62,266 66,004 69,969

9 50,714 60,506 64,135 67,984 72,068

10 50,714 62,323 66,059 70,023 74,230

11 50,714 62,323 68,041 72,123 76,458

12 50,714 62,323 70,084 74,287 78,751

13 50,714 62,323 70,785 75,029 79,540

14 50,714 62,323 72,201 76,530 81,131

15 50,714 62,323 72,923 77,297 81,941

16 50,714 62,323 74,381 78,843 83,580

17 50,714 62,323 75,125 79,631 84,416

18 50,714 62,323 76,628 81,224 86,104

19 50,714 62,323 77,394 82,037 86,965

20 50,714 62,323 78,942 83,678 88,704

21 50,714 62,323 79,731 84,514 89,591

22 50,714 62,323 81,326 86,204 91,383

23 50,714 62,323 82,140 87,067 92,297

24 50,714 62,323 83,783 88,808 94,143
TEACHER HOURLY RATE: S 28.40
SUBSTITUTE DAILY RATE: S 150.00
SUBSTITUTE LONG TERM DAILY RATE: S 160.00
SPEECH/LANGUAGE PATHOLOGIST HOURLY RATE: S 100.00

BOARD APPROVED:




APPENDIX B

BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE
2023/2024 with Step 13 - 24 alternating 1% & 2%

DAYS 184.00

CHANGE 2%

Bachelor's Degree| Bachelor's Degree +75

Bachelor's Degree | Bachelor's Degree +60 units or with Masters or
Bachelor's Degree +30 units +45 units Masters Master + 30 units
STEP COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 COLUMN 3 COLUMN 4 COLUMN S5

1 45,960 48,718 51,641 54,741 58,026

2 47,338 50,181 53,191 56,384 59,766

3 48,757 51,686 54,786 58,075 61,559

4 50,220 53,235 56,432 59,817 63,407

5 51,728 54,834 58,123 61,611 65,310

6 51,728 56,478 59,866 63,460 67,270

7 51,728 58,173 61,662 65,364 69,287

8 51,728 59,918 63,511 67,324 71,367

9 51,728 61,716 65,418 69,344 73,508

10 51,728 63,569 67,380 71,423 75,714

11 51,728 63,569 69,402 73,565 77,986

12 51,728 63,569 71,486 75,773 80,325

13 51,728 63,569 72,201 76,530 81,130

14 51,728 63,569 73,645 78,061 82,753

15 51,728 63,569 74,381 78,843 83,579

16 51,728 63,569 75,869 80,420 85,251

17 51,728 63,569 76,628 81,224 86,102

18 51,728 63,569 78,161 82,848 87,824

19 51,728 63,569 78,942 83,678 88,703

20 51,728 63,569 80,521 85,352 90,477

21 51,728 63,569 81,326 86,204 91,383

22 51,728 63,569 82,953 87,928 93,211

23 51,728 63,569 83,783 88,808 94,142

24 51,728 63,569 85,459 90,584 96,025
TEACHER HOURLY RATE: S 28.97
SUBSTITUTE DAILY RATE: S 150.00
SUBSTITUTE LONG TERM DAILY RATE: S 160.00
SPEECH/LANGUAGE PATHOLOGIST HOURLY RATE: S 100.00

BOARD APPROVED:




APPENDIX C

Health and Welfare benefit summaries can be found on the district's website at the following
link:

https://www.blochmanusd.org/human-resources/



Appendix D

Blochman Union School District

Benjamin Foxen Elementary School Certificated Personnel Evaluation Instrument

4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, California 93464 Instructional Personnel
(805) 937-1148 FAX: (805) 937-2291

Name 4; Exemplifies or exceeds standards
Assignment 3: Meets standards - Satisfactory
Date(s) of Observation 2: Partially rﬂggg‘ss::?r:::g\s/e'
Date of Evaluation Conference 1: Does not meet standards -
Unsatisfactory
TEACHING STANDARD 1

ENGAGING AND SUPPORTING ALL STUDENTS IN LEARNING 1 2 3 |4
ELEMENTS 1.1 Connecting students’ prior knowledge, fife experience and interests with learning goals.

1.2 Using a variety of instructional strategies and resources to respond to students diverse needs.

1.3 Facilitating learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction and choice.

1.4 Engaging students in problem solving, critical thinking and other activities that make subject

matter meaningful.

1.5 Promoting self-directed, reflective learning for all students.
Comments Standard 1 Summary Assessment

TEACHING STANDARD 2

CREATING AND MAINTAINING EFFECTIVE ENVIRONMENTS FOR STUDENT LEARNING 1 2 3 |4
ELEMENTS 2.1 Creating a physical environment that engages all students.

2.2 Establishing a climate that promotes fairness and respect.

2.3 Promoting social development and group responsibility.

2.4 Establishing and maintaining standards for student behavior.

2.5 Planning and implementing classroom procedures and routines that support student learning.

2.6 Using instructional time effectively.
Comments Standard 2 Summary Assessment

(Page 1 of 3) Original: Human Resources Copies to: Evaluatee and Evaluator



Certificated Personnel Evaluation Instrument

Instructional Personnel

4; Exemplifies or exceeds standards

3: Meets standards - Satisfactory

2: Partially meets standards -
Needs to improve

1: Does not meet standards -
Unsatisfactory

TEACHING STANDARD 3

UNDERSTANDING AND ORGANIZING SUBJECT MATTER FOR STUDENT LEARNING 1 2 3 4

ELEMENTS 3.1 Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter content and student development.

3.2 Organizing curriculum to support student understanding of the subject matter,

3.3 Interrelating ideas and information within and across subject matter areas.

subject matter.

3.4 Developing student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate to the

3.5 Using material, resources and technologies to make subjet matter accessible to students

Comments Standard 3 Summary Assessment
TEACHING STANDARD 4

PLANNING INSTRUCTION AND DESIGNING LEARNING EXPERIENCE FOR ALL STUDENTS 1 2 3 4
ELEMENTS 4.1 Drawing on and valuing students’ backgrounds, interests and developmental learning needs.

4.2 Establishing and articulating goals for student learning.

4.3 Developing and sequencing instructional activities and materials for student learning.

4.4 Designing short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning.

4.5 Modifying instructional plans to adjust for student needs.
Comments Standard 4 Summary Assessment

TEACHING STANDARD 5

ASSESSING STUDENT LEARNING

ELEMENTS 5.1 Establishing and communicating iearning goals for all students

5.2 Collecling and using multiple sources of information to assess student learning.

5.3 Involving and gulding all students In assessing their own learning.

5.4 Using the results of assessments to guide instruction.

5.5 Communicating with students, families and other audiences about student progress.

Comments

Standard 5 Summary Assessment

(Page2of 3)

Original: Human Resources

Copies to: Evaluatee and Evaluator




Certificated Personnel Evaluation Instrument 4: Exemplifies or exceeds standards

3: Meets standards - Satisfactory
2: Partially meets standards -
Needs to improve
1: Does not meet standards -
Unsatisfactory
TEACHING STANDARD 6
DEVELOPING AS A PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR 1 2 3 |4
ELEMENTS 6.1 Reflecting on teaching practice and planning professional development.
6.2 Establishing professional goals and pursuing opportunities to grow professionally.
6.3 Working with communities to improve professional practice.
6.4 Working with families to improve professional practice.
6.5 Working with colleagues to improve professional practice,
Comments Standard 6 Summary Assessment
OTHER DUTIES 1 2 3 |4
ELEMENTS A. Maintains and submits reports as required.
B. Provides appropriate training and supervision of instructional assistants. .
C. Other (specify)
D. Other (speéify)
E. Other (specify)
F. Other (specify)
Comments
EVALUATOR'S COMMENTS 1 2 3 4
Overall Performance
EVALUATEE'S COMMENTS

Evaluatee's Signature* Date Evaluator's Signature Date

*Evaluatee’s signature does not necessarily constitute agreement
with the evaluation; only that s/he has read the document.

(Page 3 of 3) Origlnal: Human Resources Copies to: Evaluatee and Evaluator






BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE

2022/2023 with Step 13 - 24 alternating 1% & 2%

DAYS
CHANGE

184.00
2%

Bachelor's Degree

Bachelor's Degree

Bachelor's Degree
+60 units or

Bachelor's Degree +75
with Masters or

Bachelor's Degree +30 units +45 units Masters Master + 30 units
STEP COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 COLUMN 3 COLUMN 4 COLUMN 5

1 45,059 47,763 50,628 53,668 56,888

2 46,410 49,197 52,148 55,278 58,595

3 47,801 50,673 53,712 56,936 60,353

4 49,235 52,191 55,325 58,644 62,165

5 50,714 53,759 56,983 60,403 64,030

6 50,714 55,371 58,692 62,216 65,952

7 50,714 57,032 60,453 64,082 67,929

8 50,714 58,743 62,266 66,004 69,969

9 50,714 60,506 64,135 67,984 72,068

10 50,714 62,323 66,059 70,023 74,230

11 50,714 62,323 68,041 72,123 76,458

12 50,714 62,323 70,084 74,287 78,751

13 50,714 62,323 70,785 75,029 79,540

14 50,714 62,323 72,201 76,530 81,131

15 50,714 62,323 72,923 77,297 81,941

16 50,714 62,323 74,381 78,843 83,580

17 50,714 62,323 75,125 79,631 84,416

18 50,714 62,323 76,628 81,224 86,104

19 50,714 62,323 77,394 82,037 86,965

20 50,714 62,323 78,942 83,678 88,704

21 50,714 62,323 79,731 84,514 89,591

22 50,714 62,323 81,326 86,204 91,383

23 50,714 62,323 82,140 87,067 92,297

24 50,714 62,323 83,783 88,808 94,143
TEACHER HOURLY RATE: S 28.40
SUBSTITUTE DAILY RATE: S 150.00
SUBSTITUTE LONG TERM DAILY RATE: S 160.00
SPEECH/LANGUAGE PATHOLOGIST HOURLY RATE: S 100.00

BOARD APPROVED:




BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

CLASSIFIED HOURLY SALARY SCHEDULE

2022/2023
Increase 2%
STEPS:
1 2 3 4 5 6
Information Technology Specialist 31.83 33.11 34.44 35.81 37.25 38.73
School Secretary 19.71 20.49 21.33 22.16 23.05 23.98
Accounting Assistant Il 19.71 20.49 21.33 22.16 23.05 23.98
Maintenance/Grounds 19.71 20.49 21.33 22.16 23.05 23.98
Head Cook 19.71 20.49 21.33 22.16 23.05 23.98
Cafeteria Coordinator 19.71 20.49 21.33 22.16 23.05 23.98
Custodian 19.71 20.49 21.33 22.16 23.05 23.98
Van Driver 19.71 20.49 21.33 22.16 23.05 23.98
Instructional Assistant 18.33 19.06 19.82 20.61 21.44 22.30
Accounting Assistant 18.33 19.06 19.82 20.61 21.44 22.30
Office Assistant 16.97 17.65 18.35 19.07 19.85 20.64
Library Assistant 16.97 17.65 18.35 19.07 19.85 20.64
Campus Aide 16.97 17.65 18.35 19.07 19.85 20.64

BOARD APPROVED:




BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPECIAL EDUCATION DIRECTOR SALARY SCHEDULE
2022/2023

Row Column Salary Rate
1 93,636.00
96,445.00
99,339.00
102,318.00
105,388.00

A hHh WON -
[ T G

Board Approved:



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUPERINTENDENT SALARY SCHEDULE

2022/2023

Row

Column

Salary Rate

—

121,450.00

125,096.00

128,846.00

132,714.00

136,694.00

140,797.00

145,020.00

149,370.00

153,850.00

158,465.00

163,219.00

ey e P L I R KT ERT EN TS L) B

[ELY PELY pELY PEEY JELY PELY PEEY JILY JELY LS JEL N

168,115.00

Board Approved:






BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE

2023/2024 with Step 13 - 24 alternating 1% & 2%

DAYS
CHANGE

184.00
2%

Bachelor's Degree

Bachelor's Degree

Bachelor's Degree
+60 units or

Bachelor's Degree +75
with Masters or

Bachelor's Degree +30 units +45 units Masters Master + 30 units
STEP COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 COLUMN 3 COLUMN 4 COLUMN 5

1 45,960 48,718 51,641 54,741 58,026

2 47,338 50,181 53,191 56,384 59,766

3 48,757 51,686 54,786 58,075 61,559

4 50,220 53,235 56,432 59,817 63,407

5 51,728 54,834 58,123 61,611 65,310

6 51,728 56,478 59,866 63,460 67,270

7 51,728 58,173 61,662 65,364 69,287

8 51,728 59,918 63,511 67,324 71,367

9 51,728 61,716 65,418 69,344 73,508

10 51,728 63,569 67,380 71,423 75,714

11 51,728 63,569 69,402 73,565 77,986

12 51,728 63,569 71,486 75,773 80,325

13 51,728 63,569 72,201 76,530 81,130

14 51,728 63,569 73,645 78,061 82,753

15 51,728 63,569 74,381 78,843 83,579

16 51,728 63,569 75,869 80,420 85,251

17 51,728 63,569 76,628 81,224 86,102

18 51,728 63,569 78,161 82,848 87,824

19 51,728 63,569 78,942 83,678 88,703

20 51,728 63,569 80,521 85,352 90,477

21 51,728 63,569 81,326 86,204 91,383

22 51,728 63,569 82,953 87,928 93,211

23 51,728 63,569 83,783 88,808 94,142

24 51,728 63,569 85,459 90,584 96,025
TEACHER HOURLY RATE: S 28.97
SUBSTITUTE DAILY RATE: S 150.00
SUBSTITUTE LONG TERM DAILY RATE: S 160.00
SPEECH/LANGUAGE PATHOLOGIST HOURLY RATE: S 100.00

BOARD APPROVED:




BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

CLASSIFIED HOURLY SALARY SCHEDULE

2023/2024
Increase 2%
STEPS:
1 2 3 q 5 6
Information Technology Specialist 32.47 33.77 35.13 36.53 38.00 39.50
School Secretary 20.10 20.90 21.76 22.60 23,51 24.46
Accounting Assistant Il 20.10 20.90 21.76 22.60 23.51 24.46
Maintenance/Grounds 20.10 20.90 21.76 22.60 23.51 24.46
Head Cook 20.10 20.90 21.76 22.60 23.51 24.46
Cafeteria Coordinator 20.10 20.90 21.76 22.60 23.51 24.46
Custodian 20.10 20.90 21.76 22.60 23,51 24.46
Van Driver 20.10 20.90 21.76 22.60 23.51 24.46
Instructional Assistant 18.70 19.44 20.22 21.02 21.87 22.75
Accounting Assistant 18.70 19.44 20.22 21.02 21.87 22.75
Office Assistant 17.31 18.00 18.72 19.45 20.25 21.05
Library Assistant 17.31 18.00 18.72 19.45 20.25 21.05
Campus Aide 17.31 18.00 18.72 19.45 20.25 21.05

BOARD APPROVED:




BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL EDUCATION DIRECTOR SALARY SCHEDULE
2023/2024

Row Column Salary Rate
1 95,509.00

98,374.00
101,326.00
104,364.00
107,496.00

N Hh WON -
A A

Board Approved:



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUPERINTENDENT SALARY SCHEDULE

2023/2024
Row Column Salary Rate
1 1 123,879.00
2 1 127,598.00
3 1 131,423.00
4 1 135,368.00
5 1 139,428.00
6 1 143,613.00
7 1 147,920.00
8 1 1562,357.00
9 1 156,927.00
10 1 161,634.00
11 1 166,483.00
12 1 171,477.00

Board Approved:






California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Blochman Union Elementary (42 69112 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Doug Brown
Date: 3/17/2022 10:37 AM

2020-21 Title I, Part A LEA Allocation and Reservations

report LEA required and authorized reservations before distributing funds to schools.

CDE Program Contact:

Sylvia Hanna, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, SHanna@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0948
Rina DeRose, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDerose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472

2020-21 Title I, Part A LEA allocation (+) $16,954
Transferred-in amount (+) : $0
Nonprofit private school equitable services proportional share amount ) $0
2020-21 Title I, Part A LEA available allocation $16,954

Required Reservations

Parent and family engagement $0

(If the allocation is greater than $500,000, then parent and family
engagement equals 1% of the allocation minus the nonprofit private school
equitable services proportional share amount.)

School parent and family engagement $0
LEA parent and family engagement $0
* Local neglected institutions No

Does the LEA have local institutions for neglected children?

sal neglected institutions reservation

* Local delinquent institutions No

Does the LEA have local institutions for delinquent children?

Local delinquent institutions reservation

Direct or indirect services to homeless children, regardless of their school $500
of attendance

Authorized Reservations

Public school Choice transportation

Other authorized activities

2020-21 Approved indirect cost rate 8.40%
Indirect cost reservation $1,377
Administrative reservation $1,166

Reservation Summary

Total LEA required and authorized reservations $3,043
School parent and family engagement reservation $0
Amount available for Title |, Part A school allocations $13,911

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
iolati .
Report Date:3/17/2022 violation of both tgtgte and federal law Page 1 of 2

g




California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Blochman Union Elementary (42 69112 0000000) Status: Certified

Saved by: Doug Brown
Date: 3/17/2022 10:25 AM

2020-21 Title I, Part A LEA Carryover

Report only expenditures and obligations for fiscal year (FY) 2020-21 allocation to determine funds to be carried
over.

CDE Program Contact:
Rina DeRose, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDerose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472

Carryover Calculation

2020-21 Title 1, Part A LEA allocation $16,954
Transferred-in amount $0
2020-21 Title I, Part A LEA available allocation $16,954
Expenditures and obligations through September 30, 2021 $16,954
Carryover as of September 30, 2021 $0
Carryover percent as of September 30, 2021 0.00%

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:3/17/2022 violation of both state and federal law. Page 2 of 2

XA



| Jo | abed

‘ME| jel19pa) pue d)els Y1oq JO UCHE|oIA
e ajnjisuod Aew elep siy} jo Buueys Jo ssaooe pazuoyineun sme| Aoeaud ejep siqesiidde iayjo

pue (vdy34) 10v Aoeaud pue spybiy |euoneonp3 AjiweS sy Aq psjosioud aq Aew podad siyy ul ejep ay|
***NC_E._N;.I&

zcoz/LL /g ereq Hoday

WV L£:0l ¢c0c/LL/g 8jed
umoug Bnoq :Aq peaeg

payLaY snjejs

uonjesiiddy f  ‘pijosuon

V37T 3y} UIUIA

Wddd

Aeyuswaj:
O'0LBEL ovolLegl | 96°0zL L . . 62'GS GLL 802 L ¥925+09 usxo4 ulwelusy
L
jusw -G saby
abebug % sjuapnis
uoneoso|y | Apwe4 uonesofy| yuepnig paaiag | paaiag | juapnig| awoouyl dnoug
apo) Jooyog pue |iaackiiey| ooyos awoouj aq o} aq 0} awoouy mo] [juawjoiugz| uedg apo)d
uoya2s1q IejoL juaied | 026102 VIL |mouad ¢} Bupjuey | pasnbay | alaiby3 | mo7 | aiqibyz | juapms | apeio| jooyog aweN |ooyds

0$ uonealasal Juswabebus Ajwe) pue jualied sjgejieAy
LL6ELS suoljedojje |ooyds ¥ Led ‘| 9[)iL S|qe|leAY
%6¢°SS 9, SUWOOUI MO| BpIM-YT"

1somo] 0} 1saybiH sjooyog Bunjuey

ainseaw awodu| MO™
wieyed Japasd -

uoisiaold Jayiejpuels) - ¢
a|ij uo ue|d uonebaibosap e 10} JOAIBAA - |
aLIODUI MOJ JUBPN]S %GE SAOQE JO Je pue abelaae y3] mojog - ¢

S9P0Y UOI3BIIS]( SqeMO][%

-AJUO 9SBD JOMO| 89S "9pO0D UOIBIOSI B J8jus ‘sjgedlidde )

000" UeY} SS8| S|00YDS ||E O} [B]0} JUBWI|OIUS SBf

V31 |ooyos sjbuis e s

:BuImO||0] BY} JO Y10g JO BUO S}aall Y37 8y} ‘SJUNOD JUapN}S [00YI<
Ul paJajus ejep syl pue islj [O0UOS By} U paseq ‘H Y] ||[ewWS B Se paulep St y3 Uy

"BII9JLID Y] [JeWS S)}@3Wl -

Z.P0-£Z2S-916 ‘AODBO8po®as0iaQgy ‘22O Hoddng pue ‘weibold ‘Adiod | 8|il ‘@soxeq euly
9G860-61€-916 ‘AODBI BpI@NOoLZ | ‘oo Moddng pue ‘weiboid ‘Aolod | 8l ‘noyZ eue”

:Joeju0n weiaboid 3q:

*$]00y0s 9|qIbIe 0} Pajedo||e 8q O} SPUN} VY LEd ‘| 9L JO Junowe auy} sayiuap; Jodai siy)

SUoied0||Y |00YIS V Hed ‘| @311 12-0202

(0000000 ZL 169 Zt) Aejuswalg uolun Uewydojg

uoiesnp3g jo Juawr

3@ eluiop|es



NN St

‘ME] [BJSPI) pUB B}B)S U]0q JO UOIRIOIA
e a)n)suod Aew erep siy) jo Buueys Jo ssaooe pazuoyineun ‘sme| Aoeaud ejep sjqesydde Jayjo
pue (vdy34) 10V AoeAld pue sjybry |euoneonpd Ajwed ay) Aq pajosjold eq Aew podel siy; uj ejep syt
EUC_C._M;.I_«.

WV Lg:0l 22oZ/LL/g 8req
umolg Bnoq :Aq paneg

psSuUS) snieig

uonealddy r “pljosuo)n

V37T 84} UIYIAA

Wddd

Aeyuswiay:
P E1L0G 0% 0% y'€L0GL | 6£°9GL | . . 6%°GS 96 ell | ¥925+09 uaxo ujefuay
LI
juaw «g saby
abebug % syuspnis
uopeosoly | Ajweq uopesoliy| juspnig paalag paasag | juspnig | awoou| dnoug
apo) jooyss pue |ieaohue)| |ooyss awoouj aq o) aq o) awoouj Mo juswyjjoiuy | uedsg apo)
uoyasds|q lejol Juated | 120202 Vil | Mo lad §| Bupjuey | paanbay | sjqibpya | mon o|qiby3 | juepnis | spesn| tooyss SweN |ooyos

0% uojjealasal Juswabebus Ajjwey pue Jualed s|ge|iBAY
v10'GL$ SuUONEOO|[B [00YIS V HBd ‘| S[)LL S|GBJi_AY
%61°SS 9, BWOOUI MO| 8pIM-\Y]"

}seMo] 0} JsaybiH sjooyos Bupjuey

alnseauwl swodul Mo~

uioned Jopoo4 -
uoisinoid Jayiejpuelo) - ¢

aji} uo ueid uonebeibosap B 10} JBAIBAA - |
SWOOU] MOJ JUSPN]IS %GE 9A0JER J0 Je pue abelaAe Y3 mojag - &

S9p02 UOBIIS|q BEMO]|Y

‘Ajuo ased Jamo| asn BP0 UoaIosIq B Jsjud ‘sjgedlidde 4
000l UBY} SS8] S|OOYIS |[e 1O} [B)O) JUSW|Olud sef

v31ooyos sjbuise s
:Buimoyjoy 8y} Jo yjoq J¢

9UO S)8aW Y37 8y} ‘SjunoY Juspnis jooYoS v Hed ‘| SfiLL ul paisjus ejep 8y} pue js|
|ooyos ay) uo paseq ‘Jl Y31 [[ews e se pauysp si (yY37) Aouabe jeuo)jeosnps |eoo| \

"BLI9}LID I JjewS sjoawl I

Z.P0-£2E-916 ‘AOD B opo@asoia(ly ‘oo Hoddng pue ‘weibold ‘Aoljod | apll ‘9soyeq eun
[SHL ' 9910 Hoddng pue ‘weibold ‘Adjjod | S

- ‘Aob8o8pd

jJoejuod Em._mo._n_ = [a )4

"sjooyos 8|qiBlje 0} pejedo||e 8q O} SPUN Y Wed ‘| SLL JO junowe sy} seyiuapl Jodau Sty

suoljedojly |ooyos v Hed ‘| 9jlL 22-1202

(0000000 Z1L 169 2¥) Aejusws|3 uolun UBWYOO|S
uoneanpg jo juswy” ‘'a( eiusojijes



\\\Wmaﬂ o
‘ME| [e1apa) pue aje}s {jog JO UOKB[OIA
e ajnsuod Aew BlEp Siy} Jo Buueys o SSedoe pazuoyineun) ‘sme| Aoeaud ejep s|qedldde Jayjo
pue (Ydy34) 1oV Aoeaud pue siybry jeuoneonp3 Ajiwe4 ay) Aq pajosjoid aq Aew podal siy) Ul ejep 8y
, +eaBUILIBM o

Z20z/L1/g:91eq Hoday

‘S|ooyos 9jqibye 0} pajeoo|je aq 0} Spuny Y Hed ‘| 8jiiL JO Junowe 8y} sajuap! uodau siy

SuoI}ed0||Y |[00YOS V Hed ‘| 3L 22-120¢
WV L£:01 ¢20¢/LLig @red
umolig Bnog :Aq paneg
payiuad sneje

(0000000 21169 Zt) Aejuawaj3 uoiun uewyao|
uopjesi|ddy pojepijosuo)d

uopjesnpd jo Juau :daq eluloyie:






DOCUMENT TRACKING SERVICES

LICENSING AGREEMENT

This Agreement effective April 1, 2022, is made and entered into by Blochman Union
School District as Licensee and Document Tracking Services (DTS) as Licensor each a
“Party” and collectively the “Parties”.

Licensee desires that DTS provide a license to use DTS proprietary web-based application
in accordance with the following provisions:

A.

License. DTS hereby grants to Licensee a non-exclusive license to use DTS
application in order to create, edit, update, print and track specific documents as
described in Exhibit A of this agreement.

@ DTS retains all rights, title and interest in DTS application and any registered
trademarks associated with the license.

(i) Licensee retains all rights, title and interest in the documents as described in
Exhibit A of this agreement.

. Internet Areas. All parties including third party licensees shall not be permitted to

establish any “pointers” or links between the Online Area and any other area on or
outside of the DTS login without the prior written approval.

. Term of License. The term of the Agreement is for one (1) year from the effective

date (as noted in paragraph one) of the license agreement.

. Personnel. DTS will assign the appropriate personnel to represent DTS in all aspects

of the license including but not limited to account set up and customer license
inquiries.

. Content. DTS will be solely responsible for loading the content supplied by Licensee

into DTS secure server and provide complete access to Licensee and its
representatives.

Security of Data. DTS at all times will have complete security of Licensee documents
on dedicated servers that only authorized DTS personnel will have access to; all login
by DTS authorized will be stored and saved as to time of log-in and log-out.

Licensee may request DTS to only store Licensee documents for the period of time
that allows Licensee and its authorized personnel to create, edit and update their
documents.

. Management of Database. DTS shall allow Licensee to review, edit, create, update

and otherwise manage all content of Licensee available through the Secure Login of
DTS.

. Customer License. DTS shall respond promptly and professionally to questions,

comments, complaints and other reasonable requests regarding any aspect of DTS
application by Licensee. DTS business hours are Monday-Friday 8AM PST to 5PM PST
except for national/state holidays.

License Fee. Licensee shall pay a fee of $395.



DOCUMENT TRACKING SERVICES

. Document Set Up Fee. The one-time set up fee for documents as described in Exhibit
A and made a part of this Agreement is $0.

. Payment Terms. Licensee shall pay the annual licensing fee upon execution of the
Agreement between parties and the electronic submittal of the invoice to Licensee.

. Number of Documents. The maximum number of documents per school district is
limited to five (5).

. Warranty. Licensee represents and warrants that all information provided to DTS,
including but not limited to narratives, editorials, information regarding schools, is
owned by Licensee and Licensee has the right to use and allow use by DTS as called
for hereunder and that no copyrights, trademark rights or intellectual property rights
of any nature of any third party will be infringed by the intended use thereof. In the
event any claim is brought against DTS based on an alleged violation of the rights
warranted herein, Licensee agrees to indemnify and hold DTS harmless from all such
claims, including attorney fees and costs incurred by DTS in defending such claims.

. Definitions.

(i) Document. A document is defined as a) a specific template provided by CDE
or; b) any specific word document or forms that have different fields or school
references such as elementary, middle or high schools* submitted by District
or CDE; or c¢) individual inserts submitted by District or CDE that are
integrated into existing documents or are offered as supplemental and/or
addendums to other report documents.

* Licensee submits a SPSA template for their elementary, middle and high schools,
which is counted as three (3) separate documents.

(ii) Customized Documents. Any document that is not a standard CDE template is
considered a custom document and as such may be subject to additional setup
fees; DTS shall provide an estimated cost of these additional fees prior to the
execution of this agreement.

. Document Setup Fee. DTS will charge a one-time setup fee of $200 per standard
document up to a maximum of $850 for customized documents.

. Additional Fees. Licensee shall pay additional fees if Licensee exceeds the number of
documents as described in section L of this agreement. The fee for each additional
document is $39 per document times the number of schools in the district. The fee
shall be payable within thirty (30) days from DTS invoice.

. Additional Services. DTS can also provide Data Transfer and Document Translation
services to Licensee for an additional fee. The fee for each additional service would
be agreed upon between the parties and invoiced at the time the services were
requested. The fee shall be payable within thirty (30) days from DTS invoice.



DOCUMENT TRACKING SERVICES

The Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

Document Tracking Services, LLC

By: Aaron Tarazon, Director
Document Tracking Services
10606 Camino Ruiz, Suite 8-132
San Diego, CA 92126
858-784-0967 - Phone
858-587-4640 - Corporate Fax

Date: March 15, 2022

Licensee /@ %@Wv\
BAL

Date: _ 3- /’7 ~ Q(Q,%

Blochman Union School District




[OCUMENT TRACKING SERVICES

Exhibit A

The following are standard documents to be used in conjunction with the license.

2022 Local Control and Accountability Plan

2022 School Accountability Report Card, English & Spanish
2022 School Plan for Student Achievement

Others to be identified as needed.

P






Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4030: Nondiscrimination In Employment Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

The Governing Board is determined to provide a safe, positive environment where all district employees are assured
of full and equal empioyment access and opportunities, protection from harassment and intimidation, and freedom
from any fear of reprisal or retribution for asserting their employment rights in accordance with law. For purposes of
this policy, employees include job applicants, interns, volunteers, and persons who contracted with the district to
provide services, as applicable.

No district employee shall be discriminated against or harassed by any coworker, supervisor, manager, or other
person with whom the employee comes in contact in the course of employment, on the basis of the employee's
actual or perceived race, color, ancestry, national origin, age, religious creed, marital status, pregnancy, physical or
mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, veteran or military status, sex, sexual orientation, gender,
gender identity, gender expression, or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or
perceived characteristics.

The district shall not inquire into any employee's immigration status nor discriminate against an employee on the
basis of immigration status, uniess there is clear and convincing evidence that the district is required to do so in order
to comply with federal immigration law. (2 CCR 11028)

Discrimination in employment based on the characteristics listed above is prohibited in all areas of employment and
in all employment-related practices, including the following:

1. Hiring, compensation, terms, conditions, and other privileges of employment

2. Taking of adverse employment actions such as termination or denial of employment, promotion, job
assignment, or training

3. Unwelcome conduct, whether verbal, physical, or visual, that is so severe or pervasive as to adversely affect an
employee's employment opportunities or that has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with the
employee's work perfarmance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment

4. Actions and practices identified as unlawful or discriminatory pursuant to Government Code 12940 or 2 CCR
11006-11086, such as:

a. Sex discrimination based on an employee's pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or any related medical
condition or on an employee's gender, gender expression, or gender identity, including transgender
status

b. Religious creed discrimination based on an employee's religious belief or observance, including religious
dress or grooming practices, or based on the district's failure or refusal to use reasonable means to
accommodate an employee's religious belief, observance, or practice which conflicts with an
employment requirement

c. Requiring medical or psychological examination of a job applicant or making an inquiry into whether a
job applicant has a mental or physical disability or a medical condition or as to the severity of any such
disability or condition, without the showing of a job-related need or business necessity

d. Failure to make reasonable accommodation for the known physical or mental disability of an employee
or to engage in a timely, good faith, interactive process with an employee who has requested such
accommodations in order to determine the effective reasonable accommodations, if any, to be provided
to the employee

The Board also prohibits retaliation against any district employee who opposes any discriminatory employment
practice by the district or its employees, agents, or representatives or who complains, reports an incident, testifies,
assists, or in any way participates in the district's complaint process pursuant to this policy. No employee who



requests an accommodation for any protected characteristic listed in this policy shall be subjected to any punishment
or sanction, regardless of whether the request was granted. (Government Code 12940; 2 CCR 11028)

No employee shall, in exchange for a raise or bonus or as a condition of employment or continued employment, be
required to sign a release of the employee's claim or right to file a claim against the district or a nondisparagement
agreement or other document that has the purpose or effect of preventing the employee from disclosing information
about harassment, discrimination, or other unlawful acts in the workplace, including any conduct that the employee
has reasonable cause to believe is unlawful. (Government Code 12964.5)

Complaints concerning employment discrimination, harassment, or retaliation shall immediately be investigated in
accordance with procedures specified in the accompanying administrative regulation.

Any supervisory or management employee who observes or has knowledge of an incident of prohibited
discrimination or harassment, including harassment of an employee by a nonemployee, shall report the incident to
the Superintendent or designated district coordinator as soon as practical after the incident. All other employees are
encouraged to report such incidents to their supervisor immediately.

The Superintendent or designee shall use all appropriate means to reinforce the district's nondiscrimination policy,
including providing training and information to employees about how to recognize harassment, discrimination, or
other prohibited conduct, how to respond appropriately, and components of the district’s policies and regulations
regarding discrimination. The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the district's employment practices
and, as necessary, shall take action to ensure district compliance with the nondiscrimination laws.

Any district employee who engages in prohibited discrimination, harassment, or retaliation or who aids, abets, incites,
compels, or coerces another to engage or attempt to engage in such behavior in violation of this policy shall be
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

The district shall maintain and preserve all applications, personnel, membership, or employment referral records and
files for at least four years after the records are initially created or received or, for an applicant or a terminated
employee, for four years after the date the employment action was taken. However, when the district is notified
that a complaint has been filed with the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, records related to
the employee involved shall be maintained and preserved until the later of the first date after the time for filing a civil
action has expired or the first date after the complaint has been fully and finally disposed of and all administrative
proceedings, civil actions, appeals, or related proceedings have been terminated. {(Government Code 12946}



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Exhibit 4112.9-E(3): Employee Notifications Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: Pending

See PDF on the next page.



Exhibit
Employee Notifications

Descriptor Code: 4112.9

notice requirements.

Note: The following exhibit lists notices which the law requires be provided to employees. See the referenced
Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about related program and

When/Whom
to Notify

I. To All Employees

At the beginning of school year

or upon employment

Annually, and 72 hours
before pesticide application

Prior to implementing
year-round schedule

Prior to implementing
alternative schedule

Annually

Annually

At least once per year

To all employees

When/Whom

Education or

Other Legal
Code

Education Code
231.5; Government
Code 12950

Education Code
17612

Education Code
37616

Education Code
46162

Education Code
49013; 5 CCR 4622

Education Code
49414

Education Code
49414.3

Government Code
1126

Education or
Other Legal

Board Policy/

Administrative
Regulation #

AR 4119.11
4219.11
4319.11

AR 35142

BP 6117

BP 6112

AR 13123
BP 0460

BP 3260

AR 5141.21

AR 514121

BP 4136
4236

4336

Board Policy/
Administrative

Subject

The district's policy on
sexual harassment, legal
remedies, complaints

Use of pesticide product,

active ingredients, Internet
address to access information
on pesticides

Public hearing on year-round

program

Public hearing on alternative
schedule in secondary grades

Uniform complaint procedures,
appeals, civil law remedies,

coordinator, complaints about
student fees and local control
and accountability plan

Request for volunteers to be

trained to administer
epinephrine auto-injectors

Request for volunteers to be

trained to administer opioid
antagonist

Prohibition of activities that
are inconsistent, incompatible,

in conflict with, or inimical to
duties; discipline; appeal



to Notify
I. To All Employees (continued)

To all employees

Upon employment

Upon placement of automated
external defibrillator (AED) in

school, and annually thereafter

If the district receives
Tobacco-Use Prevention

Education funds

Annually, or more frequently

if there is new information

To new employees upon
hire and other employees
upon request, in districts with

25 or more employees

With each paycheck

Code

Government Code
8355; 41 USC 8102;

34 CFR 84.205,

84.210

Government Code

21029

Health and Safety

Code 1797.196

Health and Safety

Code 104420

Health and Safety
Code 120875,
120880

Labor Code 230.1

Labor Code 246

Regulation #

BP 4020
BP 4159

4259
4359

None

AR 5141

AR 35133

BP 4119.43
421943
431943

AR 4161.2
4261.2

4361.2

AR 4161.1

4361.1

Subject

District's drug- and alcohol-
free workplace; actions to be

taken if violated; available

employee assistance programs

Right to purchase PERS
service credit for military
service performed prior to

public employment

Proper use of AED; location
of all AEDs on campus,
sudden cardiac arrest, school's

emergency response plan

District's tobacco-free schools
policy and enforcement

procedures

AIDS and hepatitis B,
including methods to prevent

cxposure

Rights pursuant to Labor
Code 230-230.1 pertaining
to leaves and
accommodations for victims

of crime or abuse

Amount of sick leave available



Upon hire, in employee
handbook, and upon request

for parental leave

To covered employees and

former employees

When/Whom

to Notify

I. To All Employees (continued)

To employees participating

in a flexible spending account

To every new employee, either
at the time employee is hired

or by end of first pay period

Within one day of receiving
notice of potential exposure

to COVID-19, to employees
who were on the premises
during the infectious period,

Labor Code
1034

Labor Code

2800.2

Education or
Other Legal

Code

Labor Code

2810.7

Labor Code

3551

Labor Code 6409.6

AR 4261.1

BP 4033

AR 4154
4254
4354

Board Policy/
Administrative

Regulation #

None

AR 4157.1
4257.1

4357.1

AR 4157
4257

4357

The district's policy on

lactation accommodation

Availability of COBRA/

Cal-COBRA continuation

and conversion coverage;
statement encouraging careful
examination of options before

declining coverage

Subject

Deadline to withdraw funds
from account before the end

of the plan year

Workers' compensation
benefits, how to obtain medical
care, role of primary physician,
form for reporting personal

physician/chiropractor

Potential exposure to
COVID-19; benefits to which

employees may be entitled;
available leave options;
protection against



the exclusive representative, and
the employer of subcontracted
employees as applicable

Prior to beginning employment

Upon employment, and when
employee goes on leave
for specified reasons

To principal, counselor who directly
supervises or reports on student's
behavior or progress, and teacher and
other administrators who directly
supervise or report on student’s
behavior or progress when principal
believes needs the information for the
protection of self or others when
working with student, when
Superintendent or designee receives
written notification that minor student
has committed a felony or
misdemeanor involving specified
offenses

To all employees and job
applicants

To all employees via employee
handbook, or to each new
employee

To all employees

When/Whom
to Notify

1. To All Employees (continued)

To all employees working with
homeless families

To all employees

Penal Code
11165.7, 11166.5

Unemployment
Insurance Code
2613

Welfare and

Institutions Code 827

2 CCR 11023; 34
CFR 104.8, 106.9

2 CCR 11091,
11095; 29 CFR
825.300

8 CCR 3203

Education or

Other Legal
Code

42 USC 11432

34 CFR 106.8

AR 5141.4

AR 4154
4254
4354

AR 4158 4258
4358

BP 0410
AR 4030

AR 4161.8
4261.8
4361.8

AR 4157
4257

4357

Board Policy/

Administrative

Regulation #

discrimination and
retaliation; district's
disinfection and safety plan

Status as a mandated reporter
of child abuse, reporting

obligations, confidentiality
rights, copy of law

Disability insurance rights and
benefits

Limited exception to juvenile
court record confidentiality to
ensure rehabilitation of juvenile
criminal offenders and protect
students and staff

District's policy on
nondiscrimination and
related complaint procedures

Benefits through Family and
Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

and California Family Rights
Act (CFRA); obligation

to provide 30 days' notice of
need for leave when possible

The right and procedure to
access the injury and illness

prevention program

Subject

AR 6173Duties of district liaison for homeless

students

AR 4119.11
4219.11

Nondiscrimination on the
basis of sex; contact



Annually

II. To Certificated Employees

To eligible certificated
employees in a timely manner,
and to part-time and substitute
certificated employees

within 30 days of hire

Upon employment of a
retired certificated individual

To certificated employees

30 days before last day of
school year for instructional
staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated
staff, in any year in which
employee is evaluated

To a certificated employee
with unsatisfactory evaluation,
once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every

other year for permanent employee

When/Whom
to Notify

40 CFR 763.84,
763.93

Education Code
22455.5

Education Code
22461

Education Code
35171

Education Code
44663

Education Code
44664

Education or

Other Legal
Code

II. To Certificated Employees (continued)

By May 30, if district issues
reemployment notices to
certificated employees

To probationary and temporary

Education Code
44842

Education Code

4319.11

Title IX Coordinator;

information for district's
referral of

inquiries to Title

AR 3514

AR 4121

AR 4117.14
4317.14

AR 4115
BP 4315

AR 4115

AR 4115

Board Policy/

Administrative
Regulation #

AR 4112.1

AR 4112.1

IX Coordinator and/or
Office for Civil Rights

Availability of asbestos
management plan; inspections,

response actions, post-response
actions planned or in progress

Criteria for membership in
retirement system; right to
elect membership at any time

Postretirement earnings
limitation or employment
restriction; monthly report of

compensation

District regulations related to
performance evaluations

Copy of employee's evaluation

Notice and description of the
unsatisfactory performance

Subject

Request that the employee
notify district of intent to

remain in service next year

Employment status and salary



certificated employees upon
employment, and every July
thereafter

To probationary employee,
by March 15

When certificated employee is
subject to disciplinary action

for cause, at any time of year

or, for charge of unsatisfactory
performance, during instructional
year

To certificated employee charged
with unprofessional conduct, at
least 45 days prior to suspension/
dismissal notice

To certificated employee charged
with unsatisfactory performance,
at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or
prior to last quarter of school year

To certificated employee charged
with mandatory leave of absence
offense, within 10 days of entry
judgment in proceedings

To probationary employee

30 days prior to dismissal during
school year, but not later than
March 15 for a second-year
probationary employee

When/Whom
to Notify

44916

Education Code
44929.21, 44929.23,

44948.5

Education Code
44934, 449341,
44936

Education Code
44938

Education Code
44938

Education Code
44940.5

of

Education Code
44948.3

Education or
Other Legal
Code

II. To Certificated Employees (continued)

By March 15 when necessary
to reduce certificated personnel,

with final notice by May 15

Before the end of the school year
to temporary employee who

served 75 percent of school year but

will be released

Education Code
44949, 44955

Education Code
44954

AR 4121

BP 4116

BP 4118
AR 4118

BP 4118

BP 4118

AR 4118

AR 4118

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

BP 41173

BP 4121

Whether or not employee
is reelected for next school

year

Notice of charges, procedures,
and employee rights; intent to
dismiss or suspend 30 days
after notice

Notice of deficiency and
opportunity to correct

Notice of deficiency and
opportunity to correct

Notice of intent to dismiss
30 days from notice unless
employee demands hearing

Reasons for dismissal and
opportunity to appeal

Subject

Reasons for personnel
reduction and employees' right

to hearing; final notice of
Board decision re: termination

District's decision not to
reelect employee for

following school year



During the time between five days Education Code BP 4117.3 Decrease in the number of

after the enactment of an annual 44955.5 permanent employees in
Budget Act and August 15 of the accordance with a schedule of
fiscal year to which the Budget Act notice and hearing adopted by
applies when the Board determines the Board

that the district's local control funding
formula apportionment per unit of
ADA for that fiscal year has not
increased by at least two percent, to
any permanent or probationary
certificated employee, including an
employee holding a position that
requires administrative or supervisory
credential, whose services are

terminated

To teacher, when a student Education Code AR 4158 Student has committed

engages in or is reasonably 49079 4258 specified act that constitutes

suspected of specified acts 4358 ground for suspension or
expulsion

To teacher of a student who is Education Code 48201 AR 4158 4258 Student has committed

suspended or expelled, when 4358 specified act that constitutes

Superintendent or designee receives ground for suspension or

transfer student's record regarding acts expulsion

that resulted in suspension or

expulsion

To certificated employee upon 5 CCR 80303 AR 4117.7 Contents of state regulation

change in employment status 4317.7 re: report to Commission on

due to alleged misconduct or Teacher Credentialing

while allegation is pending

ITI. To Classified Employees

When classified employee is Education Code AR 4218 Notice of charges, right to

subject to disciplinary action 45113 hearing, timeline for

for cause, in nonmerit district requesting hearing

By March 15, when laid off due to  Education Code 45117 AR 4217.3 Notice of layoff, displacement

lack of work or lack of funds, with and reemployment rights, right

final notice by May 15 to hearing; final notice of
Board decision regarding
termination

During the time between five days  Education Code 45117 AR 4217.3 District Statement of Reduction

after the enactment of an annual in Force to affected employees

Budget Act and August 15 of the in accordance with a schedule

fiscal year to which the Budget Act of notice and hearing adopted

applies when the Board determines by the Board

that the district's local control funding
formula apportionment per unit of
ADA for that fiscal year has not
increased by at least two percent, to
classified employees who are laid off
due to lack of work or lack of funds



At least 60 days prior to the effective Education Code

date of

layoff, if the employee's position must 45117

be eliminated due to the expiration of

a specially funded program

Upon employment and upon
each change in classification

To permanent employee
whose leave is exhausted

When/Whom

to Notify

Education Code
45169

Education Code
45192, 45195

Education or
Other Legal

Code

III. To Classified Employees (continued)

To school bus drivers and
school activity bus drivers

prior to expiration of
specified documents

To school bus drivers and
school activity bus drivers
upon employment and at
least once per year thereafter

To school bus drivers, prior to
district drug testing program

and thereafter upon employment

To school bus drivers, prior to
operating school bus

13 CCR 1234

13 CCR 2480

49 CFR 382.113,
382.601

49 CFR 382.303

IV. To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

To superintendent, deputy,
associate, or assistant
superintendent or senior
manager of classified service,
at least 45 days before
expiration of contract

Upon request by administrative

Education Code
35031

Education Code

AR 42173

AR 4212

AR 4261.1

AR 4261.11

Board Policy/

Administrative

Regulation #

AR 3542

AR 3542

AR 4112.42
4212.42
4312.42

AR 411242
4212.42

4312.42

BP 2121
BP 4312.1

AR 4313.2

Notice of layoff date,
displacement and
reemployment rights

Employee's class specification,
salary data, assignment or
work location, duty hours,
prescribed workweek

Exhaustion of leave,
opportunity to request
additional leave

Subject

Expiration date of driver's
license, driver's certificate and

medical certificate; need to

renew

Limitations on vehicle
idling; consequences of not

complying

Explanation of federal
requirements for drug testing
program and district's policy;
prior to administration of each
drug or alcohol test

Post-accident information,
procedures, and instructions

Decision not to reelect or
reemploy upon expiration of
contract or term

Statement of the reasons for



or supervisory employee 44896

transferred to teaching position

Education Code
44951

By March 15 to employee
who may be released/reassigned

the following school year
V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances
In the event of a breach of

security of district records,
to affected employees

Civil Code 1798.29

Education or
Other Legal
Code

When/Whom
to Notify

AR 4313.2

BP 3580

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances (continued)

Prior to placing derogatory information in

personnel file 44031

To employees who volunteer Education Code

to administer epinephrine 49414
auto-injector

To district police officer, Government
within 30 days of decision Code 3304

to impose discipline

Government Code
20997

To employee returning from
military leave of absence,
within 30 days of return

Government Code
54957

24 hours before Board meets in
closed session to hear complaints

or charges against employee

Government Code
54963

When taking disciplinary action
against employee for disclosure
of confidential information

When document identifying employee [_abor Code 230
who is victim of domestic violence is

disclosed
Within one working day of Labor Code 3553,
work-related injury or 5401

victimization of crime

When adverse employment Penal Code 11108,

Education Code AR 4112.6

4212.6
4312.6

AR 5141.21

AR 35153

AR 4161.5
4261.5
4361.5

BB 9321

BP 4119.23
4219.23
4319.23

AR 4158 4258
4358

AR 4157.1
4257.1
4357.1

AR 41125

the reassignment

Notice that employee may be
released or reassigned the

following school year

Types of records affected,
date of breach, description

of incident, and, as applicable,
contact information for credit

reporting agencies

Subject

Notice of derogatory
information, opportunity to
review and comment

Defense and indemnification
from civil liability by the

district

Decision to impose discipline,
including the date that
discipline will be imposed

Right to receive PERS
service credit for military
service; application form

Employee's right to have
complaints/charges heard in

open session

Law prohibiting disclosure of
confidential information
obtained in closed session

Accommodations and leave for
victims of domestic violence

Potential eligibility for
workers' compensation
benefits, claim form

Copy of DOJ notification



action is based on DOJ criminal 11105.2 42125
history information or 4312.5
subsequent arrest notification
To any employee with 8 CCR 3204 AR 4119.42
exposure to blood or other 4219.42
potentially infectious materials, 431942
upon initial employment and at
least annually thereafter

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation #

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances (continued)

To any employee assigned to a 8 CCR 5191 AR 3514.1

work area where hazardous chemicals are

The existence, location, and
availability of exposure and

medical records; person
responsible for maintaining
and providing access to
records; right to access records

Subject

Location and availability of

chemical hygiene plan, exposure limits,

signs and chemicals present, upon initial assignment and upon new exposure situation

symptoms of exposure,
location of reference material

To any employee who may 8§ CCR 5194 AR 3514.1 Any presence of hazardous
be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area, substances in the work
area, location and availability of upon initial assignment and

hazard communication when new hazard is
material safety introduced into work area

To employee eligible for 38 USC 4334 AR 4161.5
military leave 4261.5
4361.5

Within five days of employee's 29 CFR 825.300; AR 4161.8

program, new

data sheet, employee rights

Notice of rights, benefits, and
obligations under military
leave

Designation of leave as request for

eligible, reason not eligible;
requirement to use paid leave;

any requirement for fitness-
for-duty certification; any
subsequent changes in
designation notice

Rights and responsibilities re:
use of FMLA; consequences of

FMLA leave, 2 CCR 11049, 4261.8 FMLA or non-FMLA; if not
receipt of supporting 11091 4361.8
information, or district's

knowledge that the requested

leave may qualify as FMLA

leave

Whenever notice of eligibility 29 CFR 825.300 AR 4161.8

for FMLA is provided to 4261.8
employee 4361.8

failure to meet obligations

CSBA Policy Management Console

Date Adopted: 5/1/2016
Last Revised: 3/1/2022
Last Reviewed: 3/1/2022



Exhibit
Employee Notifications

Descriptor Code: 4212.9

notice requirements,

Note: The following exhibit lists notices which the law requires be provided to employees. See the referenced
Board policy. administrative regulation. or Board bylaw for further information about related program and

When/Whom
to Notify

I. To All Employees

At the beginning of school vear
or upon employment

Annually, and 72 hours
before pesticide application

Prior to implementing
year-round schedule

Prior to implementing
alternative schedule

Annvally

Amwally

At least once per vear

To all employees

When/Whom

Education or

Other Legal
Code

Education Code
231.5: Govermment
Code 12950

Education Code
17612

Education Code
37616

Education Code
16162

Education Code
49013: 5 CCR 4622

Education Code
49414

Education Code
494143

Government Code
1126

Education or
Other Legal

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation ##

AR 4119.11
4219.11
4319.11

AR 35142

BP6117

BP 6112

AR 13123
BP 0460
BP 3260

AR 5141.21

AR 5141.21

BP 4136
4236
4336

Board Policy/
Administrative

Subject

The district's policy on
sexual harassment, legal
remedies, complaints

Use of pesticide product,
active ingredients, Internet

address to access information
on pesticides

Public hearing on year-round
program

Public hearing on alternative
schedule in secondary grades

Uniform complaint procedures,
appeals. civil law remedies,

coordinator, complaints about
student fees and local control
and accountability plan

Request for volunteers to be
trained to administer

epineplrine auto-injectors

Request for volunteers to be
trained to administer opioid

antagonist

Proliibition of activities that
are inconsistent, incompatible.

in conflict with, or inimical to
duties: discipline; appeal



to Notify

I. To All Employees (continued)

To all employees

Upon employment

Upon placement of automated
external defibrillator (AED) in

school. and annually thereafter

If the district receives
Tobacco-Use Prevention

Education funds

Amnwally, or more frequently

if there is new information

To new employees upon
hire and other employees
upon request, in districts with

25 or more employees

With each paycheck

Code

Government Code

8355:41 USC 8102:

34 CFR 8§4.205,

§4.210

Government Code

21029

Health and Safety

Code 1797.196

Health and Safety
Code 104420

Health and Safety
Code 120875,

120880

Labor Code 230.1

Labor Code 246

Regulation #

BP 4020
BP 4159

4259

4359

None

AR 5141

AR 35133

BP 4119.43
4219.43

4319.43

AR 4161.2
4261.2

4361.2

AR 4161.1

4361.1

Subject

District's drug- and alcohol-
free workplace; actions to be

taken if violated; available

employee assistance programs

Right to purchase PERS
service credit for military
service performed prior to

public employment

Proper use of AED; location
of all AEDs on campus,
sudden cardiac arrest, school's

emergency response plan

District's tobacco-free schools
policy and enforcement

procedures

AIDS and hepatitis B,
including methods to prevent

exposure

Rights pursuant to Labor
Code 230-230.1 pertaining
to leaves and
accommodatjons for victims

of crime or abuse

Amount of sick leave available



Upon hire. in employee
handbook. and upon request

for parental leave

To covered employees and

former employees

WhenWhom

to Notify

I. To All Employees (continued)

To employees participating

in a flexible spending account

To every new employee, either
at the time enmployee is hired

or by end of first pay period

Within one day of receiving
notice of potential exposure
to COVID-19. to employees
who were on the premises

during the infectious period.

Labor Code

1034

Labor Code

2800.2

Education or
Other Legal

Code

Labor Code

2810.7

Labor Code

3551

Labor Code 6409.6

AR 4261.1

BP 4033

AR 4154
4254

4354

Board Policy/
Administrative

Regulation #

None

AR 4157.1

AR 4157
4257
4357

The district's policy on

lactation acconunodation

Availability of COBRA/

Cal-COBRA continuation

and conversion coverage;
statement encouraging careful
examination of options before

declining coverage

Subject

Deadline to withdraw funds
from account before the end

of the plan year

Workers' compensation
benefits, how to obtain medical
care, role of primary physician.
form for reporting personal

physician/chiropractor

Potential exposure to
COVID-19; benefits to which

employees may be entitled:
available leave options:
protection against



the exclusive representative, and discrimination and

the employer of subcontracted retaliation: district's

employees as applicable disinfection and safety plan

Prior to beginning employment Penal Code AR 51414 Status as a mandated reporter
11165.7, 11166.5 of child abuse, reporting

obligations, confidentiality
rights, copy of law

Upon employment, and when Unemployment AR 4154 Disability insurance rights and
employee goes on leave Insurance Code 4254 benetits

for specified reasons 2613 4354

To principal, counselor who directly Welfare and AR 4158 4258 L jmited exception to juvenile

supervises or reports on student's Institutions Code 827 4358 court record confidentiality to

behavior or progress, and teacher and
other administrators who directly
supervise or report on student's
behavior or progress when principal
believes needs the information for the
protection of self or others when
working with student, when
Superintendent or designee receives
written notification that minor student
has comunitted a felony or
nmisdemeanor involving specified

ensure rehabilitation of juvenile
criminal offenders and protect
students and staff

offenses
To all employees and job 2CCR11023:34 BP 0410 District's policy on
applicants CFR 104.8,106.9 AR 4030 nondiscrimination and
related complaint procedures
To all employees via employee 2 CCR 11091, AR 4161.8 Benefits through Family and
handbook. or to each new 11095:29 CFR 4261.8 Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
employee 825.300 4361.8 and California Family Rights
Act (CFRA): obligation
to provide 30 days' notice of
need for leave when possible
To all employees 8 CCR 3203 AR 4157 The right and procedure to
4257 access the injury and illness
4357 prevention program
Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject
I. To All Employees (continued)
To all employees working with 42 USC 11432 AR 6173Duties of district liaison for homeless
homeless families students
To all employees 34 CFR 106.8 AR4119.11 Nondiscrimination on the

4219.11 basis of sex: contact



Annually

II. To Certificated Employees

To eligible certificated
employees in a timely manner,
and to part-time and substimte

certificated employees
within 30 days of hire

Upon employnent of a
retired certificated individual

To certiticated employees

30 days before last day of
school year for instructional
staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated
staff, in any year in which
employee is evaluated

To a certificated employee
with unsatisfactory evaluation,
once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every

other year for permanent employee

When/Whom
to Notify

40 CFR 763.84,
763.93

Education Code
224555

Education Code
22461

Education Code
335171

Education Code
44663

Education Code
14664

Education or

Other Legal
Code

II. To Certificated Employees (continued)

By May 30, if district issues
reemployment notices to
certificated employees

To probationary and temporary

Education Code
44842

Education Code

4319.11 information for district's
Title IX Coordinator: referral of
inquiries to Title
IX Coordinator and/or
Office for Civil Rights

AR 3514 Availability of asbestos
management plan: inspections,

response actionls. post-response
actions planned or in progress

AR 4121 Criteria for membership in
retirement system: right to
elect membership at any time

AR 4117.14 Postretirement earnings

4317.14 limitation or employment

restriction; monthly report of
compensation

AR 4115 District regulations related to

BP 4315 performance evaluations

AR 4115 Copy of employee's evaluation

AR 4115 Notice and description of the
unsatisfactory performance

Board Policy/

Adninistrative

Regulation # Subject

AR 4112t Request that the employee
notify district of intent to
remain in service next year

AR 4112.1 Employment status and salary



certificated employees upon
employment, and every July
thereafter

To probationary employee,
by March 15

When certificated employee is
subject to disciplinary action

for cause, at any time of year

or, for charge of unsatisfactory
performance, during instructional
year

To certificated employee charged
with unprofessional conduct, at
least 45 days prior to suspension/
dismissal notice

To certificated employee charged
with unsatisfactory performance,
at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or
prior to last quarter of school year

To certificated employee charged
with mandatory leave of absence
offense. within 10 days of entry
judgment in proceedings

To probationary employee

30 days prior to dismissal during
school year, but not later than
March 15 for a second-year
probationary employee

When'Whom
to Notify

44916

Education Code

44929.21. 44929.23.

44948.5

Education Code
44934, 44934.1,
44936

Education Code
14938

Education Code
44938

Education Code
44940.5

Education Code
44948.3

Education or
Other Legal
Code

II. To Certificated Employees (continued)

By March 15 when necessary
to reduce certificated personnel,

with final notice by May 15

Betore the end of the school year
to temporary employee who

served 75 percent of school year but

will be released

Education Code
44949, 44955

Education Code
44954

AR 4121

BP 4116

BP 4118
AR 4118

BP 4118

BP 4118

AR 4118

AR 4118

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

BP 41173

BP 4121

Whether or not employee
is reelected for next school

year

Notice of charges, procedures,
and employee rights; intent to
disiniss or suspend 30 days

after notice

Notice of deficiency and
opportunity to correct

Notice of deficiency and
opportunity to correct

Notice of intent to dismiss
30 days from notice unless
employee demands hearing

Reasons for dismissal and
opportunity to appeal

Subject

Reasons for personnel
reduction and employees’ right

to hearing; final notice of
Board decision re: termination

District's decision not to
reelect employee for

following school year



During the time between five days  Education Code
after the enactment of an annual 44955.5
Budget Act and August 15 of the

fiscal year to which the Budget Act

applies when the Board determines

that the district's local control funding

formula apportionment per unit of

ADA for that fiscal year has not

increased by at least two percent, to

any permanent or probationary

certificated employee, including an

employee holding a position that

requires administrative or supervisory
credential, whose services are

terminated

To teacher, when a student Education Code AR 4158
engages in or is reasonably 49079 4258
suspected of specified acts 4338

To teacher of a student who is

Superintendent or designee receives
transfer student's record regarding acts
that resulted in suspension or
expulsion

To certificated employee upon S CCR 80303

due to alleged misconduct or
while allegarion is pending

III. To Classified Employees
AR 4218

When classified employee is Education Code
subject to disciplinary action 45113

for cause. in nonmerit district

By March 15, when laid off due to
lack of work or lack of funds. with
final notice by May 15

During the time between five days
after the enactment of an annual
Budget Act and August 15 of the
fiscal year to which the Budget Act
applies when the Board determines
that the district's local control funding
formula apportionment per unit of
ADA for that fiscal year has not
increased by at least two percent, to
classified employees who are laid off
due 1o lack of work or lack of funds

BP 41173

Education Code 48201 AR 4158 4258
suspended or expelled, when 4358

AR 4117.7
change in employment status 4317.7

Education Code 45117 AR 4217.3

Education Code 45117 AR 4217.3

Decrease in the number of
permanent employees in
accordance with a schedule of
notice and hearing adopted by
the Board

Student has conunitted
specified act that constitutes
ground for suspension or
expulsion

Student has committed
specified act that constitutes
ground for suspension or
expulsion

Contents of state regulation
re: report to Conunission on

Teacher Credentialing

Notice of charges, right to
hearing, timeline for

requesting hearing

Notice of layoff, displacement
and reemployment rights, right
to hearing: final notice of
Board decision regarding
termination

District Statement of Reduction
in Force to affected employees
in accordance with a schedule
of notice and hearing adopted
by the Board



At least 60 days prior to the effective Education Code
date of

layoff, if the employee's position must 45117

be eliminated due to the expiration of

a specially funded program

Education Code
45169

Upon employment and upon
each change in classification

Education Code
45192, 45195

To permanent employee
whose leave is exhausted

Education or

When/Whom Other Legal

to Notify Code

III. To Classified Employees (continued)

To school bus drivers and 13 CCR 1234
school activity bus drivers

prior to expiration of

specified documents

To school bus drivers and 13 CCR 2480

school activity bus drivers

upon employment and at
least once per year thereafter

To school bus drivers. prior to
district drug testing program
and thereafter upon employment

49 CFR 382.113,
382.601

To school bus drivers. prior ta 49 CFR 382.303

operating school bus
IV. To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

Education Code
35031

To superintendent, deputy,
associate, or assistant
superintendent or senior
manager of classified service,
at least 45 days before
expiration of contract

Upon request by administrative Education Code

AR 42173

AR 4212

AR 4261.1
AR 4261.11

Board Policy/
Administrative

Regulation #

AR 4112.42
4212.42
4312.42

AR 4112.42
4212.42
4312.42

Notice of layoff date,
displacement and
reemployment rights

Employee's class specification,
salary data, assignment or

work location. duty hours,
prescribed workweek

Exhaustion of leave,
opportunity to request
additional leave

Subject

Expiration date of driver's
license, driver's certificate and
medical certificate: need to
renew

Limitations on vehicle
idling; consequences of not
complying

Explanation of federal
requirements for drug testing
program and district's policy:
prior to administration of each
drug or alcohol test

Post-accident information,
procedures, and instructions

Decision not to reelect or
reemploy upon expiration of
contract or term

Statement of the reasons for



or supervisory employee
transferred to teaching position

44896

By March 15 to employee
who may be released/reassigned

the following school year

Education Code
44951

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances
In the event of a breach of

security of district records,
to affected employees

Civil Code 1798.29

Education or
Other Legal
Code

When/Whom
to Notify

BP 3580

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances (continued)

Prior to placing derogatory information in

personnel file 44031

To employees who volunteer Education Code

to administer epinephrine 49414
auto-injector

To district police officer, Government
within 30 days of decision Code 3304

to impose discipline

Govermnent Code
20997

To employee returning from
military leave of absence,
within 30 days of return

Government Code
54957

24 hours before Board meets in
closed session to hear complaints

or charges against employee

Government Code
54963

When taking disciplinary action
against employee for disclosure
of confidential information

When document identifying employee [ abor Code 230
who is victim of domestic violence is
disclosed

Labor Code 3553,
5401

Within one working day of
work-related injury or
victimization of crime

When adverse employment Penal Code 11105,

Education Code AR 4112.6

4212.6
4312.6

AR 5141.2]

AR 4161.5
4261.5
4361.5

BB 9321

BP 4119.23
4219.23
4319.23

AR 4158 4258
4358

AR 4157.1
4257.1
4357.1

AR 4112.5

the reassignment

Notice that employee may be
released or reassigned the

following school year

Types of records affected.
date of breach. description

of incident, and. as applicable,
contact information for credit

reporting agencies

Subject

Notice of derogatory
information, opportunity to
review and conunent

Defense and indemnification
from civil liability by the

district

Decision to impose discipline,
including the date that

discipline will be imposed

Right to receive PERS
service credit for military
service: application form

Employee's right to have
complaints/charges heard in

open session

Law prohibiting disclosure of
confidential information
obtained in closed session

Accommodations and leave for
victims of domestic violence

Potential eligibility for
workers' compensation
benefits, claim form

Copy of DOJ notification



action is based on DOJ criminal 11105,

2 4212.5
history information or 43125
subsequent arrest notification
To any employee with 8 CCR 3204 AR 4119.42 The existence, location, and
exposure to blood or other 4219.42 availability of exposure and
potentially infectious materials, 431942 medical records: person
upon initial employment and at responsible for maintaining
least annually thereafter and providing access to

records; right to access records
Education or Board Policy/

When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances (continued)

To any employee assigned to a 8 CCR 5191 AR 3514.1 Location and availability of
work area where hazardous chemicals are chemical hygiene plan, exposure limits,
signs and chemicals present. upon initial assignment and upon new exposure situation

symptoms of exposure,
location of reference material

To any employee who may 8 CCR 5194 AR 3514.1 Any presence of hazardous
be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area, substances in the work
area, location and availability of upon initial assigninent and

hazard communication when new hazard is program, new
material safety introduced into work area data sheet, employee rights
To employee eligible for 38 USC 4334 AR 4161.5 Notice of rights, benefits, and
military leave 4261.5 obligations under military

4361.5 leave

Within five days of employee's 29 CFR 825.300: AR 4161.8 Designation of leave as request for
FMLA leave, 2 CCR 11049, 4261.8 FMLA or non-FMLA: if not
receipt of supporting 11091 4361.8 eligible, reason not eligible:
information, or district's requirement to use paid leave;
knowledge that the requested any requirement for fitness-
leave may qualify as FMLA for-duty certification: any
leave subsequent changes in

designation notice

Whenever notice of eligibiliry 29 CFR §825.300 AR 4161.8 Rights and responsibilities re:
for FMLA is provided to 4261.8 use of FMLA: consequences of
employee 4361.8 failure to meet obligations
CSBA Policy Management Console Date Adopted: 5/1/2016

Last Revised: 3/1/2022
Last Reviewed; 3/1/2022



Exhibit
Employee Notifications

Descriptor Code: 4312.9

notice requirements.

Note: The following exhibit lists notices which the law requires be provided to employees. See the referenced
Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about related program and

When/Whom
to Notify

I. To All Employees

At the beginning of school year
or upon employment

Annually, and 72 hours
before pesticide application

Prior to implementing
year-round schedule

Prior to implementing
alternative schedule

Annually

Annually

At least once per year

To all employees

WhenWhom

Education or

Other Legal
Code

Education Code
231.5: Government
Code 12950

Education Code
17612

Education Code
37616

Education Code
16162

Education Code
49013: 5 CCR 4622

Education Code
49414

Education Code
494143

Government Code
1126

Education or
Other Legal

Board Policy/

Administrative

Regulation #

AR 4119.11
4219.11
4319.11

AR 3514.2

BP 6117

BP6!12

AR 1312.3
BP 0460

BP 3260

AR 5141.21

AR S5141.2]

BP 4136
4236
4336

Board Policy/

Administrative

Subject

The district's policy on
sexual harassment, legal
remedies, complaints

Use of pesticide product,
active ingredients, Internet
address to access information
on pesticides

Public hearing on year-round
program

Pubtic hearing on alternative
schedule in secondary grades

Uniform complaint procedures,
appeals, civil law remedies,

coordinator, complaints about
student fees and local control
and accountability plan

Request for volunteers to be
trained to administer

epinephrine auto-injectors

Request for volunteers to be
trained to administer opioid

antagonist

Prohibition of activities that
are inconsistent, incompatible,

in conflict with, or inimical to
duties; discipline; appeal



to Notify

I. To All Employees {continued)

To all employees

Upon employment

Upon placement of automated

external detibrillator (AED) in

school. and annually thereafter

If the district receives
Tobacco-Use Prevention

Education funds

Annually. or more frequently

if there is new information

To new employees upon
hire and other employees
upon request, in districts with

25 or more employees

With each paycheck

Code

Government Code

8355:41 USC 8102:

34 CFR 84.205,
84.210

Government Code

21029

Health and Safety
Code 1797.196

Health and Safety
Code 104420

Health and Safety
Code 120875,
120880

Labor Code 230.1

Labor Code 246

Regulation #

BP 4020
BP 4159

4259

4359

None

AR 5141

AR 35133

BP 4119.43
4219.43

431943

AR 4161.2
4261.2

AR 4161.1
4361.1

Subject

District's drug- and alcohol-
free workplace; actions to be

taken if violated; available

employee assistance programs

Right to purchase PERS
service credit for military
service performed prior to

public employment

Proper use of AED; location
of all AEDs on campus,
sudden cardiac arrest, school's

emergency response plan

District's tobacco-free schools
policy and enforcement

procedures

AIDS and hepatitis B,
including methods to prevent

exposure

Rights pursuant to Labor
Code 230-230.1 pertaining
10 leaves and
accomunodations for victims

of crime or abuse

Amount of sick leave available



Upon hire. in employee
handbook. and upon request

for parental leave

To covered employees and

former employees

When'Whom

to Notify

I. To All Employees (continued)

To employees participating

in a flexible spending account

To every new employee, either
at the time employee is hired

or by end of first pay period

Within one day of receiving
notice of potential exposure

to COVID-19, to employees
who were on the premises
during the infectious period.,

Labor Code

1034

Labor Code
2800.2

Education or
Other Legal

Code

Labor Code

2810.7

Labor Code

3551

Labor Code 6409.6

AR 4261.1

BP 4033

AR 4154

Board Policy/

Administrative

Regulation #

None

AR 4157.1
42571
4357.1

AR 4157
4257
43357

The district's policy on

lactation accomumnodation

Availability of COBRA/

Cal-COBRA continuation

and conversion coverage:
statement encouraging careful
exanunation of options before

declining coverage

Subject

Deadline to withdraw funds
from account before the end

of the plan year

Workers' compensation
benefits, how to obtain medical
care, role of primary physician,
form for reporting personal

physician/chiropractor

Potential exposure to
COVID-19; benefits to which

employees may be entitled;
available leave options:
protection against



the exclusive representative. and discrimination and

the employer of subcontracted retaliation; district's

employees as applicable disinfection and safety plan

Prior to beginning employment Penal Code AR 5141.4 Status as a mandated reporter
11165.7. 11166.5 of child abuse, reporting

obligations, confidentiality
rights, copy of law

Upon employment, and when Unemployment AR 4154 Disability insurance rights and
employee goes on leave Insurance Code 4254 benefits

for specified reasons 2613 4354

To principal, counselor who directly Welfare and AR 41584258  Limited exception to juvenile
supervises or reports on student's Institutions Code 827 4358 court record confidentiality to
behavior or progress. and teacher and ensure rehabilitation of juvenile

other administrators who directly criminal offenders and protect
supervise or report on student's students and staff

behavior or progress when principal
believes needs the information for the
protection of self or others when
working with student, when
Superintendent or designee receives
written notification that minor student
has committed a felony or
misdemeanor involving specified

offenses
To all employees and job 2CCR 11023:34 BP 0410 District's policy on
applicants CFR 104.8, 106.9 AR 4030 nondiscrimination and
related complaint procedures
To all employees via employee 2 CCR 11091, AR 4161.8 Benefits through Family and
handbook, or to each new 11095: 29 CFR 4261.8 Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
employee 825.300 4361.8 and California Family Rights
Act (CFRA): obligation
to provide 30 days' notice of
need for leave when possible
To all employees 8 CCR 3203 AR 4157 The right and procedure to
4257 access the injury and illness
4357 prevention prograin
Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Adninistrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject
I. To All Employees (continued)
To all employees working with 42 USC 11432 AR 6173Duties of district liaison for homeless
homeless families students
To all employees 34 CFR 106.8 AR 4119.11 Nondiscriunination on the

4219.11 basis of sex: contact



Annmally

I1. To Certificated Employees

To eligible certificated
employees in a timely manner,
and to part-time and substitute
certificated employees
within 30 days of hire

Upon employment of a
retired certificated individual

To certificated employees

30 days before last day of
school year for instructional
statf, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated
staff, in any year in which
employee is evaluated

To a certificated employee
with unsatisfactory evaluation,
once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every

other year for permanent employee

When/Whom
to Notify

40 CFR 763.84,
763.93

Education Code
224555

Education Code
22461

Education Code
35171

Education Code
44663

Education Code
14664

Education or

Other Legal
Code

II. To Certificated Employees (continued)

By May 30, if district issues
reemployment notices to
certificated employees

To probationary and temporary

Education Code
44842

Education Code

4319.11 information for district's
Title IX Coordinator; referral of
inquiries to Title
IX Coordinator and/or
Office for Civil Rights

AR 3514 Availability of asbestos
management plan: inspections,
response actions, post-response

actions planned or in progress

AR 4121 Criteria for membership in

retirement systenm: right to
elect membership at any time

AR 4117.14 Postretirement earnings

4317.14 limitation or employment
restriction; monthly report of
compensation

AR 4115 District regulations related to

BP 4315 performance evaluations

AR 4115 Copy of employee's evaluation

AR 4115 Notice and description of the

unsatisfactory performance

Board Policy/

Administrative

Regulation # Subject

AR 4112.1 Request that the employee

notify district of intent to
remain in service next year

AR 4112.1 Employiment status and salary



certificated employees upon 44916
employment, and every July

thereafter

To probationary employee, Education Code

by March 15
44948.5

Education Code
44934, 44934.1,
44936

When certificated employee is
subject to disciplinary action

for cause, at any time of year

or, for charge of unsatisfactory
performance, during instructional
year

Education Code
44938

To certificated employee charged
with unprofessional conduct, at
least 45 days prior to suspension/
dismissal notice

Education Code
44938

To certificated employee charged
with unsatisfactory performance,
at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or
prior to last quarter of school year

Education Code
44940.5

To certificated employee charged

with mandatory leave of absence
offense. within 10 days of entry of
judgment in proceedings

Education Code
44948.3

To probationary employee

30 days prior to dismissal during
school year, but not later than
March 15 for a second-year
probationary employee

Education or
Other Legal
Code

When/Whom
to Notify

II. To Certificated Employees (continued)

Education Code
44949, 44955

By March 15 when necessary
to reduce certificated personnel,

with final notice by May 15

Education Code
44954

Before the end of the school year

to temporary employee who

served 75 percent of school year but
will be released

44929.21. 44929.23,

AR 4121

BP 4116

BP 4118
AR 4118

BP 4118

BP 4118

AR 4118

AR 4118

Board Policy/
Adnmunistrative
Regulation #

BP 4117.3

BP 4121

Whether or not employee
is reelected for next school

year

Notice of charges, procedures,
and employee rights; intent to
dismiss or suspend 30 days

after notice

Notice of deficiency and
opportunity to correct

Notice of deficiency and
opportunity to correct

Notice of intent to dismiss
30 days from notice unless
employee demands hearing

Reasons for dismissal and
opportunity to appeal

Subject

Reasons for personnel
reduction and enployees' right

to hearing; final notice of
Board decision re: termination

District's decision not to
reelect employee for

following school year



During the time between five days Education Code BP4117.3
after the enactiment of an annual 44955.5
Budget Act and August 15 of the

fiscal year to which the Budget Act

applies when the Board determines

that the district’s local control funding

formula apportionment per unit of

ADA for that fiscal year has not

increased by at least two percent, to

any permanent or probationary

certificated employee, including an

employee holding a position that

requires administrative or supervisory
credential, whose services are

terminated

To teacher, when a student Education Code AR 4158
engages in or is reasonably 49079 4258
suspected of specified acts 4358

To teacher of a student who is Education Code 48201 AR 4158 4258
suspended or expelled, when 4358

Superintendent or designee receives
transfer student's record regarding acts
that resulted in suspension or

expulsion
To certificated employee upon 5 CCR 80303 AR 4117.7
change in employment status 4317.7

due to alleged misconduct or
while allegation is pending

III. To Classified Employees

When classified employee is Education Code AR 4218
subject to disciplinary action 45113

for cause, in nonmerit district

By March 15, when laid off due to Education Code 45117 AR 4217.3
lack of work or lack of funds, with
final notice by May 13

During the time between five days Education Code 45117 AR 4217.3
after the enactment of an annual
Budget Act and August 15 of the
fiscal year to which the Budget Act
applies when the Board determines
that the district's local contro! funding
formula apportionment per unit of
ADA for that fiscal year has not
increased by at least two percent, to
classified employees who are laid off
due to lack of work or lack of funds

Decrease in the number of
permanent employees in
accordance with a schedule of
notice and hearing adopted by
the Board

Student has committed
specified act that constitutes
ground for suspension or

expulsion

Student has comumitted
specified act that constitutes
ground for suspension or
expulsion

Contents of state regulation
re: report to Conunission on

Teacher Credentialing

Notice of charges, right to
hearing, timeline for

requesting hearing

Notice of layoff, displacement
and reemployment rights, right
to hearing; final notice of
Board decision regarding
ternmination

District Statement of Reduction
in Force to affected employees
in accordance with a schedule
of notice and hearing adopted
by the Board



At least 60 days prior to the effective Education Code
date of

layoff, if the employee's position must 45117

be eliminated due to the expiration of

a specially funded program

Education Code
45169

Upon employment and upon
each change in classification

Education Code
45192, 45195

To permanent employee
whose leave is exhausted

Education or

When'Whom Other Legal

to Notify Code

III. To Classified Employees (continued)

To school bus drivers and 13 CCR 1234
school activity bus drivers

prior to expiration of

specified documents

To school bus drivers and 13 CCR 2480

school activity bus drivers

upon employment and at
least once per year thereafter

To school bus drivers, prior to
district drug testing program
and thereafter upon employment

49 CFR 382.113,
382.601

To school bus drivers. prior to 49 CFR 382.303

operating school bus
IV. To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

Education Code
35031

To superintendent, deputy,
associate, or assistant
superintendent or senior
manager of classified service,
at least 45 days before
expiration of contract

Upon request by administrative Education Code

AR 42173

AR 4212

AR 4261.1
AR 4261.11

Board Policy/
Administrative

Regulation #

AR 3542

AR 4112.42
421242
4312.42

AR 4112.42
4212.42
4312.42

BP 2121
BP 431

!\J
—

AR 4313.2

Notice of layoff date,
displacement and
reemployment rights

Employee's class specification,
salary data, assignment or

work location, duty hours,
prescribed workweek

Exhaustion of leave,
opportunity to request
additional leave

Subject

Expiration date of driver's
license, driver's certificate and
medical certificate: need to
renew

Limitations on vehicle
idling; consequences of not

complying

Explanation of federal
requirements for drug testing
program and district's policy;
prior to administration of each
drug or alcohol test

Post-accident information,
procedures, and instructions

Decision not to reelect or
reemploy upon expiration of
contract or term

Statement of the reasons for



or supervisory employee
transferred to teaching position

By March 15 to employee
who may be released/reassigned

the following school year

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances

In the event of a breach of
security of district records.
to affected employees

When/Whom
to Notify

Education Code

Civil Code 1798.29

Education or
Other Legal

AR 4313.2

BP 3580

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances (continued)

Prior to placing derogatory information in

personne] file

To employees who volunteer
to adiminister epinephrine
auto-injector

To district police officer,
within 30 days of decision

to impose discipline

To employee returning from
military leave of absence,
within 30 days of return

24 hours before Board meets in

closed session to hear complaints

or charges against employee

When taking disciplinary action
against employee for disclosure
of confidential information

When document identifying employee [ abor Code 230
who is victim of domestic violence is

disclosed
Within one working day of
work-related wjury or

victimization of crime

When adverse employment

Education Code

Government

Government Code

Government Code

Government Code

Labor Code 3553,

Penal Code 11105,

Education Code AR 4112.6

4212.6
4312.6

AR 514121

AR 4161.5
4261.5
4361.5

BB 9321

BP 4119.23
421923
4319.23

AR 4158 4258
4358

AR 4157.]
4257.1
4357.1

AR 4112.5

the reassignment

Notice that employee may be
released or reassigned the

following school year

Types of records affected.
date of breacl. description

of incident, and. as applicable,
contact information for credit

reporting agencies

Subject

Notice of derogatory
information, opportunity to
review and conunent

Defense and indemnification
from civil liability by the

district

Decision to impose discipline.
including the date that

discipline will be imposed

Right to receive PERS
service credit for military
service: application form

Employee's right to have
complaints/charges heard in
open session

Law prohibiting disclosure of
confidential information
obtained in closed session

Accommodations and leave for
victims of domestic violence

Potential eligibility for
workers' compensation
benefits, claim form

Copy of DOJ notification



action is based on DOJ criminal 11105.2 4212.5

history information or 4312.5

subsequent arrest notification

To any employee with 8 CCR 3204 AR 4119.42 The existence, location, and

exposure to blood or other 4219.42 availability of exposure and

potentially infectious materials, 4319.42 medical records; person

upon initial employment and at responsible for maintaining

least annually thereafter and providing access to

records: right to access records

Education or Board Policy/

When/Whom Other Legal Administrative

to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances (continued)

To any employee assigned to a 8 CCR 5191 AR 3514.1 Location and availability of
work area where hazardous chemicals are chemical hygiene plan. exposure limits,
signs and chemicals present, upon initial assigiment and upon new exposure situation

symptoins of exposure,
location of reference material

To any employee who may 8 CCR 5194 AR 3514.1 Any presence of hazardous
be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area, substances in the work
area, location and availability of upon initial assignment and

hazard communication when new hazard is prograim, new
material safety introduced into work area data sheet, employee rights
To employee eligible for 38 USC 4334 AR 4161.5 Notice of rights. benetits, and
military leave 426L.5 obligations under military

4361.5 leave

Within five days of employee's 29 CFR 825.300: AR 4161.8 Designation of leave as request for
FMLA leave, 2 CCR 11049, 4261.8 FMLA or non-FMLA; if not
receipt of supporting 11091 4361.8 eligible, reason not eligible;
information, or district's requirement to use paid leave;
knowledge that the requested any requirement for fitness-
leave may qualify as FMLA for-duty certification; any
leave subsequent changes in

designation notice

Whenever notice of eligibility 29 CFR 825.300 AR 4161.8 Rights and responsibilities re:
for FMLA is provided to 4261.8 use of FMLA: consequences of
employee 4361.8 failure to meet obligations
CSBA Policy Management Console Date Adopted: 5/1/2016

Last Revised: 3/1/2022
Last Reviewed: 3/1/2022



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 5111: Admission Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

Age of Admittance to Transitional Kindergarten, Kindergarten and First Grade
At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall enroll any eligible child whose fifth or

sixth birthday is on or before September 1 of that year into kindergarten or first grade, as applicable. (Education
Code 48000, 48010)

Admission into transitional kindergarten shall be in accordance with law and as specified in BP 6170.1 - Transitional
Kindergarten. (Education Code 48000)

On a case-by-case basis, and with the approval of the child's parent/guardian, a child who will turn five years old in a
given school year may be enrolled in kindergarten at any time during that school year provided that: (Education
Code 48000}

1. The Governing Board determines that admittance is in the best interest of the child.

2. The parent/guardian is given information regarding the advantages and disadvantages and any other
explanatory information about the effect of this early admittance.

The Superintendent or designee shall make a recommendation to the Board regarding whether a child should be
granted early entry to kindergarten, as appropriate. In doing so, the Superintendent or designee shall consider various
factors including the availability of classroom space and any negotiated maximum class size.

Documentation of Age/Grade

Prior to the admission of a child to kindergarten or first grade, the parent/guardian shall present proof of the child's
age. (Education Code 48002)

Evidence of the child's age may include: (Education Code 48002)

1. A certified copy of a birth certificate or a statement by the local registrar or county recorder certifying the date
of birth

2. A duly attested baptism certificate
3. A passport
4. When none of the above documents is obtainable, an affidavit of the parent/guardian

5. Other means prescribed by the Board




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 5111: Admission Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

The Governing Board encourages the enrollment and appropriate placement of all children who are eligible for
enroliment in school. The Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians of children seeking admission to
a district school about admission requirements and shall assist them with enrollment procedures.

The Superintendent or designee shall announce and publicize the timeline and process for registration of students at
district schools. Applications for intradistrict or interdistrict enroliment shall be subject to the timelines specified in
applicable Board policies and administrative regulations.

All appropriate staff shall receive training on district admission policies and procedures, including information
regarding the types of documentation that can and cannot be requested.

Verification of Admission Eligibility

Before enrolling any child in a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the child's age, residence
within the district, immunization, and other applicable eligibility criteria specified in law, the accompanying
administrative regulation, or other applicable Board policy or administrative regulation.

The district shall not inquire into or request documentation of a student's social security number or the last four
digits of the social security number or the citizenship or immigration status of the student or the student's family
members. (Education Code 234.7, 49076.7)

However, such information may be collected when required by state or federal law or to comply with requirements
for special state or federal programs. In any such situation, the information shall be collected separately from the
school enrollment process and the Superintendent or designee shall explain the limited purpose for which the
information is collected. Enrollment in a district school shall not be denied on the basis of any such information of the
student or the student's parents/guardians obtained by the district, or the student's or parent/guardian's refusal to
provide such information to the district.

School registration information shall list all possible means of documenting a child's age for entry into grades K-1 as
authorized by Education Code 48002 or otherwise prescribed by the Board. Any alternative document allowed by
the district shall be one that all persons can obtain regardless of immigration status, citizenship status, or national
origin and shall not reveal information related to citizenship or immigrant status.

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately enroll a homeless student, foster youth, student who has had
contact with the juvenile justice system, or a child of a military family regardless of outstanding fees or fines owed to
the student's last school, lack of clothing normally required by the school, such as school uniforms, or an inability to
produce previous academic, medical, or other records normally required for enrollment. (Education Code 48645.5,
48850, 48852.7, 48853.5,49701; 42 USC 11432)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 5113: Absences And Excuses Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

Excused Absences

Subject to any applicable limitation, condition, or other requirement specified in law, a student's absence shall be
excused for any of the following reasons:

10.

11.

12

. Personal iliness, including absence for the benefit of the student's mental or behavioral health (Education Code

48205)

Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer (Education Code 48205)

Medical, dental, optometrical, or chiropractic service or appointment (Education Code 48205)
Attendance at funeral services for a member of the student's immediate family (Education Code 48205)

Such absence shall be limited to one day if the service is conducted in California or three days if the service is
conducted out of state. (Education Code 48205)

Jury duty in the manner provided for by law (Education Code 48205)
lliness or medical appointment of a child to whom the student is the custodial parent (Education Code 48205)

Upon advance written request by the parent/guardian and the approval of the principal or designee, justifiable
personal reasons including, but not limited to: (Education Code 48205)

a. Appearance in court

b. Attendance at a funeral service

c. Observance of a religious holiday or ceremony

d. Attendance at religious retreats for no more than four hours per semester
e. Attendance at an employment conference

f. Attendance at an educational conference on the legislative or judicial process offered by a nonprofit
organization

Service as a member of a precinct board for an election pursuant to Elections Code 12302 (Education Code
48205)

To spend time with an immediate family member who is an active duty member of the uniformed services, as
defined in Education Code 49701, and has been called to duty for deployment to a combat zone or a combat
support position or is on leave from or has immediately returned from such deployment (Education Code
48205)

Such absence shall be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of the Superintendent or
designee. (Education Code 48205)

Attendance at the student's naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen (Education Code
48205)

Participation in a cultural ceremony or event which relates to the habits, practices, beliefs, and traditions of a
certain group of people (Education Code 48205)

Participation in religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at the student's place of



worship or other suitable place away from school (Education Code 46014)

Absence for student participation in religious exercises or instruction shall not be considered an absence for
the purpose of computing average daily attendance if the student attends at least the minimum school day as
specified in AR 6112 - School Day, and is not excused from school for this purpose on more than four days per
school month. (Education Code 46014)

13. Work in the entertainment or allied industry (Education Code 48225.5)
Work for a student who holds a work permit authorizing work in the entertainment or allied industries for a
period of not more than five consecutive days. For this purpose, student absence shall be excused for a
maximum of up to five absences per school year. (Education Code 48225.5)

14. Participation with a nonprofit performing arts organization in a performance for a public school audience
(Education Code 48225.5)

A student may be excused for up to five such absences per school year provided that the student's
parent/guardian provides a written explanation of such absence to the school. (Education Code 48225.5)

15. Other reasons authorized at the discretion of the principal or designee based on the student's specific
circumstances (Education Code 48205, 48260)

For the purpose of the absences described above, immediate family means the student's parent/guardian, brother or
sister, grandparent, or any other relative living in the student's household. (Education Code 48205)

Method of Verification

Student absence to care for a child for whom the student is the custodial parent shall not require a physician's note.
{Education Code 48205)

For other absences, the student shall, upon returning to school following the absence, present a satisfactory
explanation, either in person or by written note, verifying the reason for the absence. Absences shall be verified by
the student's parent/guardian, other person having charge or control of the student, or the student if age 18 or older.

(Education Code 46012; 5 CCR 306)

When an absence is planned, the principal or designee shall be notified prior to the date of the absence when
possible.

The following methods may be used to verify student absences:

1. Written note, fax, email, or voice mail from parent/guardian or parent representative.

2. Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the student's parent/guardian or
parent representative. The employee shall subsequently record the following:

a. Name of student
b. Name of parent/guardian or parent representative
c. Name of verifying employee
d. Datel(s) of absence
e. Reason for absence
3. Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method which establishes the
fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated. The employee shall document the verification and

include the information specified in ltem #2 above.

4. Physician's verification.



a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such appointments, district staff
shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may request a note from the medical office to
confirm the time of the appointment.

b. If a student shows a pattern of chronic absenteeism due to illness, district staff may require physician
verification of any further student absences.

Parental Notifications

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Notify parents/guardians of the right to excuse a student from school in order to participate in religious
exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at their places of worship, or at other suitable places
away from school property designated by a religious group, church, or denomination (Education Code 46014,
48980)

2. Notify students in grades 7-12 and the parents/guardians of all students enrolied in the district that school
authorities may excuse any student from school to obtain confidential medical services without the consent of
the student's parent/guardian {Education Code 46010.1)

3. Notify parents/guardians that a student shall not have a grade reduced or lose academic credit for any
excused absence if missed assignments and tests that can reasonably be provided are satisfactorily completed
within a reasonable period of time. Such notice shall include the full text of Education Code 48205. {Education
Code 48980)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Exhibit 5145.6-E(2): Parental Notifications Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: Pending

See PDF on the next page.



Exhibit
Parental Notifications

Descriptor Code: 5145.6

Cautionary Notice: Government Code 17581.5 releases districts from the obligation to perform specified
mandated activities when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during that fiscal year. The Budget
Act of 2021 (AB 128, Ch. 21, Statutes of 2021) extends the suspension of these requirements through the
2021-22 fiscal year. As a result, certain provisions of the following Exhibit related to scoliosis screening and
bus safety instruction may be suspended.

Note: The following exhibit lists notices which the law explicitly requires be provided to parents/guardians.
See the referenced Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about
related program and notice requirements. For example, see AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures for
the contents of the annual notice regarding uniform complaint procedures as mandated by 5 CCR 4622.

The exhibit does not include other notices that are recommended throughout CSBA's sample policy manual
but are not required by law. The district may revise the exhibit to reflect additional notifications provided by
the district.

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject
I. Annually
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 5146 Rights and options for
year 222.5 pregnant and parenting
students
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 0410 Right to a free public
year 234.7 education regardless of
immigration status or
religious beliefs
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 6142.2 Information on the district's
year 310 AR 6174 language acquisition
programs
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 3514.2 Use of pesticide product,
year 17611.5, 17612, active ingredients, Internet
48980.3 address to access information,
and, if district has no web site
and uses certain pesticides,
integrated pest management
plan
By February | Education Code BP 0510 School Accountability
35256, 35258 Report Card provided
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5144 District and site discipline



year

When to
Notify

[. Annually (continued)

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year, if district has adopted

policy on involuntary transfer
of students convicted of certain
crimes when victim is enrolled
at same school

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school

year, if Board allows
such absence

Beginning of each school
year

35291, 48980

Education or

Other Legal
Code

Education Code
44050

Education Code
46010.1

Education Code
48929, 48980

Education Code
48980

Education Code
48980, 231.5;
SCCR 4917, 34
CFR 106.8

Education Code
48980, 32255-
32255.6

Education Code
48980, 35160.5,
46600-46611,
48204, 43301

Education Code
48980, 46014

Education Code
48980, 48205

AR 5144.1

Board Policy/

Administrative
Regulation #

BP 4119.21
4219.21
4319.21

AR 5113

BP 5116.2

BP 6111

AR 5145.7

AR 5145.8

BP 5111.1
AR S116.1
AR 5117

AR S113

AR S113
BP 6154

rules

Subject

Code of conduct addressing
employee interactions with
students

Absence for confidential
medical services

District policy authorizing
transfer

Schedule of minimum days
and student-free staff
development days

Copy of sexual harassment
policy as related to students;
contact information for
Title IX coordinator

Right to refrain from harmful
or destructive use of animals

All statutory attendance
options, available local
attendance options, options for
meeting residency, form for
changing attendance, appeals
process

Absence for religious
€XErcises or purposes

Excused absences; grade/credit
cannot be reduced due to
excused absence if work or test

has been completed; full text of
Education Code 48205



When to
Notify

1. Annually (continued)

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school

year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school

year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
48980, 48206.3,
48207, 48208

Education Code
48980, 49403

Education Code

48980, 49423,
49480

Education Code
48980, 49451;

20 USC 1232h

Education Code
48980, 49471,

49472

Education Code

49013; 5 CCR
4622

Education Code
49063

Education Code
49063, 49069;

20 USC 1232g;
34 CFR 99.7

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 6183

BP 5141.31

AR 5141.21

AR 51413

BP 5143

AR 13123
BP 0460
BP 3260

AR 5125
AR 51253

AR 5125

Subject

Availability of home/hospital
instruction for students with
temporary disabilities

School immunization program

Administration of

prescribed medication

Right to refuse consent to
physical examination

Availability of
insurance

Uniform complaint procedures,

available appeals, civil law
remedies, coordinator,
complaints about student fees
and local control and
accountability plan

Challenge, review, and
expunging of records

Student records: inspect and
review, access, types, location,
persons responsible, location
of log, access criteria, cost of
copies, amendment requests,
criteria for defining school
officials and to determine
legitimate

educational interest, categories
defined as directory
information, disclosures, right
to file complaint with U.S.
Department of Education,
course

prospectus availability



Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year and at least one more

time during school year
using specified methods

When to
Notify
1. Annually (continued)

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school

year

Annually

Beginning of each school
year, if district receives
Title I funds

Education Code
49063, 49073,

20 USC 1232g;
34 CFR 99.37

Education Code
49428

Education or

Other Legal
Code

Education Code
49520, 48980;
42 USC 1758;

7 CFR 245.5

Education Code
51513;20 USC
1232h

Education Code
56301

Education Code
58501, 48980

Health and Safety
Code 104855

5 CCR 852;
Education Code

60615

20 USC 6312;
34 CFR 200.48

AR 51251

None

Board Policy/

Administrative
Regulation #

AR 3553

AR 5022
BP 6162.8

BP 6164.4

AR 6181

AR 5141.6

AR 6162.51

BP4112.2
AR 4222

Release of directory
information

How to access mental health
services at school and/or in

community

Subject

Eligibility and application
process for free and reduced-
price meals

Notice of privacy policy and
dates of activities re: survey,
health examination, or

collection of personal
information for marketing;
process to opt out of such
activities; inspection rights
and procedures

Parental rights re: special
education identification,

referral, assessment,
instructional planning,
implementation and review,
and procedures for initiating
a referral for assessment

Alternative schools

Availability of dental fluoride
treatment; opportunity to

accept or deny treatment

Student's participation in state
assessments; option to request

exemption from testing

Right to request information
re: professional qualifications
of child's teacher and



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Exhibit 6173-E(3): Education For Homeless Children Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: Pending

See PDF on the next page.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 6173: Education For Homeless Children Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board believes that the identification of homeless students is critical to improving the educational
outcomes of such students and ensuring that homeless students have access to the same free and appropriate public
education provided to other students within the district. The district shall provide homeless students with access to

education and other services necessary for such students to meet the same challenging academic standards as other
students.

When there are at least 15 homeless students in the district or a district school, the district’s local control and
accountability plan (LCAP) shall include goals and specific actions to improve student achievement and other
outcomes of homeless students. (Education Code 52052, 52060, 52064)

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review and recommend updates to district policies to ensure removal
of any barriers to the education of homeless students and unaccompanied youth. Any such review shall address
identification, enrollment, and retention of such students, including those barriers that are due to absences or
outstanding fees or fines. (42 USC 11432)

The Superintendent or designee shall designate an appropriate staff person to serve as a liaison for homeless
children and youths. The district liaison for homeless students shall fulfill the duties specified in 42 USC 11432 to
assist in identifying and supporting homeless students to succeed in school.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each district school identifies all homeless children and youths and
unaccompanied youths enrolled at the school. (Education Code 48851)

To ensure easy identification of homeless students, the Superintendent or designee shall annually administer a
housing questionnaire developed by the California Department of Education (CDE) to all parents/guardians of
students and all unaccompanied youths. {(Education Code 48851)

If the primary language of a student’s parent/guardian or an unaccompanied youth is not English, either the housing
questionnaire shall be made available in the primary language of the student’s parent/guardian or the unaccompanied
youth pursuant to Education Code 48985, or an appropriate translation of the housing questionnaire shall be
provided upon request of a student’s parent/guardian or an unaccompanied youth. (Education Code 48851)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district liaison's contact information and other
information on homelessness, including, but not limited to, information regarding the educational rights and
resources available to persons experiencing homelessness, are posted on the district and school web sites as
specified in the accompanying administrative regulation. (Education Code 48852.6)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that placement decisions for homeless students are based on the
student's best interest as defined in law and administrative regulation.

Each homeless student shall be provided services that are comparable to services offered to other students in the
school, including, but not limited to, transportation, educational programs for which the student meets the eligibility
criteria (such as federal Title | services or similar state or local programs, programs for students with disabilities, and
educational programs for English learners), career and technical education programs, programs for gifted and
talented students, and school nutrition programs. (42 USC 11432)

Homeless students shall not be segregated into a separate school or program based on their status as homeless and
shall not be stigmatized in any way. However, the Superintendent or designee may separate homeless students on
school grounds as necessary for short periods of time for health and safety emergencies or to provide temporary,
special, and supplementary services to meet the unique needs of homeless students. (42 USC 11432, 11433)



The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that information and/or materials for homeless students are provided in
a manner and form understandable to the parents/guardians of homeless students and to unaccompanied youths.

Information about a homeless student's living situation shall be considered part of a student's educational record,
subject to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, shall not be deemed to be directory information as defined
in 20 USC 1232g, and shall not be released without written consent. (42 USC 11432)

The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate with other agencies and entities to ensure that homeless children
and youth are promptly identified, ensure that homeless students have access to and are in reasonable proximity to
available education and related support services, and raise the awareness of school personnel and service providers
of the effects of short-term stays in a shelter and other challenges associated with homelessness. Toward these
ends, the Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with local social services agencies, other agencies or entities
providing services to homeless children and youth, and, if applicable, transitional housing facilities. In addition, the
Superintendent or designee shall coordinate transportation, transfer of school records, and other interdistrict
activities with other local educational agencies. As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall coordinate, within
the district and with other involved local educational agencies, services for homeless students and services for
students with disabilities. (42 USC 11432)

At least annually, the district liaison and other appropriate staff shall participate in professional development and
other technical assistance activities to assist them in identifying and meeting the needs of homeless students. Such
professional development and technical assistance shall include, but are not limited to, training on the definitions of
terms related to homelessness, the signs of homelessness, the steps that should be taken once a potentially
homeless student is identified, and how to connect homeless students with appropriate housing and service
providers. (Education Code 48852.5; 42 USC 11432)

The Superintendent or designee shall report to CDE the number of homeless children and youths and
unaccompanied youths enrolled in the district as identified from the housing questionnaire described above.
(Education Code 48851)

At least annually, the Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board on the identification of and outcomes for
homeless students, which may include, but are not limited to, the housing questionnaire responses, school
attendance, student achievement test results, promotion and retention rates by grade level, graduation rates,
suspension/expulsion rates, and other outcomes related to any goals and specific actions identified in the LCAP.
Based on the evaluation data, the district shall revise its strategies as needed to more effectively identify and support
the education of homeless students.




Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year to parent, teacher, and

employee organizations or, in
their absence, individuals

When to
Notify

I. Annually (continued)

Beginning of each school
year

II. At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career

Beginning in grade 7,
fo course

Upon a student's enrollment

When child first enrolls in a
school, if school offers

When participating in
under 35211

Upon registration in K-6, if

students have not previously
been transported

Beginning of each school
year for high school students,
if high school is open campus

Beginning of each school
year in grades 9-12, if district

allows career technical education

(CTE) course to satisfy
graduation requirement

Upon a student's enrollment

Education Code None
coverage the jurisdiction of the district

34 CFR 104.8,
106.9

40 CFR 763.84,
763.93

Education or

Other Legal
Code

USDA SP-23-2017

Education Code BP 6164.2
221.5, 48980

Education Code
310

Education Code AR 5142.1
32390, 48980 a fingerprinting program

Education Code

39831.5

Education Code
44808.5, 48980

Education Code
48980, 512253

Education Code

BP 0410
BP 6178

AR 3514

Board Policy/

Administrative
Regulation #

AR 3551

paraprofessional

Nondiscrimination

Availability of asbestos
management plan; any

inspections, response actions
or post-response actions
planned or in progress

Subject

District policy on meal
payments

Course selection and at least once prior
career counseling selection and career counseling

BP 6142.2
AR 6174

AR 3543

BP 5112.5

AR 6146.1

AR 5125

Information on the district's
language acquisition
programs

Fingerprinting program public

Civil liability, insurance driver training courses

School bus safety rules and

information, list of stops, rules
of conduct, red light crossing
instructions, bus danger zones,
walking to and from stops

Open campus

How each graduation
requirement does or does not

satisfy college entrance a-g
course criteria; district CTE
courses that satisfy a-g criteria

Specified rights related to



When students enter grade 7

When to
Notify

49063

Education Code
49452.7

Education or

Other Legal
Code

AR 5125.3

AR 5141.3

Board Policy/

Administrative
Regulation #

I1. At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career (continued)

When in kindergarten,
or first grade if not previously

enrolled in public school

Before grade 12

Beginning of each school year
for students in grades 9-12

Beginning of each school
year for students in grades

7-12, or at time of
enrollment if after beginning
of year

Within 20 working days of
receiving results of standardized
achievement tests or, if results
not available in school year,
within 20 working days of start
of next school year

By October 15 for students in
grade 12

When child is enrolled or
reenrolled in a licensed child

care center or preschool

Education Code
49452.8

Education Code
51225.8

Education Code
51229, 48980

Education Code
51938, 48980

Education Code
60641; 5 CCR 863

Education Code
69432.9

Health and Safety
Code 1596.7996

AR 5141.32

AR 6143

AR 6143

AR 6142.1

AR 6162.51

AR 5121
AR 5125

AR 5148

student records

Specified information on type
2 diabetes

Subject

Requirement for oral health
assessment, explanation of

law, importance of oral health,
agency contact, privacy rights

Completion and submission of
FAFSA and CADAA

UC and CSU College
admission
requirements, UC and CSU

web sites that list certified
courses, description of CTE,
CDE Internet address, how
students may meet with
counselors

Sexual health and HIV
prevention education, right to

view A/V materials, whether
taught by district staff or
outside consultants, right to
request specific Education
Code sections, right to excuse

Results of tests; test
purpose, individual score

and intended use

Forwarding of student's grade
point average to Cal Grant
program; timeline to opt out

Information on risks and
effects of lead exposure,

blood lead testing



When child is enrolled Health and Safety AR 5141.32 Health screening
in kindergarten Code 124100, examination
124105
To students in grades 11-12, 5 CCR 11523 AR 6146.2 Notice of proficiency

early enough to enable
registration for fall test

examination provided
under Education Code 48412

Education or

When to Other Legal
Notify Code

Board Policy/

Administrative

Regulation # Subject

II. At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career (continued)

To secondary students, if 20 USC 7908 AR 51251 Request that district not release

district receives Title I funds student's name, address, and
phone number to military
recruiters without prior written
consent

III. When Special Circumstances Occur

In the event of a breach of Civil Code BP 3580 Types of records affected,

security of district records, 1798.29 date of breach, description of

to affected persons incident, contact information
for credit reporting agencies

Upon receipt of a complaint Education Code AR 13123 Civil law remedies

alleging discrimination 262.3 available to complainants

When determining whether an Education Code AR 6174 Description of reclassification

English learner should be 313; 5 CCR 11303 process, opportunity for

reclassified as fluent English parent/guardian to participate

proficient

When student is identified Education Code AR 6174 Reason for classification, level

as English learner and district 313.2, 440, of English proficiency,

receives Title I or Title I1I 20 USC 6312 identification as long-term

funds for English learner
programs, not later than 30
days after beginning of school
year or within two weeks of
placement if identified during
school year

Prior to implementing alternative
schedule

When homeless or foster youth
applies for enrollment in

before/after school program

Education Code 46162 BP 6112

Education Code AR 5148.2

8483

English learner, description
of program(s), option to
decline program or choose
alternate, option to remove
student from program at any
time, exit requirements of
program

Public hearing on alternative
schedule in secondary grades

Right to priority enrollment;
how to request priority

enrollment



Before high school student
attends specialized

secondary program on a
university campus

At least 72 hours before
use of pesticide product
not included in annual list

When to
Notify

Education Code
17288

Education Code
17612

Education or
Other Legal
Code

II. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

To members of athletic
teams

Annually to parents/guardians
of student athletes before they
participate in competition

If school has lost its WASC
accreditation status

When district has contracted
for electronic products or
services that disseminate
advertising

At least six months before
implementing uniform policy

Before implementing a
year-round schedule

When interdistrict transfer
is requested and not approved
or denied within 30 days

Before early entry to transitional
kindergarten or
kindergarten, if early entry offered

When student identified as
being at risk of retention

When student excluded due to
quarantine, contagious or
infectious disease, danger to
safety or health

Education Code
32221.5

Education Code
33479.3

Education Code
35178.4

Education Code
35182.5

Education Code
35183

Education Code
37616

Education Code

46601

Education Code

48000

Education Code
48070.5

Education Code
48213

None

AR 3514.2

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 5143

AR 61452

BP 6190

BP 3312

AR 5132

BP 6117

AR 5117

AR 5111
AR 6170.1

AR 5123

ARS5112.2

University campus buildings
may not meet Education Code
requirements for structural
safety

Intended use of pesticide
product

Subject

Offer of insurance; no-cost and
low-cost program options

Information on sudden
cardiac arrest

Loss of status, potential
consequences

Advertising will be used in the
classroom or learning center

Dress code policy requiring
schoolwide uniform

Public hearing on year-round
schedule

Appeal process

Effects, advantages and

disadvantages of early entry

Student at risk of
retention

Student has been excluded
from school



Before already admitted
student is excluded for lack

of immunization

When a student is
classified as truant

When to

Notify

Education Code
48216; 17 CCR

6040

Education Code
48260.5, 48262

Education or
Other Legal

Code

III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

When a truant is referred
to a SARB or probation

department

When student requests to
voluntarily transfer to

continuation school

Prior to involuntary transfer
to continuation school

To person holding educational
rights, prior to recommending

placement of foster youth
outside school of origin

When student is removed from
class and teacher requires
parental attendance at school

Prior to withholding grades,
diplomas, or transcripts

When withholding grades,
diplomas or transcripts

from transferring student

When student is released
to peace officer

At time of suspension

Education Code
48263

Education Code
48432.3

Education Code
48432.5

Education Code
48853.5

Education Code
48900.1

Education Code
48904

Education Code
48904.3

Education Code
48906

Education Code

AR 5141.31]

ARS5113.1

Board Policy/
Administrative

Regulation #

AR S5113.1

AR 6184

AR 6184

AR 6173.1

AR 5144 .4

AR 5125.2

AR 5125.2

BP 5145.11

BP 5144.1

Need to submit evidence of
immunization or exemption

within 10 school days; referral
to medical care

Truancy, parental obligation,
availability of alternative

programs, student
consequences, need for
conference

Subject

Name and address of SARB
or probation department and

reason for referral

Copy of district policy and
regulation on continuation
education

Right to request meeting prior
to involuntary transfer to

continuation school

Basis for the placement
recommendation

Parental attendance required;
timeline for attendance

Damaged school property

Next school will continue
withholding grades, diplomas,

or transcripts

Release of student to peace
officer for the purpose of

removing minor from school,
unless taken into custody as
victim of suspected child abuse

Notice of suspension



When original period of
suspension is extended

At the time a student is
assigned to a supervised

suspension classroom

When to
Notify

48911

Education Code
48911

Education Code
48911.1

Education or

Other Legal
Code

III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

Before holding a closed
session re: suspension

When student expelled
from another district for
certain acts seeks admission

When readmission is
denied

When expulsion occurs

At least 10 calendar days
before expulsion hearing

When expulsion or
suspension of expulsion

occurs

Before involuntary transfer of
student convicted of certain
crime when victim is enrolled
at same school

One month before the
scheduled minimum day

When parents/guardians
request guidelines for filing

complaint of child abuse
at a school site

When student in danger
of failing a course

Education Code
48912

Education Code
48915.1,
48918

Education Code

48916

Education Code
48916

Education Code
48918

Education Code
48918

Education Code
48929, 48980

Education Code
48980

Education Code
48987

Education Code
49067

AR 5144.1

AR 5144.1

AR 5144.1

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 5144.1

BP 5119

AR 5144.1

AR 5144.1

AR 5144.1

AR 5144.1

BP 5116.2

BP 6111

AR 5141.4

AR 5121

Extension of suspension

The student's assignment to
a supervised suspension
classroom

Subject

Intent to hold a closed session
re: suspension

Hearing re: possible danger
presented by expelled
student

Reasons for denial;
determination of assigned

program

Readmission procedures

Notice of expulsion
hearing

Decision to expel; right to
appeal to county board;
obligation to inform new
district of status

Right to request a meeting
with principal or designee

When minimum days are
scheduled after beginning

of the school year

Guidelines for filing
complaint of child abuse

at a school site with local
child protective agencies

Student in danger
of failing a course



When student transfers
from another district or

private school into the district

When to
Notify

Education Code
49068

Education or

Other Legal
Code

III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

When parent/guardian's
challenge of student record is
denied and parent/guardian
appeals

When district is considering
program to gather safety-related
information from students'
social media activity

When district adopts program
to gather information from
students' social media activity,
and annually thereafter

Within 24 hours of
release of information

to a judge or probation
officer

Before release of
information pursuant to

court order or subpoena

When screening results in
suspicion that student has
scoliosis

When test results in
discovery of visual or

hearing defects

Within 10 days of
negative balance in meal
account

Annually to parents/guardians
of student athletes before their
first practice or competition

Annually to parents/guardians

Education Code
49070

Education Code
49073.6

Education Code
49073.6

Education Code
49076

Education Code
49077

Education Code
49452.5

Education Code
49456; 17 CCR

2951

Education Code
49557.5

Education Code
49475

Education Code

AR 5125

Board Policy/

Administrative
Regulation #

AR 5125.3

BP 5125

AR 5125

AR 5125

AR 5125

AR 51413

AR 5141.3

AR 3551

AR 6145.2

AR 6145.2

Right to receive copy of
student's record and a hearing
to

challenge content of student's
record

Subject

If board sustains allegations,
the correction or destruction
of record, if denied, right to

submit written objection

Opportunity for input on
proposed program

Information is being gathered,
access to records, process for

removal or corrections,

destruction of records

Release of student record to a
judge or probation officer for

conducting truancy mediation
program or for presenting
evidence at a truancy petition

Release of information
pursuant to court order

or subpoena

Scoliosis screening

Vision or hearing test results

Negative balance in meal
account; encouragement to

apply for free or reduced-
price meals

Information on concussions
and head injuries

Opioid fact sheet



of student athletes

When to
Notify

49476

Education or

Other Legal
Code

ITI. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

Within 30 days of foster youth,
homeless youth, former
juvenile court school student,
child of military family, or

niigrant student being
transferred after second year
of high school, or immigrant
student enrolled in newcomer
program in grades 11-12

Before any test/survey
questioning personal beliefs

At least 14 days before HIV

prevention or sexual health

Education Code
51225.1

Education Code
51513

Education Code

51938

instruction, if arrangement made for guest

speaker after
beginning of school year

Prior to administering survey
regarding health risks and
behaviors to students in 7-12

Within 30 calendar days
of receipt of results of

assessment or reassessment
of English proficiency

When migrant education
program is established

When child participates in

licensed child care and
development program

When a licensed child care
center has a building

Education Code
51938

Education Code
52164.1,

52164.3;
5CCR 11511.5

Education Code
54444.2

Health and Safety

Code 1596.857; 22
CCR 101218.1

Health and Safety
Code 1597.16

Board Policy/

Administrative
Regulation #

BP 6146.1
AR 6173
AR 6173.1

Subject

Exemption from local
graduation requirements, effect
on college admission, option

AR 6173.3 for fifth year of high school, transfer
opportunities through California Community

Colleges
AR 6175

AR 5022

AR 6142.1

AR 5022

AR 6174

BP 6175
AR 6175

AR 5148

AR 5148

Permission for test, survey
questioning personal beliefs

Instruction in HIV prevention
or sexual health by guest
speaker or outside consultant

Notice that the survey will
be administered

Results of state test of
English proficiency

Parent advisory council
membership composition

Parent/guardian right to enter
and inspect

facility and other rights as
specified

The requirement to test the
facility, and the results of the



constructed before January 1,
2010 and has drinking water
tested for lead

When district receives
Tobacco-Use Prevention

Education Funds

When to
Notify

Health and Safety
Code 104420

Education or

Other Legal
Code

III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

When testing by community
water system finds presence
of lead exceeding specified
level

When sharing student
immunization information

with an immunization
system

At least 14 days prior to
sex offender coming on

campus as volunteer

When hearing is requested by
person asked to leave
school premises

When responding to complaint
re: discrimination, special
education, or noncompliance
with law

When child participates in
licensed child care and
development program

Within 30 days of application
for subsidized child care or
preschool services

At least 14 days before change in service or other intended

action,

upon recertification or update
of application for child care
or preschool services

Upon child's enrollment in
care program

Health and Safety
Code 116277

Health and Safety
Code 120440

Penal Code 626.81

Penal Code 627.5

5 CCR 4631

5 CCR 18066

5 CCR 18094,
18118

5 CCR 18095,
18119

5 CCR 18114 child

AR 35133

Board Policy/

Administrative
Regulation #

AR 3514

AR 5125

AR 1240
BP 1250

AR 35152

AR 13123

AR 5148

AR 5148
AR 5148.3

AR 5148

AR 51483

AR 5148

test

The district's tobacco-free
schools policy and

enforcement procedures

Subject

Elevated lead level at school

Types of information to be
shared, name and address of

agency, acceptable use of the
information, right to examine,
right to refuse to share

Dates and times permission
granted; obtaining information

from law enforcement

Notice of hearing

Findings, disposition of
complaint, any corrective
actions, appeal rights and
procedures

Policies regarding excused
and unexcused absences

Approval or denial of
services

Any change in service, such

as in fees, amount of service,
termination of service

Policy on fee collection



When payment of child care
seven days late

When district substantively

5 CCR 18114 fees is

20 USC 1232h

changes policy on student privacy rights

When to
Notify

Education or
Other Legal
Code

III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

For districts receiving Title I
funds, when child has been
assigned or taught for four or
more consecutive weeks by a
teacher who does not meet
state certification requirements

for the grade level/subject taught

For districts receiving Title I
funds, not later than 30 days

after beginning of school year,
to parents/guardians of English
learners

For schools receiving Title I
funds, upon development of
parent involvement policy

When district receives Impact
Aid funds for students residing

on Indian lands, to parents/
guardians of Indian children

When household is selected
for verification of eligibility

for free or reduced-price meals

When student is homeless or
unaccompanied minor

When student transfers out
of state and records are
disclosed without consent
pursuant to 34 CFR 99.30

When student complains of

20USC 6312

20USC 6312

20 USC 6318

20 USC 7704;
34 CFR 222.94

42 USC 1758;
7 CFR 245.6a

42 USC 11432;
Education Code

48852.5

34 CFR 99.34

34 CFR 106.44,

AR 5148

AR 5022

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 41122

AR 6174

AR 6020

AR 3231

AR 3553

AR 6173

AR 5125

AR 5145.7

Notice of delinquent fees

Notice of any substantive
change in policy or regulation

Subject

Timely notice to parent/
guardian of child's assignment

Reasons for placement, level
of proficiency, instructional

methods, how program meets
child's strengths and teaches
English, exit requirements,
right to choose other program

Notice of policy

Relevant applications,
evaluations, program plans,

information about district's
general educational
program; opportunity to
submit comments

Need to submit verification
information; any subsequent

change in benefits; appeals

Educational and related

opportunities; transportation
services; placement decision
and right to appeal; duties of
district liaison; public notice

Right to receive records
and an opportunity for hearing
upon request

Right to file formal



sexual harassment

When to
Notify

106.45

Education or
Other Legal
Code

ITII. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

When district receives
federal funding assistance

for nutrition program

IV. Special Education Notices

Prior to conducting initial
evaluation

Before functional behavioral
assessment begins

24 hours before IEP
when district intending to
record

Early enough to ensure
opportunity for parent/

guardian to attend IEP meeting

When parent/guardian orally
requests review of IEP

Within one school day of
emergency intervention or
serious property damage

Whenever there is a proposal
or refusal to initiate or change
the identification, evaluation,
placement, or FAPE, including
when parent/guardian revokes
consent for services

Upon filing of state complaint

USDA FNS
Instruction 113-1

Education Code
56301, 56321,
56321.5, 56321.6,

56329; 20 USC
1415(d); 34 CFR
300.502, 300.503

Education Code
56321

Education Code
56341.1

Education Code
56341.5;

34 CFR 300.322

Education Code
56343.5

Education Code
56521.1

20 USC 1415(c);
34 CFR 300.300,

300.503

20 USC 1415(d);

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

BP 3555

BP 6159.1
AR 6159.1
AR 6164.4

AR 61594

AR 6159

AR 6159

AR 6159

AR 61594

AR 6159
AR 6159.1

AR 6159.1

complaint, availability

of supportive measures,
notice of process, reason for
dismissal of complaint if
applicable

Subject

Rights and responsibilities,
nondiscrimination policy,

complaint procedures

Proposed evaluation plan,
related parental rights,
prior written notice,

procedural safeguards

Notification and consent

Intention to audio-record
IEP meeting

Time, purpose, location, who
will attend, participation of
others with special knowledge,
transition statements if
appropriate

Need for written request

Emergency intervention

Prior written notice

Procedural safeguards



34 CFR 300.504

When disciplinary measures 20 USC 1415(k),
are taken or change in 34 CFR 300.530 placement

Education or
When to Other Legal
Notify Code
IV. Special Education Notices (continued)
Upon requesting a 20 USC 1415(k);
due process hearing 34 CFR 300.508
Eligibility for services 34 CFR 104.32,
under Section 504 104.36
V. Classroom/Facility Notices
In all district schools and offices, Education Code 234.1
including staff lounges and student
govemnment meeting rooms
In each classroom used for Education Code
license-exempt California 8212
State Preschool Program
In each classroom in each Education Code
school 35186
In a licensed child care and Health and Safety
development center at a location Code 1596.857

accessible to parents/guardians

notice

AR 51442 Decision and procedural
safeguards notice

Board Policy/

Administrative

Regulation # Subject

AR 6159.1 Student's name, address,
school, description of problem,
proposed resolution

AR 6164.6 District responsibilities, district
actions, procedural safeguards

AR 13123 Uniform complaint procedures
board policy and administrative
regulation

AR 13123
Health and safety

E 13123 requirements for preschool
programs; where to get
complaint form

AR 1312.4 Complaints subject to Williams

E 13124 uniform complaint procedures

AR 5148 Parent/guardian right to

inspect, prohibition against
retaliation, right to file
complaint; registered sex
offender database available to
public; review licensing reports
of facility visits and
substantiated complaints
against facility

CSBA Policy Management Console

Date Adopted: 7/1/2020
Last Revised: 3/1/2022
Last Reviewed: 3/1/2022



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 6173: Education For Homeless Children Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

Definitions

Homeless students means students who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence and includes:
(Education Code 48859; 42 USC 11434a)

1. Students who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar
reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate
accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; or are abandoned in hospitals

2. Students who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily
used as regular sleeping accommodations for human beings

3. Students who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train
stations, or similar settings

4. Migratory children who qualify as homeless because they are living in conditions described in items #1-3 above

Unaccompanied youth includes a homeless child or youth not in the physical custody of a parent or guardian.
{Education Code 48859; 42 USC 11434a)

School of origin means the school that the homeless student attended when permanently housed or the school in
which the student was last enrolled, including a preschool. If the school the homeless student attended when
permanently housed is different from the school in which the student was last enrolled, or if there is some other
school that the student attended within the preceding 15 months and with which the student is connected, the
district liaison for homeless students shall determine, in consultation with and with the agreement of the homeless
student and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for the student, and in the best interests of
the homeless student, which school shall be deemed the school of origin. {(Education Code 48852.7: 42 USC 11432)

Best interest means that, in making educational and school placement decisions for a homeless student,
consideration is given to, among other factors, educational stability, the opportunity to be educated in the least
restrictive educational setting necessary to achieve academic progress, and the student's access to academic
resources, services, and extracurricular and enrichment activities that are available to all district students. {Education
Code 48850, 48853; 42 USC 11432)

District Liaison

The Superintendent designates the following staff person as the district liaison for homeless students: (42 USC
11432)

Superintendent
{title or position)

4949 Foxen Canyon Rd., Santa Maria, CA 93454 _
{(address)

blochman®@blochmanusd.org

{email address)

805-937-1148

{phone number)

The district's liaison for homeless students shall: (Education Code 48851.5, 48852.5; 42 USC 11432)

1. Ensure that homeless students are identified by school personnel through outreach and coordination activities
with other entities and agencies



2. Ensure that homeless students are enrolled in, and have a full and equal opportunity to succeed in, district
schools

3. Ensure that homeless families and children and youth have access to and receive educational services for
which they are eligible, including services through Head Start and Early Head Start programs, early intervention
services under Part C of the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, and other preschool programs
administered by the district

4. Ensure that homeless families and students receive referrals to health care services, dental services, mental
health and substance abuse services, housing services, and other appropriate services

5. Inform parents/guardians of the educational and related opportunities available to their children and ensure
that they are provided with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children

6. Disseminate public notice of the educational rights of homeless students in locations frequented by
parents/guardians of homeless children and youth and by unaccompanied youth, including schools, shelters,
public libraries, and hunger relief agencies (soup kitchens). The rights shall be presented in a manner and form
understandable to the parents/guardians of homeless students and unaccompanied youth.

7. Mediate enrollment disputes in accordance with law and the section "Resolving Enroliment Disputes" below

8. Fully inform parents/guardians of homeless students and unaccompanied youth of all transportation services,
including transportation to the school of origin, and assist them in accessing transportation to the school of
choice

9. Ensure that school personnel providing services to homeless students, including principals and other school
leaders, attendance supervisors, teachers, enrollment personnel, and specialized instructional support
personnel, receive professional development and other support

10. Ensure that unaccompanied youth are enrolled in school, have opportunities to meet the same challenging
state academic standards established for other students, and are informed of their status as independent
students under 20 USC 1087vv and that they may receive assistance from the district liaison to receive
verification of their independent student status for purposes of applying for federal student aid pursuant to 20
USC 1090

11. Coordinate and collaborate with state coordinators and community and school personnel responsible for the
provision of education and related services to homeless students, including the collection and provision of
comprehensive data to the state coordinator as required by law

In addition, when notified pursuant to Education Code 48918.1, the district liaison shall assist, facilitate, or represent
a homeless student who is undergoing a disciplinary proceeding that could result in the student's expulsion. When
notified pursuant to Education Code 48915.5, the district liaison shall participate in an individualized education
program (IEP) team meeting to make a manifestation determination regarding the behavior of a student with a
disability.

The Superintendent or designee shall inform homeless children and youth, their parents/guardians, school personnel,
service providers, and advocates working with homeless families of the duties of the district's liaison. The
Superintendent or designee shall also provide the name and contact information of the district's liaison to the
California Department of Education (CDE) for publishing on CDE's web site. (42 USC 11432)

Enrollment
The district shall make placement decisions for homeless students based on the student's best interest. (42 USC

11432)

In determining the best interest of the student, the district shall consider student-centered factors related to the
student's best interest, including factors related to the impact of mobility on achievement, education, health, and
safety, giving priority to the request of the student's parent/guardian or, in the case of an unaccompanied youth, the



youth. (42 USC 11432)

Such factors may include, but are not limited to, the age of the student, the distance of the commute and the impact
it may have on the student's education, personal safety issues, the student's need for special instruction, the length
of anticipated stay in the temporary shelter or other temporary location, likely area of future housing, school
placement of siblings, and the time remaining in the school year.

However, placement decisions shall not be based on whether a homeless student lives with the student's homeless
parent/guardian or has been temporarily placed elsewhere. (42 USC 11432)

In the case of an unaccompanied youth, the district liaison shall assist in placement or enrollment decisions, give
priority to the views of the student, and provide notice to the student of the right to appeal. {42 USC 11432)

In determining a student's best interest, a homeless student shall, to the extent feasible, be placed in the school of

origin, unless the student's parent/guardian or the unaccompanied youth requests otherwise. (Education Code
48852.7; 42 USC 11432)

Once a placement decision has been made, the principal or designee shall immediately enroll the student in the
school of choice. The student shall be enrolled even if the student: (Education Code 48850, 48852.7; 42 USC
11432)

1. Has outstanding fees, fines, textbooks, or other items or monies due to the school last attended
2. Does not have clothing normally required by the school, such as school uniforms

3. Is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic records, proof of
residency, and records of immunization and other required health records

4. Has missed application or enrollment deadlines during any period of homelessness

The principal or designee shall immediately contact the school last attended by the student to obtain the relevant
records. If the student needs to obtain immunizations or does not possess immunization or other required health
records, the principal or designee shall immediately refer the parent/guardian to the district liaison for homeless
students. The district liaison shall assist the parent/guardian, or the student if the student is an unaccompanied
youth, in obtaining the necessary immunizations, screenings, or records for the student. (42 USC 11432)

If the student is placed at a school other than the school of origin or the school requested by the student's
parent/guardian or the student, if an unaccompanied youth, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the
parent/guardian or the unaccompanied youth with a written explanation of the reasons for the decision, including
why placement in the student's school of origin or requested school is not in the student's best interest, along with a
statement regarding the right to appeal the placement decision. The written explanation shall be in a manner and
form understandable to such parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth. (42 USC 11432)

At the point of any change or subseguent change in the residence of a homeless student, the student may continue
attending the student's school of origin for the duration of the homelessness. (Education Code 48852.7; 42 USC
11432) ,

To ensure that the homeless student has the benefit of matriculating with the student's peers in accordance with the
established feeder patterns, the following shall apply: (Education Code 48852.7; 42 USC 11432)

1. If the student is transitioning between grade levels, the student shali be allowed to continue in the same
attendance area.

2. If the student is transitioning to a middle school or high school, and the school designated for matriculation is in
another school district, the student shall be allowed to continue to the school designated for matriculation in
that district.

If the student’s status changes before the end of the school year so that the student is no longer homeless, the
student shall be allowed to stay in the school of origin: (Education Code 48852.7)



1. Through the duration of the school year if the student is in grades K-8

2. Through graduation if the student is in high school

Resolving Enrollment Disputes

If a dispute arises over student eligibility, school selection, or enroliment in a particular school, the matter shall be

referred to the district liaison, who shall carry out the dispute resolution process as expeditiously as possible. (42
USC 11432)

The parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth shall be provided with a written explanation of any decisions related
to eligibility, school selection, or enroliment and of the right of the parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth to
appeal such decisions. (42 USC 11432)
The written explanation shall include:

1. Adescription of the action proposed or refused by the district

2. An explanation of why the action is proposed or refused

3. Adescription of any other options the district considered and the reasons that any other options were rejected

4. Adescription of any other factors relevant to the district's decision and information related to the eligibility or
best interest determination including the facts, witnesses, and evidence relied upon and their sources

5. Appropriate timelines to ensure any relevant deadlines are not missed

6. Contact information for the district liaison and state coordinator, and a brief description of those roles

The written explanation shall be complete, as brief as possible, simply stated, and provided in language that the
parent/guardian or student can understand.

The district liaison may use an informal process as an alternative to formal dispute resolution procedures, provided
that the parents/guardians or unaccompanied youth have access to the more formal process if informal resolution is
not successful in resolving the matter.

In working with a student's parents/guardians or unaccompanied youth to resolve an enroliment dispute, the district
liaison shall:

1. Inform them that they may provide written and/or oral documentation to support their position

2. Inform them that they may seek the assistance of social services, advocates, and/or service providers in having
the dispute resolved

3. Provide them a simple form that they may use and turn in to the school to initiate the dispute resolution
process

4. Provide them a copy of the dispute form they submit for their records

5. Provide them the outcome of the dispute for their records
When a student’s parent/guardian or an unaccompanied youth involved in the enrollment dispute is an English
learner, Items #1-5 shall be provided either in the native language of the parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth

or through an interpreter, and any additional support needed because of a disability of that parent/guardian or
unaccompanied youth shall be made available without a charge.

If a parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth disagrees with the district liaison's enroliment decision, the decision
may be appealed to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall make a determination within five working days.



If the parent/guardian chooses to appeal the district's placement decision, the district liaison shall forward all written
documentation and related paperwork to the liaison for homeless students at the county office of education.

Pending final resolution of the dispute, including all available appeals, the student shall be immediately enrolled in the
school in which enroliment is sought and shall be allowed to attend classes and participate fully in school activities.
(42 USC 11432, 11434a)

Transportation

The district shall provide transportation for a homeless student to and from the student's school of origin when the
student is residing within the district and the parent/guardian, or the district liaison in the case of an unaccompanied
youth, requests that such transportation be provided. If the student moves outside of district boundaries, but
continues to attend the student's school of origin within this district, the Superintendent or designee shall consult
with the superintendent of the district in which the student is now residing to agree upon a method to apportion the
responsibility and costs of the transportation. (42 USC 11432)

The district shall not be obligated to provide transportation to students who continue attending their school of origin
after they cease to be homeless, unless the formerly homeless student has an IEP that includes transportation as a
necessary related service for the student. (Education Code 48852.7)

Transfer of Coursework and Credits

When a homeless student transfers into a district school, the district shall accept and issue full credit for any
coursework that the student has satisfactorily completed while attending another public school, a juvenile court
school, a charter school, a school in a country other than the United States, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school and
shall not require the student to retake the course. (Education Code 51225.2)

If the homeless student did not complete the entire course, the student shall be issued partial credit for the
coursework completed and shall be required to take the portion of the course that the student did not complete at
the previous school. However, the district may require the student to retake the portion of the course completed if,
in consultation with the holder of educational rights for the student, the district finds that the student is reasonably
able to complete the requirements in time to graduate from high school. Whenever partial credit is issued to a
homeless student in any particular course, the student shall be enrolled in the same or equivalent course, if
applicable, so that the student may continue and complete the entire course. (Education Code 51225.2)

Partial credits shall be awarded on the basis of 0.5 credits for every seven class periods attended per subject. If the
school is on a block schedule, each block schedule class period attended shall be equal to two regular class periods
per subject. Partial credits and grades earned by a student shall be included on the student's official transcript within
two business days of the district’s notification of the student's transfer, as required under Education Code 49069.5.

In no event shall the district prevent a homeless student from taking or retaking a course to meet the eligibility
requirements for admission to the California State University or the University of California. {(Education Code
51225.2)

Applicability of Graduation Requirements

To obtain a high school diploma, a homeless student shall complete all courses required by Education Code 51225.3
and fulfill any additional graduation requirements established by the Governing Board.

However, when a homeless student who has completed the second year of high school transfers into the district
from another school district or transfers between high schools within the district, the student shall be exempted from
all district-adopted coursework and other district-established graduation requirements, unless the district makes a
finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the additional requirements in time to graduate from high



school by the end of the fourth year of high school. Within 30 calendar days of the homeless student's transfer, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify the student, the person holding the right to make educational decisions for
the student, and the district liaison for homeless students of the availability of the exemption and whether the
student qualifies for it. If the Superintendent or designee fails to provide this notification, the student shall be eligible
for the exemption once notified, even if the notification occurs after the student is no longer homeless. (Education
Code 51225.1)

To determine whether a homeless student is in the third or fourth year of high school, the district shall use either the
number of credits the student has earned as of the date of the transfer or the length of the student's school
enrollment, whichever qualifies the student for the exemption. (Education Code 51225.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any homeless student who is granted an exemption and the person
holding the right to make educational decisions for the student how any requirements that are waived will affect the
student's ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution and shall provide information about
transfer opportunities available through the California Community Colleges. (Education Code 51225.1)

The district shall not require or request a homeless student to transfer schools in order to qualify for an exemption
and no request for a transfer solely to qualify for an exemption shall be made by a homeless student, the person
holding the right to make educational decisions for the student, or the district liaison on behalf of the student.
(Education Code 51225.1)

If a homeless student is exempted from local graduation requirements, the exemption shall continue to apply after
the student is no longer homeless or if the student transfers to another school, including a charter school, or school
district. (Education Code 51225.1)

If the Superintendent or designee determines that a homeless student is reasonably able to complete district
graduation requirements within the fifth year of high school, the Superintendent or designee shall: (Education Code
51225.1)

1. Inform the student and, if under 18 years of age, the person holding the right to make educational decisions for
the student, of the option available to the student to remain in school for a fifth year to complete the district's
graduation requirements and how that will affect the ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational
institution

2. Provide information to the homeless student about transfer opportunities available through the California
Community Colleges

3. Upon agreement with the homeless student or with the person holding the right to make educational decisions
for the student if under 18 years of age, permit the student to stay in school for a fifth year to complete the
district's graduation requirements

Eligibility for Extracurricular Activities

A homeless student who enrolls in any district school shall have access to extracurricular and enrichment activities
that are available to all students in the school, including but not limited to, interscholastic sports administered by the
California Interscholastic Federation. (Education Code 48850}

Notification, Complaints, and Posting Requirements

Information regarding the educational rights of homeless students, as specified in Education Code 51225.1 and
51225.2, shall be included in the annual uniform complaint procedures notification distributed to students,
parents/guardians, employees, and other interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622. (Education Code 51225.1,
51225.2)

Any complaint that the district has not complied with requirements regarding the education of homeless students, as
specified in Education Code 51225.1 or 51225.2, may be filed in accordance with the district's procedures in AR
1312.3 - Uniform Compilaint Procedures.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a list of the district's liaison(s} and the contact information for such



liaison(s), as well as specific information on homelessness, including, but not limited to, information regarding the
educational rights and resources available to persons experiencing homelessness, are posted on the district's web
site. (Education Code 48852.6)

Each district school that has a web site shall also post the contact information for the district liaison and the name
and contact information of any employee or other person under contract with the school who assists the district
liaison in completing the liaison's duties pursuant to 42 USC 11432. (Education Code 48852.6)




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 6173: Education For Homeless Children Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board believes that the identification of homeless students is critical to improving the educational
outcomes of such students and ensuring that homeless students have access to the same free and appropriate public
education provided to other students within the district. The district shall provide homeless students with access to

education and other services necessary for such students to meet the same challenging academic standards as other
students.

When there are at least 15 homeless students in the district or a district school, the district's local control and
accountability plan (LCAP) shall include goals and specific actions to improve student achievement and other
outcomes of homeless students. (Education Code 52052, 52060, 52064)

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review and recommend updates to district policies to ensure removal
of any barriers to the education of homeless students and unaccompanied youth. Any such review shall address
identification, enrollment, and retention of such students, including those barriers that are due to absences or
outstanding fees or fines. (42 USC 11432)

The Superintendent or designee shall designate an appropriate staff person to serve as a liaison for homeless
children and youths. The district liaison for homeless students shall fulfill the duties specified in 42 USC 11432 to
assist in identifying and supporting homeless students to succeed in school.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each district school identifies all homeless children and youths and
unaccompanied youths enrolled at the school. (Education Code 48851)

To ensure easy identification of homeless students, the Superintendent or designee shall annually administer a
housing questionnaire developed by the California Department of Education (CDE) to all parents/guardians of
students and all unaccompanied youths. (Education Code 48851)

If the primary language of a student’s parent/guardian or an unaccompanied youth is not English, either the housing
questionnaire shall be made available in the primary language of the student's parent/guardian or the unaccompanied
youth pursuant to Education Code 48985, or an appropriate translation of the housing questionnaire shall be
provided upon request of a student’s parent/guardian or an unaccompanied youth. (Education Code 48851)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district liaison's contact information and other
information on homelessness, including, but not limited to, information regarding the educational rights and
resources available to persons experiencing homelessness, are posted on the district and school web sites as
specified in the accompanying administrative regulation. {(Education Code 48852.6)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that placement decisions for homeless students are based on the
student's best interest as defined in law and administrative regulation.

Each homeless student shall be provided services that are comparable to services offered to other students in the
school, including, but not limited to, transportation, educational programs for which the student meets the eligibility
criteria (such as federal Title | services or similar state or local programs, programs for students with disabilities, and
educational programs for English learners), career and technical education programs, programs for gifted and
talented students, and school nutrition programs. (42 USC 11432)

Homeless students shall not be segregated into a separate school or program based on their status as homeless and
shall not be stigmatized in any way. However, the Superintendent or designee may separate homeless students on
school grounds as necessary for short periods of time for health and safety emergencies or to provide temporary,
special, and supplementary services to meet the unique needs of homeless students. (42 USC 11432, 11433)



The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that information and/or materials for homeless students are provided in
a manner and form understandable to the parents/guardians of homeless students and to unaccompanied youths.

Information about a homeless student's living situation shall be considered part of a student's educational record,
subject to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, shall not be deemed to be directory information as defined
in 20 USC 1232g, and shall not be released without written consent. (42 USC 11432)

The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate with other agencies and entities to ensure that homeless children
and youth are promptly identified, ensure that homeless students have access to and are in reasonable proximity to
available education and related support services, and raise the awareness of school personnel and service providers
of the effects of short-term stays in a shelter and other challenges associated with homelessness. Toward these
ends, the Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with local social services agencies, other agencies or entities
providing services to homeless children and youth, and, if applicable, transitional housing facilities. In addition, the
Superintendent or designee shall coordinate transportation, transfer of school records, and other interdistrict
activities with other local educational agencies. As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall coordinate, within
the district and with other involved local educational agencies, services for homeless students and services for
students with disabilities. (42 USC 11432)

At least annually, the district liaison and other appropriate staff shall participate in professional development and
other technical assistance activities to assist them in identifying and meeting the needs of homeless students. Such
professional development and technical assistance shall include, but are not limited to, training on the definitions of
terms related to homelessness, the signs of homelessness, the steps that should be taken once a potentially
homeless student is identified, and how to connect homeless students with appropriate housing and service
providers. (Education Code 48852.5; 42 USC 11432)

The Superintendent or designee shall report to CDE the number of homeless children and youths and
unaccompanied youths enrolled in the district as identified from the housing questionnaire described above.
{Education Code 48851)

At least annually, the Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board on the identification of and outcomes for
homeless students, which may include, but are not limited to, the housing questionnaire responses, school
attendance, student achievement test results, promotion and retention rates by grade level, graduation rates,
suspension/expulsion rates, and other outcomes related to any goals and specific actions identified in the LCAP.
Based on the evaluation data, the district shall revise its strategies as needed to more effectively identify and support
the education of homeless students.



Exhibit Descriptor Code: 6173(2)
Education For Homeless Children

DISPUTE FORM

Instructions: This form is to be completed by a parent/guardian or student when a dispute
regarding enrollment has arisen. As an alternative to completing this form, the information on
this form may be shared orally with the district's liaison for homeless students.

Date submitted:

Student's name:

Name of person completing form:
Relation to student:

Address:

Email address:

Phone number:

Name of school requested:

I wish to appeal the eligibility, school selection, or enrollment decision made by: ‘

O District liaison [ District Superintendent [ County office of education liaison

Reason for the appeal: You may include an explanation to support your appeal in this space
or provide your explanation orally.

[ have been provided with:
0O A written explanation of the district's decision
O Contact information for the district's homeless liaison
O Contact information for the county office of education's homeless liaison

O Contact information for the state homeless coordinator

A copy of this dispute form

CSBA Policy Management Console Date Adopted: 7/1/2005
Last Revised: 3/1/2022
Last Reviewed: 3/1/2022



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Bylaw 9322: Agenda/Meeting Materials Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019%
Agenda Content

Governing Board meeting agendas shall reflect the district's vision and goals and the Board's focus on student
learning and well-being.

Each agenda shall state the meeting time and location and shall briefly describe each item to be transacted or
discussed, including items to be discussed in closed session. {Government Code 54954.2)

The agenda shall provide members of the public the opportunity to address the Board on any agenda item before or
during the Board's consideration of the item. However, the agenda need not provide an opportunity for public
comment when the agenda item has previously been considered at an open meeting by a committee comprised
exclusively of Board members, provided that members of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment on
the item, before or during the committee's consideration of the item, and the item has not been substantially
changed since the committee considered it. (Government Code 54954.3)

The agenda for a regular Board meeting shall also provide members of the public an opportunity to provide comment
on matters which are not on the agenda but which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Education
Code 35145.5; Government Code 54954.3)

Each agenda for a regular meeting shall list the address designated by the Superintendent or designee for public
inspection of documents related to an open session item that have been distributed to the Board less than 72 hours
before the meeting. (Government Code 54957.5)

The agenda shall include information regarding how, when, and to whom a request for disability-related
accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, may be made by an individual who requires
accommodations or modifications in order to participate in the Board meeting. (Government Code 54954.2)

Each agenda shall include a statement regarding the option for students and parents/guardians to request that
directory information or personal information of the student or parent/guardian, as defined in Education Code 49061
and/or 49073.2, be excluded from the minutes. The agenda shall also state that the request must be made in writing
to the secretary or clerk of the Board.

Agenda Preparation

The Board president and the Superintendent, as secretary to the Board, shall work together to develop the agenda
for each regular and special meeting.

Any Board member or member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed
on the agenda of a regular meeting. The request shall be submitted in writing to the Superintendent or designee with
supporting documents and information, if any, at least one week before the scheduled meeting date. Items submitted
less than a week before the scheduled meeting date may be postponed to a later meeting in order to allow sufficient
time for consideration and research of the issue.

The Board president and Superintendent shall decide whether a request from a member of the public is within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. ltems not within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board may not be
placed on the agenda. In addition, before placing the item on the agenda, the Board president and Superintendent
shall determine if the item is merely a request for information, and if so, respond accordingly.

If the Board president and Superintendent deny a request from a Board member to place an item on the agenda, the
Board member may request the Board to take action to determine whether the item shall be placed on the agenda.






The Superintendent or designee shall mail a copy of the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the
agenda packet to any person who requests the items. The materials shall be mailed at the time the agenda is posted
or upon distribution of the agenda to a majority of the Board, whichever occurs first. (Government Code 54954.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall email a copy of, or a web site link to, the agenda or a copy of all the documents
constituting the agenda packet to any person who requests such items to be delivered by email. If the
Superintendent or designee determines that it is technologically infeasible to do so, a copy of the agenda or a web
site link to the agenda and a copy of all other documents constituting the agenda packet shall be sent to the person
who has made the request in accordance with mailing requirements specified in law. (Government Code 54954.1)

Any request for mailed copies of agendas or agenda packets shall be in writing and shall be valid for the calendar year
in which it is filed. Written requests must be renewed following January 1 of each year. (Government Code 54954.1)

Persons requesting mailing of the agenda or agenda packet shall pay an annual fee, as determined by the
Superintendent or designee, not to exceed the cost of providing the service.

Any document prepared by the district or Board and distributed during a public meeting shall be made available for
public inspection at the meeting. Any document prepared by another person shall be made available for public
inspection after the meeting. These requirements shall not apply to a document that is exempt from public disclosure
under the PRA. (Government Code 54957.5)

Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall make the agenda, agenda packet, and/or any writings distributed
at the meeting available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans
with Disabilities Act. (Government Code 54954.1)




